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SuryaJyoti Life Insurance Co. Ltd. Life emerged through Nepal's Ťrst and historic merger between 
two successful life insurers, Surya Life Insurance Co. Ltd. and Jyoti Life Insurance Co. Ltd, and 
commenced joint operations from 22nd December, 2022. The synergy generated and capitalized 
through the amalgamation has transformed SuryaJyoti Insurance Life Co. Ltd. into one of the 

largest life insurers in terms of Capital Base, Total Investments, Life Fund, Branch Outlets, Agency 
Network, and Policyholders.

SuryaJyoti has established itself as one of the fastest-growing life insurers with unique product 
offerings and created a robust operational foundation capable of processing higher business 
volumes while minimizing risks.

SuryaJyoti now has 176 full-ťedged branches capable of rendering a complete plethora of services 
to its policyholders and agents. The company is also ISO 9001:2015 certiŤed, thus adhering 
to international best practices for prudent management. SuryaJyoti also has some of the most 
unique product offerings in the Nepali life insurance industry and provides the most extensive 
Critical Illness Coverage to date, covering 35 various critical illnesses for a coverage of up to  
Rs. 5 Million.

PAID UP CAPITAL:
Rs. 501 Cr.

TOTAL INVESTMENT:

RS. 4,845 CR.

TOTAL AGENTS:

106,000

TOTAL POLICIES:

35.87 Lakhs
LIFE FUND:

Rs. 4,383 Cr.

TOTAL BRANCHES: 

176

NET WORTH:

RS. 674 Cr.

Rs.

Rs

Key Financial 

Highlights Till End

of Asoj 2082/83 
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Efficiency

Accountability

Positivity

Team Spirit

Care

Innovation

Integrity

VISION
Establish the standard of excellence in the life insurance industry.

MISSION
• To exceed customer expectations by providing innovative products and 

services
• To develop agents into knowledgeable Ťnancial advisors
• To be the best employer fostering a highly professional and meritocratic 

environment.
• To be an entrusted brand with the highest standard of integrity
• To be Ťnancially robust and maximize value for all stakeholders
• To contribute towards the betterment of the society
• To be a good corporate citizen actively participating in the economic 

development of the nation

CORE VALUE
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Honored at the 5th Emerging 
Asia Insurance Awards 2024

SuryaJyoti Life Insurance Company has been awarded 
the prestigious łfth ‘Emerging Insurance Award’ for its 
outstanding achievements in the insurance sector. The award 
was presented during the 5th Emerging Asia Insurance 
Conclave & Awards 2024, organized by the Indian Chamber 
of Commerce at the Rembrandt Hotel in Bangkok, Thailand, 
on 7th February 2025. The event brought together insurance 
stakeholders from across Asia to discuss policies and 
strategies aimed at making the sector more innovative, 
affordable, and sustainable. SuryaJyoti Life received the award 
under the category ‘Best Innovations Led by Technology 
and Insurtech – Nepal,’ highlighting its commitment to 
leveraging digital technology and innovative solutions to 
enhance insurance services in Nepal. The evaluation was 
conducted by esteemed organizations, including PwC India, 
the Insurance Institute of India, and international insurance 
experts. The award was received by Chairman Keshav Prasad 
Bhattarai, with employees Niranjan Regmi and Geeta Basnet 
also present.

At the event’s International Forum on Life Insurance, Director 
Hemant Nahata elaborated on the company’s digital technology 
strategy, sharing insights on the challenges and opportunities 
in Nepal’s insurance sector. This recognition reinforces 
SuryaJyoti Life Insurance’s position as a leader in innovation and 
technology-driven solutions, setting new benchmarks for the 
Nepali insurance industry while contributing to the growth and 
modernization of the insurance sector across Asia.



18th ANNUAL REPORT 

FY 2081/82

7

;"o{Hof]lt nfOkm OG:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld6]8
/lhi68{ sfof{no, lj/f6gu/ – &, df]/ª

skf]{/]6 sfof{noM zfGtf Knfhf, 1fg]Zj/, sf7df08f}+ Email: info@suryajyotilife.com

c7f/f}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef ;DaGwL ;"rgf
k|yd k6s k|sflzt ldltM @)*@÷)(÷)&

cfb®0fLo z] o®wgL dxfg'efjx¿,
o; sDkgLsf]   ldlt @)*@÷)(÷)^ ut]   cfOtaf® -tbg';f® @! l8;]  Da® @)@%_ sf lbg a;]  sf]   ;~rfns ;ldltsf]    
$!@ cf}+ a}  7ssf]   lg0f{o adf]  lhd sDkgLsf]   c7f®f}  + jflif{s ;fwf®0f ;ef lgDg laifox¿df 5nkmn tyf lg0f{o ug{sf nflu 
b]  xfo adf]  lhdsf]   ldlt, :  yfg ® ;dodf a:  g]   ePsf]   x'Fbf ;Dk"0f{ z]  o®wgL dxfg'efjx¿sf]   hfgsf®Lsf]   nflu of]   ;"rgf k|sflzt 
ul®Psf]   5 . 
 
ldlt M @)*@ ;fn kf}if dlxgf #) ut] -tbg';f/ !$ hgj/L @)@^_ a'waf/
:yfg M xf]6n x}l/;g Kofn];, lj/f6gu/ .
;do M laxfg !)M#) ah] 

5nkmnsf ljifox?M

s_ ;fdfGo k|:tfj

!= sDkgLsf] c7f/f}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf ;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6 cWoIfHo"af6 k|:t't x'g] cfly{s jif{ 
@)*!÷*@ sf] jflif{s k|ltj]bg pk/ 5nkmn u/L kfl/t ug]{ .

@= sDkgLsf] n]vf k/LIfssf] k|ltj]bg ;lxtsf] @)*@ ;fn cfiff9 d;fGtsf] jf;nft, ;f]xL ldltdf ;dfKt ePsf] 
cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ sf] gfkmf÷gf]S;fg lx;fj, gub k|jfx ljj/0f Pj+ tt\;DaGwL cg';"rLx? ;lxtsf] ljlQo 
ljj/0f 5nkmn u/L kfl/t ug]{ .

#= n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf] l;kmfl/; cg';f/ sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf !!! adf]lhd cfly{s jif{ @)*@÷*# sf] nflu 
n]vf kl/Ifs lgo'lQm ug]{ tyf lghsf] kfl/>lds lgwf{/0f ug]{ . 

$= ;~rfns ;ldltn] k|:tfj u/] adf]lhd r'Qmf k"FhL ?=%,)!,!(,$&,&(&.$^ sf] !# -t]x|_ k|ltztsf b/n] x'g] /sd 
? ^%,!%,%#,@!#÷^& gub nfef+z -s/ k|of]hg ;d]tsf] nflu_ ljt/0f ug]{ k|:tfj kfl/t ug]{{ .

v_ ljz]if k|:tfj

!= sDkgL P]gsf] bkmf !)% -!_ -u_ adf]lhd cf=j= @)*!÷*@ df sDkgLaf6 ;F:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj 
cGtu{t ePsf vr{sf] cg'df]bg ug]{ .

u_ ljljw

;+rfns ;ldltsf] cf1fn]
sDkgL ;lrj
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;fwf®0f ;ef ;DaGwL hfgsf®L

!_  ;efdf pkl: yt x'g]  z] o®wgL dxfg'efjx¿n]  ;ef xndf k|j] zsf]  nflu ;Ssn z] o® k|df0fkq jf lxtu|fxL vftf vf] lnPsf]  
sfuhft, hf®L k|j] zkq cyjf cfˆgf]  s'g}  cflwsfl®s kl®rokq ;fydf lnO{ cfpg' x'g cg'®f] w 5 .

@_  ;efdf efu lng k|To] s z] o®wgL dxfg'efjn]  ;ef x'g]  : yfgdf pkl: yt eO{ ;ef: yndf ®x] sf]  xflh®L k'l: tsfdf b: tvt 
ug'{kg] {5 . xflh®L k'l: tsf laxfg (M)) ah] b] lv v'nf ®xg] 5 . 

#_  ;ef x'g]  lbg ;efdf ;xefuLtfsf nflu ;ef ;+rfng cjlw ;Ddsf]  nflu v'Nnf ®xg]  5 .
$_  sDkgLsf]  z] o® bflvn vf®] h÷z] o® sf®f] jf® ldlt @)*@÷)(÷!* ut]  Ps lbg aGb ul®g]  5 . z] o® bflvnf vf®] h aGb 

x'g]  cl3Nnf]  lbg cyf{t ldlt @)*@÷)(÷!& ut]  ;Dd g] kfn : 6s PS: r] Gh ln= df sf®f] jf® eO{ ;f]  sf]  & lbg leq 
bflvn vf®] hsf]  nflu z] o® ®lhi6«f® Pg=cfO{=;L= Plzof Soflk6n lnld6] 8, yfkfynLaf6 k|fKt ljj®0fsf]  cfwf®df 
z] o®wgLsf]  ®] s8{ sfod ul®g]  5 . ;f] xL adf] lhd sfod z] o®wgLx¿n]  dfq ;f]  ;efdf efu lng ;Sg] 5g\ . 

%_  ;efdf efu lngsf]  nflu k|ltlgwL -k|f] S;L_ lgo'Qm ug{ rfxg]  z] o®wgLn]  ;Dk'0f{ z] o®sf]  k|ltlglw Pp6}  JolQm x'g]  u®L 
-ljefhg gx'g]  u®L_ k|ltlgwL–kq -k|f] S;L kmf®d_ e®L ldlt @)*@÷)(÷@* ut]  laxfg !)M#) ah]  leq sDkgLsf]  skf] {®] 6 
sfof{nodf btf{ u®fO{ ;Sg' kg] {5 . o;®L k|ltlgwL -k|f] S;L_ lgo'Qm ul®Psf]  JolQm sDkgLsf]  z] o®wgL x'g' clgjfo{ 5 . 

^_  gfafns jf czQm jf dfgl;s ;Gt'ng gePsf z] o®wgLx¿sf]  tkm{af6 sDkgLsf]  z] o® nut lstfadf ;+®Ifssf]  ¿kdf 
gfd btf{ ePsf]  JolQmn]  ;efdf efu lng jf k|ltlgwL tf] Sg kfpg] 5g\ .

&_  s'g}  Ps z] o®wgLn]  Ps eGbf a9L JolQmnfO{ k|ltlgwL -k|f] S;L_ lgo'Qm u®] sf]  cj: yfdf klxnf]  btf{ k|f] S;L dfGo x'g] 5 ® 
lghnfO{ dfq k|ltlglwsf]  x} l;otn]  ;efdf efu lng]  ® dtbfg ug] { clwsf® x'g] 5 . 

*_ ;+o'Qm ¿kdf z] o® vl®b ul®Psf]  cj: yfdf z] o® nut lstfadf klxn]  gfd pNn] v ePsf]  JolQm cyjf ;j{;Ddtaf6 
k|ltlgwL lgo'Qm ul®Psf]  Ps JolQmn]  dfq ;efdf efu lng ® dtbfg ug{ kfpg] 5g\ .

(_ ;efdf efu lng k|ltlgwL -k|f] S;L_ lgo'Qm ul® ;s] kl5 ;DalGwt z] o®wgL : jo+ ;efdf ;xefuL x'g cfPdf z] o®wgLn]  ul® 
lbPsf]  k|ltlgwL -k|f] S;L_ : jtM ab® x'g] 5 .

!)_ ;efdf efu lng k|ltlglw lgo'Qm ul®;s] kl5 z] o®wgLx¿n]  k|ltlglw km] ®abn ug{ rfx] df ;f] sf]  ;'rgf ldlt  
@)*@÷)(÷@* ut]  laxfg !)M#) ah]  leq sDkgLsf]  skf] {®] 6 sfof{no, sf7df08f} +df btf{ u®fO{ ;Sg' kg] {5 .

!!_  s'g}  ;+u7Lt ;+: yf jf sDkgLn]  z] o® vl®b u®] sf]  xsdf sfo{sf®L k|d'vn]  b: tvt u®L dgf] lgt u®] sf]  k|ltlgwLn]  
z] o®jfnfsf]  x} l;otn]  ;efdf efu lng ;Sg' x'g] 5 . 

!@_  5nkmnsf ljifo dWo]  ljljw zLif{s cGtu{t 5nkmn ug{ OR5's z] o®wgLn]  ;ef x'g'eGbf & -;ft_ lbg cufj}  sDkgL 
;lrj dfkm{t ;~rfns ;ldltsf]  cWoIfnfO{ 5nkmnsf]  ljifo lnlvt ¿kdf k] z ug{' kg] {5 .

!#_ ;fwf®0f ;ef ;DaGwL yk hfgsf®Lsf nflu sDkgLsf]  skf] {®] 6 sfof{nodf ;Dks{ ®fVg' x'g cg'®f] w ub{5f} + . 

k'gZrM  jflif{s k|ltj] bg nufotsf ;"rgfx¿ sDkgLsf]  j] e;fO{6 www.suryajyotilife.com df ;d] t x] g{ tyf 8fpgnf] 8 ug{ 
;lsg] 5 . ;fy}  sDkgLsf]  skf] {®] 6 sfof{noaf6 tyf Pg=cfO{=;L= Plzof Soflk6n lnld6] 8, yfkfynLaf6 ;d] t k|fKt 
ug{ ;lsg]  5 .
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k|f] S;L kmf®d
>L ;~rfns ;ldlt

;"o{Hof]lt nfOkm OG:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld6]8

/lhi68{ sfof{no, la/f6gu/ .

laifoM k|ltlglw lgo'Qm u/]sf] af/] .
dxfzo,

======================== lhNnf ============================== g=kf=÷uf=kf= j8f g+= ====== a:g] d÷xfdL =============================================================

============ n] To; sDkgLsf] z]o/wgLsf] x}l;otn] ldlt @)*@÷)(÷#) ut] a'waf/sf lbg x'g] !* cf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f 

;efdf d÷xfdL :jo+ pkl:yt eO{ 5nkmn tyf lg0f{odf ;xefuL x'g g;Sg] ePsf]n] pQm ;efdf d]/f]÷xfd|f] tkm{af6 

efu lng tyf dtbfg ug{sf nflu ======================= lhNnf =============================== g=kf=÷uf=kf= j8f g+= ====== a:g] To; 

sDkgLsf z]o/wgL >L ====================================================== nfO{ d]/f]÷xfd|f] k|ltlglw dgf]lgt ul/ k7fPsf] 5'÷5f}+ . 

Kf|ltlglw lgo'Qm ePsf]  JolQmsf] M    lgj] bs

gfd M    b: tvt

x: tfIf®sf]  gd'gf M    gfd M

z] o®wgL g+=    7] ufgfM

lxtu|fxL vftf g+=    z] o®wgL g+= 

    lxtu|fxL vftf g+= 

ldltM    z] o® ;+Vof

b|i6AoM of]  lgj] bg ;ef x'g' eGbf sDtLdf $* 306f cufj}  sDkgLsf]  ®lhi68{ sfof{nodf k] z ul®;Sg' kg] {5 .

==========================================================================================================================================

;"o{Hof] lt nfOkm OG: of] ®] G; sDkgL lnld6] 8

k|j] z kq

z] o®wgLsf]  gfdM === === === === === === === === === === === === === === === === === === === === === 

z] o®wgLsf]  kl®ro g+=÷lxtu|fxL vftf g+= === === === === === === === === === === === === === z] o® ;+Vof === === === 

;"o{Hof]lt nfOkm OG:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld6]8sf] ldlt @)*@÷)(÷#) ut] a'waf/sf lbg x'g] !* cf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f 

;efdf pkl:yt x'g hf/L ul/Psf] k|j]z kq .

Zf] o®wgLsf]  b: tvt M

b|i6AoM 

!= z] o®wgL cfkm} n]  vfnL sf] i7x¿ eg'{xf] nf . 

@= ;ef sIfdf k|j] z ug{ of]  k|j]z kq k|:t't ug'{ clgjfo{ 5 . 

sDkgL ;lrj

;"o{Hof]lt nfOkm OG:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld6]8
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cfb®0fLo z]  o®wgL dxfg'efjx¿,
;"o{Hof]  lt nfOkm OG:  of]  ®]  G; sDkgL lnld6]  8sf]   o; c7f®f}  + jflif{s 
;fwf®0f ;efdf pkl:  yt x'g' ePsf z]  o®wgL dxfg'efjx¿, ko{j]  Ifs 
k|ltlglwx¿, sDkgLsf kbflwsf®L, sd{rf®L ® kqsf® ldqx¿nfO{ d 
xflb{s :  jfut ® clejfbg ub{5' . cfhsf]   of]   ;ef xfd|f]   sDkgLsf]   
nflu Ps dxTjk"0f{ cj;® xf]  , hxfF xfdL xfd|f]   ljutsf]   k|bz{g, 
ljBdfg r'gf}  tLx¿ tyf eljiosf of]  hgfx¿sf]   af®]  df 5nkmn ug{]   
df}  sf kfpF5f}  + .

oxfFx¿nfO{ cjut g}   5 ;fljssf b'O{ sDkgL ufleO{ ag]  sf]  ]   ;"o{Hof]  lt 
nfOkm OG:  of]  ®]  G; sDkgLsf]   ufleP kZrftsf]   of]   t]  >f]   jflif{s ;fwf®0f 
;ef xf]   ® kl5Nnf tLg}   jif{x¿df xfdLn]   ®fd|f]   k|ult xfl;n u®]  sf 
5f}  + . dh{® ug]  { ®0fg}  lts lg0f{o sfof{Gjog kZrft xfdL lbgfg'lbg 
;an ® ;'b[9 aGb}   uPsf]   s'®f sDkgLsf ljlQo kl®;"rsx¿n]   k'li6 
ul®®x]  sf 5g\ .

cfhsf]   o; ;efdf, xfdL cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷@)*@ sf ljQLo 
ljj®0fx¿ k|:  t't u®L 5nkmn kZrft kfl®t ug{]  5f}  + . o; cjlwdf 
;"o{Hof]  lt nfOkm OG:  of]  ®]  G; sDkgLn]   ®fd|f ljQLo pknlAwx¿ 
xfl;n u®]  sf]   5 eGg kfpFbf d cToGt xlif{t 5' . o; cfly{s jif{df 
xfdLn]   k|yd aLdfz'Ns ?=#,#$,@%,$$,@&)÷– -tLg ca{ rf}  tL; 
s®f]  8 kRrL; nfv rjfnL; xhf® b'O{ ;o ;Q®L_ ® gjLs®0fLo 
aLdfz'Ns ?=*,)!,@%,@!,%%(÷– -cf7 ca{ Ps s®f]  8 kRrL; 
nfv PSsfO{; xhf® kfFr ;o pgG;f7L_ cfh{g u®]  sf 5f}  + . o;®L 
xfd|f]   s'n aLdf z'Ns ;+sng ?=!!,#%,%),^%,*@(÷– -P3f® ca{ 
k}  +tL; s®f]  8 krf; nfv k}  +;¶L xhf® cf7 ;o pgGtL;_ k'Ug uPsf]   
5, h'g cl3Nnf]   jif{sf]   t'ngfdf !(=%# k|ltztsf]   a[l4 xf]   . 

cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷@)*@ sf]   cGt ;Dddf sDkgLsf]   hLjg aLdf 
sf]  ifdf ?=$!,^),%),((,%#%÷– -PsrfnL; ca{ ;f7L s®f]  8 
krf; nfv pgfG;o xhf® kfFr ;o k}  +tL;_ hDdf ®x]  sf]   5 eg]   
sDkgLsf]   s'n nufgL ?=$!,^^,@$,)!,%%%÷– -PsrfnL; ca{ 
5}  ;¶L s®f]  8 rf}  aL; nfv Ps xhf® kfFr ;o krkGg_ ®x]  sf]   5 . o; 
cfly{s jif{df s® afx]  s s'n ?=!,!),$&,@(,@&$÷– -Ps ca{ 

cWoIfHo"sf] dGtJo

s]zj k|;fb e§/fO{ 
cWoIf
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bz s®f]  8 ;}  +tfnL; nfv pgGtL; xhf® b'O{ ;o rf}  xQ®_ d'gfkmf 
cfh{g u®]  sf]   s'®f pNn]  v ug{ kfpFbf cToGt xlif{t 5' . kmntM 
o; cfly{+s jif{df o; sDkgLn]   u®]  sf]   Joj;foaf6 cflh{t ;f]   
d'gfkmfaf6 z]  o®wgL dxfg'efjx¿nfO{ xfn sfod r'Qmf k"FhLsf]   
!# -t]  x|_ k|ltztsf b®n]   x'g]   ®sd ?=^%,!%,%#,@!#÷^& 
-k}  +;¶L s®f]  8 kGw| nfv lqkGg xhf® b'O{ ;o t]  x| ® k}  ;f ;t;¶L_ 
gub nfef+z -s® k|of]  hg ;d]  tsf]   nflu_ k|bfg ug]  { k|:  tfj o; 
ul®dfdo ;ef ;dIf k]  z u®]  sf 5f}  + . 

lgofds lgsfo g]  kfn aLdf k|flws®0fsf]   hLjg aLdf 
sDkgLx¿sf nflu lgwf{l®t ?= % ca{ k"FhL k'¥ofpg' kg]  { k|fjwfg 
sDkgLn]   k'®f ul® ;s]  sf]   ® xfn sDkgLsf]   clws[t k"FhL ?= ^ 
ca{ Pj+ r'Qmf k"FhL ?= %=)! ca{ sfod ®x]  sf]   ® sDkgL ;an 
aGg uPsf]   cj:  yf 5 . g]  kfn aLdf k|flws®0faf6 hf®L ePsf]   
Risk Based Capital & Solvency Directives, 2022 cg';f® 
sDkgLn]   lgwf{l®t cjlw leq}   Risk Based Capital (RBC) nfu' 
u®L;s]  sf]   5 . o; sDkgLn]   aLdf k|flws®0fsf]   lgb{]  zg cg';f® 
NFRS n]  vf k4lt cjnDag u®L ljQLo ljj®0f tof® ug{]   
u®]  sf]   s'®f oxfFx¿nfO{ yfxf g}   5 . hLjg aLdf k]  zf k|fljlws 
®x]  sf]   ® xfn Risk Based Capital (RBC), Own Risk and 
Solvency Assessment (ORSA), Quarterly Risk Reporting 
Template (QRRT) nfu' eO{;s]  sf]   Pj+ International Financial 
Reporting Standard 17 (IFRS-17) rfn' cfly{s jif{ b]  lv nfu' 
x'g]   ® pNn]  lvt laifodf b]  zdf bIf hgzlQmsf]   sdL ®x]  sf]  n]   oL 
k|fljlws laifox¿df yk hgzlQm pTkfbgsf]   cfjZostf ®x]  sf]   
5 . 

sDkgLn]   ahf®sf cfjZostfx¿ ® hgck]  Iffx¿nfO{ Wofgdf 
®fVb}   ;do ;dodf gjLg ® k|efjsf®L hLjg aLdf of]  hgfx¿ 
k|:  t't ub{}   cfPsf]   5 . cfO{P;cf]   ())!M@)!% k|dfl0ft (ISO 
9001:  2015 certiŤed) of]   sDkgL hLjg aLdf;+u ;DalGwt 
cGt®f{li6«o pTs[i6 cEof;x¿sf]   kfngf ug]  { lbzfdf ;b}  j 
k|oTgzLn ®x]  sf]   Joxf]  ®f ;d]  t cg'®f]  w ug{ rfxG5' . xfd|f]   
k|lta4tf s]  jn ljQLo k|bz{gdf ;Lldt 5}  g . xfdL ljleGg 
If]  qx¿df nufgLnfO{ ljljwLs®0f u®]  ® pRr k|ltkmn ;'lglZrt 
ug{]   tkm{ lg®Gt® ;lqmo 5f}  + .

sDkgL ;+:  yfut ;fdflhs pQ®bfloTj ;DaGwL sfo{df ;d]  t 
lqmofzLn ®x]  sf]   5 . ;+:  yfut ;fdflhs pQ®bfloTj cGtu{t 
ljut b]  lv g}   lzIff, :  jf:  Yo, b}  ljk|sf]  k Joj:yfkg, ;fdflhs 

¿kdf lk5l8Psf ju{sf]   cfo cfh{g Ifdtf clea[l4, cflb 
If]  qx¿df ljljw k|sf®sf]   ;xof]  u ub}  { cfO®x]  sf 5f}  + . g]  kfndf 
xfn;fn}   ePsf]   h]  g–hL cfGbf]  ngsf]   qmddf gLlh, ;fj{hlgs 
tyf ;®sf®L ef}  lts ;+®rgfdf cfuhgL ® tf]  8kmf]  8 eO{ 7"nf]   
Iflt ePsf]   x'Fbf g]  kfn ;®sf®n]   :  yfkgf u®]  sf]   …  ef}  lts k"jf{wf® 
k'glg{df{0f sf]  ifÚ   df ;+:  yfut ;fdflhs pQ®bfloTj (CSR) 
cGtu{t ?=!,%),)),)))÷– -Ps s®f]  8 krf; nfv dfq_ 
cfly{s ;xof]  u u®]  sf 5f}  + .

g]  kfnsf]   hLjg aLdf Joj;fo r'gf}  tL ljxLg cj:  yfdf 5}  g . 
ahf®df hLjg aLdssf]   7"nf]   ;+Vof, n3'aLdf sDkgLx¿sf]   
pkl:  ylt, ;fgf]   ahf®, cfd hgtfdf aLdf ;fIf®tfsf]   sdL, 
b]  zdf Go"g cfly{s a[l4sf]   cj:  yf, h:  tf s'®fx¿n]   hLjg 
aLdf ahf®nfO{ k|efljt kf®]  sf 5g\ . o:  tf r'gf}  tLx¿af6 >[lht 
hl6ntfx¿ lrb}  { sDkgLn]   kf]  ln;L xf]  N8®nfO{ l56f]  , ;Ifd ® 
k|efjsf®L aLdf ;]  jf k|bfg ug]  {, aLdf ahf®sf]   cWoog u®L 
cfjZostf cg';f® gljg hLjg aLdf of]  hgfx¿ Nofpg]  , ArtiŤcial 
Intelligence (AI) sf]   k|of]  usf]   ;fy}   plbodfg cfw'lgs l8hL6n 
® ;"rgf k|ljlwsf]   k|of]  udf Jofkstf Nofpg]   Pj+ sd{rf®L, aLdf 
clestf{x¿sf]   ;Lk ® bIftf a9fpg]  , nufotsf Joj;fo a[l4df 
;xof]  uL lqmofsnfkdf hf]  8 lbg]   gLlt sDkgLn]   lnPsf]   5 . 

cGTodf, 
sDkgLsf]   ;';+rfngdf k|fKt eO®x]  sf]   lg®Gt® ;xof]  u ® dfu{ 
lgb{]  zgsf nflu d g]  kfn ;®sf®, g]  kfn aLdf k|flws®0f, 
g]  kfn lwtf]  kq af]  8{, sDkgL ®lhi6«f®sf]   sfof{no, g]  kfn :  6s 
PS;r]  Gh lnld6]  8, l;l8P; P08 lSnol®Ë lnld6]  8 tyf cGo 
;®f]  sf®jfnf lgsfox¿ k|lt xflb{s s[t1tf 1fkg ug{ rfxG5' . 
;b}  j ;'emfj, ;®;Nnfx tyf dfu{lgb{]  zg u®L ;xof]  u k'¥ofpg]   
z]  o®wgL dxfg'efjx¿nfO{ d ljz]  ift wGojfb lbg rfxG5' ® 
eljiodf klg o;}   k|sf®sf]   ;xof]  usf]   ck]  Iff ub{5' .

cfhsf]   o; ;efdf oxfFx¿n]   lbg'ePsf]   ax'd"No ;do ® 
;xeflutfsf nflu pkl:  yt ;a}  nfO{ k'gM wGojfb eGg rfxG5' .

wGojfb Û 

 s]  zj k|;fb e§®fO{ 

 cWoIf
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o; ;efsf ;efkltTj u|x0f ul®®xg' ePsf ;"o{Hof] lt nfOkm OG: of] ®] G; 
sDkgL lnld6] 8sf]  ;~rfns ;ldltsf cfb®0fLo cWoIfHo', 
;~rfnsHo'x¿, z] o®wgL dxfg'efjx¿, o; ;efsf]  ul®df a9fpg 
xfd|f]  lgdGq0ff : jLsf® u®L kfNg' ePsf ljleGg lgodgsf®L lgsfosf 
k|ltlglwHo'x?, sDkgLsf]  afXo n] vfkl®IfsHo', tyf ;d: t ;"o{Hof] lt 
nfOkm kl®jf®,

g] kfnsf]  hLjg aLdf If] qdf ;] jf k|bfg ul®®x] sf b'O{ ;kmn hLjg aLdf 
sDkgLx¿ ;"of{ nfOkm tyf Hof] lt nfOkm larsf]  klxnf]  ® P] ltxfl;s dh{® 
kZrft\ ;"o{Hof] lt nfOkm OG: of] ®] G; sDkgL lnld6] 8 sfod eO{ … hLjgsf]  
nfluÚ  eGg]  d'n gf®fsf ;fy g] kfnsf]  hLjg aLdf If] qdf plePsf]  ® 
sDkgLsf]  r'Qmf k"FhL, s'n nufgL, hLjg aLdf sf] if, zfvf ;~hfn, 
Ph] G;L g] 6js{, aLldtsf]  ;+Vof cflb ;d] tsf]  cfwf®df g] kfnsf]  hLjg 
aLdf If] q s}  Ps ;an, pTs[i6 tyf cu|0fL sDkgLsf]  ¿kdf ;] jf k|bfg ug{ 
;kmn ePsf]  tYo oxfFx¿df ®fVg rfxG5' .

sDkgLsf]  cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ sf]  ljlQo ljj®0f kfl®t ug{sf]  nflu 
o; ;fwf®0f ;efsf]  cfof] hgf ul®Psf]  Aoxf] ®f ;ef ;dIf hfgsf®L u®fpg 
rfxG5' .

cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ df ;"o{Hof] lt nfOkm OG: of] ®] G; sDkgLn]  klxnf] kN6 
?=!))) s®f] 8 eGbf a9L s'n ?=!!,#%,%),^%,*@(÷– -P3f® ca{ 
k} +tL; s®f] 8 krf; nfv k} +;¶L xhf® cf7 ;o pgGtL;_ aLdfz'Ns cfh{g 
ug'{sf ;fy}  o; sDkgLn]  ?=$!,^),%),((,%#%÷– -PsrfnL; ca{ 
;f7L s®f] 8 krf; nfv pgfG;o xhf® kfFr ;o k} +tL;_ sf]  hLjgaLdf 
sf] if v8f ug{ ;kmn ePsf]  5 . cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ df sDkgLsf]  s'n 
nufgL ?=$!,^^,@$,)!,%%%÷– -PsrfnL; ca{ 5} ;¶L s®f] 8 rf} aL; 
nfv Ps xhf® kfFr ;o krkGg_ ®x] sf]  5 . o;}  cfly{s jif{df sDkgLn]  
s® afx] s ?=!,!),$&,@(,@&$÷– -Ps ca{ bz s®f] 8 ;} +tfnL; nfv 
pgGtL; xhf® b'O{ ;o rf} xQ®_ d'gfkmf cfh{g u®] sf]  Aoxf] ®f hfgsf®L 
u®fpFb5' . ;fy}  sDkgLn]  o;}  ul®dfdo ;ef ;dIf xfn sfod ®x] sf]  r'Qmf 
k"FhLsf]  !# -t]x|_ k|ltzt gub nfef+z -s® ;d] t_ k|: tfj ul®Psf]  Joxf] ®f 
hfgsf®L u®fpg kfpFbf dnfO{ v'zL nfu] sf]  5 .

sDkgLsf]  pNn] lvt ;kmntf cg'ejL ;~rfns ;ldltsf]  dfu{bz{g ® 
b'®bzL{ gLlt, Joj: yfkgsf]  pTs[i6 hf] lvd Joj: yfkgsf]  cEof;, ;Ifd 
cfGtl®s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL, ;+: yfut ;'zf;g, g} lts d'No ® dfGotfnfO{ 
cfTd;fy ug'{sf ;fy}  k|rlnt gLlt lgod, lgofdgsf®L lgsfox¿sf]  
lgb] {zgx¿sf]  k|efjsf®L sfof{Gjog tyf sDkgLsf ;Dk"0f{ sd{rf®Lx¿ 

k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[tHo"sf] dGtJo

k|sfz ljqmd vqL 
k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t
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tyf clestf{x¿sf]  cxf] ®fq cys kl®>dsf]  kmn g}  xf]  . t;y{ 
;~rfns ;ldlt nufot Joj: yfkg tyf ;Dk"0f{ sd{rf®Lx¿ k|lt 
xflb{s cfef® JoQm ub} { cfufdL lbgx¿df ;d] t lbzflgb] {z, ;fy ® 
;xof] usf]  ck] Iff ub{5' .

aLdf ahf®df cj;®sf ;fy}  r'gf} ltx¿ klg ®x] sf 5g\ . cGt®f{li6«o 
: t®df ljleGg ®fi6«x¿ aLr rln®x] sf]  åGb ljz] if u®L ®l;of tyf 
o'qm] g Pj+ Oh®fon tyf xdf; larsf]  o'4, dWok"j{sf d'n'ssf ;fy}  
ljZjsf cGo s] xL d'n'sx¿ larsf]  åGb, s] xL 7"nf cy{tGq ljrsf]  
Jofkf/ tgfj cflbsf]  sf®0fn]  ljZj cy{tGqdf k|efj kg'{sf]  ;fy}  
ljZjJofkL¿kdf cfly{s ultljlwx¿ k|efljt ePsf 5g\ . o;sf]  
k|ToIf tyf ck|ToIf k|efj g] kfndf ;d] t kg{ uof]  . g] kfndf ljut 
s] xL jif{ b] lv cTolws jiff{ tyf af9L klx®f] sf]  sf®0f ;8s tyf 
phf{ k"jf{wf®df 7"nf]  wghgsf]  Iflt tyf xfn;fn}  ePsf]  h] g–hL 
cfGbf] ngsf]  qmddf gLlh, ;fj{hlgs tyf ;®sf®L ef} lts ;+®rgfdf 
cfuhgL ® tf] 8kmf] 8 eO{ 7"nf]  Iflt ePsf]  x'Fbf cfly{s If] q yk 
k|efljt ePsf]  5 . g] kfnsf]  a} +lsË If] qdf clws t®ntf ®x] tfklg 
shf{ lj: tf® ck] lIft ¿kdf x'g g;Sg', nufgLsf]  l;ldt If] q,  
36\bf]  Aofhb®, Go"g cfly{s ultljlw, ck] Iffs[t ¿kdf ljsf; ah] 6 
vr{ x'g g;Sg', a} b] lzs nufgLdf sdL cfpg', pTkfbgzLn If] qdf 
nufgL ;+s'rg, hgr] tgfsf]  cefj, hgzlQmsf]  ljb] z knfog, 
®fhlglts cl: y®tf h: tf sf®0fx¿n]  b] zsf]  ;Dk"0f{ cfly{s If] q, 
k"FhL ahf® nufot aLdf ahf®df ;d] t ;f] sf]  c;®, ptf® r9fj 
tyf k|lts'n l: ylt b] lvof]  . oL k|lts'ntfx¿ Pj+ hLjg aLdf 
sDkgLx¿ lar Joj;fodf a9] sf]  k|lt: kwf{sf afah"b klg sDkgL 
cfˆgf]  p4] Zo k|flKtsf nflu lg®Gt® k|oTgzLn ®xFb}  cfPsf]  5 . o: tf 
r'gf} ltx¿nfO{ Go'lgs®0f ug{ k|ljlwsf]  pRrtd k|of] usf ;fy}  yk pkfo 
tyf ®0fgLltx¿ cjnDag ub} { ;+: yfut ;'zf;gdf z'Go ;xgl;ntf 
ckgfO{ kf®bzL{tf, hjfkmb] lxtf tyf lhDd] jf®Lkg nufot ;'zf;gsf 
l;¢fGtx¿ tyf gLlt lgodx¿sf]  k|efjsf®L sfo{fGjog ul® cuf8L 
a9L®x] sf 5f} + . 

sDkgLsf]  xfn;Ddsf]  k|fKt pknlAwnfO{ ;ldIff ubf{ sDkgLsf]  
Joj;fo a[l4 x'Fb}  cfPsf]  5 . sDkgLn]  rfn' cfly{s jif{sf]  nflu 
‘We can. ’ gf®f lnO{ sDkgLn]  lnPsf]  x®] s ®0fgLlt o;} df s] Gb|Lt ®x] ® 
cuf8L a9] sf] , ;a}  Core Business Process nfO{ Digitalize u®L 
aLldt tyf ;] jfu|fxLx¿nfO{ l56f]  5l®tf]  tyf pTs[i6 ;] jf pknAw 
u®fpg]  sfo{sf]  nflu sDkgL k|lta4 ®x] sf] , hgzlQmsf]  cfGtl®s 
tyf afXo tflnd tyf k|lzIf0fdf ;d] t ljz] if hf] 8 lbO{ bIf u®fpg'sf]  
;fy}  aLldt tyf clestf{x¿nfO{ pTs[i6 ;] jf k|bfg ul®cfPsf]  5 . 
hLjg aLdf Joj;fo d'VotM Ph] G;L cfwfl®t Joj;fo ePsf] n]  
aLdf clestf{x¿sf]  dxTjk"0f{ e'ldsf ®xg]  x'Fbf sDkgLn]  clestf{ 
pTkfbg tyf ljsf;df ljz] if Wofg lbO{Psf] , clestf{sf]  ljZjf; ® 
pgLx¿sf]  bIftf clea[l4 u®L Joj;fo k|jw{g ug{sf]  nflu b] zJofkL 
¿kdf clestf{ tflndsf]  ;fy}  k'gtf{huLs®0f sfo{qmdx¿ ;+rfng 
ug] { ul®Psf]  5 . aLdfn] v hfl® eP kZrft\ aLldtx¿nfO{ ;xhtfsf 

;fy ljleGg ;] jfx¿ ;lhn}  pknAw u®fpg After Sales Service 
df klg ljz] if Wofg lbg'sf]  ;fy}  ;] jfsf]  u'0f: t®df ;'wf® ul®Psf]  
Pj+ Customer feedback lng]  cEof; z'? u®] sf 5f} + . To;}  u®L 
sDkgLsf]  ;] jf k|jfx, ljZj;lgotf tyf u|fxs ;Gt'li6 dfkg u®L 
u|fxs ;] jf l56f]  5l®tf]  tyf e®kbf] { agfpgsf]  nflu Turn Around 
Time (TAT) nfu' ul®Psf]  5 . aLdfn] vsf]  lwtf] df k|jfx x'g]  shf{ 
(Policy Loan) k|lqmofnfO{ ;®n, ;xh ® l56f]  5l®tf]  u®fpgsf nflu 
sDkgLn]  aLdf If] qdf g}  klxnf]  k6s l8lh6n dfWodaf6 eKarja ;] jf 
k|bfg ul®cfPsf]  5 . ;fy}  ArtiŤcial Intelligence (AI) sf]  k|of] uaf6 
;] jfu|fxLx¿nfO{ ;xh, l56f] –5l®tf]  tyf k|efjsf®L ;] jf k|bfg ug] { 
sfo{df sDkgL cufl8 a9L®x] sf]  5 . 

g] kfn aLdf k|flws®0faf6 hf®L ePsf]  nufgL lgb] {lzsfdf pNn] lvt 
Aoj: yfx¿sf]  clwgdf ®xL sDkgLn]  ljleGg If] qdf nufgL ub} { cfPsf]  
® sDkgLsf]  nufgLsf]  7'nf]  lx: ;f a} +s tyf ljlQo ;+: yfx¿sf]  d'2tL 
lgIf] kdf ®x] sf] df xfn a} +s tyf ljlQo ;+: yfx¿sf]  d'2tL lgIf] ksf]  
Aofhb® 36\g uO{ cToGt Go'g Aofhb® sfod ®x] sf]  ljBdfg cj: yfdf 
cGo nufgLsf If] qx¿ klxrfg u®L nufgLnfO{ ljljlws®0f u®L a9L 
eGbf a9L k|ltkmn k|fKt x'g ;Sg]  If] qdf nufgL lj: tf® ug] { sfo{nfO{ 
lg®Gt®tf lbO{Psf]  5 . pbfx®0fsf]  nflu, ;''b'® klZrd k|b] zsf]  wgu9L 
l: yt kfFr tf®]  xf] 6ndf ul®Psf]  nufgLnfO{ lng ;lsG5 . To;} u®L 
nufgL ljljlws®0f tyf lj: tf® ug] { p2] Zon]  o; sDkgLsf]  ;xfos 
sDkgLsf]  ¿kdf nufgL sDkgL : yfkgf ug] { lg0f{o eO{ btf{ k|lqmofdf 
®x] sf]  5 . nufgLstf{sf]  ck] Iff cg'¿k lbuf] ¿kdf sDkgLsf]  Joj;fo 
a[l4 u®L aLldt tyf nufgLstf{x¿nfO{ pRr k|ltkmn lbg sDkgL 
k|of;®t ®x] sf]  ® xfn o; sDkgLsf]  ;Ne] G;L ®] l;of]  (Solvency 
Ratio) !=^% k|ltzt ®x] sf]  x'Fbf sDkgL cfˆgf]  bfloTj axg ug{ ;Ifd 
®x] sf]  Joxf] ®f ;d] t ul®dfdo ;ef ;dIf JoQm ug{ rfxG5' .
 
cGTodf, 
sDkgLsf]  ;+rfngdf cleefjssf]  e"ldsf lgjf{x ul® lbzflgb] {z ug] { 
;~rfns ;ldlt, g] kfn aLdf k|flws®0f, g] kfn lwtf] kq af] 8{ nufot 
lgofds lgsfox¿, ;Dk"0f{ z] o®wgL dxfg'efjx¿nfO{ oxfFx¿n]  lg®Gt® 
¿kdf k'¥ofpg' ePsf]  ;xof] u ® ljZjf;sf nflu xflb{s wGojfb tyf 
s[t1tf 1fkg ub{5' .

;fy}  ljleGg k|lts'n kl®l: yltsf afjh'b Joj;fodf cgj®t vl6O{ 
sDkgLsf]  ;kmntfnfO{ ;jf] {kl® 7fgL dg, jrg ® sd{n]  ct'nlgo 
¿kdf pTs[i6 of] ubfg k'¥ofpg' x'g]  ;xsdL{ ;fyLx¿sf]  of] ubfgsf]  
pRr sb® ub} {, sDkgLsf]  d] ?b08sf]  ¿kdf ®x] sf clestf{x¿ tyf o; 
sDkgLdf aLdf ug'{x'g]  ;Dk"0f{ aLldt dxfg'efjx¿ k|lt xflb{s s[t1tf 
1fkg ub} { eljiodf klg oxfFx¿sf]  ;fy ® ;xof] usf]  ck] Iff ub{5' .

wGojfb Û 
   k|sfz ljqmd vqL
 k|d'v sfo{sf®L clws[t 
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;+rfns ;ldlt

>L e/t s];L 
sDkgL ;lrj

>L s]zj k|;fb e§/fO{ -cWoIf_
cWoIf >L s] zj k|;fb e§®fO{Ho" ;+: yfks z] o®wgL >L ljzfn 
ldg®N; P08 dfO{G; k|f=ln= sf]  tkm{af6 ;+: yfks ;d'x cGtu{t 
o; sDkgLsf]  ;+rfns ;ldltdf k|ltlglwTj ul®®xg' ePsf]  
5 . cy{zf: qdf : gftsf] Q® ® sfg"gdf : gfts pkflw k|fKt pxfF 
lghfdtL ;] jfdf nfdf]  ;do sfo{®t ®xL g] kfn ;®sf®sf]  ;lrj 
kbaf6 ;] jf lgj[t JolQmTj x'g'x'G5 . g] kfn ;®sf®sf]  ;] jfdf nfdf]  
cg'ej xfl;n ug{' ePsf pxfF xfn Jofj;flos sfo{ nufot 
;fdflhs ;] jfdf ;d] t lqmoflzn ®xFb}  cfpg' ePsf]  5 . 

>L x]dGt gfx6f -;+rfns_
;+rfns >L x]  dGt gfx6fHo" sDkgLsf]   ;j{;fwf®0f 
z]  o®wgL ;d'xaf6 ;+rfns ;ldltdf k|ltlglwTj ul®®xg' 
ePsf]   5 . PSh]  So'l6e Pd=lj=P= pkflw k|fKt pxfF 
Jofkf® Joj;fosf]   If]  qdf ;lqmo JolQmTj x'g'x'G5 . xlg 
O{G6®k|fO{h]  h k|f=ln= tyf lh la l; k|f=ln= sDkgLsf 
;+rfns ®xg' ePsf pxfF aLdf tyf a}  +lsÍ If]  qdf ;+rfns 
eO{ nfdf]   sfof{g'ej k|fKt JolQmTj x'g'x'G5 . tTsflng a}  +s 
ckm Plzof g]  kfn ln= Pj+ s}  nfz ljsf; a}  +sdf ;+rfns 
kbdf ®lx sfo{ ul®;Sg' ePsf pxfF xfn Jofkf/ Joj;fosf]   
If]  qdf lqmoflzn x'g'x'G5 . 

>L r"8fdl0f b]jsf]6f -;+rfns_
;+rfns >L r"8fdl0f b]  jsf]  6fHo" sDkgLsf]   ;+rfns 
;ldltdf :  jtGq ;+rfnssf]   e'ldsfdf ®xg' ePsf]   5 . 
hg k|zf;gdf :  gftsf]  Q® pkflw k|fKt pxfF g]  kfn ;®sf®, 
cy{ dGqfno cGtu{tsf]   ®fhZj ;d'x cGtu{tsf ljleGg 
lhDd]  jf®Ldf ®xL tLg bzs eGbf a9Lsf]   sfo{ cg'ej k|fKt 
JolQmTj x'g'x'G5 . pxfF s® ljz]  if1 tyf a}  +lsË If]  qsf]   
;d]  t cg'ejL Pj+ s'zn uLtsf® klg x'g'x'G5 . pxfF xfn 
Jofj;flos sfo{ tyf ;fdflhs ;]  jf nufot ;f+uLlts 
If]  qdf ;d]  t lqmoflzn x'g'x'G5 .

>L gldtf zdf{ -;+rfns_
;+rfns >L gldtf zdf{Ho" ;+: yfks z] o®wgL >L k'hf 
sG: 6«S;g g] kfn k|f=ln= sf]  tkm{af6 ;+: yfks ;d'x 
cGtu{t ;+rfns ;ldltdf k|ltlglwTj ul®®xg' ePsf]  5 . 
Pd=lj=P;= pkflw k|fKt pxfFn]  cfO{l;Pkml; kmfO{gfG; 
ln= df sfo{ ug'{sf ;fy}  k|'8] lG;on OG: of] ®] G; sDkgL ln= 
Pj+ km] 8] ®n l®OG: of] ®] G; a|f] s;{ ln= sf]  ;+rfns kbdf ®lx 
sfo{ cg'ej xfFl;n u®L ;Sg' ePsf]  5 . pxfF xfn Jofkf/ 
Joj;fosf]  If] qdf lqmoflzn x'g'x'G5 .

>L cfsfz uf]N5f -;+rfns_
;~rfns >L cfsfz uf] N5fHo" sDkgLsf]  ;j{;fwf®0f 
z] o®wgL ;d'xaf6 ;~rfns ;ldltdf k|ltlglwTj ul®®xg' 
ePsf]  5 . jfl0fHo zf: qdf : gfts pkflw k|fKt pxfF uf] N5f 
cu{gfO{h] zgsf]  Director x'g'x'G5 . pxfF ;fljs Hof] lt nfOkm 
OG: of] ®] G; sDkgLsf]  ;~rfns ®xL nfdf]  sfof{g'ej k|fKt 
AolQmTj x'g'x'G5 . xfn The American Chamber of 
Commerce in Nepal (AmCham Nepal) sf]  Board 

Member/Founding Member sf ;fy}  Nepal Foreign 
Trade Association sf]  Executive Committee 
Member ;d] t ®xg' ePsf]  5 . 

>L lk|of tfon -;+rfns_
;+rfns >L lk|of tfonHo" sDkgLsf]   ;j{;fwf®0f z]  o®wgL 
;d'xaf6 ;+rfns ;ldltdf k|ltlglwTj ul®®xg' ePsf]   5 . 
Pd=lj=P= pkflw k|fKt pxfF ;fljs Hof]  lt nfOkm OG:  of]  ®]  G; 
sDkgLsf]   ;+rfns ®xL nfdf]   sfof{g'ej k|fKt JolQmTj 
x'g'x'G5 . pxfFn]   lgn;]  g, sf7df08f}  df cf® Pd P; SnfOG6 
;le{; PSh's]  l6esf]   ¿kdf sfo{ ug'{sf ;fy}   FACTS g]  kfn, 
sf7df08f}  +df jl®i7 SnfOG6 ;le{; clws[tsf]   ¿kdf sfo{ 
cg'ej ;d]  t ®x]  sf]   5 . alkm{ l:  j6;sf]   ;+rfns ;d]  t ®xg' 
ePsf pxfF xfn Jofkf/ Joj;fosf]   If]  qdf lqmoflzn x'g'x'G5 .

>L cflzif s'df/ cu|jfn -;+rfns_
;+rfns >L cflzif s'df® cu|jfnHo" ;+: yfks z] o®wgL >L 
k'hf OG6®g] zgn g] kfn k|f=ln= sf]  tkm{af6 ;+: yfks ;d'x 
cGtu{t ;+rfns ;ldltdf k|ltlglwTj ul®®xg' ePsf]  5 . 
OG6®g] zgn ljlhg] z P8ldlgi6«] ;gdf : gftsf] Q® pkflw k|fKt 
pxfF ;fljs ;"of{ nfOkm OG: of] ®] G; sDkgL ln= df ^ jif{ eGbf 
a9L cjlw;Dd ;+rfns kbdf ®lx sfo{ cg'ej xfFl;n u®L 
;Sg' ePsf]  JolQmTj x'g'x'G5 . pxfF xfn Unf] jn 6«] l8Ë sG;g{ 
k|f=ln=, Plzog l8l;6«Ao'6;{ k|f=ln= tyf ;fpy Plzog 
j] e®] h] h k|f=ln= sf]  k|aGw ;+rfns x'g'x'G5 .



;"o{Hof]lt nfOkmsf] df]afOn Pkdf ;Dk"0f{ ;'ljwfx? pknAw 5g\ . 
cfh} 8fpgnf]8 u/L hfgsf/L lncf}+ / 9'Ss xf]cf}+

aLdfn]v ;DaGwL 
;Dk"0f{ hfgsf/L

sldzg tyf gljs/0f 
;DaGwL ;Dk"0f{ 

hfgsf/L

 OGsd :6]6d]G6sf] 
hfgsf/L

l6d Joj;fo tyf  
k|f]T;fxg ;DaGwL 

;Dk"0f{ ljj/0f 

clestf{ ;+hfnsf] 
ljj/0f

shf{ ;DaGwL ;Dk"0f{ 
hfgsf/L

d]l8sn l86]n 
;lxtsf] aLdfz'Ns 

SofNs'n]6/

sfo{tflnsf tyf k';  
gf]l6lkms]zg
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

Yagya Bahadur Raut
Head - Agency Service

Ashusen Tamang
Head – Re-Insurance & 

Analytics

 Bibek Gautam
Head - Human Resource

Jayandra Dongol
Head – Internal Audit & 

Compliance

Geeta Basnet
Head - Underwriting and Policy 

Servicing

Ram Prasad Thapaliya
Head - Legal and Claim

Nirnjan Regmi
Head - Information Technology

Ashish Gyawali
Head - Finance

Bishal Bikram Shah
Head - Customer Service

Ramesh Kumar KC
Head - Admin

Ashish Shrestha
Head - Risk Management

Meghendra Prakash Giri
Chief Branding & 

Communications

Suresh Raj Joshi
Chief Technology OǙcer

Uttam Acharya
Head - Agency Training & 

Development
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PROVINCE HEAD

Mr. Madan Kumar Gautam
Province Head - Koshi

Mr. Tara Bahadur Dahal
Province Head - Madhesh

Mr. Prem Prasad Timilsena
Province Head - Karnali

Mr. Mohan Puri
Province Head - Sudurpaschim

Mr. Charan Das Timalsena
Province Head - Bagmati

Mr. Ramji Prasad Baral
Province Head - Gandaki

Mr. Prem Prasad Aryal
Province Head - Lumbini
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cfb®0fLo z] o®wgL dxfg'efjx¿, 
;"o{Hof] lt nfOkm OG: of] ®] G; sDkgL lnld6] 8sf]  !* cf} + jflif{s ;fwf®0f ;efdf ;xefuL x'g kfNg' ePsf pkl: yt ;Dk"0f{ z] o®wgL 
dxfg'efjx¿ tyf cfdlGqt ;Dk"0f{ dxfg'efjx¿nfO{ sDkgLsf]  ;~rfns ;ldlt Pj+ d] ®f]  JolQmut tkm{af6 xflb{s : jfut tyf clejfbg 
JoQm ub{5' . 

cfhsf]  o; !* cf} + jflif{s ;fwf®0f ;efdf ;"o{Hof] lt nfOkm OG: of] ®] G; sDkgL lnld6] 8sf]  cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ sf]  n] vf k®LIf0f 
ePsf]  ljQLo ljj®0fx¿ ® ;f] xL cjlwsf]  jflif{s k|ltj] bg k|: t't ug{ kfpFbf dnfO{ v'zL nfu] sf]  5 . o; ;fwf®0f ;ef ;dIf sDkgL P] g, 
@)^# -klxnf]  ;+zf] wg_ sf]  bkmf !)( adf] lhd sDkgLsf]  cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ sf]  cfly{s ljj®0fx¿ ;lxtsf]  jflif{s k|ltj] bg 
5nkmn Pj+ cg'df] bgsf]  nflu k|: t't u®] sf]  5' . 

!= ljut jif{sf]  sf®f] jf®sf]  l;+xfjnf] sg M

sDkgLn]  ub} { cfPsf]  hLjg aLdf Joj;fo clwNnf]  jif{x¿sf]  t'ngfdf qmdzM a[l4 x'Fb}  uPsf]  5 . b] zdf ljBdfg cl: y® ®fhg} lts tyf 
ljlQo cj: yfsf afah'b Joj;fo lj: tf® Pj+ k|jw{g ug{ sDkgLn]  clVtof® u®] sf ®0fgLlts of] hgfx¿sf]  kl®0ffd : j¿k sDkgLsf]  
sf®f] jf®df a[l¢ x'Fb}  cfPsf]  5 . ljlQo ljj®0f Nepal Financial Reporting Standard (NFRS) adf] lhdsf]  ;j{dfGo n] vfsf]  l;4fGtsf 
cfwf®df tof® ug] { ul®Psf]  5 . sDkgLn]  ljut kfFr cfly{s jif{x¿df u®] sf]  hLjg aLdf Joj;fosf]  sf®f] jf® tyf k|fKt pknlAwsf d'Vo 
;"rsx¿ Zf] o®wgL dxfg'efjx¿ ;dIf lgDg tflnsfdf k|: t't u®] sf]  5' .

ljj/0f cf=j @)*!÷*@ cf=j @)*)÷*! cf=j @)&(÷*) cf=j @)&*÷&( cf=j @)&&÷&*

k|yd aLdfz'Ns 3,342,544,270 2,515,825,272 2,198,370,269 2,017,885,040  1,972,748,898 

gljs/0f aLdfz'Ns 8,012,521,559 6,983,641,147 5,141,959,760  3,013,597,744  2,260,832,982 

s'n aLdfz'Ns 11,355,065,829 9,499,466,419 7,340,330,029  5,031,482,785  4,233,581,879 

hLjg aLdf sf]if 41,605,099,535 33,712,064,839 27,299,317,186 14,066,599,743 10,701,488,433 

s'n nufgL -d'2tL lgIf] k, z] o® tyf 
cGo If] qdf u®] sf]  nufgL_

41,662,401,555 34,959,986,739 28,932,719,455 14,813,656,100  11,735,700,939 

v'b d'gfkmf -s/ afx]s_ 1,104,729,274 1,194,369,797 444,182,839  163,306,354  283,462,849 

g]6jy{ 6,674,103,920 7,008,514,942 7,265,967,625  3,176,300,748  3,012,994,391 

clestf{ ;+Vof 101,962 93,134 88,622  53,331  46,680 

zfvf sfof{no 173 177 182  150  111 

bfaL e'QmfgL 3,759,981,211 3,265,773,814 2,056,741,889  1,266,100,331  958,078,296 

gf]6M ;fljs ;"of{ nfOkm OG:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld6]8df ;fljs Hof]lt nfOkm OG:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld6]8 ufleO{ ldlt @)&(÷)(÷)& b]lv ;"o{Hof]lt nfOkm  
OG:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld6]8 sfod ePsf] x'Fbf pk/f]Qm tflnsfdf pNn]lvt cfly{s jif{ @)&(÷*) cuf8Lsf ljj/0fx? ;fljs ;"of{ nfOkm OG:of]/]G; sDkgL 
lnld6]8sf] pNn]v ul/Psf] .

aLdf sf]  ifsf]   d'Nof°g 

g]  kfnsf]   aLdf lgodgsf®L lgsfo >L g]  kfn aLdf k|flws®0fsf]   lgb]  {zfg';f® hLjg aLdf sDkgLn]   k|To]  s jif{ aLdfÍLaf6 hLjg aLdf 
sf]  ifsf]   d'NofÍg u®fpg' kg]  { Joj:yf ®x]  sf]  df ;f]   cg';f® g}   sDkgLn]   cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ ;Ddsf]   hLjg aLdf sf]  ifsf]   d'NofÍg u®fO{ 
gofF af]  g; b® ;d]  t sfod ul®Psf]   5 .

;"o{Hof] lt nfOkm OG: of] ®] G; sDkgL lnld6] 8sf]  c7f®f} + jflif{s ;fwf®0f ;efdf 
sDkgL P] g, @)^# -klxnf]  ;+zf] wg_ sf]  bkmf !)( -$_ cg';f® ;~rfns ;ldltn]  

tof® u®L ;ldltsf]  tkm{af6 cWoIf >L s] zj k|;fb e§®fO{Ho"af6 k|: t't k|ltj] bgM
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@= ®fli6«o tyf cGt®f{li6«o kl®l:  yltaf6 sDkgLsf]   sf®f]  af®nfO{ s'g}   c;® k®]  sf]   eP ;f]   c;®M 

ljZj cy{tGqsf]   cj:  yf 

ljZjJofkL cfly{s, ;fdflhs, ®fhgLlts Pj+ ljljw 36gf tyf ultljlwx¿sf]   sf®0fn]   ljZjsf clwsf+z d'n'sx¿df To:  tf 36gfqmdsf]   
k|ToIf tyf ck|ToIf k|efj k®]  sf]   5 . sf]  le8 dxfdf®Lsf]   k|efj sd eP;+u}   cfly{s–;fdflhs ultljlwx¿ ;fdfGo aGb}   uPsf]   ® ljZj 
cy{tGqdf ;'wf®sf ;+s]  t b]  lvPtf klg e"–®fhlglts tgfj Pj+ ®l;of–o'qm]  g, Oh®fon–xdf; larsf]   o'4 nufot dWok"j{sf ;fy}   cGo 
s]  xL d'n'sx¿ larsf]   åGb, s]  xL 7"nf cy{tGq larsf]   Jofkf/ tgfj Pj+ s7f]  ® Jofkfl/s gLlt cflbsf]   sf®0fn]   ljZjJofkL¿kdf cfly{s 
ultljlwx¿ k|efljt ePsf 5g\ . 

cGt®f{li6«o d'b|f sf]  if -IMF_ åf®f @)@% cS6'a®df k|sflzt World Economic Outlook cg';f® ;g\ @)@$ df #=# k|ltztn]   lj:  tf® 
ePsf]   ljZj cy{tGq ;g\ @)@% df #=@ k|ltzt tyf ;g\ @)@^ df #=! k|ltztn]   dfq lj:  tf® x'g]   cGt®f{li6«o d'›f sf]  ifsf]   k|If]  k0f ®x]  sf]   
5 . ljsl;t b]  zx¿sf]   cy{tGq ;g\ @)@$ df !=* k|ltztn]   a[l4 ePsf]  df ;g\ @)@% df !=^ tyf ;g\ @)@^ df ;d]  t !=^ k|ltztn]   
a[l4 x'g]   k|If]  k0f 5 . To;}  u®L plbodfg tyf ljsf;f]  Gd'v b]  zx¿sf]   cy{tGq ;g\ @)@$ df $=# k|ltztn]   a[l4 ePsf]  df ;g\ @)@% df 
$=@ tyf ;g\ @)@^ df $=) k|ltztn]   a[l4 x'g]   cGt®f{li6«o d'b|f sf]  ifsf]   k|If]  k0f ®x]  sf]   5 . ;g\ @)@$ df ef®tsf]   cy{tGq ^=% k|ltzt 
® lrgsf]   cy{tGq %=) k|ltztn]   lj:  tf® ePsf]  df ;g\ @)@% df ef®tsf]   cy{tGq ^=^ k|ltzt ® lrgsf]   cy{tGq $=* k|ltztn]   lj:  tf® 
x'g]   sf]  ifsf]   k|If]  k0f ®x]  sf]   5 . 

ljut tLg jif{ b]  lv ljZj d'b|f:  kmLlt 36\b}   uPsf]   5 . ;g\ @)@$ df %=* k|ltzt ®x]  sf]   ljZjsf]   pkef]  Qmf d'b|f:  kmLlt ;g\ @)@% df $=@ 
k|ltzt ®xg]   ® ;g\ @)@^ df #=& k|ltzt ®xg]   sf]  ifsf]   k|If]  k0f ®x]  sf]   5 . ljsl;t cy{tGqsf]   pkef]  Qmf d'b|f:  kmLlt ;g\ @)@$ df @=^ k|ltzt 
®x]  sf]  df ;g\ @)@% df @=% k|ltzt ® ;g\ @)@^ df @=@ k|ltzt ®xg]   k|If]  k0f 5 . ;fy}  , plbodfg tyf ljsf;f]  Gd'v cy{tGqsf]   d'b|f:  kmLlt 
;g\ @)@$ df &=( k|ltzt ®x]  sf]  df ;g\ @)@% df %=# k|ltzt ® ;g\ @)@^ df $=& k|ltzt ®xg]   sf]  ifsf]   cg'dfg 5 . ljZj d'b|f:  kmLlt 
36g]   qmddf ®x]  tf klg e"–®fhlglts tgfj ® s]  xL d'n'sx¿sf]   s7f]  ® Jofkf/ gLltn]   d"Nodf rfk kg{ ;Sg]   hf]  lvd sfod}   ®x]  sf]   cGt®f{li6«o 
d'›f sf]  ifsf]   ljZn]  if0f ®x]  sf]   5 . 

g]  kfnsf]   cy{tGqsf]   cj:  yf 

ljZj Jofkf/ ® cfly{s ultljlwdf cfPsf]   lzlyntfsf]   c;®af6 g]  kfn klg c5'tf]   ®xg ;s]  g ® g]  kfndf ;d]  t To;sf]   k|ToIf tyf 
ck|ToIf k|efj kg{ uof]   . kmn:  j¿k a}  +lsË If]  qdf clws t®ntf ®x]  sf]   tyfkL shf{ lj:  tf® ck]  lIft ¿kdf x'g g;s]  sf]  n]   shf{ 
k|jfxdf ;+s'rgsf]   l:  ylt, Go"g cfly{s ultljlw, ck]  Iffs[t ¿kdf ljsf; ah]  6 vr{ x'g g;Sg', a}  b]  lzs nufgLdf sdL cfpg'sf ;fy}   
pTkfbgzLn If]  qdf nufgL ;+s'rg ;d]  t x'g k'Uof]   . pNn]  lvt sf®0fx¿n]   b]  zsf]   ;Dk"0f{ cfly{s If]  q, k"FhL ahf® nufot aLdf ahf®df 
;d]  t ;f]  sf]   c;®, ptf® r9fj tyf k|lts'n l:  ylt b]  lvof]   . oL k|lts'ntfx¿sf afah"b klg sDkgL cfˆgf]   p4]  Zo k|flKtsf nflu lg®Gt® 
k|oTgzLn ®xFb}   cfPsf]   5 . 

g]  kfndf ljut s]  xL jif{ b]  lv cTolws jiff{ tyf af9L klx®f]  sf]   sf®0f ;8s tyf phf{ k"jf{wf®df 7"nf]   wghgsf]   Iflt tyf xfn;fn}   ePsf]   h]  g–
hL cfGbf]  ngsf]   qmddf gLlh, ;fj{hlgs tyf ;®sf®L ef}  lts ;+®rgfdf cfuhgL ® tf]  8kmf]  8 eO{ 7"nf]   Iflt ePsf]   x'Fbf lt ef}  lts ;+®rgfx¿sf]   
k'glg{df{0f ug'{kg]  { Pj+ ;®sf®n]   ldlt @)*@ kmfNu'0f @! ut]   lgjf{rg 3f]  if0ff u®]  sf]   x'Fbf o; cj:  yfdf cfly{s If]  qnfO{ s]  xL k|efj kg]  { b]  lvG5 . 

®fli6«o tYofÍ sfof{nosf cg';f® cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! df g]  kfnsf]   cfly{s a[l4b® #=^& k|ltzt ®x]  sf]  df cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ 
df $=^! k|ltzt ®x]  sf]   cg'dfg 5 . ;ldIff jif{df s[lif If]  qsf]   a[l4 #=@* k|ltzt, pBf]  u If]  qsf]   $=%# k|ltzt ® ;]  jf If]  qsf]   a[l4 $=@! 
k|ltzt ®x]  sf]   sfof{nosf]   cg'dfg 5 . cl3Nnf]   cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! df s[lif If]  qsf]   #=#% k|ltzt, pBf]  u If]  qsf]   )=!! k|ltzt ® 
;]  jf If]  qsf]   $=#% k|ltztn]   a[l4 ePsf]   lyof]   . ;ldIff jif{df s'n ufx{:  Yo pTkfbgdf s[lif, pBf]  u ® ;]  jf If]  qsf]   of]  ubfg qmdzM @%=!^ 
k|ltzt, !@=*# k|ltzt ® ^@=)! k|ltzt ®x]  sf]   5 . cl3Nnf]   cfly{s jif{Dff %=$$ k|ltzt ®x]  sf]   pkef]  Qmf d'b|f:  kmLlt cfly{s jif{ 
@)*!÷*@ df jflif{s cf}  ;t $=)^ k|ltzt ®x]  sf]   5 . cGt®f{li6«o d'b|f sf]  ifåf®f @)@% cS6'a®df k|sflzt World Economic Outlook 
sf cg';f® ;g\ @)@% df g]  kfnsf]   cfly{s a[l4b® $=# k|ltzt tyf ;g\ @)@^ df %=@ k|ltztn]   lj:  tf® x'g]   k|If]  k0f u®]  sf]   5 . 

g]  kfnsf]   ;du| aLdf If]  qsf]   cj:  yf
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g]  kfn aLdf k|flws®0faf6 aLdf sDkgLx¿sf]   r'Qmf k"FhL a[l4 ug]  { gLlt lnP kZrft\ s]  xL hLjg tyf lglh{jg aLdf sDkgLx¿ Ps cfk;df 
ufleO{;s]  sf]   cj:  yf ®x]  sf]  n]   ljutsf]   t'ngfdf hLjg tyf lglh{jg aLdf sDkgLx¿sf]   ;+Vof 36g uPsf]   ® xfn g]  kfndf hLjg aLdf 
sDkgL !$, lghL{jg aLdf sDkgL !$, n3'aLdf sDkgL & tyf k'gaL{df sDkgL @ u®L aLdf sDkgLx¿sf]   ;+Vof #& ®x]  sf]   5 . @)*! 
cfiff9;Dd Doflb, n3'Doflb ® a}  b]  lzs ®f]  huf® hLjg aLdf ;d]  t u®L g]  kfndf hLjg aLdfsf]   bfo®fdf cfPsf]   hg;+Vof $#=@& k|ltzt 
®x]  sf]  df @)*@ cfiff9;Dddf s'n hg;+Vofsf]   $*=## k|ltzt hgtf aLdfsf]   bfo®fdf cfPsf 5g\ . @)*! cfiff9 d;fGtdf aLdf If]  qdf 
!!,(%! hgfn]   k|ToIf ¿kdf ®f]  huf®L k|fKt u®]  sf]  df @)*@ cfiff9 d;fGtdf !@,##^ hgfn]   k|ToIf ¿kdf ®f]  huf®L k|fKt u®]  sf 5g\ . 
@)*! cfiff9 d;fGtdf #,@(,%&@ hgf aLdf clestf{x¿ ®x]  sf]  df @)*@ cfiff9 d;fGtdf s®Lj $,)),))) hgf aLdf clestf{x¿ 
ck|ToIf ¿kdf ®f]  huf®Ldf ;+nUg ®x]  sf 5g\ . @)*@ cfiff9 d;fGtdf lglh{jg aLdf Joj;fosf]   Iflt d'NofÍg ug]  { !$!% hgf ;e]  {o® 
Ohfht k|fKt u®L ®f]  huf®Ldf ;+nUg ®xg'sf]   ;fy}   !$ j6f a|f]  s® -k'gaL{df bnfn_ Ohfhtkq k|fKt u®L sfo{®t ®x]  sf 5g\ . ;fy}   ! j6f 
aLdf k|lti7fg ;d]  t ;+rfngdf ®x]  sf]   5 . g]  kfnsf]   s'n ufx{:  Yo pTkfbgdf @)*! cfiff9df aLdf If]  qsf]   of]  ubfg #=$& k|ltzt ®x]  sf]  df 
@)*@ cfiff9df #=&@ k|ltzt ®x]  sf]   5 . 

xfn sfod tyf k|rngdf ®x]  sf aLdf;+u ;DalGwt gLlt, lgod tyf sfg'gL Joj:yfx¿ hLjg aLdf Joj;fosf]   sf®f]  jf®nfO{ 
Aojl:  yt tyf k|efjsf®L agfpgsf nfuL pT;fxhgs ®x]  tf klg yk k|efjsf®L tyf ;do ;fk]  If x'g]   u®L ;®nLs[t ® Aofjxfl®s 
agfpg' kg]  { b]  lvG5 . ldlt @)&(÷)&÷@@ b]  lv aLdf P]  g, @)&( tyf ldlt @)*!÷!!÷!@ b]  lv aLdf lgodfjnL, @)*! hf®L 
eO{ sfof{Gjogdf cfPsf]   ;fy}   ®fli6«o aLdf gLlt, @)*) ;d]  t hf®L eO{;s]  sf]   x'Fbf ;du| aLdf If]  q cem Aojl:  yt tyf ;sf®fTds 
lbzfdf cufl8 a9g]  , aLdf Joj;fodf b]  lvPsf ;d:  of tyf r'gf}  ltsf]   oyf]  lrt ;Daf]  wg x'g]   tyf aLdf If]  qsf]   ljsf;, lj:  tf® ® 
ljljlws®0fsf ;fy}   aLdf ;]  jfnfO{ 5l®tf]  , u'0f:  tl®o ® k|efjsf®L agfpg d4t k'Ug]   ck]  Iff ul®Psf]   5 . 

#= k|ltj] bg tof® ePsf]  ldlt;Dd rfn' jif{sf]  pknlAw ® eljiodf ug{'kg] { s'®fsf]  ;DaGwdf ;~rfns ;ldltsf]  wf®0ff M

rfn' cfly{s jif{ @)*@÷*# sf]  k|yd q} df; -@)*@ cflZjg d;fGt_ ;Ddsf]  sDkgLsf]  sf®f] jf®sf]  ;+lIfKt ljj®0f M
s'n aLdfn] v ;+Vof M &,%*,&^( 
s'n k|yd aLdfz'Ns  M  ?=^*,!^,&&,%(%÷–
s'n gljs®0f aLdfz'Ns  M  ?=@,@&,!),@*,$%^÷–
s'n nufgL ®sd M ?=$#,$!,(),*$,#*!÷– 
s'n bfjL e'QmfgL M  ?=&),%^,$!,!#@÷–
s'n hLjg aLdf sf] if M ?=$#,*#,$^,(!,@@$÷–
hLjg aLdf clestf{x¿sf]  ;+Vof  M  !,)!,(^@
hLjg aLdf of] hgfx¿  M  !*
zfvfx¿ M  !&#

eljiodf ug{' kg] { s'®fsf]  ;DaGwdf ;~rfns ;ldltsf]  wf®0ff M

sDkgLsf]  xfn;Ddsf]  k|fKt pknlAwnfO{ ;ldIff ubf{ sDkgLsf]  Joj;fo a[l4 x'Fb}  cfPsf]  5 . tfklg, ®fli6«o tyf ljZj cy{tGqdf 
cfPsf]  ;+s'rg, a+} s Jofh b®df cfPsf]  sdL, nufgLsf]  l;ldt If] q, hLjg aLdf sDkgLx¿ lar Joj;fodf a9] sf]  k|lt: kwf{ cflb 
sf®0fx¿n]  sDkgLsf nflu cfufdL lbgx¿ r'gf} tLk"0f{ ®x] sf 5g\ . o: tf r'gf} ltx¿nfO{ Go'lgs®0f ug{ yk pkfo tyf ®0fgLltx¿ cjnDag 
ub} { sDkgLn]  ;+: yfut ;'zf;g, Jofj;flos s'zntf ® cAan hgzlQmsf]  cfwf®df ;Ifdtf k|dfl0ft ub} { cu|ult lng]  ljifodf d oxfF 
;a} nfO{ cfZj: t agfpg rfxG5' . 

sDkgLn]  Jofj;flos ®0fgLlts of] hgfx¿sf]  k|efjsf®L sfof{Gjog, aLdf ahf®sf]  cfjZostf cg';f®sf gljg hLjg aLdf of] hgfx¿, 
hgzlQmsf]  tflnd tyf k|lzIf0f, aLdf clestf{sf]  ljZjf; ® pgLx¿sf]  bIftf clea[l4 u®L Joj;fo k|jw{gdf lg®Gt®tf lbOg]  5 . clestf{ 
pTkfbg tyf ljsf;df ljz] if hf] 8 lbO{Psf]  5 . aLdf clestf{sf]  ljZjf; ® pgLx¿sf]  bIftf clea[l4 u®L Joj;fo k|jw{g ug{sf]  nflu 
b] zJofkL ¿kdf clestf{ tflndsf]  ;fy}  k'gtf{huLs®0f sfo{qmdx¿ ;+rfng ug] { ul®Psf]  5 . clestf{x¿sf]  lqmoflzntfsf nflu ahf® 
ljefu ;Da4 zfvf tyf sd{rf®Lx¿nfO{ kl®rfng ug] { sfo{nfO{ yk k|efjsf®L agfO{g]  5 . 
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sDkgLsf]  Joj;fo yk lj: tf® ug'{sf ;fy}  hLjg aLdfdf cfd g] kfnL hgtfsf]  kx'Fr a[l4 ug] {, gjLg tyf cfw'lgs ;"rgf k|ljlwsf]  k|of] u tyf 
l8lh6nfO{h] zg ug] { sfo{nfO{ lg®Gt®tf lb+b}  cfˆgf aLldt÷;] jfu|fxLx¿nfO{ sDkgLaf6 k|jfx x'g]  ;] jf cem pTs[i6, l56f]  5l®tf]  ® ldtAooL agfpg]  
Pj+ aLdf Joj;foaf6 aLldt tyf nufgLstf{ z] o®wgLx¿nfO{ pRr k|ltkmn lbg sDkgL k|of;®t ®xg]  5 . 

$= sDkgLsf]  cf} Bf] lus jf Jofj;flos ;DaGw M

sDkgLn]  cfˆgf]  Joj;fo k|jw{g tyf Jofj;flos nIo xfl;n ug{sf nflu cf} Bf] lus Pj+ Jofj;flos If] q;+usf]  ;DaGwnfO{ ;f} xfb{k"0f{ 
tyf k|efjsf®L agfpg'sf]  ;fy}  sDkgLsf]  sf®f] af®sf]  bfo®fnfO{ km®flsnf]  kfb} { uO{®x] sf]  kl®k|] Ifdf lgodg lgsfo g] kfn aLdf k|flws®0f, 
g] kfn lwtf] kq af] 8{, sDkgL ®lhi6«f®sf]  sfof{no, g] kfn : 6s PS;r] Gh lnld6] 8sf ;fy}  ;®f] sf®jfnf : jb] zL tyf lab] zL lgsfox¿, 
cf} Bf] lus k|lti7fgx¿, a} Í tyf ljQLo ;+: yfx¿, ;xsf®L ;+: yfx¿, ;ª\ul7t ;+: yfx¿, ;®sf®L Pj+ u} ®;®sf®L lgsfox¿ nufot ;a}  
txdf cfˆgf Jofj;flos ;DaGwx¿nfO{ kf®blz{tf ® Jofj;flostfnfO{ k|fyldstfdf ®flv cToGt ;f} xfb{k"0f{ tl®sfaf6 ;DaGw cufl8 
a9fO{®x] sf]  5 . cf} Bf] lus Pj+ ljQLo If] qdf x'g]  kx'Frn]  sDkgLsf]  Joj;fo k|jw{gdf pNn] Vo of] ubfgsf nflu ;'dw'® ;DaGw lj: tf® ug{ 
of] hgfa4 ¿kdf sfo{qmdx¿ ;~rfng ul®®x] sf]  ® ;f]  sfo{nfO{ cfufdL lbgdf ;d] t lg®Gt®tf lbO{g] 5 .

%= ;~rfns ;ldltdf ePsf]  x] ®km] ® ® ;f] sf]  sf®0f M

sDkgLsf]  ;~rfns ;ldltdf ;+: yfks z] o®wgL le=h] = OGe] i6d] 06 sDkgL k|f=ln= sf]  k|ltlglwsf]  ¿kdf ;+: yfks z] o®wgLsf]  
tkm{af6 ;~rfns ;ldltdf k|ltlglwTj ug] { ;~rfns >L ljj] s emfHo"n]  cfˆgf]  kbaf6 lbg'ePsf]  ®flhgfdf ;~rfns ;ldltsf]  ldlt 
@)*!÷)$÷)* sf]  #&& cf} + a} 7saf6 ;f] xL ldlt b] lv nfu' x'g]  u®L l: js[t ePsf]  ® l®Qm ®x] sf]  ;f]  ;~rfns kbdf ;~rfns ;ldltsf]  
ldlt @)*!÷)&÷@& sf]  #*# cf} + a} 7saf6 sDkgLsf ;+: yfks z] o®wgL k'hf OG6®g] zgn g] kfn k|f=ln= sf k|ltlgwL sf7df08f} + 
d=g=kf= @*, sdnfbL lgjf;L >L cflzif s'df® cu|jfnHo"nfO{ ldlt @)*!÷)&÷@& b] lv nfu' x'g]  u®L ;+rfns lgo'Qm ug] { lg0f{o 
eO{ sDkgLsf]  ldlt @)*!÷)(÷)^ df ;DkGg !& cf} + jflif{s ;fwf®0f ;efaf6 ;~rfns ;ldltaf6 ePsf]  ;f]  lg0f{osf]  cg'df] bg  
eO{;s] sf]  5 .

^= sf®f] af®nfO{ c;® kfg] { d'Vo s'®fx¿ M

aLdf Joj;fonfO{ c;® ug] { k|d'v tTjx¿ lgDgfg';f® a'Fbfut ¿kdf k] z ul®Psf]  5 . 
!_  b] z tyf ljb] zdf b] lvPsf]  d'b|f: kmLlt b®df c: jefljs kl®jt{g,
@_  ®fi6«sf]  cfly{s, df} lb|s tyf ljlQo gLltx¿ kl®jt{gaf6 x'g ;Sg]  ;Defljt hf] lvdx¿,
#_  nufgLsf ljsNkx¿ tyf ;f]  df k|fKt x'g]  k|ltkmnsf]  cj: yf,
$_  ahf®df b] lvg]  t®ntfsf]  cj: yf ® ;f] af6 Aofhb®df kg] { c;®,
%_  aLdf ahf®df x'g]  k|lt: kwf{Tds r'gf} tL ® ;f] af6 pTkGg x'g ;Sg]  hf] lvd,
^_  k|fs[lts ljkbaf6 pTkGg x'g]  ljklQsf]  cj: yf,
&_  aLdf;Fu ;DalGwt bIf hgzlQmsf]  pknAwtf, 
*_  cfGtl®s jf afXo ®fhgLlts kl®jt{g, cflb .

aLdf ahf®nfO{ c;® kfg] { ljleGg tTjx¿sf]  cWoog ub} { tL tTjaf6 sDkgLsf]  aLdf Joj;fodf pTkGg x'g ;Sg]  ;Defljt hf] lvd Pj+ 
kl®l: ytLx¿nfO{ d'NofÍg ub} { Joj;fo a[l4 tyf hf] lvd Go'gLs®0fsf pkfox¿ cjnDag ul®Psf]  tyf h'g;'s}  r'gf} ltk"0f{ kl®l: ytLnfO{ 
cfTd;fy u®L  pko'Qm ®0fgLlt ckgfO{ Joj;fo la: tf® tyf k|jw{gdf sDkgL lg®Gt® ;lqmo eO{®x] sf]  5 .

&= n] vf k®LIf0f k|ltj] bgdf s'g}  s} lkmot pNn] v ePsf]  eP ;f]  pk® ;~rfns ;ldltsf]  k|ltlqmof M

g] kfn ljlQo k|ltj] bgdfg (NFRS) adf] lhdsf]  ;j{dfGo n] vfsf]  l;4fGt Pj+ lgofds lgsfo >L g] kfn aLdf k|flws®0fn]  tf] s] sf]  9fFrf 
Pj+ gLltx¿sf]  k"0f{ kfngf ;lxt sDkgLsf ljlQo ljj®0fx¿ tof® ul®Psf 5g\ . cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ sf]  sDkgLsf] n] vfk®LIf0f 
k|ltj] bgdf ljz] if s} lkmotx¿ pNn] v gePsf]  ® cfGtl®s n] vfk®LIfssf]  k|ltj] bg Pj+ afXo n] vfk®LIfssf]  k|f®lDes k|ltj] bgdf pNn] v 
ePsf ;'emfj adf] lhd sDkgLsf]  cfGtl®s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL yk dha't agfpFb}  cfjZos ;'wf® ul®Psf]  5 .
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s|=;+= ;+rfns tyf kbflwsf/Lsf] gfd Kfb lsQf

! >L s]zj k|;fb e§/fO{ -k|ltlglwM ljzfn ldg/N; P08 dfOG; k|f=ln=_ cWoIf &*@

@ >L x]dGt gfx6f ;~rfns !&),@((

# >L cfsfz uf]N5f ;~rfns #^),)))

$ >L r'8fdl0f b]jsf]6f :jtGq ;~rfns –

% >LdtL lk|of tfon ;+rfns !,)!)

^ >LdtL gldtf zdf{ -k|ltlgwLM k'hf sG:6«S;g g]kfn k|f=ln=_ ;+rfns #,)(!

& >L cflzif s'df/ cu|jfn -k|ltlgwLM k'hf OG6/g]zgn g]kfn k|f=ln=_ ;~rfns #,$(%

sDkgLsf]  z] o® sf®f] af® ;DaGwdf, sDkgLsf ;~rfns tyf kbflwsf®Lx¿sf]  sf®f] af® gePsf]  ® o; ;DaGwdf sDkgLnfO{ s'g}  hfgsf®L 
k|fKt ePsf]  5} g .

!$=ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgL;Fu ;DalGwt ;Demf} tfx¿df s'g}  ;~rfns tyf lghsf]  glhssf]  gft] bf®sf]  JolQmut 

: jfy{sf]  af®] df pknAw u®fOPsf]  hfgsf®Lsf]  Joxf] ®f M

sDkgLsf ;~rfns tyf lghx¿sf]  glhssf]  gft] bf®sf]  JolQmut : jfy{ g®x] sf]  ® sDkgLnfO{ To: tf]  s'g}  hfgsf®L k|fKt ePsf]  
5} g .

*= nfef+z afF8kmfF8 ug{ l;kmfl®; ul®Psf]  ®sd M

o; sDkGfLsf]  ldlt @)*@÷)(÷)$ ut] sf lbg a;] sf]  ;~rfns ;ldltsf]  $!! cf} F a} 7ssf]  lg0f{o adf] lhd z] o®wgL dxfg'efjx¿nfO{ 
xfn sfod r'Qmf k"FhL  ?=%,)!,!(,$&,&(&÷$^ sf]  !#=)) -t] x| bzdna z'Go z'Go_ k|ltztsf b®n]  x'g]  ®sd ?=^%,!%,%#,@!#÷^& 
gub nfef+z -s® k|of] hg ;d] tsf]  nflu_ k|: tfj u®] sf]  ® pQm k|: tfj ;lxtsf]  ljQLo ljj®0f o;}  ;fwf®0f ;efdf : jLs[ltsf nflu k] z 
ul®Psf]  5 .

(= z] o® hkmt ePsf]  eP hkmt ePsf]  z] o® ;+Vof, To: tf]  z] o®sf]  cl°t d'No, To: tf]  z] o® hkmt x'g'eGbf cufj}  ;f]  jfkt sDkgLn]  

k|fKt u®] sf]  hDdf ®sd ® To: tf]  z] o® hkmt ePkl5 ;f]  z] o® laqmL u®L sDkgLn]  k|fKt u®] sf]  ®sd tyf hkmt ePsf]  z] o® afkt 

®sd lkmtf{ u®] sf]  eP ;f] sf]  ljj®0f M

;ldIff jif{df sDkgLn]  s'g}  z] o® hkmt gu®] sf]  .

!)= ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgL ® o;sf]  ;xfos sDkgLsf]  sf®f] af®sf]  k|ult ® ;f]  cfly{s jif{sf]  cGtdf ®x] sf]  l: yltsf]  

k'g®fjnf] sg M

;ldIff jif{df sDkgLsf]  s'g}  ;xfos sDkgL g®x] sf]  .

!!= sDkgL tyf To;sf]  ;xfos sDkgLn]  cfly{s jif{df ;DkGg u®] sf]  k|d'v sf®f] af®x¿ ® ;f]  cjlwdf sDkgLsf]  sf®f] af®df 

cfPsf]  s'g}  dxTjk"0f{ kl®jt{g M

sDkgLsf]  s'g}  ;xfos sDkgL g®x] sf]  ® o; cjlwdf sDkgLsf]  sf®f] af®df s'g}  dxTjk"0f{ kl®jt{g cfPsf]  5} g .

!@= ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgLsf]  cfwf®e"t z] o®wgLx¿n]  sDkgLnfO{ pknAw u®fPsf]  hfgsf®L M

;ldIff jif{df sDkgLsf cfwf®e"t z] o®wgLx¿af6 sDkgLnfO{ s'g}  hfgsf®L k|fKt ePsf]  5} g .

!#= ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgLsf ;~rfns tyf kbflwsf®Lx¿n]  lnPsf]  z] o®sf]  : jfldTjsf]  ljj®0f ® sDkgLsf]  z] o® 

sf®f] af®df lghx¿ ;+nUg ®x] sf]  eP ;f]  ;DaGwdf lghx¿af6 sDkgLn]  k|fKt u®] sf]  hfgsf®L M

sDkgLsf ;~rfns tyf kbflwsf®Lx¿sf]  ldlt @)*@ cfiff9 d;fGtdf ®x] sf]  z] o® : jfldTjsf]  ljj®0f lgDg adf] lhd 5 .
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s_ n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt M

v_ hf]lvd Joj:yfkg tyf ljQLo :j:ytf -;f]]Ne]G;L_ ;ldlt M

qm=;+= gfd kb

! >LdtL lk|of tfon ;+of]hs÷;~rfns

@ >L x]dGt gfx6f ;b:o÷;~rfns

# >L r'8fdl0f b]jsf]6f ;b:o÷;~rfns

$ >L hoGb| 8+uf]n, k|d'v–cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f tyf kl/kfng ljefu ;b:o ;lrj

qm=;+= gfd kb

! >L cflzif s'df/ cu|jfn ;+of]hs÷;~rfns

@ >L x]dGt gfx6f ;b:o÷;~rfns

# >L k|sfz ljqmd vqL ;b:o÷k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t

$ >L /fhLj u'?jfrfo{, k|d'v – lalhg]z ck/];G; ;b:o ;lrj

!%= sDkgLn]  cfˆgf]  z] o® cfkm} n]  vl®b u®] sf]  eP To;®L cfˆgf]  z] o® vl®b ug'{sf]  sf®0f, To: tf]  z] o®sf]  ;+Vof ® c+lst 

d'No tyf To;®L z] o® vl®b u®]  jfkt sDkgLn]  e'QmfgL u®] sf]  ®sd M

;ldIff jif{df sDkgLn]  cfˆgf]  z] o® cfkm} n]  vl®b u®] sf]  5} g .

!^= cfGtl®s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL eP gePsf]  ® ePsf]  eP ;f]  sf]  lj: t[t ljj®0f M

aLdf P] g @)&(, aLdf lgodfjnL @)*!, >L g] kfn aLdf k|flws®0faf6 hf®L ePsf]  aLdssf]  ;+: yfut ;'zf;g ;DaGwL lgb] {lzsf 
@)*), sDkgL P] g @)^# nufot cGo k|rlnt gLlt lgod tyf lgb] {lzsfdf pNn] lvt k|fjwfg cg'¿k sDkgLsf]  ;~rfns 
;ldltsf]  dftxtdf ®x] sf ljleGg ;ldlt÷pk–;ldltx¿n]  hf] lvd Go"gLs®0f nufot sDkgLsf]  cfGtl®s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLnfO{ 
r': t ® k|efjsf®L agfpg lbzflgb] {z ul® ®x] sf 5g\ . o;®L sDkgLsf]  cfGtl®s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLnfO{ k|efjsf®L agfpg sDkgLsf 
;~rfns ;b: osf]  ;+of] hsTjdf ul7t ;ldltx¿sf]  xfn sfod ;+®rgf b] xfo adf] lhd ®x] sf]  5 .

u_ nufgL ;ldlt M

3_ dfgj ;+zfwg ;ldlt M

qm=;+= gfd kb

! >L x]dGt gfx6f ;+of]hs÷;~rfns

@ >L cflzif s'df/ cu|jfn ;b:o÷;~rfns

# >L k|sfz ljqmd vqL ;b:o÷k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t

$ >L cflzif 1jfnL, k|d'v – ljQ ljefu ;b:o ;lrj

qm=;+= gfd kb

! >L s]zj k|;fb e§/fO{ ;+of]hs÷cWoIf

@ >LdtL gldtf zdf{ ;b:o÷;~rfns

# >L k|sfz ljqmd vqL ;b:o÷k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t 

$ >L pd]z k|;fb d}gfnL, k|d'v – ;kf]6{ ;le{;]h ;b:o ;lrj
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ª_ bfjL e"QmfgL tyf k"gaL{df ;ldlt M

r_ ;DklQ z'4Ls/0f lgjf/0f ;ldlt M

qm=;+= gfd kb

! >L cfsfz uf]N5f  ;+of]hs÷;~rfns

@ >LdtL lk|of tfon ;b:o÷;~rfns

# >L k|sfz ljqmd vqL ;b:o÷k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t

$ >L /fd k|;fb yklnof, k|d'v – bfaL e"QmfgL ljefu ;b:o ;lrj

qm=;+= gfd kb

! >L r'8fdl0f b]jsf]6f ;+of]hs÷;~rfns

@ >L cfsfz uf]N5f ;b:o÷;~rfns

# >L k|sfz ljqmd vqL ;b:o÷k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t

$ >L hoGb| 8+uf]n, kl/kfng clws[t ;b:o ;lrj

cfGtl®s Pj+ afXo gLlt lgod tyf ljlgodfjnLsf]  kfngfsf]  ;'lglZrttfsf]  nflu kl®kfngf clws[tsf]  k|ltj] bg, : jtGq rf6{8{ 
Psfp06] G6af6 q} dfl;s ¿kdf ePsf]  cfGtl®s n] vfk®LIf0fsf ;fy}  sDkgL cfkm}  leq cleGg ljefusf]  ¿kdf ®x] sf]  cfGtl®s 
n] vfk®LIf0f tyf kl®kfng ljefuåf®f b} lgs ¿kdf ul®Psf ;'kl®j] If0f, hf] lvd Aoj: yfkgsf nflu k|of] u ePsf gljgtd k|ljlw, 
laBdfg ®x] sf hf] lvdx¿ ® ;f]  sf]  lgoGq0fsf nflu lnO{Psf ®0fgLltx¿sf]  kof{Kttf Pj+ ;xhLs®0fsf nflu u7g ul®Psf]  ;~rfns 
: t®Lo hf] lvd Aoj: yfkg tyf ;f] Ne] G;L ;ldltn]  u®] sf lgoldt ;ldIff nufotsf sfo{x¿n]  sDkgLsf]  cfGtl®s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLnfO{ 
yk r': t Pj+ k|efjsf®L ®fVg dxTjk"0f{ of] ubfg k'¥ofpg d2t u®] sf]  5 . sDkgLdf ;Ifd ® ;an cfGtl®s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL ®x] sf]  ® 
hf] lvdnfO{ lgoGq0f ug{sf nflu c08®®fOl6Ë ;DaGwL lgb] {lzsf, cfly{s k|zf;g ;DaGwL ljlgodfjnL, sd{rf®L k|zf;g ;DaGwL 
ljlgodfjnL, ;'rgf k|ljlw gLlt, hf] lvd Joj: yfkg gLlt, k"gaL{df gLlt, cfGtl®s n] vfk®LIf0f gLlt, bfaL e'QmfgL lgb] {lzsf, ;DklQ 
z'4Ls®0f lgjf®0f ;DaGwL lgb] {lzsf tyf sfo{ljlw, hfnjfo' ;DaGwL hf] lvd Joj: yfkg gLlt, pQ®flwsf® of] hgf gLlt nufot 
cfjZostf cg'¿k ljleGg gLlt, lgod tyf sfo{ljlw agfO{ sDkgLsf]  cfGtl®s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLnfO{ k|efjsf®L agfO{Psf]  5 .

!&= ljut cfly{s jif{sf]  s'n Joj: yfkg vr{sf]  ljj®0f M

cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ df sDkgLsf]  s'n Joj: yfkg vr{ ?=!,^),!^,!&,*!#÷– ®x] sf]  5 . sDkgLsf]  aLdf Joj;fo la: tf® tyf 
zfvfx¿sf]  ;jnLs®0f ug] { sfo{ tyf : j] lR5s cjsfz of] hgf NofO{Psf]  sf®0fn]  cl3Nnf]  jif{sf]  t'ngfdf Joj: yfkg vr{df s] xL a[l4 
x'g uP klg cfpFbf jif{x¿df Aoj: yfkg vr{ sd ub} { n} hfgsf nfuL of] hgfa4 ¿kdf sfo{ ul®g] 5 . ;fy}  ;~rfns ;ldltsf]  tkm{af6 
sDkgLsf]  Joj: yfkg vr{ 36fpg Joj: yfkgnfO{ lgb] {zg lbPsfn]  cfufdL jif{df qmlds ¿kdf ;'wf® x'Fb}  hfg]  ljZjf; lbnfpg rfxG5' . 
ljQLo ljj®0fdf Joj: yfkg vr{sf]  lj:t[t ljj®0f pNn] v ul®Psf]  5 .

!*= n] vf k®LIf0f ;ldltsf ;b: ox¿sf]  gfdfjnL, lghx¿n]  k|fKt u®] sf]  kfl®>lds, eQf tyf ;'ljwfx¿, ;f]  ;ldltn]  u®] sf]  

sfdsfjf{xLsf]  ljj®0f ® ;f]  ;ldltn]  s'g}  ;'emfj lbPsf]  eP ;f]  sf]  ljj®0f M

cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ df d'ntM cfGtl®s tyf afXo n] vfk®LIfsn]  sDkgLsf]  cfGtl®s sfd sf®afxLsf]  ;DaGwdf cf} +NofPsf 
s} lkmotx¿ Pj+ sDkgLn]  ;Dkfbg u®] sf sfo{x¿sf]  cfwf®df sDkgLsf]  Aoj: yfkgnfO{ dfu{ lgb] {zg ug] { sfo{ u®] sf]  5 . o;sf ;fy}  
cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ df sDkgLdf cfGtl®s tyf afXo n] vf k®LIfsx¿sf]  lgo'lQm, Aoj: yfkgnfO{ ljljw laifodf lgb] {zg, sDkgLaf6 
hf®L ePsf gLlt, lgod tyf lgb] {lzsfx¿df cfjZos kg] { ;+zf] wg, C0f c;'nLsf nflu pko'Qm k|s[of tyf ;+oGqsf]  k|of] udf n] vf 
kl®If0f ;ldltsf]  cxd e'ldsf ®x] sf]  s'®f cjut u®fpg rfxG5f} + . 



18th ANNUAL REPORT 

FY 2081/82

27

sDkgLsf]  n] vfk®LIf0f ;ldltdf b] xfo adf] lhdsf]  ;b: ox¿ ®xg' ePsf]  Joxf] ®f lgj] bg ub{5f} + . 
!= >LdtL lk|of tfon ;+of] hs
@= >L x] dGt gfx6f ;b: o
#= >L r'8fdl0f b] jsf] 6f ;b: o

n] vfk®LIf0f ;ldltsf]  eQfsf]  ¿kdf cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ df ?=^,$*,)))÷– vr{ ePsf]  Joxf] ®f cjut u®fpg rfxG5f} + .

!(= ;~rfns, k|aGw ;~rfns, sfo{sf®L k|d'v, sDkgLsf cfwf®e"t z] o®wgL jf lghsf]  glhssf gft] bf® jf lgh ;+nUg 

®x] sf]  kmd{, sDkgL jf ;+ul7t ;+: yfn]  sDkgLnfO{ s'g}  ®sd a'emfpg afFsL eP ;f]  s'®f M

g®x] sf]  .

@)= ;~rfns, sfo{sf®L k|d'v tyf kbflwsf®Lx¿sf]  kfl®>lds eQf tyf ;'ljwf M

sDkgLsf ;~rfnsx¿sf]  ;~rfns ;ldltsf]  a} 7s eQf ?=@(,$*,)))÷– tyf dfl;s eQf jfkt ?=@$,^!,(@(÷^@ ® n] vfk®LIf0f 
tyf cGo ;ldltnfO{ a} 7s eQf afkt ?=@&,)^,)))÷– e'QmfgL ePsf]  5 .

k|jGws ® ;f]  eGbf dfyLsf cGo kbflwsf®Lx¿nfO{ kfl®>lds, eQf tyf cGo ;'ljwf jfkt ?=&,^),@%,(##÷%^ e'QmfgL ul®Psf]  5 .

k|d'v sfo{sf®L clws[tsf]  tna eQf tyf cGo ;] jf ;'ljwf lgDgfg';f® ®x] sf]  5 .

aLdssf] sfo{sf/L k|d'vsf] tna eQf tyf cGo ;'ljwf cf=j= @)*!÷*@ cf=j= @)*)÷*!

-s_ lglZrt jflif{s tna tyf eQfx? ?=!,!@,$(,)%)÷– ?=!,!),@*,(@%÷–

-v_ sfo{ ;Dkfbgdf cfwfl/t kfl/>lds
    != sd{rf/L af]g;
    @= k|rlnt Aoj:yf cg';f/sf] ;'ljwf
    #= k|f]T;fxg ;'ljwf -OG;]lG6e_

?=@%,*#,$!(÷$)
–
–

?=!),@$,*#^÷–
–
–

-u_ aLdf ;DaGwL ;'ljwfx?
    != sfo{sf/L k|d'vsf] ;fjlws hLjg aLdf / b'3{6gf aLdf
    @= sfo{sf/L k|d'vsf] b'3{6gf aLdf
    #= sfo{sf/L k|d'v / lghsf] kl/jf/sf] :jf:Yo aLdf 

?=*,%!^÷–
?=(,$%$÷%)

?=$,&))÷–

–
?=(,$%%÷–
?=%,)))÷–

-3_ cGo ;'ljwfx?
    != clgjfo{ labf jfktsf] eQf
    @= cGo

?=$,@%,!&$÷$(
?= $,#$,$%!÷^!

?=#,(#,&%)÷–
 –

aLdssf] sfo{sf/L k|d'vsf] s'n tna, eQf tyf cGo ;'ljwf -s'n hDdf_ ?=!,$&,!$,&^^÷– ?=!,@$,^!,(^^÷–

@!= z] o®wgLx¿n]  a'lemlng afFsL ®x] sf]  nfef+zsf]  ®sd M

sDkgLsf z] o®wgLn]  nfef+z afktsf]  ®sd a'lemlng afFsL g®x] sf]  .

@@= bkmf !$! adf] lhd ;DklQ vl®b jf laqmL u®] sf]  s'®fsf]  ljj®0f M

sDkgLdf o; bkmf cGtu{t pNn] v ug{' kg] { To: tf]  s'g}  ;DklQ rfn' jif{ vl®b laqmL ePsf]  5} g .

@#= bkmf !&% adf] lhd ;Da4 sDkgL aLr ePsf]  sf®f] af®sf]  ljj®0f M

g®x] sf]  . 
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q}dfl;s 

cjlw

clwstd 

z]o/ d"No

Go'gtd 

z]o/ d"No

clGtd 

z]o/ d"No

s'n sf/f]af/

z]o/ ;+Vof

s'n sf/f]af/ 

ePsf] lbg

cflZjg ^$$ ^@% %)$ ^(,%*,(%( %&

kf}if %@! $#& $$$ @%,&^,@%! %%

r}q %)$ $## $#(=*! @@,!%,%)) %^

cfiff9 $^) $@) $$^=^( !^,^^,#@) ^#

;~rfns ;ldlt o; sDkgLnfO{ lg®Gt® ;xof] u ® dfu{ lgb{] zg ug] { g] kfn ;®sf®, cy{ dGqfno, g] kfn ®fi6« a} +s, g] kfn aLdf 
k|flws®0f, g] kfn lwtf] kq af] 8{, sDkgL ®lhi6«f®sf]  sfof{no, g] kfn : 6s PS;r] Gh ln=, l;l8P; P08 lSnol®Ë ln= ® cGo ;DalGwt 
lgsfox¿nfO{ xflb{s cfef® JoQm ug{ rfxG5f} + . xfdL ;Dk"0f{ z] o®wgL ® aLldt dxfg'efjx¿af6 sDkgLnfO{ lg®Gt® k|fKt ;xof] u, ;lbR5f 
® cfTdljZjf;sf nflu klg cfef® JoQm ug{ rfxG5f} + . o; sDkgLnfO{ gofF prfO{sf]  ;kmntfdf k'¥ofpg cljlR5Gg nuglzntf ® d] xgt 
ug'{x'g]  ;Dk"0f{ ahf® k|ltlglwx¿ tyf sd{rf®Lx¿nfO{ ;~rfns ;ldlt wGojfb lbg rfxG5 . sDkgLsf]  n] vf k|0ffnLnfO{ pTs[i6 : t®df 
sfod ®fVg ;xof] u ® dfu{ lgb] {zg ug'{ x'g]  aLdfÍL, rf6{8{ PsfpG6] 06 Pj+ n] vfk®LIfs dxf] box¿df klg xfdL s[t1tf JoQm ug{ rfxG5f} + . 
xfdL, ;~rfns ;ldlt cfd g] kfnL hg;d'bfoaf6 eljiodf o: t}  k|sf®sf]  lg®Gt® ;xof] u ® ;lbR5fsf]  ck] Iff ub{5f} + . 
wGojfb Û
  cWoIf 
  ;~rfns ;ldltsf]  tkm{af6 

@$= sDkgL P] g @)^# tyf k|rlnt sfg"g adf] lhd ;~rfns ;ldltsf]  k|ltj] bgdf v'nfpg' kg] { cGo s'g}  s'®f M

-c_ ;DklQ z'¢Ls®0f lgjf®0f ;DaGwdf M

 sDkgLn]  ;DklQ z'l4s®0f -dgL nfp08l®Ë_ lgjf®0f P] g @)^$, ;DklQ z'l4s®0f -dgL nfp08l®Ë_ lgjf®0f lgodfjnL, 
@)*! tyf ;DklQ z'l4s®0f, cftÍsf®L sfo{ tyf cfd ljgfzsf®L xftxltof® lgdf{0f jf lj: tf®df x'g]  ljQLo nufgL 
lgjf®0f ;DaGwL lgb] {zg, @)*@ ® g] kfn ®fi6« a} +s, ljlQo hfgsf®L OsfOsf]  gLlt, lgod tyf lgb] {zgnfO{ lg®Gt® kl®kfngf 
ub} { cfO®x] sf]  5 . sDkgLn]  ;DkQL z'l¢s®0f ;DaGwL pknAw u®fpg' kg] { ;"rgf Pj+ hfgsf®L ;d] t ;DalGwt lgsfodf 
lg®Gt® pknAw u®fO{®x] sf]  5 . o; tkm{ sDkgL ;bf ;hu tyf ;r] t ®xg]  k|ltj¢tf JoQm ub{5f} + .

-cf_ g] kfn aLdf k|flws®0faf6 hf®L ePsf]  ;+: yfut ;'zf;g ;DaGwL lgb] {lzsf sfof{Gjogsf ;fy}  ;f]  sf]  k"0f{¿kdf 

kl®kfngf ub} { cfPsf]  Joxf] ®f hfgsf®L u®fpFb5f} + .

-O_ lwtf] kq btf{ tyf lgisfzg lgodfjnL, @)&# sf]  lgod @^ -@_ ;+u ;Da¢ yk ljj®0fx¿ M

 sfg"gL sf®afxL ;DaGwL ljj®0fM b] xfo cg';f®sf]  d'2f bfo® ePsf]  eP, d'2f bfo® ePsf]  ldlt, ljifo, d'2f bfo® 

ePsf]  ;+: yfks jf ;+rfnssf]  gfd ® ;DefAo sfg"gL pkrf® ;DaGwL ljj®0f ;dfj] z ul®g'kg] {M

-s_ q} dfl;s cjlwdf ;+ul7t ;+: yfn]  jf ;+: yfsf]  lj?4 s'g}  d'2f bfo® ePsf]  eP, 
 gePsf]  .
-v_ ;+ul7t ;+: yfsf]  ;+: yfks jf ;~rfnsn]  jf ;+: yfks jf ;~rfnssf]  la?4df k|rlnt lgodsf]  cj1f jf 

kmf} Hbf®L ck®fw u®] sf]  ;DaGwdf s'g}  d'2f bfo® u®] sf]  jf ePsf]  eP, 

 To: tf]  s'g}  hfgsf®L k|fKt gePsf]  .
-u_  s'g}  ;+: yfks jf ;~rfns lj?4 cfly{s ck®fw u®] sf]  ;DaGwdf s'g}  d'2f bfo® ePsf]  eP, 

 To: tf]  s'g}  hfgsf®L k|fKt gePsf]  .

;+ul7t ;+: yfsf]  z] o® sf®f] af® tyf k|ultsf]  ljZn] if0f M

-s_ lwtf] kq ahf®df ePsf]  ;+ul7t ;+: yfsf]  z] o®sf]  sf®f] af® ;DaGwdf Joj: yfkgsf]  wf®0ff M

 sDkgLsf]  z] o® ;DaGwL ;Dk'0f{ sfo{ z] o® ®lhi6«f® >L PgcfO{;L Plzof Soflk6n ln=, yfkfynLaf6 eO{®x] sf]  5 . 
sDkgLsf]  z] o®sf]  d"No ® sf®f] af® v'nf z] o® ahf® ;~rfngn]  ljlwjt : yflkt : 6s PS;r] Gh dfkm{t lgwf{®0f ub} { 
cfPsf]  5 . o; k|lt Joj: yfkgsf]  wf®0ff t6: y ®x] sf]  5 .

-v_  cf=j= @)*!÷*@ sf]  k|To] s q} dfl;s cjlwdf ;+ul7t ;+: yfsf]  z] o®sf]  clwstd, Go"gtd ® clGtd d"Nosf 

;fy}  s'n sf®f] af® z] o® ;+Vof ® sf®f] af® lbg .
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!_ ;+rfns ;ldltsf]  k|ltj] bg

 o;}  kq;fy ;+nUg ul®Psf]  .
@_  n] vfk®LIfssf]  k|ltj] bg

 o;}  kq;fy ;+nUg ul®Psf]  .
#_  n] vfk®LIf0f ePsf]  ljQLo ljj®0f

 o;}  kq;fy ;+nUg ul®Psf]  .
$_  sfg'gL sf®afxL ;DaGwL ljj®0f

s_ o; cjlwdf ;+ul7t ;+: yfn]  jf ;+: yfsf]  lj?4 s'g}  d'2f bfo® ePsf]  eP M gePsf]  .
v_ ;+ul7t ;+: yfsf]  ;+: yfks jf ;+rfnsn]  jf ;+: yfks jf ;+rfnssf]  lj?4df k|rlnt lgodsf]  cj1f jf 
   kmf} Hbf®L ck®fw u®] sf]  ;DaGwdf s'g}  d'2f bfo® u®] sf]  jf ePsf]  eP M pNn] lvt k|s[ltsf]  s'g}  d'2f g®x] sf]  .
u_  s'g}  ;+: yfks jf ;+rfns lj?4 cfly{s ck®fw u®] sf]  ;DaGwdf s'g}  d'2f bfo® ePsf]  eP M pNn] lvt k|s[ltsf]  s'g}  d'2f g®x] sf]  .

%_ ;+ul7t ;+: yfsf]  z] o® sf®f] af® tyf k|ultsf]  ljZn] if0f

s_  lwtf] kq ahf®df ePsf]  ;+ul7t ;+: yfsf]  z] o®sf]  sf®f] af® ;DaGwdf Joj: yfkgsf]  wf®0ff M ;+: yfsf]  z] o®sf]   sf®f] af® ahf® 
l;4fGt cg';f® lglb{i6 x'g]  u®] sf]  .

v_  ut jif{sf]  k|To] s q} dfl;s cjlwdf ;+ul7t ;+: yfsf]  z] o®sf]  clwstd, Go"gtd ® clGtd d"Nosf ;fy}  s'n  sf®f] af® z] o® 
;+Vof ® sf®f] af® lbg M

q}df; z]o/sf] clwstd 

d"No ?

z]o/sf] Go"gtd 

d"No ?

z]o/sf] clGtd d"No 

?

s"n sf/f]af/ z]o/ 

;+Vof

s"n sf/f]af/ 

lbg

k|yd ^$$ ^@% %)$ ^(,%*,(%( %&

bf];|f] %@! $#& $$$ @%,&^,@%! %%

t]>f] %)$ $## $#(=*! @@,!%,%)) %^

rf}yf] $^) $@) $$^=^( !^,^^,#@) ^#

^_ ;d: of tyf r'gf} tL

• g] kfnsf]  k"Flh ahf®df sl®a ^) k|ltzt lx: ;f a} +s tyf ljlQo If] qsf]  ®x] sf]  ® olx If] q g}  aLdf sDkgLx¿sf]  d'Vo nufgLsf]  
If] q ePsf]  cj: yfdf o; If] qsf nflu ;®sf®n]  lng]  gLlt tyf sfo{qmdx¿, g] kfn ®fi6« a} +sn]  hf®L ug] { df} lb|s gLlt tyf 
lgb] {zg ® 36\bf]  Aofhb® cflb nufotsf sf®0fx¿af6 a} +s tyf ljlQo If] qsf]  d'gfkmf cgk] lIft gx'g]  b] lvG5 h;sf]  k|ToIf 
c;® aLdf sDkgLx¿sf]  d'gfkmfdf klg kg] { ;Defjgf b] lvG5 . 

•  kl5Nnf jif{x¿df lzlyn ag] sf]  cy{tGqdf s] xL ;'wf®sf ;+s] t b] lvPsf]  ePtfklg r®d a] ®f] huf®L, d"No a[l4 cfbL sf®0fn]  g] kfnLsf]  
qmo Ifdtfdf ;d] t pNn] Vo ;'wf® x'g]  ;Defjgf yf] ®}  dfq ®x] sf] n]  To;sf]  k|ToIf c;® aLdf Joj;fodf klg k®] sf]  b] lvG5 .

&_ ;+: yfut ;'zf;g

 ;+: yfut ;'zf;g clea[l4sf nflu sDkgLsf]  Joj: yfkgåf®f rflnPsf sbd ;DaGwL ljj®0f M
• sDkgLdf ;~rfns ;ldlt tyf ;f]  cGtu{t n] vfk®LIf0f ;ldlt, bfaL e'QmfgL tyf k'gaL{df ;ldlt, nufgL ;ldlt, hf] lvd Joj: yfkg 

tyf ljlQo : j: ytf -;f] Ne] lG;_ ;ldlt, dfgj ;+zfwg ;ldlt tyf ;DklQ z'4Ls®0f lgjf®0f ;ldltx¿ lqmoflzn ®x] sf 5g\ .
• cfGtl®s lgoGq0f k|0fflnnfO{ Jojl: yt ug{ cfGtl®s n] vfk®LIfsaf6 lgoldt ¿kdf n] vfk®LIf0f u®fO{ k|ltj] bgdf lbO{Psf 

;'emfjx¿ sfof{Gjog u®fpg tyf ;dLIff ug{ n] vfk®LIf0f ;ldltsf a} 7sx¿ lgoldt ¿kdf a: g]  u®] sf 5g\ . 
• ;~rfng hf] lvd sd ug{ tyf sf®f] af®nfO{ Jojl: yt ug{ ljleGg cfGtl®s gLlt, lgod tyf lgb] {lzsfx¿sf]  th'{df u®L nfu' 

ul®Psf]  5 .

cg';"rL – !%
-lgod @^ sf] pklgod -@_ ;+u ;DalGwt_

cf=j= @)*!÷*@ sf] jflif{s k|ltj]bgdf ;dfj]z ug'{kg]{ ljj/0f 

;"o{Hof]lt nfOkm OG: of] ®] G; sDkgL lnld6] 8
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;+:yfut ;'zf;g ;DaGwL jflif{s cg'kfngf k|ltj]bg
->L g]kfn lwQf]kq af]8{af6 hf/L ;"rLs[t ;+ul7t ;+:yfx?sf] ;+:yfut ;'zf;g ;DaGwL lgb]{lzsf, @)&$ adf]lhd_

;"rLs[t ;·l7t ;:+yfsf] gfd ;"o{Hof]lt nfOkm OG:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld6]8

7]ufgf zfGtf Knfhf, 1fg]Zj/, sf7df08f}, g]kfn -skf]{/]6 sfof{no_

Od]n info@suryajyotilife.com

j]e;fO6 www.suryajyotilife.com

kmf]g g=+ )!–$%$%($!

k|ltj]bg k]z ul/Psf] cf=j= @)*!÷*@

qm=;+= z]o/wgL o; jif{ ut jif{

;fwf/0f z]o/ 

;+Vof

:jfldTjsf] Ü ;fwf/0f z]o/ ;+Vof :jfldTjsf] Ü

! ;+:yfks   

s_ g]kfnL ;Ël7t ;+:yfx?  *,%&^,&@% !&=!!  *,%&^,&@% !&=!!

v_ g]kfnL gful/s !^,(*$,@)*=&& ##=*( !^,(*$,@)*=&& ##=*(

u_ ljb]zL – – – –

hDdf @%,%^),(##=&& %!=)) @%,%^),(##=&& %!=))

@ ;j{;fwf/0f @$,%%*,%$$=@) $(=)) @$,%%*,%$$=@) $(=))

# cGo -ljj/0f v'nfpg]_ – – – –

 s'n hDdf %),!!(,$&&=(& !)) %),!!(,$&&=(& !))

qm=

;+=
;+rfnsx?sf] gfd

k|ltlglwTj 

ePsf] ;d'x

z]o/ 

;+Vof

lgo'lQm ePsf] 

ldlt

kb tyf  

uf]klgotfsf] zky 

lnPsf] ldlt

;+rfns 

lgo'lQmsf]  t®Lsf 

-ljlw_

!
>L s]zj k|;fb e§/fO{ 
-k|ltlglw M ljzfn ldg/N; 
P08 dfOG; k|f=ln=_

;+:yfks &*@ h]i7 )$, @)*) h]i7 !), @)*) ;fwf/0f ;ef

@ >L x]dGt gfx6f ;j{;fwf/0faf6 k|ltlglwTj !&),@(( h]i7 )$, @)*) h]i7 !$, @)*) ;fwf/0f ;ef

# >L cfsfz uf]N5f ;j{;fwf/0faf6 k|ltlglwTj #^),))) h]i7 )$, @)*) h]i7 !$, @)*) ;fwf/0f ;ef

$ >L r'8fdl0f b]jsf]6f :jtGq – a}zfv !!, @)*) a}zfv !!, @)*) ;+rfns ;ldlt

% >L lk|of tfon ;j{;fwf/0faf6 k|ltlglwTj !)!) h]i7 )$, @)*) h]i7 !$, @)*) ;fwf/0f ;ef

^
>L gldtf zdf{ -k|ltlglw M 
k"hf sG:6«S;g g]kfn k|f=ln=_

;+:yfks #)(! Kff}if @@, @)*) Kff}if @@, @)*) ;+rfns ;ldlt

&
>L cflzif s'df/ cu|jfn
-k|ltlglw M k"hf OG6/g]Zgn 
g]kfn k|f=ln=_

;+:yfks #$(%
sflt{s @&, 
@)*!

sflt{s @&, @)*! ;+rfns ;ldlt

!= ;+rfns ;ldlt ;DaGwL ljj/0f

-s_ ;+rfns ;ldltsf] cWoIfsf] gfd tyf lgo'lQm ldlt M >L s]zj k|;fb e§/fO{{ -lgo'lQm ldlt M h]i7 )$, @)*)_
-v_ ;+:yfsf]] z]o/ ;+/rgf ;DaGwL ljj/0f -;+:yfks, ;j{;fwf/0f tyf cGo_ M

-u_ ;+rfns ;ldlt ;DaGwL ljj/0f M
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3_ ;+rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s M
•  ;+rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s ;+rfng ;DaGwL ljj/0f M 

qm= ;+= o; cf=j= df a;]sf] ;+rfns 

;ldltsf] a}7ssf] ldlt

pkl:yt 

;+rfnssf] ;+Vof

j}7ssf] lg0f{odf leGg dt /fvL 

x:tfIf/ ug]{ ;+rfnssf] ;+Vof

ut cf=j= df a;]sf] 

j}7ssf] ldlt

! @)*!÷)$÷)* $ — @)*)÷)$÷)$

@ @)*!÷)$÷@# ^ — @)*)÷)$÷!^

# @)*!÷)$÷@% ^ — @)*)÷)$÷!&

$ @)*!÷)%÷!( ^ — @)*)÷)$÷@*

% @)*!÷)^÷!! ^ — @)*)÷)%÷!)

^ @)*!÷)^÷!* ^ — @)*)÷)%÷@$

& @)*!÷)&÷@& ^ — @)*)÷)^÷)@

* @)*!÷)*÷)& & — @)*)÷)^÷!)

( @)*!÷)*÷!) & — @)*)÷)^÷!(

!) @)*!÷)*÷!$ & — @)*)÷)^÷@$

!! @)*!÷)*÷!$ & — @)*)÷)&÷@$

!@ @)*!÷)(÷)! & — @)*)÷)*÷@%

!# @)*!÷)(÷)% & — @)*)÷)*÷@&

!$ @)*!÷)(÷@@ & — @)*)÷)(÷@@

!% @)*!÷!)÷!# & — @)*)÷!)÷)(

!^ @)*!÷!)÷@! & — @)*)÷!)÷@!

!& @)*!÷!!÷)* & — @)*)÷!!÷!)

!* @)*!÷!!÷!% & — @)*)÷!!÷@#

!( @)*!÷!@÷!! % — @)*)÷!@÷@)

@) @)*@÷)!÷!! % — @)*)÷!@÷@#

@! @)*@÷)!÷#! ^ — @)*!÷)!÷!@

@@ @)*@÷)@÷!( & — @)*!÷)!÷@)

@# @)*@÷)#÷)# & — @)*!÷)@÷!#

@$ @)*@÷)#÷!@ & — @)*!÷)#÷!@

@% @)*@÷)#÷#) & — —

• s'g} ;+rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s cfjZos u0fk'/s ;+Vof gk'uL :ylut ePsf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f M gePsf] 
• ;+rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s ;DaGwL cGo ljj/0f M
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;+rfns ;ldltsf] a}7sdf ;+rfns jf j}slNks ;+rfns pkl:yt 
eP– gePsf] -gePsf] cj:yfdf a}7ssf] ldlt ;lxt sf/0f v'nfpg]_M

pkl:yt ePsf]

;+rfns ;ldltsf] a}7sdf pkl:yt ;+rfnsx¿, 5nkmn ePsf] ljifo 
/ tT;DaGwdf ePsf] lg0f{osf] ljj/0f -dfO{Go"6_ sf] 5'§} clen]v /fv] 
g/fv]sf]M

/flvPsf]

;+rfns ;ldltsf] b'O{ nuftf/ a;]sf] j}7ssf] clwstd cGt/ 
-lbgdf_ M

#( lbg

;+rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s eQf lgwf{/0f ;DaGwdf a;]sf] jflif{s ;fwf/0f 
;efsf] ldltM

h]i7 )$, @)*) sf] !% cf}+ ;fwf/0f ;efaf6

;+rfns ;ldltsf] k|lt j}7s eQf ?= cWoIf ? @) xhf/ dfq / cGo ;+rfns ? !* xhf/ dfq

cf=j=sf] ;+rfns ;ldltsf] s'n j}7s vr{ ?= ? @(,$*,))) ÷–

;+:yf;Fu lgh jf lghsf] Psf3/sf] kl/jf/sf] s'g} ;b:on] s'g} lsl;dsf] s/f/ u/]sf] jf ug{ nfu]sf] 
eP ;f] sf] ljj/0f

lnlvt hfgsf/L u/fOPsf]

lgh jf lghsf] Psf3/sf] kl/jf/sf] s'g} ;b:on] ;+:yf jf ;f] ;+:yfsf] d'Vo jf ;xfos sDkgLdf 
lnPsf] z]o/ jf l8a]Gr/sf] ljj/0f

lgh cGo s'g} ;Ël7t ;+:yfsf] cfwf/e"t z]o/wgL jf ;+rfns /x]sf] eP To;sf] ljj/0f

lghsf] Psf3/sf] kl/jf/sf] s'g} ;b:o ;+:yfdf kbflwsf/L jf sd{rf/Lsf] x}l;otdf sfd ul//x]sf] eP 
;f]sf] ljj/0f

;+rfnsn] p:t} k|s[ltsf] p2]Zo ePsf] ;"lrs[t ;+:yfsf] ;+rfns, tnjL kbflwsf/L, sfo{sf/L k|d'v jf 
sd{rf/L eO{ sfo{ u/]sf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f

;+rfnsx?nfO{ lgodg lgsfo tyf cGo lgsfox?af6 s'g} sf/jfxL ul/Psf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f

@= ;+rfnssf]  cfr®0f ;DaGwL tyf cGo ljj®0f M 

• ;+rfnssf]  cfr®0f ;DaGwdf ;DalGwt ;+: yfsf]  cfrf®;+lxtf eP÷gePsf]  M k|lqmofdf ®x] sf] 
• Psf3® kl®jf®sf]  Ps eGbf a9L ;+rfns eP ;f]  ;DaGwL ljj®0f M gePsf] 
• ;+rfnsx¿sf]  jflif{s ¿kdf l;sfO{ tyf k'gtf{huL sfo{qmd ;DaGwL ljj®0f M ePsf]  . ldlt @)*@÷)#÷#) df xf] 6n dfof 

dgf] ®, xflQ;f®df AML/CFT ;DaGwL cled'lvs®0f sfo{qmd ;DkGg ul®Psf]  . 
• k|To] s ;+rfnsn]  cfkm" ;+rfnssf]  kbdf lgo'Qm jf dgf] gog ePsf]  kG„ lbgleq b] xfosf s'®fsf]  lnlvt hfgsf®L 

u®fPsf] ÷gu®fPsf]  ® gu®fPsf]  eP ;f] sf]  ljj®0f M

#= ;+:yfsf] hf]lvd Joj:yfkg tyf cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL ;DaGwL ljj/0f M

-s_ hf]lvd Joj:yfkgsf] nflu s'g} ;ldlt u7g eP÷gePsf] u7g gePsf] eP ;f]sf] sf/0fM hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldlt u7g ePsf] .
-v_ hf]lvd Joj:yfkg tyf ljQLo :j:ytf -;f]]Ne]G;L_ ;ldlt ;DaGwL hfgsf/L M 

-c_ ;ldltsf] ;+/rgf -;+of]hs tyf ;b:ox?sf] gfd tyf kb_

gfd kb

>L cflzif s'df/ cu|jfn ;+of]hs÷;+rfns

>L x]dGt gfx6f ;b:o÷;+rfns

>L k|sfz ljqmd vqL ;b:o÷k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t

>L /fhLj u'?jfrfo{ ;b:o ;lrj
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-cf_  ;ldltsf]  a} 7s ;+Vof M @ j6f a} 7s al;Psf] 
-O_  ;ldltsf]  sfo{ ;DaGwL 5f] 6f]  ljj®0f M

• ljBdfg hf] lvd klxrfg tyf Joj: yfkg k|0ffnLsf]  kof{Kttf ® pko'Qmtfsf ;DaGwdf ;+rfns ;ldltnfO{ hfgsf®L 
u®fpg]  ® pko'Qm k|0ffnLsf]  ljsf;sf nflu ;'emfj lbg]  .

• Jofj;flos ultljlwdf lglxt hf] lvdsf]  : t®, hf] lvd Joj: yfkgsf nflu ljsf; u®] sf]  ®0fgLlt, gLltut Joj: yf ® 
dfu{bz{gsf]  lgoldt k'g®fjnf] sg u®L ;f]  sf]  kof{Kttf ;DaGwdf ;+rfns ;ldltdf ;'emfj k] z ug] { .

• Joj: yfkgaf6 lgoldt ¿kdf hf] lvd Joj: yfkg k|ltj] bg lnO{ hf] lvdsf]  cf+sng, d'Nof Íg, lgoGq0f tyf cg'udg s]  
s;®L eO{ ®x] sf]  5 ;f]  ;DaGwdf 5nkmn ug] { ® ;+rfns ;ldltdf cfjZos ;'emfj k] z ug] { .

• hf] lvd ;dfof] lht ;DklQ cg';f® kF'hLsf]  kof{Kttf, cfGtl®s kF'hL ljZn] if0f k4lt, Jofj;flos ®0fgLlt cg'¿k gLltut 
Joj: yfsf]  kof{Kttf, ;+: yfn]  lng ;Sg]  clwstd hf] lvd ;DaGwdf lgoldt ¿kdf 5nkmn tyf ljZn] if0f u®L ;+rfns 
;ldltnfO{ cfjZos ®fo ;'emfj lbg]  .

• hf] lvd Joj: yfkgsf nflu >L aLdf k|flws®0faf6 hf®L ul®Psf]  lgb] {zg÷dfu{lgb] {zg, ;+: yfn]  lgwf{®0f u®] sf cfGtl®s 
;Ldf, pko'Qm k|rng cg'¿k cfjZos gLlt Pj+ ;+®rgf ljsf; ug{sf nflu ;+rfns ;ldltnfO{ ;'emfj lbg]  .

• lgoldt ¿kdf bjfj k®LIf0f -Stress Testing_ u®L ;f]  sf]  kl®0ffd pk® 5nkmn u®L ;f] sf]  cfwf®df eljiodf ckgfpg'kg] { 
cfjZos gLlt lgdf{0f jf lg0f{o k|lqmofsf nflu ;+rfns ;ldltdf ;'emfj k] z ug] { .

• cy{tGqsf]  s'g}  If] qdf pTkGg x'g]  ;d: of jf kl®jt{gn]  ;+: yfsf]  ljQLo cj: yfdf kfg{ ;Sg]  c;®sf]  ;DaGwdf cWoog u®L ;f]  sf]  
lg®fs®0fsf nflu s]  s: tf]  gLlt cjnDag ug'{kg] { xf]  cfjZos ;'emfj ;lxt ;+rfns ;ldltdf k|ltj] bg k] z ug] { .

• aLdssf]  lgldQ pko'Qm hf] lvd Joj: yfkg k|0ffnL tyf k4ltsf]  nflu ;+rfns ;ldlt ;dIf k|: tfj k] z ug] { tyf ;f] sf]  
sfof{Gjogsf]  nflu ;+rfns ;ldltsf]  : jLs[lt lng]  .

-u_  cfGtl®s lgoGq0f sfo{ljlw eP÷gePsf]  M ePsf] 
-3_  cfGtl®s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLsf]  nflu s'g}  ;ldlt u7g eP÷gePsf]  u7g gePsf]  eP ;f] sf]  sf®0f M 
  sDklgdf ;+rfns ;ldlt tyf ;f]  cGtu{t n] vfk®LIf0f ;ldlt, nufgL ;ldlt, hf] lvd Joj: yfkg tyf ;f] Ne] lG; ;ldlt, dfgj  

 ;+zfwg ;ldlt, bfaL tyf k'gaL{df ;ldlt ® ;DklQ z'4Ls®0f lgjf®0f ;ldlt ®x] sf]  5 . 
-ª_  cfGtl®s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL ;ldlt ;DaGwL ljj®0f M

-c_ ;ldltsf] ;+/rgf -;+of]hs tyf ;b:ox?sf] gfd tyf kb_

qm=;+= ;ldltsf] gfd ;+of]hs ;b:o

! nufgL ;ldlt >L x]dGt gfx6f != >L cflzif s'df/ cu|jfn 
@= >L k|sfz ljqmd vqL 
#= >L cflzif 1jfnL

@ hf]lvd Joj:yfkg tyf ljQLo :j:ytf 
-;f]]Ne]G;L_ ;ldlt

>L cflzif s'df/ cu|jfn != >L x]dGt gfx6f
@= >L k|sfz ljqmd vqL
#= >L /fhLj u'?jfrfo{

# dfgj ;+zfwg ;ldlt >L s]zj k|;fb e§/fO{ != >L gldtf zdf{
@= >L k|sfz ljqmd vqL
#= >L pd]z k|;fb d}gfnL

$ n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt >L lk|of tfon != >L r"8fdl0f b]jsf]6f 
@= >L x]dGt gfx6f
#= >L hoGb| 8+uf]n

% bfaL e'QmfgL tyf k'gaL{df ;ldlt >L cfsfz uf]N5f != >L lk|of tfon
@= >L k|sfz ljqmd vqL
#= >L /fhLj u'?jfrfo{

^ ;DklQ z'4Ls/0f lgjf/0f ;ldlt >L r"8fdl0f b]jsf]6f != >L cfsfz uf]N5f
@= >L k|sfz ljqmd vqL
#= >L hoGb| 8+uf]n
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-cf_ ;ldltsf] a}7s ;+Vof

qm=;+= ;ldltsf] gfd a}7s ;+Vof

! nufgL, ;ldlt @^

@ hf]lvd Joj:yfkg tyf ljQLo :j:ytf -;f]]Ne]G;L_ ;ldlt @

# dfgj ;+zfwg ;ldlt !@

$ n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt !@

% bfaL e'QmfgL tyf k'gaL{df ;ldlt %

^ ;DklQ z'4Ls/0f lgjf/0f ;ldlt @

-O_ ;ldltsf]  sfo{ ;DaGwL 5f] 6f]  ljj®0f M
sDkgLsf]  cfGtl®s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL ® o;sf]  k|efjsfl®tfsf]  ;dLIff ug] { lhDd] jf®L ;+rfns ;ldltdf ®xG5 . n] vfk®LIf0f ;ldltn]  
lgoldt ¿kdf cfGtl®s n] vfk®LIfs, afXo n] vfk®LIfs ® ;'kl®j] Iflso n] vfk®LIfssf n] vfk®LIf0f k|ltj] bgx¿sf]  ;dLIff u®L 
;+rfns ;ldltnfO{ sDkgLsf]  cfGtl®s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLsf]  k|efjsf®Ltfsf ljifodf : jtGq ®fo k|bfg ub{5 . ljQLo p2] Zo k|flKtsf 
nflu hf] lvd axg ug'{ kg] { cfjZostfnfO{ dgg ub} { hf] lvdsf b'Zk|efjx¿nfO{ Go"gLs®0f ug] { tk{m sDkgL ;b} j cu|;® ®x] sf]  5 . o;sf 
nflu cfjZos k|efjsf®L cfGtl®s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL : yfkgfy{ rflxg]  sfo{ljlwx¿ tof® u®L sfof{Gjog ;d] t ub} { cfPsf]  5 . o: tf 
sfo{ljlwx¿n]  lg®Gt® ¿kdf hf] lvdsf]  klxrfg, ljZn] if0f, d'NofÍg tyf Joj: yfkgdf dxTjk"0f{ of] ubfg k'¥ofpFb}  cfPsf 5g\ . ;+rfng 
hf] lvdx¿ sd ug{ tyf sf®f] af®nfO{ Jojl: yt ug{ ljleGg cfGtl®s gLlt, lgod tyf lgb] {lzsfx¿sf]  th'{df u®L nfu' ul®Psf]  5 . 
;+: yfut ;'zf;g sfod ug{ sd{rf®L cfrf®;+lxtf hf®L u®L ;f]  sf]  cg'udg ;d] tsf]  Joj: yf ul®Psf]  5 .

-r_ cfly{s k|zf;g ljlgodfjnL eP÷gePsf]  M ePsf]  

$= ;"rgf tyf hfgsf/L k|jfx ;DaGwL ljj/0f M

-s_ ;+:yfn] ;fj{hlgs u/]sf] ;"rgf tyf hfgsf/L k|jfxsf] ljj/0f M

ljifo dfWod ;fj{hlgs u/]sf] ldlt

jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efsf] ;"rgf /fli6«o :t/sf] b}lgs klqsf !& cf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef
d+l;/ !%, @)*!, sflGtk'/ b}lgs
k'if )@, @)*!, cleofg b}lgs

jflif{s k|ltj]bg j]a;fO6 @)*!÷)*÷@*, cf=j @)*)÷*! sf] 
nflu

q}dfl;s k|ltj]bg /fli6«o :t/sf] b}lgs klqsf klxnf] q}df; M @)*!÷)&÷@*
bf];|f] q}df; M @)*!÷!)÷@@
t];|f] q}df; M @)*@÷)!÷@!
rf}yf] q}df; M @)*@÷)$÷@(

lwtf]kqsf] d"Nodf k|efj kfg]{ d"No  
;+j]bgzLn ;"rgf

NEPSE df To:tf] ;"rgf gePsf] –

-v_  ;"rgf ;fj{hlgs gu/]sf] jf cGo sf/0fn] lwtf]kq af]8{ tyf cGo lgsfoaf6 sf/jflxdf k/]sf] eP ;f] ;DaGwL hfgsf/L M  
 gk/]sf]

-u_  kl5Nnf] jflif{s tyf ljz]if ;fwf/0f ;ef ;DkGg ePsf] ldlt M 
• @)*!÷)(÷)^ ut]sf] lbg cf=j @)*)÷*! sf] !& cf}+ ;fwf/0f ;ef ;DkGg ePsf] .
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%= ;+:yfut ;+/rgf / sd{rf/L ;DaGwL ljj/0f M 

-s_  sd{rf®Lx¿sf]  ;+®rgf, kbk"lt{, j[lt ljsfz, tflnd, tnj, eQf tyf cGo ;'ljwf, xflh® ® ljbf, cfrf®;+lxtf nufotsf  
 s'®fx¿ ;d] l6Psf]  sd{rf®L ;] jf zt{ ljlgodfjnL÷Joj: yf eP gePsf]  M ePsf]  

-v_  ;+u7flgs ;+®rgf ;+nUg ug] { M 
-u_  pRr Joj:yfkg txsf sd{rf/Lx?sf] gfd, z}lIfs of]Uotf tyf cg'ej ;DaGwL ljj/0f M

qm=;+ sd{rf/Lsf] gfd Kfb z}lIfs of]Uotf cg'ej

! >L k|sfz ljqmd vqL k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t Masters of Science in Distributed 

Systems & Network (University of Kent)
!( jif{

@ >L kmz'{/fd d/f;Llg gfoa k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t Master’s in Humanities (TU) #@ jif{

# >L /flhj u'?jfrfo{ gfoa dxfKf|aGws Master’s in Business Studies (TU) @@ jif{

$ >L pd]z k|;fb d}gfnL ;xfos dxfKf|aGws Master’s in Business Studies (TU) @! jif{

-3_ sd{rf/L ;DaGwL cGo ljj/0f M

;+/rgf cg';f/ sd{rf/L kbk"tL{ ug]{ u/]÷gu/]sf] M u/]sf]

gofF sd{rf®Lx¿sf]  kbk"lt{ ubf{ ckgfPsf]  k|s[of M ljleGg ;+rf® dfWodaf6 lj1fkg hf®L ul®, cfjZostf cg'zf® lnlvt 
tyf cGtjf{tf{ kl®Iff lnO{ cyjf Head Hunting dfkm{t sDkgLsf]  
ljlgodfjfnL cg';f® kbk"lt{ ug] { u®sf] 

Joj: yfkg : t®sf sd{rf®Lsf]  ;+VofM !*

s'n sd{rf®Lsf]  ;+VofM %*&

sd{rf®Lx¿sf]  ;S;] ;g Knfg eP÷gePsf]  M ePsf] 

cf= j= df sd{rf®Lx¿nfO{ lbOPsf]  tflnd ;+Vof tyf 
;Ddlnt sd{rf®Lsf]  ;+VofM

tflnd ;+VofM %), ;lDdlnt sd{rf®Lsf]  ;+VofM %)%

cf= j= sf]  sd{rf®L tflnd vr{ ? M !,&!,)(,)@^÷–

s'n vr{df sd{rf®L vr{sf]  k|ltzt M $!=@) k|ltzt

s'n sd{rf®L vr{df sd{rf®L tflnd vr{sf]  k|ltzt M @=^) k|ltzt

;+:yfsf] kl5Nnf] cf= j= sf] ljlQo ljj/0f NFRS cg';f/ tof/ u/]÷gu/]sf], gu/]sf] eP 
;f]sf] sf/0f M

tof/ kf/]sf]

;+rfns ;ldltaf6 kl5Nnf] ljQLo ljj/0f :jLs[t ePsf] ldltM cf=j= @)*!÷*@ sf] @)*@ kf}if ^ ut]

q}dfl;s ljQLo ljj/0f k|sfzg u/]sf] ldlt M klxnf] q}df; M @)*!÷)&÷@*
bf];|f] q}df; M @)*!÷!)÷@@
t];|f] q}df; M @)*@÷)!÷@!
rf}yf] q}df; M @)*@÷)$÷@(

clGtd n]vfk/LIf0f ;DkGg ePsf] ldlt M cf=j= @)*!÷*@ sf] @)*@ kf}if ^ ut]

;fwf/0f ;efaf6 ljQLo ljj/0f :jLs[t ePsf] ldlt M cf=j= @)*)÷*! sf] ldlt @)*!÷)(÷)^ sf] 
!& cf}+ ;fwf/0f ;efaf6

;+:yfsf] cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f ;DaGwL ljj/0f M

-c_ cfGtl/s ?kdf n]vfk/LIf0f ug]{ ul/Psf] jf jfXo lj1 lgo'Qm ug]{ ul/Psf] jfXo lj1 lgo'Qm ul/Psf]

-cf_ jfXo lj1 lgo'Qm ul/Psf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f K.J. & Associates, Kupandole, Lalitpur, 

Nepal

-O_ cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f slt cjlwsf] ug]{ ul/Psf] -q}dfl;s,rf}dfl;s jf cw{jflif{s_ q}dfl;s

^= ;+:yfsf] n]vf tyf n]vfk/LIf0f ;DaGwL ljj/0f M

-s_ n]vf;DaGwL ljj/0f
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-v_ n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt ;DaGwL ljj/0f M

;+of]hs tyf ;b:ox?sf] gfd, kb tyf of]Uotf M Tfflnsf g+ ! adf]lhd

j}7s a;]sf] ldlt tyf pkl:yt ;b:o ;+Vof M Tfflnsf g+ @ adf]lhd

k|lt j}7s eQf ?= M Tfflnsf g+ ! adf]lhd

n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltn] cfkm\gf] sfd sf/jfxLsf] k|ltj]bg ;+rfns 
;ldltdf k]z u/]sf] ldlt M

@)*@÷)$÷@* sf] $)@ cf}+ a}7sdf k]z ul/Psf]

tflnsf g+= !

tflnsf g+= @

cGo ljj/0f

gfd kb z}lIfs of]Uotf k|lt a}7s eQf -s/ ;lxt_

>L lk|of tfon ;+of]hs Pd=la=P (MBA) ? !*,)))

>L r"8fdl0f b]jsf]6f ;b:o Pd=lk=P (MPA) ? !*,)))

>L x]dGt gfx6f ;b:o O{=Pd=la=P (E-MBA) ? !*,)))

>L hoGb| 8+uf]n ;b:o – ;lra Pd=la=P (MBA) –

n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf] a}7s a;]sf] ldlt pkl:ylt ;+Vof

@)*!÷)$÷@# #

@)*!÷)%÷@& #

@)*!÷)&÷@% #

@)*!÷)*÷)( #

@)*!÷)*÷!) #

@)*!÷)*÷@& #

@)*!÷)(÷@^ #

@)*!÷!)÷@) #

@)*!÷!!÷@& #

@)*@÷)!÷!) #

@)*@÷)@÷@( #

@)*@÷)#÷@& #

n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf] a}7s a;]sf] ldlt pkl:ylt ;+Vof

;+:yfn] ;+rfns tyf lghsf] Psf3/sf kl/jf/sf] ljQLo :jfy{ 
ePsf] JolQm, a}Í tyf ljQLo ;+:yfaf6 C0f jf ;fk6L jf cGo 
s'g} ¿kdf /sd lnP÷ glnPsf]

glnPsf]

k|rlnt sfgg adf]lhd sDkgLsf] ;+rfns, z]o/wgL, sd{rf/L, 
;Nnfxsf/, k/fdz{bftfsf] x}l;otdf kfpg] ;'ljwf jf nfe afx]
s ;'lrs[t ;Ël7t ;+:yfsf] ljQLo :jfy{ ePsf] sg} JolQm, kmd{, 
sDkgL, sd{rf/L, ;Nnfxsf/ jf k/fdz{bftfn] ;+:yfsf] s'g} 
;DklQ s'g} lsl;dn] ef]urng u/]÷gu/]sf]

gu/]sf]
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lgodsf/L lgsfon] Ohfhtkq hf/L ubf{ tf]s]sf] zt{x?sf] kfngf 
eP÷gePsf]

ePsf]

lgodsf/L lgsfon] ;+:yfsf] lgodg lg/LIf0f jf ;'k/Lj]If0f ubf{ 
;+:yfnfO{ lbOPsf] lgb]{zg kfngf eP÷gePsf]

ePsf]

;+:yf jf ;+rfns lj?4 cbfntdf s'g} d'2f rln/x]sf] eP ;f]
sf] ljj/0f

gePsf]

kl/kfng clws[tsf] gfd M hoGb| 8+uf]n
kb  M kl/kfng clws[t 
ldlt  M kf}if ^, @)*@
;+:yfsf] 5fk  M 
 
 
k|ltj]bg ;+rfns ;ldltaf6 :jLs[t ldlt M kf}if (, @)*@

n]vfk/LIfssf] gfd M ;L=P – k|ljg ;'j]bL 
kb M kf6{g/, ;'hg sfˆn] P08 P;f]l;P6\;
 
n]vfk/LIfs ;+:yfsf] 5fk M
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HUMAN RESOURCE

ACTIVITIES
SuryaJyoti Life Insurance Company Limited 

continues to place strong emphasis on the 

growth and development of its people. We remain 

committed to fostering an inclusive and equitable 

workplace where every individual is given 

the opportunity to advance and succeed. Our 

practices are guided by meritocracy, with reward 

and recognition processes aligned closely with 

organizational performance standards and HR 

Bylaws. As part of our commitment to maintaining 

a safe and respectful work environment, we 

approach all concerns related to discrimination 

or harassment with the highest level of sensitivity, 

conǛdentiality, and integrity.

To build a capable and future-ready workforce, 

we have expanded our focus on holistic 

employee development. Beyond technical 

capability-building, our training initiatives this year 

emphasized soft skills, leadership readiness, and 

personal eǘectiveness while also encouraging 
a healthy work-life balance. During Ǜscal year 
2081/82, a total of 505 employees took part in 

various internal and external training programs.

Recognizing the need for operational excellence 

across all branch networks, we placed strong 

emphasis on structured department-level training 

for both sales and operations teams nationwide. 

This included comprehensive sessions on “Role of 

Sales Team for Business Development & Branch 

Management in the Life Insurance Industry” for 

our sales personnel, and “Operational EǙciency 
& Service Excellence” for branch operations 

teams—aimed at fostering synergy and delivering 

consistent service standards across all locations. 

Further, a series of targeted training programs were 

organized—both province-wise and centrally—

to strengthen the capabilities of our sales teams, 

including motivational seminars designed to 

enhance performance and drive engagement. 

During the annual sales convention, we also invited 

Mr. Anil Jha, an Indian trainer with decades of 

experience in the life insurance industry, to conduct 

an impactful session on “Sales Enhancement” for 

sales personnel across all branches.

To further advance managerial competencies 

within the sales force, we collaborated with the 

Centre for Innovative Governance Practices 

(CIGP) to deliver the training titled “Contemporary 

Management Skills in Insurance Business.” This 

program focused on key dimensions such as 

leadership, teamwork, eǘective communication, 
maturity and emotional intelligence, the 

importance and implementation of policy, 

procedure and guideline, professional culture, and 

resource optimization. The module encompasses 

key competencies that are anticipated to enhance 

individual growth, development, and long-term 

career advancement.

In addition to these major initiatives, departments 
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continued to actively support branches through 

regular virtual training via Zoom. These 

spanned all relevant departments, including 

Underwriting sessions focused on updated 

guidelines and revised policies, IT-led training 

to familiarize employees with new technologies 

and applications, Finance department sessions 

on Ǜnancial standards, Agency Service updates 
on the latest agency guidelines, and department-

led brieǛngs to ensure timely awareness of 
newly issued directives from the Nepal Insurance 

Authority (NIA). Furthermore, newly hired 

employees were systematically inducted through 

periodic virtual orientation programs, introducing 

them to departmental functions, processes, and 

organizational procedures.

Additionally, several online training sessions were 

conducted with professional actuaries for key 

personnel involved in actuarial roles, aimed at 

enhancing their skills and knowledge with the long-

term objective of developing in-house actuarial 

expertise. In line with our focus on staying up-to-

date with current economic trends, we actively 

participated in various conferences and seminars, 

including the “Global MicroǛnance Environment 
and its Challenges” and “International Conference 

on Inclusive Insurance” organized by NIA, as 

well as the “5th ICC Emerging Asia Insurance 

Conclave 2024” held in Mumbai, India.

Technical enhancement remained a parallel focus 

throughout the year, with sessions covering Excel 

proǛciency, cybersecurity in the digital economy, youth 
and women leadership programs, and other skill-

based areas. To strengthen regulatory awareness, 

comprehensive anti–money laundering (AML) training 

was delivered not only to branch-level teams but 

also to members of the executive, management, and 

Board of Directors. Employee safety and well-being 

continued to be an integral part of our training portfolio. 

A First Aid Awareness session was conducted at 

the Head OǙce in collaboration with “Contribution 

to Nation,” covering essential Ǜrst aid practices and 
CPR procedures. Employees were also oriented on 

sustainable waste management practices, promoting 

responsible and environmentally conscious behavior. 

Enhancing our exposure to global learning platforms, 

selected employees from key departments were 

nominated to participate in a certiǛcation course in 
Life Insurance at the Birla Institute of Management 

Technology (BIMTECH), India.

Beyond capability-building initiatives, SuryaJyoti 

also remained highly active in corporate sports and 

community engagement events. Our participation 

spanned the Insurance Futsal Cup, NIA-organized 

futsal events, Corporate Indoor Cricket tournaments, 

and, notably, our Ǜrst-ever representation in a Beach 
Women’s Cricket Tournament at Kwality Beach 

Resort—where our women’s team participated with 

enthusiasm and pride, participation in the annual 

NIA rally, and awareness programs that promote 

employee engagement and community involvement. 

Our annual Corporate Meet and Sales Convention 

always remain ǜagship events, where outstanding 
performance is recognized and rewarded across 

both corporate and branch teams.

Throughout Ǜscal year 2081/82, SuryaJyoti 
Life Insurance Company Limited strengthened 

its commitment to employee development, 

operational capability, regulatory compliance, 

and workplace well-being. By expanding 

our training portfolio, promoting inclusive 

engagement activities, and fostering a culture 

of merit, integrity, and continuous learning, we 

ensured meaningful professional growth for our 

workforce. Additionally, we eǘectively utilized the 
optimum training budget, maximizing the impact 

of our learning and development initiatives. With 

these eǘorts, we remain dedicated to building 
a motivated, skilled, and high-performing team 

that contributes to the long-term success and 

sustainable growth of the organization.
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SuryaJyoti Life Insurance Company is a leading 

player in the insurance sector, formed through 

the historic merger of Surya Life Insurance Co. 

Ltd. and Jyoti Life Insurance. The company is 

ISO-certiǛed, ensuring high standards of service 
excellence and customer satisfaction. With 173 

branches and 101,962 agents, it oǘers 18 diverse 
insurance plans, including the pioneering Critical 

Illness (CI) beneǛts, which set a new standard for 
health coverage in the industry.

Numerous awards have recognized SuryaJyoti 

Life Insurance's commitment to innovation and 

quality service. The company aims to provide 

comprehensive support to clients during chal-

lenging times. This focus on excellence enhanc-

es client trust and positions the company as a 

forward-thinking leader in the insurance market, 

dedicated to creating lasting value for its custom-

ers and communities.

Value Proposition

We have been oǘering Life Insurance Products 
a range of life insurance policies (Endowment, 

Child Endowment, Endowment cum Whole Life, 

Anticipated Endowment Life, and Term Life along 

with attractive Micro Life and Group Term Life) tai-

lored to diǘerent customer needs that bring peace 
of mind and Ǜnancial protection for families in the 
event of unforeseen circumstances.

Customer Segments

Our customer base is diverse, including families 

wanting to protect their loved ones, young adults 

planning for the future, and retirees seeking stabil-

ity. We also serve businesses looking to improve 

employee beneǛts or safeguard against losing 
key team members, helping both employees and 

employers succeed. Additionally, we oǘer various 
rider beneǛts tailored to meet speciǛc needs.

Revenue Streams

Our Ǜnancial health relies on two main revenue 
streams: premium income and investment re-

turns. By collecting premiums from our insured 

clients, we create a steady cash ǜow essential for 
daily operations and meeting our obligations. We 

also invest these premiums in a diversiǛed portfo-

lio, including equity, bonds, debentures, time de-

posits, and loans, to generate additional income. 

This strategy enhances our revenue and Ǜnancial 
resilience, providing a buǘer that allows us to ef-
Ǜciently pay beneǛts and maintain liquidity. By 
balancing premium income with smart investment 

practices, we ensure a strong Ǜnancial foundation 
to fulǛll our commitments to policyholders while 
pursuing growth opportunities.

Distribution Channels

We form partnerships with independent well-

trained agents through branches to expand our 

reach and connect with a broader audience. 

Additionally, our company branches are stra-

tegically allocated agents who enhance local 

engagement and support. We also utilize a 

multi-faceted approach to sales that includes di-

rect sales through online platforms and compa-

ny representatives, allowing us to engage with 

customers eǙciently. To enhance our visibility 
and engagement, we implement digital market-

ing strategies, including social media, which en-

able us to promote our products and services 

online and foster relationships with potential 

customers more interactively.

Customer Relationships

We provide personalized insurance solutions 

and maintain proactive relationships with our cli-

ents. Our user-friendly mobile app and website 

simplify access to overall policy information and 

company details. We oǘer multi-channel sup-

port via phone, email, chat, and social media, 

with well-trained customer service representa-

tives available to resolve issues eǙciently. We 
ensure a transparent claims process supported 

by knowledgeable representatives. By partner-

ing with local and corporate agents and being 

culturally sensitive, SuryaJyoti Life Insurance 

aims to build strong, trust-based relationships 

that foster loyalty and drive sustainable growth.

BUSINESS MODEL

SuryaJyoti Life Insurance Company
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Our Risk Governance Structure: Three Lines of Defense
SuryaJyoti Life Insurance Company Limited follows the globally accepted Three Lines of Defense model 

to ensure robust governance and accountability:

SuryaJyoti Life Insurance Company Limited (SuryaJyoti 

Life Insurance Company Limited) operates in a dynamic 

insurance landscape shaped by evolving regulatory re-

quirements, changing customer expectations, ǜuctuating 
Ǜnancial markets, and rapid technological advancements. 
As a life insurer entrusted with long-term obligations, the 

company places strong emphasis on maintaining a resil-

ient, forward-looking, and well-governed approach to risk 

management.

To uphold this commitment, SuryaJyoti Life Insurance 

Company Limited has adopted a comprehensive Risk 

Management Framework aligned with the Nepal Insur-

ance Authority (NIA) guidelines, the Risk-Based Capital - 

Solvency (RBCs) Regime, and internationally recognized 

Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) practices. This 

framework enables the company to proactively identify, 

assess, manage, and monitor risks across all functions, 

ensuring sound decision-making, protection of policy-

holders’ interests, and long-term Ǜnancial stability.

Department Heads 

act as the primary custodians 

of risk. They are responsible 

for identifying, assessing, 

and managing risks arising 

from day-to-day operations 

and ensuring alignment 

with approved policies and 

procedures.

The Risk Management De-

partment provides indepen-

dent oversight, guidance, and 

challenge to the Ǜrst line. It 
develops the Risk Manage-

ment Framework, formulates 

policies, monitors risk expo-

sure, sets risk appetite, and 

facilitates risk 

reporting.

Internal Audit 

provides on the eǘectiveness 
of the company’s internal 

ontrols, risk management 

processes, and governance 

mechanisms. It evaluates 

whether the Ǜrst and second 
lines are functioning as 

intended.

First Line Departments 

(Risk Owners)

Second Line Risk 

Management Department 

(Navigator & Enabler)

Third Line Internal 

Audit 

(Independent 

Assurance)

FRAMEWORK
RISK MANAGEMENT



18th ANNUAL REPORT 

FY 2081/82

44

Risk Management Process

SuryaJyoti Life Insurance Company Limited has established an integrated and technology-enabled 

risk management process centered around its Risk Register Portal. The process follows a system-

atic cycle:

Our Commitment to Growth and Stakeholders

SuryaJyoti Life Insurance Company Limited’s Risk Management Framework demonstrates the 

company’s strong dedication to protecting the interests of all stakeholders while supporting long-term 

sustainable growth. By integrating risk awareness into our organizational culture and embedding it within 

strategic and operational decision-making, we not only reduce potential vulnerabilities but also identify 

new avenues for value creation. This disciplined approach strengthens conǛdence, enhances resilience, 
and ensures that SuryaJyoti Life Insurance Company Limited continues to serve as a dependable and 

forward-looking institution for its stakeholders.

Integration of Climate-Related Risks 

Recognizing the rising signiǛcant threats of climate-related risks, SuryaJyoti Life Insurance Company 
Limited is in the process of formulating and putting into practice a climate risk management policy 

that guides the company toward sustainable progress. The policy serves as a guiding framework for 

integrating climate change considerations into our risk management practices, investment decisions 

and product development processes. The policy outlines the key components of the risk management 

framework, focusing on identifying, analyzing, evaluating, mitigating and monitoring climate-related risks 

that could impact the company's operations and Ǜnancial stability. 

Company is in the process of taking some of the proactive measures for Climate Change risk:

1. Designing and developing climate-supportive new products and services.

2. Building climate-related risk measures into investment strategy such as investing in Green Financing.

3. Conducting climate risk awareness programs and campaigns among the customers, staǘs and 
communities.

•	 Risk	IdentiǛcation
 Each department reports identiǛed risks into 

the Risk Register with descriptions, likelihood 

of occurrence, impact assessment, current risk 

status, respective risk owners, mitigation actions 

and other relevant details.

• Risk Analysis & Prioritization

 Risks are assessed based on likelihood and 

impact, and are categorized into low, medium, 

and high. This classiǛcation supports risk 
prioritization which leads to eǘective allocation 
of resources to mitigate impactful risks and 

informed decision-making.

• Risk Treatment

 Appropriate strategies such as risk avoidance, risk 

reduction, risk acceptance, risk sharing, or risk 

transfer are applied depending on the company’s 

risk appetite and the nature of each risk.

 Department heads and assigned risk owners 

are responsible for reporting and implementing 

the mitigation measures.

• Monitoring & Review

 All risks, including their mitigation actions, are 

continually monitored by the Risk Management 

Department. Further oversight is conducted by 

the Risk Management & Financial Soundness 

(Solvency) Committee, ensuring timely 

responses to emerging risks and enhancing 

overall risk governance.

MANAGEMENT
RISK

ACCESS
RISK

CONTROL
RISK

REVIEW

IDENTIFY
RISK
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Eǘective and transparent communication remains a cornerstone of SuryaJyoti 
Life Insurance Company Ltd.’s commitment to service excellence and stakeholder 

trust. As a leading life insurer, we recognize that clear, timely, and responsible 

communication is essential in strengthening our relationships with customers, 

policyholders, employees, partners, regulatory bodies, and the wider community.

SuryaJyoti Life consistently places the utmost care on the needs and expectations 

of all stakeholders. Upholding our responsibility to inform and engage with 

integrity, we utilize a comprehensive mix of modern communication tools and 

platforms. These channels ensure seamless information ǜow, reinforce our brand 
visibility, facilitate eǘective grievance resolution, and enable meaningful dialogue 
across every touchpoint.

By integrating innovative communication practices with our core values, SuryaJyoti 

Life continues to foster transparency, enhance customer experience, and support 

informed decision-making at all levels—reǜecting our long-term commitment to 
responsible and customer-centric corporate communication.

COMMUNICATION 

CHANNELS
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The key channels of communication of SuryaJyoti Life Insurance Company Ltd. are 

as follows:

1. Digital & Social Media Platforms

In today’s digital-driven world, information exchange and engagement have become faster and more 
dynamic. Recognizing this shift, SuryaJyoti Life continuously upgrades its digital platforms to communicate 
efŤciently and serve customers with convenience, speed, and clarity.

Key Digital Channels:

• Facebook, Instagram, TikTok & LinkedIn:

 Brand campaigns, engagement posts, awareness videos, CSR updates, and milestone announcements.
• YouTube:

 TVCs, product awareness content, event highlights, and Ťnancial literacy videos.
•	 OfŤcial	Website,	Mobile	App	&	Customer	Portal:
 Company information, Ťnancial statements, promoters and management details, product brochures, 

service procedures, online premium payment, and service updates.
• Viber Community, WhatsApp & Chatbot Services:

 Instant updates and quick digital interactions.

 Digital communication signiŤcantly enhances customer reach, especially among younger 
demographics and remote communities.

2. Mainstream Media Relations

SuryaJyoti Life Insurance Company Ltd. maintains strong and effective relationships with national media 
houses, leveraging the most powerful communication channels—television, radio, print, and online 
platforms.

Television and radio remain highly inťuential in reaching a wide audience across Nepal, delivering 
the company’s messages with impact and clarity. Print media strengthens brand credibility, while 
online platforms ensure real-time engagement and broader digital visibility. By strategically utilizing 
these mainstream media channels, SuryaJyoti Life reinforces its commitment to transparency, service 
excellence, and trusted communication with all stakeholders.

Primary Media Vehicles:

Television, Radio, Print, and Online News Portals

Key Activities:

• Press releases on new products, achievements, CSR initiatives, and corporate milestones
• TVCs, newspaper advertisements, and radio jingles for brand visibility
• Interviews, expert opinions, and insurance-focused media features to strengthen industry leadership

3. Internal Communication

SuryaJyoti Life Insurance fosters a strong organizational culture through structured and conŤdential 
internal communication channels. Using emails, circulars, memos, internal branding, town halls, and 
HR tools, the company ensures seamless coordination across its branch and agency network. These 
platforms help align teams with company goals, achieve sales targets, address challenges, support 
employee welfare and development, and celebrate achievements—reinforcing a cohesive, motivated, 
and high-performing workforce.
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To ensure effective coordination and a strong organizational culture, SuryaJyoti Life implements structured 
internal communication channels, including:

• Emails, circulars, and memos for ofŤcial updates and directives.
• Internal branding through posters, screens, and notice boards.
• WhatsApp, Viber Community, SMS

• Town halls, meetings, and corporate events to align teams with company goals and celebrate 
achievements.

• Web Application knowledge about process automation 
• HR communication tools for employee welfare, training, and development.

These platforms help resolve operational challenges, support sales teams, and enhance overall efŤciency.

4. Corporate Events & Stakeholder Engagement

SuryaJyoti Life actively communicates and connects with its stakeholders through various corporate 
programs and events. Annual meets, partners’ gatherings, and agent training sessions—such as Agency 
Awards Night, Sales Conventions, MDRT Meets, Corporate Meets, AGMs, and province- and district-level 
seminars—serve as key platforms for motivation, collaboration, and knowledge sharing.;

Major Engagement Categories:

A. Sales & Agency Network Events

• Agency Awards Night
• Sales Conventions
• MDRT Meets
• Corporate Meets
• AGM
• District and Province-Level Seminars & Training

B. Customer & Community Engagement Events

• Financial literacy and insurance awareness programs
• Health and wellness camps
• CSR events such as blood donation drives and heritage conservation activities

C. Product Launch & Promotional Events

• Insurance product launches

• Campaign kickoffs
• Customer appreciation events

D. Leadership & Employee Development

• Leadership forums and management retreats

• Team-building workshops
• Employee recognition programs

E. Digital & Hybrid Events

• Webinars and virtual conferences
• Online training sessions for staff and agents

F. Stakeholder & Partner Engagement
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• Partner/broker meets
• Reinsurance partner conferences

• Participation in industry forums and national expos

5. Customer Service Channels

SuryaJyoti Life Insurance Company Ltd. is committed to providing easy, accessible, and reliable service 
through a wide network of customer touchpoints. The company operates a dedicated Call Center/Helpline 
to support policy-related inquiries, while its nationwide branch ofŤces ensure personalized, face-to-face 
assistance for customers across the country.

Through these integrated service platforms, SuryaJyoti Life reinforces its promise of customer-centric, 
responsive, and trustworthy service delivery.

SuryaJyoti Life Insurance Company Ltd. ensures easy and accessible service through multiple customer 
touchpoints:

Key Touchpoints:

• Call Center/Helpline for policy inquiries and service support
•	 Nationwide	Branch	OfŤces for personalized, face-to-face assistance
• Digital grievance handling via email, online forms, and portal submissions
• Website & Mobile App for product information, policy services, and renewal facilities
•	 SMS	and	Voice	NotiŤcations	for premium reminders, maturity alerts, and service updates
• What’s App. Viber Community, Facebook, Messenger, Chat Bot, Mobile app

• AI Based Personalized Voice Message. 

These channels ensure customers receive timely, accurate, and transparent service throughout their 
policy lifecycle.

6. Outdoor and OOH Branding Platforms 

SuryaJyoti Life Insurance strategically leverages outdoor and out-of-home (OOH) branding to 
enhance visibility and strengthen top-of-mind recall across Nepal. By maintaining a consistent and 
nationwide presence, the company communicates reliability, trust, and its unwavering commitment 
to serving people in every region of the country.

These OOH platforms play a vital role in positioning SuryaJyoti Life as a highly recognizable and 
dependable life insurance provider. Key channels include prominent billboards, hoarding boards, 
flex banners, event branding, and sponsorship visibility in major national events.

Key OOH Channels Include:

• Billboards & Hoarding Boards in high-trafŤc urban and semi-urban areas
• Mall & Cinema Hall Branding to engage diverse audiences in high-footfall zones
• Digital Screen & Flex Banners near markets, ofŤces, and community spaces
• Event Branding & Sponsorships and Landmark Branding in national/international sports 

tournaments, cultural festivals, and public events

These platforms collectively position the company as a reliable and widely recognized life insurer in Nepal.
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Network 

(Intranet/Internet)

Core Insurance 

System

GoAML/DBR FileServer
National Payment

Interface
Internal Portal Corporate Pay

Micro Insurance 

System
Ting Ting SMSAntivirus Utility Payment

Accounting System
Database 

Management & 
Back up

QR Payment API's CCTV-VMS

IT SupportCompass System Email
Online Payment

Gateway

Online Payment

Gateway
Admin-Nimble

IS AuditActive Directory (AD)
Dedicated Call

Center System
HR-RIGOWebsite

Data Center

Firewall & Switches

DR (Disaster Recovery)

IT SYSTEMS

OVERVIEW OF

IT SYSTEMS

Compass:

COMPASS is an all-in-one Enterprise Management System transforming operations with automation, 

tracking, and real-time reporting and payment functionally with NPI. It streamlines underwriting, claims, 

loans, servicing, and branch activities, cutting hours of work to minutes. With paperless processes and 

dynamic dashboards, COMPASS boosts eǙciency, accuracy, and decision-making across the organi-
zation.

compass

Dynamic Mobile App :

Our mobile app is the key tool for agents, policy-

holders, and staǘ, oǘering biometric login, multi-
ple-policy access, transactions, dues, loans, in-

centives, income statements, a dynamic premium 

calculator, agent tree, commissions, renewals, 

SuryaJyoti Cares Card, and eKarja. These fea-

tures boost eǙciency and help agents track re-

newals, performance, and clients. Strategic out-

reach has driven strong adoption with over 60,000 

downloads and 34,000 registered users.
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Our dedicated CRM supports inbound and out-

bound calls with features like Campaign Builder, 

Voice Blast, analytical dashboards, and core sys-

tem integration. Voice Blast delivers prerecorded 

messages to large audiences at SIP call rates, 

proving more eǘective than SMS. The platform 
enables seamless call tracking, status updates, 

renewals and loan follow-ups, direct calling, and 

complete call recordings—enhancing customer 

interaction and operational eǙciency.

Call Center:

Dynamic QR 

Payments System:

Dynamic QR Payment marks a major shift in dig-

ital payments, boosting eǙciency and custom-

er experience. Unlike static codes, dynamic QR 

codes are generated per transaction, removing 

manual steps and reducing staǘ workload. Pay-

ments update in real time, allowing clients to pay 

instantly from branches or anywhere. This im-

proves convenience, speeds service, and sets a 

new standard for fast, secure, and reliable pay-

ment processing in the insurance industry.

Ting Ting:

Ting Ting is an AI-powered voice messaging plat-

form with advanced TTS that lets us upload cus-

tomer details, type a message, choose a voice, and 

send campaigns instantly in English or Nepali. Inte-

grated with our core systems, it automates notices, 

due reminders, welcome calls, campaigns, and loan 

updates for policyholders and agents. It boosts pre-

mium collection, reduces staǘ workload, and deliv-

ers personalized voice updates at scale.

eKarja : SuryaJyoti’s Innovative 

Online Loan Disbursement (e-karja) 

via Khalti

SuryaJyoti Life Insurance is proud to introduce 

the Online Policy Loan Disbursement Service 

(eKarja)—a pioneering digital breakthrough and 

the Ǜrst of its kind in Nepal’s life insurance sec-

tor. This innovative service has transformed the 

traditional loan disbursement mechanism by al-

lowing eligible policyholders to receive their policy 

loan amount instantly through the Khalti Payment 

Gateway, without visiting a branch, Ǜlling forms, or 
waiting for manual approval.

SuryaJyoti Cares Digital 

Card

SuryaJyoti Cares Card is a groundbreaking 

digital privilege card introduced for the Ǜrst time 
in the life insurance sector of Nepal by SuryaJyoti 

Life Insurance Co. Ltd. This innovative service 

enhancement marks a major step in redeǛning 
customer engagement and value delivery beyond 

traditional insurance beneǛts.Designed exclusively 
for eligible policyholders and agents which is 

integrated in Mobile App, the SuryaJyoti Cares Card 

provides privileged access to a diverse network of 

partner institutions, oǘering meaningful discounts 
and beneǛts across essential lifestyle categories.

Online Policy Selling:

This digital form is used for clients interested in 

buying a policy, helping branches save time by 

avoiding manual entry. Our Online Policy Issuing 

Module, integrated into the website, lets users 

enter personal details, product choices, and policy 

requirements easily. The system validates data, 

processes requests instantly, and enables quick, 

accurate, paperless policy issuance for a smooth 

and eǙcient experience.

Online Payments:

 We oǘer a fully integrated digital payment system 
for Foreign Employment, First Premium, Renewal 

Premium, Loan Repayment, and other collections 

through multiple payment gateways: Khalti, eSewa, 

FonePay, Connect IPS, Nic Aisa MoBank and Cell-

Pay. Customers can pay instantly from anywhere. 

The system ensures secure, seamless transactions 

with real-time updates.

National Payment Interface

We have successfully integrated the National 

Payment Interface (NPI) API module for real-time 

payment disbursement of various claim types, 

including Partial Maturity, Full Maturity, Surrender, 

Loan, Death Claims, and other beneǛt payouts 
with 2FA enabled with Google Authenticator and 

other security implementation along with the Bank 

Account Validation in real time. 
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Micro System and Daily Busi-

ness Reconciliation system: 

We have in-house Micro Insurance and DBR 

Systems to boost eǙciency in managing premi-
ums and claims. The Micro Insurance System 

enables seamless policy management, premi-

um collection, claims, and reporting. The DBR 

System automates reconciliation of premium 

vouchers for accuracy and accountability. Addi-

tionally, the Foreign Employment Claim Module 

streamlines overseas insurance claims, ensur-

ing faster processing and improved customer 

satisfaction.

Rs

Khalti Enterprise Solutions

We have implemented Khalti Utility System for 

ticketing and various utility payments. This sys-

tem enables quick and seamless processing of 

tickets and utility transactions, signiǛcantly reduc-

ing manual eǘort and lengthy turnaround times. 
By automating these processes, it ensures faster 

service delivery, improved tracking, and simpliǛed 
reconciliation. Overall, it enhances operational ef-

Ǜciency and provides a smooth, hassle-free ex-

perience.

Disaster Recovery:

In house Data Centre

SuryaJyoti Life have an in-house Data Canter 

where all the Servers, Firewalls and QNAP Back-

up server are attached in the Smart modular rack 

(Smart Cabinet) integrated with a high precision 

AC, internal & external power back up upto 18 

hrs, temperature & humidity sensor(TH), alarm, 

sensors, water leakage detector which can be ac-

cessed externally from the web portal.

SuryaJyoti Life has a fully equipped Disaster Re-

covery (DR) site in Bhairahawa, managed and 

maintained by Silver Lining. This DR site ensures 

business continuity with full backup and can be 

accessed securely from anywhere in the event of 

a disaster, system failure, or unexpected disrup-

tion, allowing critical operations to continue with-

out downtime and safeguarding data, systems, 

and services for uninterrupted support to clients, 

agents, and staǘ.

We have successfully deployed the ESET 

Endpoint Security System across all PCs in our 

network to enhance cybersecurity and protect 

against potential threats. This robust solution 

provides comprehensive protection, including 

real-time malware detection, advanced threat 

prevention, and proactive monitoring.

Eset- End Point Security:

Active Directory (AD): 

We have an Active Directory (AD) system that al-

lows us to eǙciently manage and organize users, 
computers, and other network resources within the 

organization. It serves as a centralized directory, 

enabling administrators to control authentication, 

authorization, and access across the network. The 

system also enforces organizational policies and 

restrictions, ensuring that users follow security pro-

tocols, access rights are properly assigned, and 

sensitive data is protected, thereby maintaining a 

secure and well-structured IT environment.

Email Systems:

SuryaJyoti Life uses The MDaemon Email Server 

which  is  easy-to-use, reliable, and secure mail  

server.MDaemon simpliǛes messaging and col-
laboration with a focus on security and privacy, an 

intuitive, user-friendly web mail design and oǘers 
administrators Mobile Device Management, Busi-

ness Instant Messaging, Document Sharing, and 

other enterprise-class features that can be man-

aged with minimal support.

We use the cloud-hosted Rigo system, accessible 

via web and mobile app, to streamline HR oper-

ations across the organization. It covers recruit-

ment, onboarding, performance management, 

and payroll processing. The platform provides 

user-friendly solutions that enhance productivity, 

simplify HR processes, and improve employee 

engagement, making it a valuable tool for organi-

zational eǙciency.

HR System- RIGO
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SuryaJyoti Life Insurance Company Ltd. has appointed a dedicated Nodal OfŤcer to lead, supervise, 
and ensure the effective functioning of the company’s grievance redressal system. The Nodal OfŤcer 
serves as the central authority for oversight, ensuring that all customer complaints and stakeholder 
concerns are handled with professionalism, fairness, and timely resolution. Their name, designation, 
and contact details are prominently published on the company’s ofŤcial website, reinforcing transparency 
and accessibility.

To further strengthen this framework, SuryaJyoti Life has established a Special Customer Service 
Department responsible for receiving, managing, and resolving grievances with efŤciency and care. 
This specialized unit operates as the frontline support system, ensuring that customers receive prompt 
responses, clear communication, and service excellence throughout the grievance handling process.

SuryaJyoti Life has adopted a structured, and customer-centric grievance management mechanism 
through which Customers and stakeholders can submit grievances through a wide range of accessible 
platforms, including:

• Written applications

• Toll-free contact number
• Email, SMS
• Viber and WhatsApp community 
• OfŤcial Facebook page and Website
• Online grievance registration portal on the company website
• QR codes displayed at all branch ofŤces for instant mobile-based submissions

All grievances received through these channels are systematically logged into the company’s centralized 
system, documenting key details such as the complainant’s information, nature of the complaint, and 
description of the issue. 

Once recorded, each grievance is promptly routed to the relevant department or responsible ofŤcer 
for investigation and resolution. The Special Customer Service Department collaborates closely with 
internal teams to ensure clarity, swift action, and appropriate corrective measures. Management is kept 
informed throughout the process to maintain high service standards and organizational accountability.

The Nodal OfŤcer closely monitors all registered and escalated cases, ensuring timely follow-up, 
transparent communication with customers, and adherence to established service timelines. This 
centralized leadership strengthens the reliability and efŤciency of the entire grievance handling system.

GRIEVANCE HANDLING MECHANISM
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Disclosure on 

Reinsurance Arrangements:
To efŤciently manage risk exposure and guarantee sufŤcient coverage for its obligations, Sury-
aJyoti Life Insurance Company Limited keeps an extensive reinsurance policy. Both standard 
and catastrophic reinsurance are included in this policy, and the adequacy of its coverage is 
evaluated using both qualitative and quantitative metrics. The business has reinsurance agree-
ments with regional reinsurers Nepal Re and Himalayan Re as well as international reinsurer 
Hannover Re. The following are their individual ratings:

Reinsurer Rating Rating Agency 

Himalayan Re B+ AM BEST

Hannover Re A+ AM BEST

Nepal Re AA- ICRA Nepal

the company's reinsurance structure for Ťscal year 2081/82 in compliance with the reinsurance 
directive issued by the Nepal Insurance Authority (NIA):
• Direct Cession: Nepal Re and Himalayan Re split 6% each of the total risk equally.
• Company Retention: The company keeps Rs. 750,000 for each policy after direct cession.
• New Business: Himalayan Re receives 60% of the surplus risk (after direct cession and 

retention) for policies issued on or after July 16, 2023, while the remaining 40% is cede to 
Nepal Re.

• Renewal Business: Reinsurance under the terms of the current treaties with Hannover Re, 
Nepal Re, and Himalayan Re continues for policies issued prior to July 16, 2023.

• Catastrophic Reinsurance: Himalayan Reinsurance Co. Ltd. provided the company with cat-
astrophic coverage for the Ťscal year 2081/82, guaranteeing Rs. 900 million per event with 
an annual aggregate limit of Rs. 1,800 million—sufŤcient to cover expected catastrophe 
risk.

• Direct Cession: Six percent of total risk is allocated equally between Nepal Re and Hima-
layan Re.

 To reduce unanticipated catastrophic losses, the company transfers 10% of its yearly net 
proŤt into a catastrophe reserve in addition to the Catastrophe XOL arrangement and in 
accordance with the Insurer Financial Directive 2080.

These reinsurance plans, which include catastrophic protection, are designed to guarantee the 
business's continuous Ťnancial stability and its capacity to pay policyholder claims even in dire 
or unforeseen situations.

Legally binding contracts that specify the terms, conditions, and obligations of each party are 
used to formally execute the reinsurance agreements with all participating reinsurers. Import-
ant components like coverage limitations, premium rates, claim processes, reporting speciŤ-
cations, dispute resolution procedures, and renewal or termination clauses are all deŤned in 
these agreements. The treaties guarantee the company's continuous reinsurance protection 
because they automatically renew every year.
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CSR INITIATIVES
SuryaJyoti Life remains committed to enhancing the wellbeing of individuals, communities, and society 
through purposeful and people-centric Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) initiatives. Guided by our 
core values of care, integrity, and social upliftment, our CSR approach focuses on creating sustainable 
impact in health, education, community welfare, and humanitarian support. We strongly believe that a 
responsible corporate contributes not only to economic progress but also to the social development 
of the nation.

In alignment with our longterm vision, we continue to invest in programs that bring meaningful 
change at the grassroots level. Our Ńagship initiatives - "Jiwanko Lagi Nayanosath", "Shikshya Ko Lagi 
SuryaJyoti", and several community-focused welfare activities are designed to empower vulnerable 
groups, nurture young minds, and respond to the needs of communities in times of distress. These 
efforts reŃect our commitment to fostering a healthier, more resilient, and educated society.

Through "Jiwanko Lagi Nayanosath", we extend support to individuals and families facing health-
related challenges by providing essential medical assistance, screening opportunities, and awareness 
campaigns. This initiative emphasizes preventive healthcare and timely intervention as pathways 
toward improved quality of life.

Our education-focused program, "Shikshya Ko Lagi SuryaJyoti", aims to strengthen the learning 
environment of public schools and students from marginalized backgrounds. By providing essential 
educational materials, infrastructure support, and other activities, we help children access quality 
learning opportunities and conłdently move toward a brighter future.

Beyond these targeted programs, SuryaJyoti Life continues to undertake various community welfare 
and humanitarian activities, including environmental care, disaster response, distribution of essential 
supplies, and support for animal welfare, such as the humanitarian support extended to cattle at 
Sisau Bagar, Lamahi. Each effort reŃects our deep understanding of social responsibility and our 
commitment to the communities we serve.

SuryaJyoti Life has also demonstrated strong national solidarity during times of need. Following the 
extensive damages to public infrastructure during the recent national crisis, the company contributed 
to the Government of Nepal’s Physical Infrastructure Reconstruction Fund, supporting national 
reconstruction, economic revival, and relief efforts. This reŃects our resolve to stand with the nation 
in its most challenging moments.

As we move forward, SuryaJyoti Life aspires to expand the scale and reach of our CSR initiatives, 
ensuring inclusive, sustainable, and measurable impact across the nation. We remain dedicated to 
building a compassionate society where every individual is empowered to lead a digniłed and secure 
life.
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Under the campaign “Jiwanko Lagi Nayanosath,” SuryaJyoti Life Insurance 
focused on promoting dignity, comfort, and wellbeing among communities 
experiencing vulnerability. The initiative prioritized distribution of warm 
clothing, including down jackets, Ńeece double sided jackets, and łber 
blankets to individuals, children, and marginalized groups across several 
provinces. These efforts were aimed at helping families cope with harsh 
winter conditions, particularly in communities where access to warm clothing 
is limited. Through collaborations with local organizations, shelters, and 
schools, the campaign ensured that essential winter support reached elderly 
residents, children in orphanages, and underprivileged students in remote 
rural areas.

In addition to winter support, the campaign supported individuals with 
disabilities and rehabilitation centers by offering warmth, care, and 
encouragement. By directly engaging with benełciaries and adapting support 
to the needs of each institution, SuryaJyoti strengthened its commitment 
to compassionate outreach. The initiative not only provided material 
assistance but also reinforced the organization’s belief that every individual 
deserves safety, warmth, and the opportunity to thrive, regardless of their 
circumstances.

hLjgsf] nflu
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As part of the CSR campaign “SuryaJyoti Ko Nyanopan,” warm clothing and blankets were 
distributed across various regions to support children and vulnerable communities during the cold 
season. Fleece double sided jackets were provided to children at Amrita Anath Aasram in Suwarn 
Rural Municipality, ensuring warmth and comfort for those under institutional care. Similarly, 
students of Narayan Baba Dalit Janjati School in Dhanusha and Balgram Aadharbhut Bidhyalaya 
in Baglung received warm jackets to help them stay protected during winter. In addition, warm 
Ťber blankets were distributed to marginalized Dalit families in the Hadauna area of Kapilvastu, 
extending essential winter relief to those most in need. These initiatives reťect the company’s 
continued dedication to community welfare and compassionate support.

SuryaJyoti Ko Nyanopan

SuryaJyoti Life supported 

students of Shree Shodasha Devi 
Madhyamik School, Mangalsen, 
Achham, through the successful 
distribution of tracksuits and 
essential stationery materials. 

This initiative aimed to encourage 
students’ regular attendance, 
boost their conŤdence, and 
create a more supportive learning 
environment. The activity was 
completed in coordination with the 
local school community, reinforcing 
our commitment to education and 

student welfare in remote regions.

Shodasha Devi Madhyamik School

Achham
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SuryaJyoti, in partnership with Fulbari Community Library & Resource Center which is located 
at Madhyabindu Municipality Nawalparasi, Nawalpur District, organized a skill based income 
generating abilities through a tailoring training program for underprivileged women. To support 
their families and themselves on journey towards self reliance, SuryaJyoti provided Ťnancial aid, 
sewing machines, and essential materials.

This initiative equipped participants with valuable skills, empowering them to earn a sustainable 
livelihood and improve their quality of life. It is a testament to the impact of collective efforts in 
creating opportunities and fostering independence.
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The “Shikshya Ko Lagi SuryaJyoti” campaign focused on expanding equal 
access to education, improving learning environments, and empowering 
students across Nepal. The initiative supported government schools through 
the distribution of educational materials, sports equipment, stationery, 
computers, and digital learning tools. Special attention was given to 
visually impaired students, with Braille education materials, computers, and 
accessibility software distributed across multiple districts. These efforts 
signiłcantly strengthened inclusive education opportunities for blind students, 
allowing them to engage with learning more effectively and independently.

The campaign’s reach extended to remote schools where resources are 
scarce, ensuring students received the educational tools necessary for 
academic growth. By promoting digital literacy and supporting infrastructure 
development, SuryaJyoti contributed to enhancing the long-term quality 
of education. Eye checkup camps and corrective glasses distribution were 
also planned to promote the academic well-being of thousands of students, 
recognizing that good vision is essential for student success. Together, these 
efforts reŃect the company’s strong commitment to nurturing Nepal’s future 
through accessible, inclusive, and student-centered interventions.

lzIffsf] nflu
;"o{Hof]lt;"o{Hof]lt



18th ANNUAL REPORT 

FY 2081/82

63

BRAILLE EDUCATION

MATERIAL DISTRIBUTION 

As part of the company’s commitment to inclusive education, Braille learning materials, along with 
a computer and JAWS software, were provided to visually impaired students of Shree Guru Jajur 
Ma. Bi., Tulsipur, Dang. This initiative, conducted in collaboration with Fellowship Society Nepal, 
aims to enhance accessible learning and empower students with the tools needed for quality 
education. By supporting adaptive technology and specialized materials, the company continues 
to promote equal learning opportunities for all learners, ensuring that no student is left behind.

Shree Guru Jajur School
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In partnership with Fellowship Society Nepal, Braille education materials, along with a computer 
and JAWS software, were provided to visually impaired students of Shivajan Ma. Bi., Shitalpati, 
Salyan. This initiative supports accessible learning by equipping students with essential educational 
resources and assistive technology. Through this effort, the company continues its commitment to 
promoting inclusive education and empowering visually impaired learners to pursue their studies 
with conŤdence and independence.

Shree Shivajan Secondary School 
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Braille education materials, along with a computer and JAWS software, were distributed to visually 
impaired students of Shree Janajagriti Ma. Bi., Mahadevbesi, Dhading, in collaboration with 
Fellowship Society Nepal. This initiative aims to enhance accessibility in learning by providing 
essential tools that support independent study and digital literacy for blind students. Through such 
efforts, the company reinforces its commitment to inclusive education and the empowerment of 
students with visual impairments.

Shree Janata Secondary School
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Braille education materials, along with a computer and JAWS software, were distributed to visually 
impaired students of Shree Janata Ma. Bi., Gauri Dada, Mahottari, in collaboration with Fellowship 
Society Nepal. This initiative aims to enhance learning accessibility and digital empowerment for 
blind students, supporting their educational growth and fostering greater inclusion in academic 
environments.

Shree Janata Secondary School
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FREE EYE CAMP AND

SPECTACLES DISTRIBUTION 

A free eye checkup camp was conducted for students 
of government schools across Bagmati Province in 
collaboration with Nepal Eye Hospital. Spectacles were 
also distributed to students of Changunarayan Madhyamik 
Vidyalaya, supporting their vision health and learning needs.

Changu Narayan Madhyamik Vidyalaya
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SuryaJyoti Life Insurance conducted a comprehensive 
eye care program for the students of Bishow Niketan 
Madhyamik Vidyalaya. The initiative included free eye 
checkups and the distribution of spectacles, aiming to 
enhance the students’ vision and ensure better focus 
in their studies.

Bishow Niketan Madhyamik Vidyalaya
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An eye health awareness and support camp was organized 
at Mahendragram Madhyamik Vidyalaya, where students 
received professional eye examinations and free spectacles. 
The program sought to promote healthy eyesight and 
improve the overall learning experience for the students.

Mahendragram Madhyamik Vidyalaya
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Janata Madhyamik Bidhyalaya

Students of Janata Madhyamik Bidhyalaya beneŤted from a 
dedicated eye care initiative, providing free vision screenings 
and spectacles. The effort focused on early detection of eye 
issues and enabling students to perform better academically with 
clear vision.
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SPORTS MATERIAL 

DISTRIBUTION

Various educational and sports materials 
were distributed to the students of Shree Dalit 
Prathamik Bidhyalaya, supporting their learning 
and physical development.
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EDUCATIONAL MATERIAL

DISTRIBUTION IN JUMLA

Educational materials were distributed to students at 
Shree Kalika Aadharbhut School, Dewar Gaun, Jumla, 
supporting dedicated, Dalit, and underprivileged 
students in their academic pursuits.
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SuryaJyoti Life continued to extend its support across diverse social needs 
through a range of community welfare and humanitarian activities. These initiatives 
were designed to uplift vulnerable groups, promote dignity, and strengthen local 
communities. Through partnerships with community based organizations, the 
company supported programs focused on skill building, leadership development, 
and empowerment of single women and conťict affected individuals. Additional 
support was also provided to senior citizens through welfare and capacity-enhancing 
services, reinforcing our belief in inclusive community development.

A signiŤcant humanitarian effort during the year involved the rescue and care 
of over 150 cattle conŤned within barbed-wire fencing at Sisau Bagar, Lamahi. 
Recognizing the severity of the situation, SuryaJyoti Life arranged food, hay, and 
clean water to prevent further casualties and ensure timely relief. This initiative 
reťects our broader understanding of community wellbeing acknowledging that 
animal welfare is an important component of rural livelihood sustainability.

In line with our commitment to national responsibility, the company also contributed 
to the Government of Nepal’s Physical Infrastructure Reconstruction Fund to 
support the rebuilding of public infrastructure damaged during recent unrest. This 
contribution symbolizes our continued dedication to standing with the nation in 
times of crisis and helping restore stability and resilience. Through these combined 
efforts, SuryaJyoti Life reafŤrms its mission to foster compassionate, empowered, 
and thriving communities across Nepal.

OTHER

ACTIVITIES
COMMUNITY
WELFARE
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SuryaJyoti Life Insurance has continued to play a positive and responsible 
role during times of national need by actively contributing through various 
Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives. In response to the extensive 
damage caused to public and government infrastructures across the 
country during the recent Gen-Z movement, the company supported 
national reconstruction efforts by contributing NPR 1.5 crores to the 
Government of Nepal’s Physical Infrastructure Reconstruction Fund. With 
a longstanding commitment to supporting education, health, and social 
welfare, SuryaJyoti Life believes that this contribution will meaningfully 
assist in rebuilding damaged structures, supporting economic recovery, 
and facilitating relief efforts. The company has reafŤrmed its dedication to 
standing with the nation during critical moments and supporting impactful 
reconstruction initiatives.

Contribution 

to the Physical 

Infrastructure 

Reconstruction 

Fund



18th ANNUAL REPORT 

FY 2081/82

75

SuryaJyoti Life Insurance Co. Ltd. organized Life Insurance 
Awareness Programs across multiple regions throughout 
the year via its branch network. These initiatives aimed 
to educate the public on the importance of life insurance, 
enabling individuals to make informed decisions about their 
coverage. By increasing awareness and understanding, 
the programs effectively reached diverse communities, 
fostering Ťnancial security and promoting responsible 
planning among the general population.

Life 
Insurance
Awareness 
Program
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EVENTS
M A J O R
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17TH ANNUAL

GENERAL MEETING

SuryaJyoti Life Insurance became the Ťrst company in the life insurance sector 
to hold its annual general meeting within the stipulated timeframe. In line with 
the requirement to conduct the previous year’s AGM within six months of the 
new Ťscal year, the company successfully held its 17th AGM on Poush 6 at Big 
Hotel, Biratnagar. During the meeting, the Chairman highlighted the company’s 
upcoming plans and longterm strategies, emphasizing the commitment to 
expanding enhanced services and ensuring the security and wellbeing of all 
policyholders. The continued trust of shareholders, the unwavering support of 
customers, and the dedication of employees have been instrumental in driving 
SuryaJyoti Life Insurance forward on its path of sustained growth.
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AGENCY AWARD 

NIGHT 2082

SuryaJyoti Life Insurance successfully organized the grand “Agency Award Night 2082” at Hotel Pokhara Grande, 
Pokhara, with the participation of nearly 200 Chief Agency Managers, Star Agency Managers, Insurance Advisors, 
and Agents from across the country. The event celebrated outstanding performers from various insurance plans, 
honoring them with trophies, certiŤcates, and cash prizes.

Special recognitions were awarded to top achievers in the team business, individual code, and collective business 
categories, acknowledging those who achieved the highest business volumes nationwide. The ceremony 
highlighted excellence, dedication, and the signiŤcant contributions made by agency professionals across Nepal, 
reinforcing SuryaJyoti Life’s commitment to recognizing and motivating its valued workforce.



18th ANNUAL REPORT 

FY 2081/82

80

SALES CONVENTION 2082

SuryaJyoti Sales Convention 2082 was successfully held at Pokhara Grande, 
celebrating achievement, dedication, and teamwork. The event recognized 
top performers across the organization, honoring exceptional leadership and 
performance in key roles. Awards were presented to Province Heads, Regional 
Managers, Branch Managers, Sales Executives, and Operations Incharges, 
reťecting SuryaJyoti Life’s commitment to excellence and the collective 
effort of its dynamic team. Beyond recognizing individual accomplishments, 
the convention inspired all participants to aim higher, fostering unity and the 
enduring spirit of “We Can” as the company moves forward together.
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CORPORATE MEET 2082

SuryaJyoti Life Insurance successfully conducted its “Corporate Meet–2082” at Lemon Tree 
Premier Hotel, Kathmandu, focusing on employee personality development, motivation, and 
fostering a transformative organizational culture. The program highlighted the company’s key 
strategy of the year, “We Can,” emphasizing the need for employees to enhance their mindset, 
work approach, service behavior, and governance practices. Interactive sessions on professional 
culture, emotional intelligence, and communication were conducted to strengthen skills and 
engagement. The event also recognized outstanding employees through awards for excellence, 
creativity, and impactful contributions. 
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MDRT MEET 2025

SuryaJyoti Life successfully hosted the MDRT Meet 2025 at Chandragiri Hills 
Resort, celebrating the achievements of its top advisors. Those who met 
the annual business targets set by the Million Dollar Round Table (MDRT) 
for Nepal in 2024 were recognized, earning the opportunity to represent 
both their homeland and SuryaJyoti Life on an international platform. The 
company honored these outstanding MDRT 2025 advisors for their exceptional 
performance and contribution to the organization’s global recognition.
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EMPLOYEE FELICITATION 

PROGRAM

On the occasion of our 17th Anniversary, SuryaJyoti Life Insurance Co. Ltd. proudly honors our 
esteemed team members who have devoted over 15 years of service with exceptional dedication 
and loyalty. Your commitment and hard work inspire us all. Thank you for being the foundation 
of our success! Your perseverance and passion have signiŤcantly contributed to the growth and 
excellence of the company. We celebrate your remarkable journey and look forward to achieving 
greater milestones together.
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LAUNCH OF e-karja

AND SURYAJYOTI CARES

SuryaJyoti Cares Digital card and SuryaJyoti e-Karja  
launch program at Hotel Himalaya, Kupondole, Lalitpur. 
The SuryaJyoti Cares Digital Card offers policyholders 
exclusive discounts and beneŤts at partner hospitals, 
hotels, and clinics, enhancing the value of their insurance. 
Meanwhile, SuryaJyoti e-Karja enables customers to 
apply for policy loans online from anywhere, with funds 
credited directly to their Khalti Wallet in real-time. This 
initiative marks a signiŤcant step in making insurance 
services more accessible, convenient, and efŤcient for 
policyholders. 
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STAR AGENCY MEET

The SuryaJyoti Star Agency Meet 2082 was organized at Mystic Mountain, 
Nagarkot to recognize Agency Managers who achieved over Rs. 10 Million in 
First Premium through their teams during the Ťscal year. The program provided 
a valuable platform for Agency Managers to enhance their team building and 
leadership development skills through dedicated workshops.

The meet also served as a celebration of achievements, offering opportunities 
for networking, sharing insights, and fostering collaboration within the 
organization. Additionally, participants beneŤted from underwriting and policy 
servicing training sessions, further strengthening their professional knowledge 
and capabilities.
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DINNER WITH CEO & SALES  

ENHANCEMENT TRAINING

SuryaJyoti Dinner with CEO and Sales Enhancement Training program was 
organized for the qualiŤers of sales promotional plan to insurance advisors 
and agency managers for the celebration of their achievements, business 
review, networking, sharing insights, sales skills enhancement and fostering 
collaboration within the organization. Executive Members and Sales Support 
Team members from Province, Region and Branches also join the session as 
per their contribution during the scheme period and business development 
activities. Training from International Trainer was organized during the day time 
and CEO of the company addressed the participants with Ťnancial highlights 
and strategic insights at the evening.



18th ANNUAL REPORT 

FY 2081/82

87

CEO CLUB MEETING

SuryaJyoti Agency Club Meetings were organized across various regions and provinces to 
recognize CEO Club members who have made outstanding contributions individually and 
through their teams throughout the Ťscal year. The program provided club members with 
a valuable platform to learn about the life insurance business process and enhance their 
sales skills through dedicated training sessions.

The meetings also served as a celebration of members’ achievements, offering opportunities 
for networking, sharing insights, and fostering collaboration within the organization. As part 
of the program, CEO Club members had the unique chance to interact directly with the 
CEO, gaining Ťrst hand guidance and inspiration to further excel in their roles.
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AGENCY REFRESHMENT 

TRAINING 

The Agency Refreshment Training is designed to sharpen agents’ skills, 
elevate their performance, and renew their core knowledge. By fostering 
continuous learning and development, this program empowers agents to 
achieve excellence and contribute more meaningfully to the company’s long-
term success.
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ACHIEVER'S MEET

The SuryaJyoti Achievers Meet is a valuable program that brings together 
Quarterly FPI Target achieving sales team members, including Province Heads, 
Regional Managers, Branch Managers, and Sales Executives, at a predeŤned 
destination. The program serves as a platform to celebrate achievements, 
review business performance, network, share insights, and foster collaboration 
within the organization.

The sessions are often attended by Executive Members and Board of Directors, 
who provide feedback and suggestions to the achievers regarding business 
activities and strategic plans for the future. This interactive and motivational 
program strengthens teamwork, encourages knowledge sharing, and inspires 
continued excellence across all levels of the organization.
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AGENT BASIC 

TRAINING

Throughout the year, a dedicated team of internal trainers conducted 
comprehensive Agent Basic Training across all 175 company branches. This 
program was designed to equip agents with essential skills, knowledge, and 
practical insights, enabling them to perform effectively, enhance customer 
service, and achieve excellence in their roles.
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FINANCIAL

HIGHLIGHTS
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Fiscal Year



18th ANNUAL REPORT 

FY 2081/82

93

nks

Banks

Banks

itutions

Fixed Deposit of Commercial Ba

Fixed Deposit of Infrastructure 

Fixed Deposit of Development 

Fixed Deposit of Financial Inst

Equity Share

Debentures

Mutual Fund

Infrastructure Investment

Private Equity & Venture Capital

9.79%

2.44%

9.49%

2.76%

15.22%

0.64%
0.48%

15.33%

59.18%

0.65%

0.30%

Investment Mix

Solvency Ratio
3.50

3.00

2.50

2.00

1.50

1.00

0.50

2077/78

2.59 2.64

3.00

2.47

1.65

2078/79 2079/80 2080/81 (RBC-S) 2081/82 (RBC-S)

-

Life Fund

2081/82 4,161

3,370

2,730

1,408

1,070

2080/81

2079/80

2078/79

2077/78

(in NPR Crores)

Fiscal Year

* The Solvency Ratio has been calculated as per the RBC-S Directives.
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Paticulars Notes  Current Year  Previous Year 

Assets

Goodwill & Intangible Assets 4  66,064,099  65,406,270 
Property and Equipment 5  314,503,194  309,229,852 
Investment Properties 6  -    -   
Deferred Tax Assets 7  208,594,780  394,597,123 
Investment in Subsidiaries 8  -    -   
Investment in Associates 9  -    -   
Investments 10  41,662,401,555  34,959,986,739 
Loans 11  4,859,602,479  4,178,944,904 
Reinsurance Assets 12  64,097,828  21,424,347 
Current Tax Assets 21  1,025,130,470  1,027,696,996 
Insurance Receivables 13  223,025,162  160,562,040 
Other Assets 14  118,724,379  145,263,587 
Other Financial Assets 15  1,064,970,255  242,050,215 
Cash and Cash Equivalent 16  819,623,974  717,408,474 
Total Assets  50,426,738,175  42,222,570,548 

Equity & Liabilities

Equity

Share Capital 17 (a)  5,011,947,797  5,011,947,797 
Share Application Money Pending Allotment 17 (b)  -    -   
Share Premium 17 (c)  -    -   
Catastrophe Reserves 17 (d)  420,022,951  377,143,461 
Retained Earnings 17 (e)  923,655,057  1,150,565,318 
Other Equity 17 (f)  318,478,115  468,858,365 
Total Equity  6,674,103,920  7,008,514,942 

Liabilities

Provisions 18  112,237,014  14,149,332 
Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities 19  41,605,099,535  33,712,064,839 
Deferred Tax Liabilities 7  -    -   
Insurance Payable 20  25,469,079  85,050,890 
Current Tax Liabilities 21  -    -   
Borrowings 22  350,000,000  -   
Other Liabilities 23  921,428,417  769,343,859 
Other Financial Liabilities 24  738,400,210  633,446,685 
Total Liabilities  43,752,634,255  35,214,055,605 

Total Equity and Liabilities  50,426,738,175  42,222,570,548 

SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Statement of Financial Position
As At 16th Jul, 2025 (Ashad 32, 2082)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date attached

Ashish Gyawali

Head - Finance
Prakash Bikram Khatri

Chief Executive OfŤcer
Keshab Prasad Bhattarai

Chairman

Hemanta Nahata

Director

Ashish Kumar Agarwal 

Director

CA Prabin Subedi

Partner
Sujan Kaťe & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Date : 
Kathmandu, Nepal

Priya Tayal

Director

Akash Golchha

Director

Chudamani Devkota

Director

Namita Sharma

Director

Fig. in NPR
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Particulars Notes  Current Year  Previous Year 

Income:

Gross Earned Premiums 25  11,355,065,829  9,499,466,419 
Premiums Ceded 26  228,901,574  298,232,394 
Net Earned Premiums  11,126,164,254  9,201,234,025 

Commission Income 27  -    -   
Other Direct Income 28  85,628,461  73,588,857 
Interest Income on Loan to Policyholders 11  416,147,180  369,863,237 
Income from Investments and Loans 29  3,463,079,528  3,159,202,239 
Net Gain/(Loss) on Fair Value Changes 30  -    -   
Net Realised Gains/(Losses) 31  -    -   
Other Income 32  2,549,435  317,319 
Total Income  15,093,568,858  12,804,205,677 

Expenses:

Gross BeneŤts and Claims Paid 33  3,759,981,211  3,265,773,814 
Claims Ceded 33  205,920,024  373,518,599 
Gross Change in Contract Liabilities 34  7,775,019,690  6,324,396,453 
Change in Contract Liabities Ceded to Reinsurers 34  (42,673,481)  16,884,359
Net	BeneŤts	and		Claims	Paid  11,286,407,396  9,233,536,028 

Commission Expenses 35  1,022,897,971  870,304,650 
Service Fees 36  83,446,232  69,009,255 
Other Direct expenses 37  -    -   
Employee BeneŤts Expenses 38  757,579,312  724,969,499 
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 39  78,742,169  74,901,374 
Impairment Losses 40  (5,529,828)  47,924 
Other Operating Expenses 41  726,159,625  585,384,720 
Finance Cost 42  39,136,707  51,682,429 
Total Expenses  13,988,839,584  11,609,835,880 

Net	ProŤt/(Loss)	For	The	Year	Before	Share	of	Net	ProŤts	of	
Associates Accounted for Using Equity Method and Tax

 1,104,729,274  1,194,369,797 

Share of Net ProŤt of Associates accounted using Equity Method 9  -    -   
ProŤt	Before	Tax  1,104,729,274  1,194,369,797 

Income Tax Expense 43  377,000,848  342,584,608 
Net	ProŤt/(Loss)	For	The	Year  727,728,427  851,785,189 

Earning Per Share 51 

Basic EPS  14.52  17.00 
Diluted EPS  14.52  17.00 

SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 

Statement	of	ProŤt	or	Loss
For Period 16th July, 2024 - 16th July, 2025

(For the Year Ended Ashad 32, 2082)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date attached

Ashish Gyawali

Head - Finance
Prakash Bikram Khatri

Chief Executive OfŤcer
Keshab Prasad Bhattarai

Chairman

Hemanta Nahata

Director

Ashish Kumar Agarwal 

Director

CA Prabin Subedi

Partner
Sujan Kaťe & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Date : 
Kathmandu, Nepal

Priya Tayal

Director

Akash Golchha

Director

Chudamani Devkota

Director

Namita Sharma

Director

Fig. in NPR
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SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For Period 16th July, 2024 - 16th July, 2025

(For the Year Ended Ashad 32, 2082)
Fig. in NPR

Particulars Notes  Current Year  Previous Year 

Net	ProŤt/(Loss)	For	the	Year  727,728,427  851,785,189 

Other Comprehensive Income

a)	Items	that	are	or	may	be	ReclassiŤed	to	ProŤt	or	Loss

Changes in Fair Value of FVOCI Debt Instruments
Cash Flow Hedge - Effective Portion of Changes in Fair Value
Exchange differences on translation of Foreign Operation
Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for 
using the equity method 9  -    -   

Income Tax Relating to Above Items
ReclassiŤed to ProŤt or Loss
b)	Items	that	will	not	be	ReclassiŤed	to	ProŤt	or	Loss

Changes in fair value of FVOCI Equity Instruments  174,837,046  123,234,830 
Revaluation of Property and Equipment/ Goodwill & Intangible 
Assets
Remeasurement of Post-Employment BeneŤt Obligations  (49,726,827)  7,881,072 
Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for 
using the equity method 9  -    -   

Income Tax Relating to Above Items  (31,277,555)  (32,778,976)
Total Other Comprehensive Income For the Year, Net of Tax  93,832,664  98,336,927 

Total Comprehensive Income For the Year, Net of Tax  821,561,091  950,122,116 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date attached

Ashish Gyawali

Head - Finance
Prakash Bikram Khatri

Chief Executive OfŤcer
Keshab Prasad Bhattarai

Chairman

Hemanta Nahata

Director

Ashish Kumar Agarwal 

Director

CA Prabin Subedi

Partner
Sujan Kaťe & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Date : 
Kathmandu, Nepal

Priya Tayal

Director

Akash Golchha

Director

Chudamani Devkota

Director

Namita Sharma

Director
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SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 

 Statement of Cash Flows
For Period 16th July, 2024 - 16th July, 2025

(For the Year Ended Ashad 32, 2082)
Fig. in NPR

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Cash Flow From Operating Activities: 

 Cash Received 

 Gross Premium Received  11,355,065,829  9,499,466,419 
 Commission Received  -    -   
 Claim Recovery Received from Reinsurers  143,456,902  353,922,337 
 Realised Foreign Exchange Income other than on Cash and Cash Equivalents  -    -   
 Other Direct Income  85,628,461  73,588,857 
 Others (Other Income)  2,549,435  317,319 
 Cash Paid 

 Gross BeneŤts and Claims Paid  (3,759,981,211)  (3,265,773,814)
 Reinsurance Premium Paid  (288,483,386)  (328,916,503)
 Commission Paid  (924,876,100)  (882,741,100)
 Service Fees Paid  (126,728,352)  (69,954,330)
 Employee BeneŤts Expenses Paid  (776,444,213)  (665,723,509)
 Other Expenses Paid  (742,451,331)  (630,113,424)
 Others (to be speciŤed)  (360,883,226)  332,490,715 
 Income Tax Paid  (2,566,526)  (41,227,164)
 Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities [1]  4,604,286,282  4,375,335,803 

 Cash Flow From Investing Activities 

 Acquisitions of Intangible Assets  (1,243,000)  (506,240)
 Proceeds From Sale of Intangible Assets  -    -   
 Acquisitions of Investment Properties  -    -   
 Proceeds From Sale of Investment Properties  -    -   
 Rental Income Received  -    -   
 Acquisitions of Property and Equipment  (33,961,869)  (16,316,533)
 Proceeds From Sale of Property and Equipment  -    -   
 Investment in Subsidiaries  -    -   
 Receipts from Sale of Investments in Subsidiaries  -    -   
 Investment in Associates  -    -   
 Receipts from Sale of Investments in Associates  -    -   
 Purchase of Equity Instruments  (1,874,766,845)  (779,941,789)
 Proceeds from Sale of Equity Instruments  -    -   
 Purchase of Mutual Funds  (138,014,015)  (59,707,363)
 Proceeds from Sale of Mutual Funds  -    -   
 Purchase of Preference Shares  -    -   
 Proceeds from Sale of Preference Shares  -    -   
 Purchase of Debentures  (40,733,956)  (1,161,518,132)
 Proceeds from Sale of Debentures  -    -   
 Purchase of Bonds  -    -   



18th ANNUAL REPORT 

FY 2081/82

105

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date attached

Ashish Gyawali

Head - Finance
Prakash Bikram Khatri

Chief Executive OfŤcer
Keshab Prasad Bhattarai

Chairman

Hemanta Nahata

Director

Ashish Kumar Agarwal 

Director

CA Prabin Subedi

Partner
Sujan Kaťe & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Date : 
Kathmandu, Nepal

Priya Tayal

Director

Akash Golchha

Director

Chudamani Devkota

Director

Namita Sharma

Director

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Proceeds from Sale of Bonds  -    -   
 Investments in Deposits  (4,436,400,000)  (3,926,100,000)
 Maturity of Deposits  -    -   
 Loans Paid  (675,127,747)  (310,156,205)
 Proceeds from Loans  -    -   
 Rental Income Received  -    -   
 Proceeds from Finance Lease  -    -   
 Interest Income Received  3,431,574,946  3,162,147,008 
 Dividend Received  22,983,086  12,039,147 
 Investment on Venture Capital  (100,000,000)  (100,000,000)
 Total Cash Flow From Investing Activities [2] 	(3,845,689,400) 	(3,180,060,107)
 Cash Flow From Financing Activities 

 Interest Paid  (2,791,311)  (21,484,417)
 Proceeds From Borrowings  1,230,000,000  -   
 Repayment of Borrowings  (880,000,000)  (64,000,000)
 Payment of Finance Lease  -    -   
 Proceeds From Issue of Share Capital  -    -   
 Share Issuance Cost Paid  (1,200,511)  (3,925,324)
 Dividend Paid  (1,002,389,559)  (1,124,574,538)
 Dividend Distribution Tax Paid  -    -   
 Others (to be speciŤed)  -    -   
 Total Cash Flow From Financing Activities [3] 	(656,381,381) 	(1,213,984,278)
	Net	Increase/(Decrease)	In	Cash	&	Cash	Equivalents	[1+2+3]	  102,215,500 	(18,708,583)
 Cash & Cash Equivalents At Beginning of The Year/Period  717,408,474  736,117,057 
 Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 Cash & Cash Equivalents At End of The Year/Period  819,623,974  717,408,474 

 Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents 

 Cash In Hand  -    -   
 Cheuqe in Hand  -    -   
 Term Deposit with Banks (with initial maturity upto 3 months) 
 Balance With Banks   819,623,974  717,408,474 
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 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Opening Balance in Retained Earnings  1,150,565,317  1,334,580,101 
 Transfer from Jyoti Life on Merger  -    -   
 Transfer from OCI reserves to retained earning in current year  -    -   
 Net proŤt or (loss) as per statement of proŤt or loss  727,728,427  851,785,189 
 Appropriations: 

 i)Transfer to Insurance Fund  -    -   
 ii)Transfer to Catastrophe Reserve  (42,879,490)  (50,153,848)
 iii)Transfer to Capital Reserve  -    -   
 iv)Transfer to CSR reserve  (8,575,898)  (10,030,770)
 v)Transfer to/from Regulatory Reserve  -    -   
 vi)Transfer to Fair Value Reserve  -    -   
 vii)Transfer of Deferred Tax Reserve  129,861,375  161,614,896 
 viii)Transfer to OCI reserves due to change in classiŤcation  -    -   
 ix)Others (to be SpeciŤed)  -    -   
 Share Issuance Costs  (1,200,511)  (3,925,324)
 Transferred to Employee TrainningFund  (1,511,485)  -   
 Prior Period Adjustment  (27,943,119)
 Deductions: 

 i) Accumulated Fair Value Gain on each Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL 
 a) Equity Instruments  -    -   
 b) Mutual Fund  -    -   
 c) Others (if any)  -    -   
 ii) Accumulated Fair Value gain on Investment Properties  -    -   
 iii) Accumulated Fair Value gain on Hedged Items in Fair Value Hedges  -    -   

 iv) Accumulated Fair Value gain on Hedging Instruments in Fair Value Hedges  -    -   
 v) Accumulated Fair value gain of  Ineffective Portion on Cash Flow Hedges  -    -   
 vi)) Goodwill Recognised 
 vii) Unrealised Gain on ťuctuation of Foreign Exchange Currency  -    -   
viii) Accumulated Share of Net ProŤt of Associates accounted using Equity Method included 
in Investment Account

 -    -   

ix) Overdue loans  -    -   
x) Fair value gain recognised in Statement of ProŤt or Loss  -    -   
xi) Investment in unlisted shares as per sec 16 of Financial Directive  -    -   
xii) Delisted share investment or mutual fund investment  -    -   
xiii) Bonus share/dividend paid  (1,002,389,559)  (1,129,038,381)
xiv) Deduction as per Sec 17 of Financial directive  -    -   
xiv) Deduction as per Sec 18 of Financial directive  -    -   
xv) Others (to be speciŤed)  -    -   
 Adjusted Retained Earning  923,655,057  1,154,831,863 

 Add: Transfer from Share Premium Account  -    -   
 Add: Transfer from Capital Adjustment Reserve  -    -   
 Less: Amount apportioned for Assigned capital  -    -   
 Less: Deduction as per sec 15(1) Of Financial directive  (60,189,813)  (36,007,471)
 Less: Goodwil Recognised  -    -   
 Add/Less: Others (Due to zeroization impact in valuation)  (203,375,968)  -   
	Total	Distributable	ProŤt/(loss)	  660,089,276  1,118,824,392 

SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 

	Statement	of	Distributable	ProŤt	or	Loss
For Period 16th July, 2024 - 16th July, 2025

(For the Year Ended Ashad 32, 2082)
Fig. in NPR

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date attached

Ashish Gyawali

Head - Finance
Prakash Bikram Khatri

Chief Executive OfŤcer
Keshab Prasad Bhattarai

Chairman

Hemanta Nahata

Director

Ashish Kumar Agarwal 

Director

CA Prabin Subedi

Partner
Sujan Kaťe & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Date : 
Kathmandu, Nepal

Priya Tayal

Director

Akash Golchha

Director

Chudamani Devkota

Director

Namita Sharma

Director
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1. General Information

"SuryaJyoti Life Insurance Limited (herein after referred 
to as the ‘Company’) was incorporated on 02/July/2007 
and operated as life insurance company after obtaining 
license on 25/March/2008 under the Insurance Act 
2049. The registered ofŤce of the Company is located 
at Biratnagar 07, Morang. The Company's shares were 
listed on 11/Feb/2010 on Nepal Stock Exchange Limited. 
The principal activities of the Company are to provide 
various life insurance products including participating 
and non-participating products through its province 
ofŤces, branches, sub-branches, and network of agents. 
In order to raise the company’s capital (as instructed by 
Nepal Insurance Authority), Surya Life opted to merge with 
Jyoti Life Insurance and signed an initial MOU (memorandum 
of understanding) on 26th June, 2022. After the Ťnalization 
of DDA audit conducted by Bidur Associates Chartered 
Accountants, Surya Life and Jyoti Life mutually agreed to 
merge at swap ratio of 1:0.8245 respectively and started its 
joint operation as SuryaJyoti Life Insurance Company Ltd. 

from 22nd Dec, 2022."

2. Basis of Preparation

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of 
these Ťnancial statements are set out below. These policies 
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated.

(a)	Statement	of	Compliance
"The Financial Statements of the Company comprises 
of Statement of Financial Position, Statement of ProŤt 
or Loss and Statement of Other Comprehensive Income 
shown as two separate statements, Statement of 
Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows and Notes 
to the Financial Statements which have been prepared in 
accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards 
(NFRS) issued by the Nepal Accounting Standards Board 
(ASB) and in compliance with the requirements of the 
Companies Act , 2006, directives issued by Nepal Insurance 
Authority and required disclosures as per Securities 
Board of Nepal. The format used in the preparation and 
presentation of the Financial Statements and disclosures 
made therein also complies with the speciŤed formats 
prescribed in the directives of Nepal Insurance Authority. 
The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going 
concern basis. The term NFRS, includes all the standards 
and the related interpretations which are consistently used. 

The Ťnancial statements are approved for issue by the 
Company's Board of Directors on 4th Poush 2082 (19th Dec 
2025)."

(b)	Reporting	Period	and	approval	of	Ťnancial	statements
The Company reporting period is from 1st Shrawan 2081 to 
32nd Ashad 2082 with the corresponding previous year from 
1st Shrawan 2080 to 31st Ashadh 2081 . These Ťnancial 
statements have been approved by the Board of Directors 
on 4th Poush 2082 (19th Dec 2025).

(c)	Basis	of	Measurement
"The Financial Statements have been prepared on the 
historical cost basis except for following Assets & Liabilities 
which have been measured at Fair Value amount:
i.  Certain Financial Assets & Liabilities which are required 

to be measured at fair value
ii.  DeŤned Employee BeneŤts
iii.  Insurance Contract Liabilities which are required to 

be determined using actuarial valuation for Liability 
Adequacy Test (LAT).

Historical cost is generally Fair Value of the 
consideration given in exchange for goods & services. 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset 
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of 
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using 
another valuation technique."

"In addition, for Financial Reporting purposes, Fair Value 
measurements are categorized into Level 1, or 2, or 3 
based on the degree to which the inputs to the Fair Value 
measurements are observable & the signiŤcance of the 
inputs to the Fair Value measurement in its entirety, which 
are described as follows:
 

• Level 1 : Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active  
  markets for identical Assets or Liabilities that  
  the entity can access at the measurement  

  date;
• Level 2  : Inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices  
  included within Level 1, that are observable for  
  the Asset or Liability, either directly or  
  indirectly; and 

• Level 3 : Inputs are unobservable inputs for the Asset or  
  Liability."

 SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes	to	the	Ťnancial	statements	for	the	year	ended	

Asadh	32,	2082	(July	16,	2025)
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(d)	Use	of	Estimates
The preparation of these Financial Statements in conformity 
with NFRS requires management to make estimates, 
judgements and assumptions. These estimates, judgments 
and assumptions affect the reported balances of Assets & 
Liabilities, disclosures relating to Contingent Liabilities as 
at the date of the Financial Statements and the reported 
amounts of Income & Expenses for the years presented. 
Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates 
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing 
basis. Changes in estimates are reťected in the Financial 
Statements in the period in which changes are made and, 
if material, their effects are disclosed in the Notes to the 
Ťnancial statements.

(e)	Functional	and	Presentation	Currency
These Financial Statements are presented in Nepalese 
Rupees (NPR) which is the Company’s functional currency. 
All Ťnancial information presented in NPR has been rounded 
to the nearest rupee except where indicated otherwise.

(f)	Going	Concern
The Ťnancial statements are prepared on a going concern 
basis. The Board of Directors have considered a wide range 
of information relating to present and future conditions, 
including future projections of proŤtability, cash ťows and 
capital resources while assessing the going concern basis. 
Furthermore, Board is not aware of any material uncertainties 
that may cast signiŤcant doubt upon Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern and they do not intend either to 

liquidate or to cease operations of it.

(g)	Changes	in	Accounting	Policies
Accounting policies are the speciŤc principles, bases, 
conventions, rules and practices applied by the Company 
in preparing and presenting Ťnancial statements. The 
Company is permitted to change an accounting policy only 

if the change is required by a standard or interpretation; 
or results in the Ťnancial statements providing reliable and 
more relevant information about the effects of transactions, 
other events or conditions on the entity's Ťnancial position, 
Ťnancial performance, or cash ťows.    
  

(h)	Recent	Accounting	Pronouncements	   

Accounting Standards Issued and Effective: Issued June 25, 
2020 and Effective from July 16, 2020.   
 

(i)	Carve-outs
The Company has not applied any carve outs provided by 
the ASB.      
      

(j)	Presentation	of	Ťnancial	statements	
The assets and liabilities of the Company presented in the 
Statement of Financial Position are grouped by the nature 
and listed in an order that reťects their relative liquidity and 
maturity pattern.      

(k)	Offsetting	 	 	 	 	
Financial assets and Ťnancial liabilities are offset and 
the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial 
Position, only when there is a legally enforceable right to 
offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention 
to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle 
the liabilities simultaneously. Income and expenses are not 
offset in the Statement of ProŤt or Loss unless required 
or permitted by Nepalese Financial Reporting Standards 
or Interpretation (issued by the International Financial 
Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and Standard 
Interpretations Committee (SIC) and as speciŤcally disclosed 
in the SigniŤcant Accounting Policies of the Company. 
 

(l)	Materiality	and	Aggregation
"Each material class of similar items is presented 

separately in the Financial Statements. Items of dissimilar 
nature or function are presented separately, unless they 
are immaterial as permitted by the Nepal Accounting 
Standard-NAS 1 on 'Presentation of Financial Statements'. 
Notes to the Financial Statements are presented in a 
systematic manner which ensures the understandability 
and comparability of Financial Statements of the Company. 
Understandability of the Financial Statements is not 
compromised by obscuring material  information with 
immaterial information or by aggregating material items that 
have different natures or functions."    
  

3.	SigniŤcant	Accounting	Policies
This note provides a list of the signiŤcant policies adopted in 

the preparation of these Financial Statements.
(a)		Goodwill	and	Intangible	Assets	 	 	

 

 Goodwill on business combination   

i)	Initial	recognition    

 Goodwill on business combination is measured as the 
excess of the sum of the consideration transferred 
over the net of the acquisition date amounts of the 
identiŤable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. 
If after reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date 
amounts of the identiŤable assets acquired and the 
liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration 
transferred, access is recognised immediatly in the 
statement of proŤt or loss as a bargain purchase gain

	 ii)	Amortisation	and	impairment
 Goodwill is not amortised but is reviewed for impairment 
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at least annually. For the purpose of impairment testing 
goodwill is allocated to each of the company's cash 
generating units expected to beneŤt from the synergies 
of the combination. If the recoverable amount of the 
cash generating unit is less than the carrying amount of 

the unit the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the 

carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit. An 
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in 
a subsequent period. Impairment testing was conducted 
by an expert based on Ashad end 2082 and has provided 
conclusion as  the recoverable amount of assets is 
higher than the carrying amount of the assets as on 16th 
July 2025, so goodwill value recognised during business 
combination is intact.     
 

 Other intengible assets    

i)	Recognition
 "Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on 

initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, 
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated 
amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. 
Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalized 
development costs, are not capitalized and the related 
expenditure is reťected in Statement of proŤt or loss in 
the year in which the expenditure is incurred. However, 
Company has not internally generated any assets. 

Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is 
capitalized only when it increases the future economic 
beneŤts embodied in the speciŤc asset to which it 
relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred." 
ii)	Amortization

 "The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to 
be either Ťnite or indeŤnite. An intangible asset shall be 
regarded as having an indeŤnite useful life when, based 
on an analysis of all of the relevant factors, there is no 
foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is 
expected generate net cash inťow for the entity.

 Amortisation is recognised in statement of proŤt or 
loss on straight line method (SLM) over the estimated 
useful life of the intangible assets/ diminishing balance 
method (DBM), from the date that it is available for use 
since this most closely reťects the expected pattern of 
consumption of the future economic beneŤts embodied in 
the asset. The amortisation period and the amortisation 
method for an intangible asset with a Ťnite useful life are 
reviewed at least at each Ťnancial year end. Changes 
in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of 
consumption of future economic beneŤts embodied in the 
asset are considered to modify the amortisation period 

or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes 

in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on 
intangible assets with Ťnite lives is recognised in the 
statement of proŤt or loss."

List of Asset Categories
“Useful Life 

(In Years) for SLM”

Softwares 3

Licenses License Period
Others (to be Speciłed) Not Any

 However, Company has not acquired any license till end 
of reporting period.

	 iii)	Derecognition
 An Intangible Asset is derecognised when no Future 

Economic BeneŤts are expected to arise from the 
continued use of the Asset. Any Gain or Loss arising 
on the derecognition is determined as the difference 

between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount 
of the Asset and is recognized in the Statement of ProŤt 
or Loss. However, Company has not derecognised any 
intangible asset till end of reporting period.   
iv)	Impairment	of	Assets

 The Company assesses at each reporting date as to 
whether there is any indication that Intangible Assets may 
be impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable 
amount of an asset is estimated to determine the extent 
of impairment, if any. An impairment loss is recognised 
in the Statement of ProŤt or Loss to the extent, asset's 
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The 
recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value less 
cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based 
on the estimated future cash ťows, discounted to their 
present value using pre-tax discount rate that reťects 
current market assessments of the time value of money 
and risk speciŤc to the assets.

  

	 Property	and	Equipment	(P&E)	 	 	 	
i)	Recognition	 	 	 	 	
"Freehold land is carried at historical cost and other items 
of property and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition 
or construction less accumulated depreciation when, it is 
probable that future economic beneŤts associated with 
the item will ťow to the Company and it can be used for 
more than one year and the cost can be measured reliably. 
Company does not have freehold land as on reporting date. 
 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying 
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when it meets the recognition criteria as mentioned 
above. The carrying amount of any component accounted 
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for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. 
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to proŤt 
or loss during the reporting period in which they are 
incurred."    

	 ii)	Revaluation
 After recognition as an asset, lands and buildings whose 

fair value can be measured reliably, have been carried 
at revalued amount at the date of revaluation less any 
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent 
accumulated impairment losses. Valuations are being 
performed to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset 
does not materially differ from its carrying amount as at 

the reporting date. Valuation of the land and buildings are 
undertaken by professionally qualiŤed valuers.  
    

 An increase in the carrying amount as a result of 
revaluation, is recognised in other comprehensive 
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of 
revaluation reserve. However, the increase is recognised 
in proŤt or loss to the extent that it reverses a revaluation 
decrease of the same asset previously recognised in proŤt 
and loss. A decrease in the carrying amount as a result of 
revaluation, is recognised in proŤt or loss. However, the 
decrease is recognised in other comprehensive income to 
the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation 
surplus in respect of that asset.    

  

 "Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the 
revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying 
amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to 

the revalued amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any 
revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset 
being sold is transferred directly to retained earnings. 
Alternatively, accumulated depreciation can be increased 
proportionately as allowed by NAS 16"   
   

 Difference between depreciation on the revalued carrying 
amount of the asset and depreciation based on the 
asset's original cost is transferred to retained earnings. 

Company however does not own any land and buildings 
as on reporting date, so has not revalued its assets.  
     

	 iii)	Depreciation
 Depreciation on Property and Equipment other than 

Freehold Land i.e. the Company’s Freehold Building, 
Plant & Machinery, Vehicles & Other Assets is provided 
on "Straight Line Method (SLM)" based on Useful Life 
estimated by technical expert of the management. 
     

 The Assets Useful Life and Residual Values are reviewed 
at the Reporting date and the effect of any changes in 

estimates are accounted for on a prospective basis.

List of Asset Categories
Useful life (in 

Years)
for SLM

Land Not Applicable 
Buildings Not Applicable 
Leasehold Assets  Lower of 5 years 

or Lease Period
Furniture & Fixtures 10

Computers and IT Equipments 5

Ofłce Equipment 5

Vehicles 10

Other Assets 5

Company however does not have any building as on
reporting date.

 iv)	Derecognition
 An item of Property and Equipment is derecognized 

upon disposal or when no Future Economic BeneŤts are 
expected to arise from the continued use of the Asset. 
Any Gain or Loss arising on the disposal or retirement of 
an item of Property and Equipment is determined as the 
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the Asset and is recognized in the Statement 
of ProŤt or Loss. However, Company has not sold any 
assets in the reporting period.

 v)	Impairment	of	Assets
 Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or 

changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying 

amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is 
recognized for the amount by which the Asset’s carrying 
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable 
amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of 
disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the 
estimated future cash ťows, discounted to their present 
value using pre-tax discount rate that reťects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and risk 
speciŤc to the assets. Assets that suffer an impairment 
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at 
the end of each reporting period. In case of such reversal, 
the carrying amount of the asset is increased so as not 

to exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined had there been no impairment loss.

 vi)	Capital	Work-In-Progress
 These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in 

the construction of buildings, major plant and machinery 
and system development which are to be capitalized. 
Capital Work in Progress would be transferred to the 
relevant asset when it is available for use. Capital Work 
in Progress is stated at cost less any accumulated 
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impairment losses. However, Company has no capital 
work-in-progress in the reporting period.

 Investment Properties    

 "Cost Model:

 Property that is held for rental income or for capital 
appreciaiton or both, is classiŤed as investment property. 
Investment properties are measured initially at cost, 
including related transaction cost. It is subsequently 
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Subsequent 
expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount 
only when it is probable that future economic beneŤts 
associated with the expenditure will ťow to the Company 
and the cost can be measured reliably. All other repairs 
and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.  
 

Land is carried at historical cost, however, buildings are 
depreciated over their estimated useful lives as mentioned 
above."      

 Investment properties are derecognised either when 
they have been disposed of, or when the investment 
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future 
economic beneŤt is expected from its disposal.  Any gains 
or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment 
property are recognised in the statement  of proŤt or loss 
in the year of retirement or disposal.    

   

 Transfers are made to (or from) investment property 
only when there is a change in use. For a transfer 
from investment property to PPE, the deemed cost for 
subsequent accounting is the fair value at the date of 
change in use. If PPE becomes an investment property, 
the Company accounts for such property in accordance 

with the policy stated under PPE up to the date of change 
in use.      

 However, Company has no investment properties at end 
of reporting period.

(e)	 Financial	Assets	 	 	
i)		 Initial	Recognition	&	Measurement
 "Financial Assets are recognized when, and only when, the 

Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions 
of the Financial Instrument. The Company determines the 
classiŤcation of its Financial Assets at initial recognition. 
When Financial Assets are recognized initially, they are 
measured at Fair Value, plus, in the case of Financial 
Assets not at fair value through proŤt or loss, transaction 
costs that are attributable to the acquisation of the 

Financial Asset. Transaction costs of Financial Assets 
carried at Fair Value through ProŤt or Loss are expensed 
in the Statement of ProŤt or Loss."

  

	 ii)	Subsequent	Measurement
"a)	Financial	Assets	carried	at	Amortized	Cost	(AC)
 A Financial Asset is measured at amortized cost if it is 

held within a business model whose objective is to hold 
the asset in order to collect contractual cash ťows and 
the contractual terms of the Financial Asset give rise on 
speciŤed dates to cash ťows that are solely payments 
of principal and interest on the principal amount 

outstanding.  Interest income in these Ťnancial assets  
is measured using effective interest rate method. 
 

b)	 Financial	 Assets	 at	 Fair	 Value	 through	 Other	
Comprehensive	Income	(FVTOCI)

 A Financial Asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held 
within a business model whose objective is achieved 
by both collecting contractual cash ťows and selling 
Financial Assets and the contractual terms of the 
Financial Asset give rise on speciŤed dates to cash 
ťows that are solely payments of principal and interest 
on the principal amount outstanding. These Ťnancial 
assets are measured at fair value and changes are 
taken to statement of other comprehensive income. 

c)	 Financial	Assets	at	Fair	Value	through	ProŤt	or	
Loss	(FVTPL)

 A Financial Asset which is not classiŤed in any of the 
above categories are measured at FVTPL. 

 These Ťnancial assets are measured at fair value and 
changes are taken to statement of proŤt or loss."  
    

 A Financial Asset is measured at amortized cost if 
it is held within a business model whose objective 
is achieved is to hold the asset in order to collect 
contractual cash ťows and the contractual terms of 
the Financial Asset give rise on speciŤed dates to 
cash ťows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding,. Interest 
income in these Ťnancial assets is measured using 
effective interest rate method.      
  

	 iii)	De-Recognition	 	 	 	
A Financial Asset is derecognized only when the Company 
has transferred the rights to receive cash ťows from the 
Financial Asset. Where the Company has transferred an 
Asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred 
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substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the 
Financial Asset. In such cases, the Financial Asset is 
derecognized. Where the Company has not transferred 
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the 
Financial Asset, the Financial Asset is not derecognized. 
Where the Company retains control of the Financial 
Asset, the Asset is continued to be recognized to the 
extent of continuing involvement in the Financial Asset. 
     

	 iv)	Impairment	of	Financial	Assets
 The Company assesses at each reporting date whether 

there is objective evidence that a Ťnancial asset or group 
of Ťnancial assets is impaired. A Ťnancial asset or a group 
of Ťnancial assets is deemed to be impaired if, there is 
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or 
more events that has occurred since the initial recognition 
of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event 
has an impact on the estimated future cash ťows of the 
Ťnancial asset or the group of Ťnancial assets that can be 
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include 
indications that a Ťnancial asset or a group of Ťnancial 
assets is experiencing signiŤcant Ťnancial difŤculty, 
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, 
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other 
Ťnancial reorganization and observable data indicating 
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated 
future cash ťows, such as changes in arrears or economic 
conditions that correlate with defaults.   
   

	 v)	Investment	in	Associates
 The company has made investment in shares of Club 

Chaulani Ltd.   As the Club Chaulani has not commenced 
business operation in this Ťnancial year we have 
recognised the investment value at cost.  
    

(f)	 Reinsurance	Assets
 "Reinsurance assets are the assets which are created 

against insurance contract liabilities of the amount which are 
recoverable from the reinsurer. These assets are created 
for the resinsurer's share of insurance contract liabilities. 
 

A reinsurance asset is impaired if there is objective 
evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after 
the initial recognition of the reinsurance asset, that the 
Company may not receive all amounts due to it under 
the terms of the contract, and the event has a reliably 
measurable impact on the amount that the company 
will receive from the re-insurer. If a reinsurance asset 
is impaired, the company reduces the carrying amount 
accordingly and is recognized in statement of proŤt or 
loss."      

(g)	 "Current	Tax	Assets"	 	 	 	 	
    

(h)	 Cash	&	Cash	Equivalent		 	 	 	
 

 Cash & Cash Equivalents includes Cash In Hand, 
Cheques in Hand, Bank Balances and short term deposits 
with a maturity of three months or less. There are however 
no short term deposits at the end of reporting period.

(i)	 Financial	Liabilities
	 i)	Initial	Recognition	&	Measurement
 "Financial Liabilities are recognized when, and only when, 

the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions 
of the Financial Instrument. The Company determines the 
classiŤcation of its Financial Liabilities at initial recognition. 
All Financial Liabilities are recognized initially at Fair 
Value, plus, in the case of Financial Liabilities not at fair 
value through proŤt or loss, transaction costs that are 
attributable to the issue of the Financial Liability."

	 ii)	Subsequent	Measurement
 "After initial recognition, Financial Liabilities are 

subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 
Effective Interest Method. For trade and other payables 
maturing within one year from the date of Statement of 
Financial Position, the carrying amounts approximate Fair 
value due to short maturity of these instruments."

	 iii)	De-Recognition	 	 	 	
A Financial Liability is de-recognized when the obligation 
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
When an existing Financial Liability is replaced by another 
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or 
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modiŤed, 
such an exchange or modiŤcation is treated as a de-
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a 
new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying 
amounts is recognized in the Statement of ProŤt or Loss. 
     

(j)	 Offsetting	Ťnancial	instruments
 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net 

amount is reported in the Statement of Financial Position 
where there is legally enforceable right to offset the 
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle 

on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not 
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable 
in the normal course of business and in the event of 
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the 
counterparty.      

(k)	 Equity
 Financial Instruments issued by the Company are classiŤed 

as Equity only to the extent that they do not meet the deŤnition 
of a Financial Liability or Financial Asset.

(l)	 Reserves	and	Funds
	 i)	Share	Premium: If the Company issues share capital 

at premium it receives extra amount other than share 
capital such amount is transferred to share premium. The 
amount in share premium is allowed for distribution subject 
to provisions of company act & regulatory requirement.
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 ii)	 Catastrophe	 Reserves:	 The Company has allocated 
catastrophe reserve for the amount which is as per regulator's 
required rate for the year as per Regulator's Directive.

 iii)	 Fair	 Value	 Reserves: The Company has policy 
of creating fair value reserve equal to the amount 
of Fair Value Gain recognized in statement of other 
comprehensive income as per regulator’s directive.

 iv)	 Regulatory	 Reserves: Reserve created out of net 
proŤt in line with different circulars issued by Insurance 
Board.

 v)	Actuarial	Reserves: Reseserve against actuarial gain 
or loss on present value of deŤned beneŤt obligation 
resuting from, experience adjustments (the effects of  
differences between the previous actuarial assumptions 
and what has actually occurred); and  the effects of 
changes in actuarial assumptions.

 vi)	 Revaluation	 Reserves: Reserve created against 
revaluation gain on property & equipment & intangible 
assets, other than the reversal or earlier revaluation 
losses charged to proŤt or loss.

 vii)	 Corporate	 Social	 Responsibility	 Reserves:  The 
Company has allocated corporate social responsibility 
reserve for the amount which is 1% of the net proŤt for the 
year as per Regulator's Directive.

 viii)	Deferred	Tax	Reserves: The Company has created 
deferred tax reserve equal to the defreed tax assets as 
per Regulator's Directive.

(m)	Gross	Insurance	Contract	Liabilities
 "Liability adequacy

 At each reporting date, the Company reviews its unexpired 
risk and a liability adequacy test is performed to determine 
whether there is any overall excess of expected claims and 
deferred acquisition costs over unearned premiums. The 
calculation uses current estimates of future contractual 

cash ťows after taking account of the investment return 
expected to arise on assets relating to the relevant life 
insurance technical provisions. If these estimates show 
that the carrying amount of the unearned premiums is 

inadequate, the deŤciency is recognized in the statement 
of proŤt or loss by setting up a provision for liability."

(n)	 Employee	BeneŤts
 i)	Short	Term	Obligations	 	 	

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary 
beneŤts that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 
months after the end of the period in which the employees 
render the related service are recognized in respect of 
employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period 
and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid 
when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented 
as current employee beneŤt obligations in the Statement 
of Financial Position.     
 

ii)	Post	-	Employment	BeneŤts
-		 DeŤned	Contribution	Plan
 The Company pays Provident Fund contributions to 

publicly administered Provident Funds as per local 
regulations. The Company has no further payment 
obligations once the contributions have been paid. 
The contributions are accounted for as deŤned 
contribution plans and the contribution are recognized 
as Employee BeneŤt Expense when they are due.

-		 DeŤned	BeneŤt	Plan
 For DeŤned BeneŤt Plan , the cost of providing 

beneŤts is determined using the Projected Unit Credit 
Method, with Actuarial Valuations being carried out at 
each Statement of Financial Position. Actuarial Gains 
& Losses are recognized in the Other Comprehensive 
Income in the period in which they occur. Past service 
cost is recognized immediately to the extent that the 
beneŤts are already vested and otherwise is amortized 
on a Straight Line Basis over the average period until 
the beneŤts become vested. The retirement beneŤt 
obligation recognized in the Statement of Financial 
Position represents the present value of the deŤned 
beneŤt obligation as adjusted for unrecognized 
past service cost, as reduced by the Fair Value of 
plan Assets (If Any). Any Asset resulting from this 
calculation is limited to past service cost, plus the 
present value of available refunds and reductions in 
future contributions to the plan.

iii)		Long	Term	Employee	BeneŤts
 The liabilities for un-availed earned leaves are not 

expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the 
end of the period in which the employees render the 
related service. Leave Encashment has been computed 
using Actuarial Assumptions and these are measured at 
the present value of expected future payments to be made 
in respect of services provided by employees up to the 
end of the year using the Projected Unit Credit Method. 
The beneŤts are discounted using the market yields at 
the end of the year that have terms approximating to the 
terms of assumptions.

   

iv)	Termination
 "Termination beneŤts are payable when employment is 

terminated by the Company before the normal retirement 
date, or when an employee accepts voluntary retirement 
in exchange of these beneŤts. The Company recognises 
termination beneŤts at the earlier of the following dates:
a)  when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer 

of those beneŤts; and
b)  when the entity recognises costs for a restructuring 

that is within the scope of NAS 37 and involves the 
payment of termination beneŤts. The termination 
beneŤts are measured based on the number of 
employees expected to accept the offer in case of 
voluntary retirement scheme."

(o)	 Revenue	Recognition	 	 	 	
	 i)	Gross	Premium

 Gross premiums are recognised as soon as the amount of 
the premiums can be reliably measured. First premium is 
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recognised from inception date. At the end of the Ťnancial 
year, all due premiums are accounted for to the extent that 
they can be reliably measured.

 ii)	Unearned	Premium	Reserves
 Unearned premiums are those proportions of premiums 

written in a year that relate to periods of risk after  the 
reporting date. Unearned premiums are calculated on a 
pro rata basis. The proportion attributable to subsequent 
periods is deferred as a provision for unearned premiums.

 iii)	Premiums	on	Reinsurance	Accepted
 "Premium on reinsurance accepted  comprise the total 

premiums payable for the whole cover provided by 
contracts entered into the period and are recognized 
on the date on which the policy incepts. Premiums 
include any adjustments arising in the accounting period 

in respect of reinsurance contracts incepting in prior 

accounting periods. Unearned reinsurance premiums are 
those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate 
to periods of risk after the reporting date.

 Reinsurance premiums and claims on the face of the 

statement of proŤt or loss have been presented as 
negative items within premiums and net beneŤts and 
claims, respectively, because this is consistent with how 
the business is managed."

 iv)	Commission	Income
 Commission Income is recognised on accrual basis. If the 

income is for future periods, then they are deferred and 
recognised over those future periods.

 v)	Investment	income
 "Interest income is recognised in the statement of proŤt 

or loss as it accrues and is calculated by using the EIR 
method. Fees and commissions that are an integral 
part of the effective yield of the Ťnancial asset are 
recognised as an adjustment to the EIR of the instrument.  

Investment income also includes dividends when the right 
to receive payment is established."

	 vi)	Net	realised	gains	and	losses
 Net realised gains and losses recorded in the statement 

of proŤt or loss include gains and losses on Ťnancial 
assets and properties. Gains and losses on the sale of 
investments are calculated as the difference between net 
sales proceeds and the original or amortised cost and are 

recorded on occurrence of the sale transaction.   

    

(p)	 BeneŤt,	Claims	and	Expenses
	 i)	Gross	BeneŤts	and	Claims
 BeneŤts and claims includes the cost of all claims arising 

during the year, including external claims handling costs 
that are directly related to processing and settlements of 

claims. BeneŤts and claims that are incurred during the 
Ťnancial year are recognised when a claimable event 
occurs and/or the insurer is notiŤed. Death, surrender and 
other beneŤts without due dates are treated as claims 
payable, on the date of receipt of intimation of death of the 
assured or occurrence of contingency covered.  
ii)	Reinsurance	Claims

 Reinsurance claims are recognised when the related 
gross insurance claim is recognised according to the 

terms of the relevant contracts.
 "iii)	Commission	Expenses"
 Commission expenses are recognized on accrual basis. If 

the expenses is for future periods, then they are deferred 
and recognized over those future periods.

 "iv)	Service	Fees"	 	 	 	
"Service fees are recognized on accrual basis as per the 
rates mentioned in Insurance act, 2079."

	 "v)	Finance	Cost"
 Finance costs are recognized for the period relating to 

unwinding of discount and interest expenses due to re-
measurement of liabilities. 

   

(q)	 Product	ClassiŤcation
 "Insurance contracts are those contracts when the 

Company (the insurer) has accepted signiŤcant insurance 
risk from another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to 
compensate the policyholders if a speciŤed uncertain future 
event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders. 
As a general guideline, the Company determines whether 
it has signiŤcant insurance risk by comparing beneŤts 
paid with beneŤts payable if the insured event did not 
occur. Insurance contracts can also transfer Ťnancial risk.  
The Company has following portfolios under which it 
operates its business:"    
  

 i)	 Endowment	 -	 This is a with proŤt plan that makes 
provisions for the family of the Life Assured in event of his 
early death and also assures a lump sum at a desired age 

on maturity. It costs moderate premiums, has high liquidity 
and in savings oriented.This plan is apt for people of all 
ages and social groups who wish to protect their families 
from a Ťnancial setback that may occur owing to their 
demise.     

 

 ii)	Anticipated	- This scheme provides for speciŤc periodic 
payments of partial survival beneŤts during the term of 
the policy itself so long as the policy holder is alive. It is 
therefore suitable to meet speciŤed Ťnancial requirements 
needed for occasions like Brata bandha, Academic 
Graduations etc. An important feature of plan is that in the 
event of death at any time within the policy term, the death 
claim comprises full sum assured without deducting any 
of the survival beneŤt amounts, which have already been 
paid. It is also with proŤt plan.    
  

 iii)	 Endowment	 Cum	 Whole	 Life	 -	 This plan is a 
combination of Endowment Assurance and Whole Life 
with proŤt plan. It provides Ťnancial protection against 
death throughout the lifetime of the life assured with the 
provision of payment of a lump sum at the maturity of the 
policy to the assured in case of his survival.   
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 iv)	Whole	 Life	 - Whole life is a type of life insurance 

contract that provides insurance coverage of the contract 
holder for his or her entire life. Upon the inevitable death 
of the contract holder, the insurance payout is made to 
the contract’s beneŤciaries. These policies also include 
a savings component, which accumulates a cash value. 
This cash value is one of the key elements of whole life 
insurance.      

 iv)	 Foreign	 Employment	 Term	 -  The main objective 
of foreign employement term is providing insurance for 
Ťnancial assistance if there is death or elimination of any 
insured due to work or staying abroad.   
   

 iv) Other Term - Term life insurance, also known as pure 
life insurance, is life insurance that guarantees payment 
of a stated death beneŤt during a speciŤed term. Once 
the term expires, the policyholder can renew it for another 
term, convert the policy to permanent coverage, or allow 
the policy to terminate.     

 

 v)	Special		Term	-	 Special Term insurance is a modiŤed 
version of term insurance with added beneŤts.   
   

 vi)	Others	to	be	SpeciŤed-	 Life insurance policies other 

than above mentioned products are classiŤed as others.  

(r)	 Borrowing	Costs
 "Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, 

construction or production of qualifying assets, which 
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period 
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, 
are added to the cost of those assets, until such 
time as the assets are substantially ready for their 
intended use or sale. Interest income earned on the 

temporary investment of speciŤc borrowings pending 
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted 
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.  
All other borrowing costs are recognized in statement of 
proŤt or loss in the period in which they are incurred."

(s)	 Cash	Flow	Statement
 Cash Flows are reported using the direct method, whereby 

major classes of cash receipts and cash payments are 

disclosed as cash ťows.

(t)	 Leases
 At inception of a contract, the company assesses 

whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract 
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the 
right to control the use of an identiŤed asset for a 
period of time in exchange for consideration. To 
assess whether a contract conveys the right to control 
the use of an identiŤed asset, the company assesses 
whether:    

- the contract involves the use of an identiŤed asset 

– this may be speciŤed explicitly or implicitly, and 
should be physically distinct or represent substantially 
all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. If the 

supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the 
assets is not identiŤed;

- the Company has the right to obtain substantially all 
of the economic beneŤts from the use of the asset 
throughout the period of use; and

- the company has the right to direct the use of the asset. 
The company has this right when it has the decision-
making rights that are most relevant to changing how and 
for what purpose the asset is used. In rare cases where 
the decision about how and for what purpose the asset 
is used is predetermined, the company has the right to 
direct the use of the asset if either: the company has the 
right to operate the asset; or the company designated 
the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what 
purpose it will be used.

As a Lessee

 "The lease liability has been accounted for under NFRS 
16 “Leases”. For all the signiŤcant lease , the Right-of-Use 
assets  has been recognized at its initial recognition under 
cash model. The Lease liability has been recognized at 
the present value of the lease payments that are not paid 
at that date. The lease payment has been discounted at 
the incremental borrowing rate in lease which is 10%.  
 

Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease 
liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-
use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises 
the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any 
lease payments made at or before the commencement 
date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate 
of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or 
to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is 
located, less any lease incentives received. The right-of-
use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-
line method from the commencement date to the earlier of 

the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end 
of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of the right-of-
use assets are determined on the same basis as those of 
property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset 
is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and 
adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability." 
     

 The lease liability is initially measured at the present 
value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date, discounted using 10% interest rate. 
The company presents right-of-use asset in ‘Property and 
Equipment’ and lease liabilities in ‘Other liabilities’ in the 
statement of Ťnancial position. Short-term leases and 
leases of low-value assets: The company has elected to 
recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for short-term 
leases as well that have a lease term of 12 months or less 
and leases of low-value assets.
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SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. Goodwill & Intangible Assets Fig. in NPR

 Particulars  Softwares  Goodwill 
" Others  

(to	be	speciŤed)	"  Total 

 Gross carrying amount  -   

 As at Shrawan 1, 2080  12,633,968  61,512,300  -    74,146,268 

 Additions during the year  -   
      Acquisition  506,240  506,240 
      Internal Development  -    -   
      Business Combination( to be SpeciŤed)  -    -    -   
 Disposals during the year  -   
 Revaluation/Adjustment  -    -   
 Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2081  13,140,208  61,512,300  -    74,652,508 

 Additions during the year 
      Acquisition  1,243,000  1,243,000 
      Internal Development  -   
      Business Combination  -    -    -   
 Disposals during the year 

 Revaluation/Adjustment  -   
 Balance as at Ashad 32, 2082  14,383,208  61,512,300  -    75,895,508 

 Accumulated amortization and impairment 
 As at Shrawan 1, 2080  6,810,549  -    -    6,810,549 
 Additions during the year  2,435,689  2,435,689 
 Additions during the year through business combination  -    -   
 Disposals during the year  -    -   
 Impairment during the year  -    -   
 Adjustment during the year  -    -   
 Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2081  9,246,238  -    -    9,246,238 

 Additions during the year  585,170  585,170 
 Additions during the year through business combination  -    -   
 Disposals during the year 

 Impairment during the year 

 Adjustment during the year  -   
 Balance as at Ashadh 32, 2082  9,831,409  -    -    9,831,409 

Capital Work-In-Progress

As on Shrawan 1, 2080  -   

Additions during the year  -   
Capitalisation during the year

Disposals during the year

Impairment during the year

 Balance as on Ashadh 31, 2081  -    -    -    -   

Additions during the year  -   
Capitalisation during the year

Disposals during the year

Impairment during the year

 Balance as on  Ashadh 32, 2082  -    -    -    -   

Net Carrying Amount

As on Ashadh 31, 2081  3,893,970  61,512,300  -    65,406,270 

As on  Ashadh 32, 2082  4,551,799  61,512,300  -    66,064,099 
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SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements

6. Investment Properties 

Investment Properties at Cost

 Particulars  Land   Building   Total 

 Gross carrying amount 

 As at Shrawan 1, 2080  -   

 Additions during the year  -   
 Acquisition   -   
 Subsequent Expenditure  -   
 Assets classiŤed as held for sales  -   
 Disposals during the year  -   
 Transfer/Adjustments  -   
 Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2081  -    -    -   

 Additions during the year  -   
 Acquisition   -   
 Subsequent Expenditure  -   
 Assets classiŤed as held for sales  -   
 Disposals during the year  -   
 Transfer/Adjustments  -   
 Balance as at  Ashadh 32, 2082  -    -    -   

 Accumulated depreciation and impairment 

 As at Shrawan 1, 2080  -   

 Addition during the year  -   
 Disposals during the year  -   
 Impairment during the year  -   
 Transfer/Adjustments  -   
 Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2081  -    -    -   

 Addition during the year  -   
 Disposals during the year  -   
 Impairment during the year  -   
 Transfer/Adjustments  -   
 Balance as at  Ashadh 32, 2082  -    -    -   

Capital Work-In-Progress

As on Shrawan 1, 2080

Additions during the year 
Capitalisation during the year

Disposals during the year

Impairment during the year

 Balance as on Ashadh 31, 2081  -    -    -   

Additions during the year 
Capitalisation during the year

Disposals during the year

Impairment during the year

 Balance as on  Ashadh 32, 2082  -    -    -   

 Net Carrying Amount 

 Net Balance As At Ashad 31, 2081  -    -    -   

 Net Balance As At  Ashadh 32, 2082  -    -    -   

Fig. in NPR
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Fig. in NPR
(i)	Amounts	recognised	in	statement	of	proŤt	or	loss

(ii)	Fair	value	of	investment	properties:	

 Notes on Fair Value : 

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Rental income 

 Direct operating expenses from property that generated rental income 
 Direct operating expenses from property that didn't generated rental income 
 ProŤt from investment properties before depreciation  -    -   
 Depreciation charge 

	ProŤt	from	investment	properties	  -    -   

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 
 Land 

 Building 

 Total  -    -   

 Particulars  Land   Building   Total 

 Gross carrying amount  -   

 As at Shrawan 1, 2080  -   

 Additions during the year  -   
 Disposals during the year  -   

 Net changes in Fair Value  -   

 Revaluation/Adjustment  -   

 Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2081  -    -    -   

 Additions during the year  -   

 Disposals during the year  -   

 Net changes in Fair Value  -   

 Revaluation/Adjustment  -   

 Balance as at  Ashadh 32, 2082  -    -    -   

Capital Work-In-Progress

As on Shrawan 1, 2080

The Company obtains independent valuations for its investment properties. The best evidence of fair value is current prices 
in an active market for similar properties. Where such information is not available, the Company consider information from 
a variety of sources including :
i)  current prices in an active market for properties of different nature or recent prices of similar properties in less active 

markets, adjusted to reťect those differences,
ii)  discounted cash ťow projections based on reliable estimates of future cash ťows,
iii)  capitalised income projections based upon a property's estimated net market income, and a capitalization rate derived 

from an analysis of market evidence.

 The fair values of investment properties have been deteremined by …..The main inputs used are the rental growth rates, 
expected vacancy rates, terminal yields and discount rates based on comparable transcations and industry data.

(iii) Disclosure on restriction on the realisability of investment properties: 

(iv) Contractual obligations:  

OR
Investment Properties at Fair Value 

SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements
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The Company obtains independent valuations for its investment properties. The best evidence of fair value is current prices 
in an active market for similar properties. Where such information is not available, the Company consider information from 
a variety of sources including :
i)  current prices in an active market for properties of different nature or recent prices of similar properties in less active 

markets, adjusted to reťect those differences,
ii)  discounted cash ťow projections based on reliable estimates of future cash ťows,
iii)  capitalised income projections based upon a property's estimated net market income, and a capitalization rate derived 

from an analysis of market evidence.
 

 The fair values of investment properties have been deteremined by …..The main inputs used are the rental growth rates, 
expected vacancy rates, terminal yields and discount rates based on comparable transcations and industry data.

Additions during the year  -   

Capitalisation during the year  -   

Disposals during the year  -   

Impairment during the year  -   

 Balance as on Ashadh 31, 2081  -    -    -   

Additions during the year  -   

Capitalisation during the year  -   

Disposals during the year  -   

Impairment during the year  -   

 Balance as on  Ashadh 32, 2082  -    -    -   

 Net Carrying Amount 

 Net Balance As At Ashad 31, 2081  -    -    -   

 Net Balance As At  Ashadh 32, 2082  -    -    -   

 Notes on Fair Value :

(iii) Disclosure on restriction on the realisability of investment properties: 
(iv) Contractual obligations: 

7.	Deferred	Tax	Assets/(Liabilities)

 Particulars 

 Current Year  Previous Year 

" Through 

SOPL "

" Through 

SOCI "
 Total 

" Through 

SOPL "

" Through 

SOCI "
 Total 

 Deferred Tax on Temporary Difference  

 Goodwill & Intangible Assets  -    -    -   

 Property and Equipment  (18,781,068)  (18,781,068)  (4,588,490)  (4,588,490)

 Financial Assets at FVPTL  -    -    -    -   

 Financial Assets at FVTOCI  (78,690,210)  (78,690,210)  (34,980,948)  (34,980,948)

 Provision for Leave  23,660,812  23,660,812  3,537,333  3,537,333 

 Provision for Gratuity  -    -    (3,577,499)  (3,577,499)

 Impairment Loss on Financial Assets  7,741,117  -    7,741,117  9,123,574  -    9,123,574 

 Impairment Loss on Other Assets  -    -   

 Carry forward of unused tax losses  275,974,634  275,974,634  413,961,952  413,961,952 

 Changes in tax rate  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Others (specify if any)  -    -    -    -    -    -   

  - Lease Equalisation Reserve  -    -    -    -   

  - Actuarial Gain / Loss  (1,310,505)  (1,310,505)  11,121,202  11,121,202 

 Total  288,595,495 	(80,000,715)  208,594,780  418,456,870 	(23,859,747)  394,597,123 

 Deferred Tax Asstes  208,594,780  394,597,123 

 Deferred Tax Liabilities  -    -   

SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements
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 Particulars 
 Current Year  Previous Year 

 SOPL  SOCI  Total  SOPL  SOCI  Total 

 As at Shrawan 1, 2081  418,456,869 	(23,859,746)  394,597,123  580,071,765 	(1,403,891)  578,667,874 

 Transfer from acquisition of Jyoti Life  -    -    -    -    -    -   
 Adjustment of Prior Prior period  -    (10,323,120)  10,323,120 
 Charged/(Credited) to Statement of 
ProŤt or Loss 

(129,861,375)  -    129,861,375) (151,291,776)  -    

(151,291,776)
 Charged/(Credited) to Other Compre-
hensive Income 

 (56,140,968)  (56,140,968)  (32,778,976)  (32,778,976)

 As at  Ashadh 32, 2082  288,595,494 	(80,000,715)  208,594,779  418,456,869 	(23,859,746)  394,597,123 

	Movements	in	deferred	tax	assets/	(liabilities)

8.  Investment in Subsidiaries

 Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries

 Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries

 Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries

Fig. in NPR

 Particulars  Current Year   Previous Year 

 Investment in Quoted Susidiaries  -    -   
 Investment in Unquoted Susidiaries  -    -   
 Less: Impairment Losses 
 Total  -    -   

 Particulars 
 Current Year  Previous Year 

 Cost  Fair Value  Cost  Fair Value 

 ........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd. 
 ........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd. 
 Total  -    -    -    -   

 Particulars 
 Current Year  Previous Year 

 Cost  Fair Value  Cost  Fair Value 

 ........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd. 
 ........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd. 
 Total  -    -    -    -   

 Particulars 
 Percentage of Ownership 

 Current Year  Previous Year 

 ........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd. 
 ........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd. 
 ........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd. 
 ........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd. 

SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Fig. in NPR9. Investment in Associates 

Investment in Quoted Associates 

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Investment in Quoted Associates 
 Investment in Unquoted Associates 
 Less: Impairment Losses 
 Total  -    -   

 Particulars 

 Current Year  Previous Year 

 Cost 
 Fair 

Value 

	(or)	Equit	
Method 

 Cost 
 Fair 

Value 

	(or)	Equit	
Method 

 ........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd. 
 ........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd. 
 Add: Share of ProŤt or Loss for Earlier Years 
 Add: Share of ProŤt or Loss for Current Year 
 Total  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Particulars 

 Current Year  Previous Year 

 Cost 
 Fair 

Value 

	(or)	Equit	
Method 

 Cost 
 Fair 

Value 

	(or)	Equit	
Method 

 ........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd. 
 ........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd. 
 Add: Share of ProŤt or Loss for Earlier Years 
 Add: Share of ProŤt or Loss for Current Year 
 Total  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Investment in Unquoted Associates

Information Relating to Associates

 Particulars  Current Year   Previous Year 

 Name 

 Place of Business 
 Accounting Method 
 % of Ownership 
 Current Assets 
 Non-Current Assets 
 Current Liabilities 
 Non-Current Liabilities 
 Income 

 Net ProŤt or Loss 
 Other Comprehensive Income 
 Total Comprehensive Income 
	Company's	share	of	proŤts	
 Net ProŤt or Loss 
 Other Comprehensive Income 

SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements
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10. Investments 

	a)	Details	of	Impairment	Losses	

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Investments measured at Amortised Cost  37,441,403,881  32,864,269,925 

 i) Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions  -    -   
 ii) Investment in Debentures  6,340,403,881  6,299,669,925 
 iii) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal 
Government) 

 -    -   

 iv) Fixed Deposits in "A" Class Financial Institutions  24,657,000,000  22,283,100,000 
 v) Fixed Deposits in Infrastructure Banks  1,150,000,000  150,000,000 
 vi) Fixed Deposits in "B" Class Financial Institutions  4,079,000,000  3,415,500,000 
 vii) Fixed Deposits in "C" Class Financial Institutions  1,015,000,000  616,000,000 
 viii) Investment Private Equity  200,000,000  100,000,000 
 Less: Impairment Losses  -    -   
 Investments at FVTOCI  4,220,997,673  2,095,716,813 

 i) Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted)  3,832,354,066  1,957,587,221 
 ii) Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)  9,560,000  9,560,000 
 iii) Investment in Mutual Funds  266,583,607  128,569,592 
 iv) Investment in Debentures  -    -   
 v) Others ( to be SpeciŤed)  112,500,000  -   
 Investments at FVTPL  -    -   

 i) Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted)  -    -   
 ii) Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)  -    -   
 iii) Investment in Mutual Funds  -    -   
 iv) Investment in Debentures  -    -   
 v) Others ( to be SpeciŤed)  -    -   
 Total  41,662,401,555  34,959,986,739 

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions 
 Investment in Debentures 
 Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/NRB/Guaranteed by Nepal Govern-
ment) 
 Fixed Deposit with"A" Class Financial Institutions 
 Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Banks 
 Fixed Deposit with"B" Class Financial Institutions 
 Fixed Deposit with"C" Class Financial Institutions 
 Others (to be SpeciŤed) 
 Total  -    -   

SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements
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	b)	Investments	having	expected	maturies	less	than	12	months:	
 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted) 
 Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted) 
 Investment in Mutual Funds 
 Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions 
 Investment in Debentures 
 Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/NRB/Guaranteed by Nepal Govern-
ment) 
 Fixed Deposit with"A" Class Financial Institutions  4,437,000,000  2,219,500,000 
 Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Banks  -   
 Fixed Deposit with"B" Class Financial Institutions  785,000,000  202,500,000 

 Fixed Deposit with"C" Class Financial Institutions  200,000,000  296,000,000 

	Others	(to	be	SpeciŤed)	  -    -   

 Total  5,422,000,000  2,718,000,000 

SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements

	c)	Information	relating	to	investment	in	equity

 Particulars 
 Current Year  Previous Year 

 Cost  Fair Value  Cost  Fair Value 

 Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted) 

 Kumari Bank Limited Promotor Share 269140 Shares 
of Rs. 64.08 each  17,245,473.88  29,874,540.00  17,245,474  27,990,560 

 Nepal Investment Bank Ltd. Promoter Share 17719 
Shares of Rs. 188.54 each  3,340,683.98  2,976,792.00  3,340,684  2,461,169 

 Nepal Insurance Co. Ltd Promoter Share 189083 
Shares of Rs. 125.28 each  23,688,117.14  56,724,900.00  17,753,988  42,986,100 

 Nepal Reinsurance Company Limited Promoter 
Share 964989 Shares of Rs. 74.50 each  71,895,100.00  271,161,909.00  71,895,100  258,865,911 

 Citizen Investment Trust Promoter Share 142318 
Shares of Rs. 613.40 each  87,298,143.00  102,042,006.00  87,298,143  83,655,975 

 Mero Micro Finance Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. Promoter 
Share 62567 Shares of Rs. 362.05 each  22,652,079.06  14,140,142.00  26,712,926  15,320,088 

 Forward Community Micro Finance Bittiya Sanstha 
Ltd. Promoter Share 95596 Shares of Rs. 446.90 
each 

 42,721,435.00  28,678,800.00  42,721,435  25,312,500 

 Prabhu Bank Ltd Promoter Share 59640 Shares of 
Rs. 177.38 each  10,578,668.30  6,560,400.00  10,578,668  5,964,000 

 Sana Kisan Bikas Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 
Promoter Share 71566 Shares of Rs. 332.81 each  23,817,713.00  7,156,600.00  23,817,713  6,157,200 

 Prime Commercial Bank  Ltd. Promoter Share 12064 
Shares of Rs. 174.24 each  2,102,002.65  1,242,592.00  2,102,003  1,508,000 

 Swabalamban Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha  Limited 
Promoter Share 75289 Shares of Rs. 405.88 each  30,558,294.39  58,875,998.00  30,558,294  51,533,018 

 Mahuli Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. Promoter 
Share 67759 Shares of Rs. 526.03 each  35,643,527.49  44,585,422.00  35,643,527  51,361,322 

 Samriddhi Finance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 
Promoter Share 30067 Shares of Rs. 160 each  4,810,880.00  4,930,988.00  5,600,000  5,740,000 

SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements
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 Particulars 
 Current Year  Previous Year 

 Cost  Fair Value  Cost  Fair Value 

 Nepal Infrastructure Bank Limited Promoter Share 
1674000 Shares of Rs. 92.59 each  155,000,000.00  185,814,000.00  155,000,000  185,814,000 

 Hydorelectricity Investment and Development Com-
pany Limited 282029 Shares of Rs. 202.85 each  57,210,769.42  59,384,026.24  -    -   

 Agricultural Development Bank Limited 124976 
Shares of Rs. 273.19 each  44,889,512.08  40,883,398.88  10,088,487  10,857,126 

 Api Power Company Ltd. 146256 shares of 
Rs.297.24 each  43,473,092.48  43,280,075.52  -    -   

 CEDB Holdings Limited 14152 shares of Rs.2512.51 
each 

 35,557,005.34  37,389,442.48  -    -   

 Citizen Investment Trust 8108 shares of Rs.1744.87 
each 

 14,147,434.20  16,019,137.76  14,147,434  12,930,360 

 Citizens Bank International Limited 143843 shares of 
Rs.217.14 each  31,234,219.94  32,836,480.04  26,648,450  24,819,278 

 Chilime Hydropower Company Limited 20612 Shares 
of Rs. 494.92 each  10,201,307  9,584,580 

 Deprosc Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 975 
Shares of Rs. 822.69 each  802,123  819,975 

 Everest Bank Limited 81537 shares of Rs.613.85 each  50,051,382.39  57,203,097.72  54,919,895  57,163,120 

 Garima Bikas Bank Limited 1000 shares of 
Rs.478.57 each  478,570.31  428,360.00  9,045,110  8,741,385 

 Ghalemdi Hydro Limited 21761 shares of Rs.255.69 
each 

 5,564,010.20  5,414,354.41 

 Global IME Bank Limited 933595 shares of 
Rs.228.99 each  213,787,245.58  242,333,254.15  21,883,216  18,968,097 

 Green Ventures Limited 79967 shares of Rs.461.76 
each 

 36,925,765.41  38,568,084.10  -    -   

 Gurkhas Finance Ltd. 6412 shares of Rs.792.74 
each 

 5,083,037.25  3,742,235.56 

 Hathway Investment Nepal Limited 2 shares of 
Rs.873.06 each  1,746.12  2,440.28  2,640,736  3,039,000 

 Himalayan Bank Limited 33707 shares of Rs.235.08 
each 

 7,923,948.98  7,998,671.10  14,660,912  14,108,995 

 Himalayan Distillery Limited 6996 shares of 
Rs.2116.32 each  14,805,801.02  8,650,833.84  16,271,701  10,827,032 

 Himalayan Reinsurance Limited 60514 shares of 
Rs.1028.19 each  62,219,864.65  55,841,108.92  818,861  792,280 

 Himal Dolakha Hydropower Company Limited 8248 
shares of Rs.314.16 each  2,591,219.00  1,631,124.48  2,591,219  1,228,952 

 Himalayan Power Partner Ltd.  -    -    7,102,642  3,060,000 

 Hydorelectricity Investment and Development Com-
pany Limited 12877 shares of Rs.302.08 each  3,889,898.79  3,767,938.97  -    -   

 ICFC Finance Limited 6103 Shares of Rs. 674.31 
each 

 4,115,313  3,777,757 

 Janautthan Samudayic Laghubitta Bittya Sanstha 
Limited 545 shares of Rs.2546.17 each  1,387,660.00  754,438.05  1,387,660  776,680 

 Kalika Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd 4 shares of 
Rs.1053.75 each  4,215.00  4,238.00  4,215  4,800 

 Kamana Sewa Bikas Bank Limited 13739 shares of 
Rs.448.89 each  6,167,316.79  6,878,979.91  1,675,647  1,604,928 

SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 
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 Particulars 
 Current Year  Previous Year 

 Cost  Fair Value  Cost  Fair Value 

 Kumari Bank Limited 656022 shares of Rs.215.33 
each 

 141,262,505.06  144,173,954.94  145,953,535  125,356,644 

 Laxmi Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 8544 shares of 
Rs.1314.89 each  11,234,396.16  9,579,105.60  -    -   

 Laxmi Sunrise Bank Limited 91983 shares of 
Rs.187.63 each  17,258,409.66  21,960,021.42  49,837,386  44,737,175 

 Mero Micro Finance Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 10305 
shares of Rs.394.07 each  4,060,847.10  8,723,491.65  4,497,127  7,988,400 

 Machhapuchhre Bank Limited 391779 shares of 
Rs.262.48 each  102,832,797.26  101,631,390.39  1,785,839  2,000,000 

 Mahalaxmi Bikas Bank Ltd. 139802 shares of 
Rs.416.72 each  58,257,685.34  57,552,289.34  -    -   

 Miteri Development Bank Ltd. 86996 shares of 
Rs.729.43 each  63,457,793.11  59,868,037.32  -    -   

 Mountain Energy Nepal Ltd. 3000 shares of 
Rs.594.91 each  1,784,731.43  1,917,570.00  -    -   

 Muktinath Bikas Bank Ltd. 60842 shares of 
Rs.458.56 each  27,899,510.04  24,696,984.64  30,151,110  24,997,838 

 Nabil Bank Limited 133560 shares of Rs.568.9 each  75,981,772.95  72,305,377.20  72,763,694  75,136,360 

 Nepal Investment Mega Bank Limited 124638 shares 
of Rs.235.86 each  29,397,283.47  28,793,870.76  52,734,605  42,886,192 

 Nepal Bank Limited 384710 shares of Rs.296.24 
each 

 113,966,092.37  112,119,882.40  13,019,952  13,184,546 

 Nepal Reinsurance Company Limited 1 shares of 

Rs.0 each 
 1,260.11  51,233,867  26,985,378 

 Nepal Doorsanchar Company Limited 8602 shares of 
Rs.957.81 each  8,239,057.87  7,546,276.54  2,265,141  2,028,000 

 Nepal Infrastructure Bank Limited 450320 shares of 
Rs.286.39 each  128,966,889.48  126,823,621.60  1,797,508  1,986,792 

 Nepal SBI Bank Limited 67882 shares of Rs.422.25 
each 

 28,663,279.82  29,866,722.36  4,708,034  4,597,904 

 Neco Insurance Limited 32 shares of Rs.892.33 each  28,554.51  22,731.52  27,855  20,900 

 Nepal Warehousing Company Limited  19363 shares 
of Rs.1169.64 each  22,647,746.15  17,860,237.57  -    -   

 NIC Asia Bank Ltd. 40361 shares of Rs.712.55 each  28,759,071.77  16,953,638.05  28,759,072  17,887,995 

 NMB Bank Limited 605865 shares of Rs.254.39 each  154,124,833.53  163,413,907.80  94,324,557  87,548,800 

 Ngadi Group Power Ltd. 243709 shares of Rs.381.22 
each 

 92,907,693.75  97,159,467.03  -    -   

 Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 
4623 shares of Rs.1025.04 each  4,738,771.37  3,553,746.33  4,738,771  3,291,114 

 NMB  MicroŤnance Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 2673 Shares 
of Rs. 1118.11 each 

 2,988,714.00  1,991,732.49  2,988,714  2,031,480 

 Nerude Mirmire Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 1 
shares of Rs.0 each 

 -    700.35  -    595 

 Prime Commercial Bank Ltd. 437521 shares of 
Rs.261.85 each  114,563,891.33  120,891,427.51  45,148,457  44,861,712 

 Prabhu  Bank Limited 306961 shares of Rs.234.01 
each 

 71,833,454.86  68,111,576.29  9,849,970  9,222,203 

 Reliance Finance Ltd. 155862 shares of Rs.591.17 
each 

 92,141,601.46  78,596,530.74  -    -   
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 Particulars 
 Current Year  Previous Year 

 Cost  Fair Value  Cost  Fair Value 

 Ridi Power Company Limited 92 shares of Rs.0 each  -    23,737.84  -    -   

 Sahas Urja Ltd. 20000 shares of Rs.594.42 each  11,888,401.31  12,800,800.00  -    -   

 Samriddhi Finance Company Limited 4933 shares of 
Rs.159.97 each  789,120.00  2,661,205.51  -    -   

 Sanima Bank Limited 683263 shares of Rs.325.62 
each 

 222,486,757.43  256,066,474.51  87,252,793  90,741,681 

 Sanima Mai Hydropower Ltd. 56249 shares of 
Rs.624.36 each  35,119,746.25  35,263,060.59  -    -   

 Sana Kisan Bikas Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 
7799 shares of Rs.999.8 each  7,797,420.79  6,897,513.59  7,895,521  6,713,497 

 Shangrila Development Bank Ltd.   -    -    1,755,786  1,745,349 

 Shree Investment Finance Co. Ltd.   -    -    21,545,619  21,131,740 

 Siddhartha Bank Limited 593908 shares of 
Rs.310.05 each  184,139,321.96  227,924,073.16  115,200,490  118,226,080 

 Singati Hydro Energy Limited 137910 shares of 
Rs.298.68 each  41,191,078.19  39,769,106.70  13,284,244  15,290,254 

 Standard Chartered Bank Limited 48748 shares of 
Rs.580.07 each  28,277,486.30  31,983,562.80  60,541,225  63,216,622 

Salt Trading Corporation 407 shares of Rs.5836.74 
each 

 2,375,551.80  2,153,030.00  10,086,678  8,294,355 

 Samata Gharelu Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 
3055 shares of Rs.1061.4 each  3,242,584.00  2,889,357.90  3,242,584  2,853,729 

 Shine Resunga Development Bank Ltd.   -    -    7,948,974  8,161,955 

 Shikhar Insurance Co. Ltd. 1085 shares of 
Rs.1414.79 each  1,535,043.50  839,280.05  1,535,044  712,878 

 SHIVAM CEMENTS LTD   -    -    14,340,337  12,779,014 

 Swabalamban Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha  Limited 1 
shares of Rs.0 each 

 -    881.44  15,052,716  18,699,420 

 Swarojgar Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 9252 
shares of Rs.1274 each  11,787,089.20  9,446,569.56  11,830,489  8,242,786 

 United IDI Mardi RB Hydropower Limited. 433926 
shares of Rs.680.21 each  295,159,229.20  265,428,194.94  -    -   

 UNIVERSAL POWER COMPANY LTD 94 shares of 
Rs.413.2 each  38,841.01  37,963.78  -    -   

 Upper Tamakoshi Hydropower Ltd 5000 shares of 
Rs.202.66 each  1,013,283.74  992,800.00  23,615,874  25,758,796 

 Vijaya laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 1500 shares of 
Rs.1175.7 each  1,763,554.61  1,329,285.00  1,763,555  1,560,000 

 Total A  3,415,347,725.97  3,750,399,258.73  1,742,750,005.74  1,888,652,369.50 

 Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted) 

 Insurance Institute of Nepal 95600 Shares of Rs. 100 
Each 

 9,560,000.00  9,560,000.00  9,560,000  9,560,000 

 Club Chaulani Limited 1125000 Shares of Rs. 100 
Each 

 112,500,000.00  112,500,000.00  -    -   

 Total B  122,060,000.00  122,060,000.00  9,560,000.00  9,560,000.00 

 Grand  3,537,407,725.97  3,872,459,258.73  1,752,310,005.74  1,898,212,369.50 

SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 
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11.  Loans

	a)	Loans	to	Policyholders

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Loans measured at Amortised Cost 
 Loan to Employees  152,880,855  123,431,707 
 Loan to Agents  58,726,816  79,506,499 
 Loan to Policyholders  4,678,959,275  4,012,500,993 
 Others (to be SpeciŤed)  -    -   
 Less: Impairment Losses  30,964,466  36,494,295 
 Total  4,859,602,479  4,178,944,904 

 Particulars  Loan amount  Interest Income  

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Endowment   3,313,414,440.95  2,861,151,066  292,386,935  261,528,659 
 Anticipated Endowment  720,425,552.20  604,643,845  64,784,716  58,359,414 
 Endowment cum Whole Life  645,119,282.02  546,706,083  59,081,979  49,975,163 
 Whole Life  -    -    -    -   
 Foreign Employment Term  -    -    -    -   
 Other Term  -    -    (106,450)  -   
 Special Term  -    -    -    -   
 Others ( to be SpeciŤed)  -    -    -    -   
 Total  4,678,959,275  4,012,500,993  416,147,180  369,863,237 

SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements

	b)	Expected	repayment	of	loan	within	12	months:

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Loan to Employees  63,090,459  50,554,047 
 Loan to Agents  73,412,782  56,833,420 
 Loan to Policyholders  -    -   
 Others ( to be SpeciŤed)  -    -   
 Total  136,503,240  107,387,466 
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13.Insurance Receivables 

	a)	Expected	receivable	within	12	months:	

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Receivable from Reinsurer  223,025,162  160,562,040 
 Receivable from other Insurance Companies  -    -   
 Others( to be SpeciŤed)  -    -   
 Less: Impairment Losses  -    -   
 Total  223,025,162  160,562,040 

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Receivable from Reinsurer  223,025,162  160,562,040 
 Receivable from Other Insurance Companies  -    -   
 Others( to be SpeciŤed) 
 Total  223,025,162  160,562,040 

 Description 

 Policy liabilities and 

provisions 

 Claim Payment 

Reserve 

 Impairment 

Losses 

 Net Reinsurance 

Assets 

 Current 

year 

 Previous 

Year 

 Current 

year 

 Previous 

Year 

 Current 

year 

 Previous 

Year 

 Current 

year 

 Previous 

Year 

 Endowment  -    -    5,356,968  5,462,939  -    -    5,356,968  5,462,939 

 Anticipated Endowment  -    -    

54,176,220 
 9,107,408  -    -    

54,176,220 
 9,107,408 

 Endowment cum Whole 
Life 

 -    -    640,000  460,000  -    -    640,000  460,000 

 Whole Life  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Foreign Employment 
Term 

 -    -    2,680,000  2,430,000  -    -    2,680,000  2,430,000 

 Other Term  -    -    1,244,640  3,964,000  -    -    1,244,640  3,964,000 

 Special Term  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Others ( to be SpeciŤed)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Total  -    -   64,097,828 21,424,347  -    -   64,097,828 21,424,347 

12. Reinsurance Assets
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 14. Other Assets

	a)	Expected	to	be	recovered/	settled	within	12	months:	

15.  Other Financial Assets 

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Capital Advances  -    -   

 Prepaid Expenses  1,259,610  1,179,736 

 Claim Advances  -    -   

 Advance To Suppliers  -    -   

 Staff Advances  1,203,169  3,640,733 

 Printing and Stationary Stocks  4,760,194  5,530,349 

 Stamp Stocks  116,950  116,950 

 Deferred Expenses  111,384,455  120,485,825 

 Deferred Reinsurance Commission Expenses  -    -   

 Deferred Agent Commission Expenses  -    -   

 Lease Receivables  -    -   

 Others (to be speciŤed)  -    -   

 Plan Assets for Gratuity (Net)  -    14,309,995 

 Plan Assets for Leave (Net)  -    -   

 Less: Impairment Losses  -    -   

 Total  118,724,379  145,263,587 

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Capital Advances  -    -   

 Prepaid Expenses  1,259,610  1,179,736 

 Claim Advances  -    -   

 Advance To Suppliers  -    -   

 Staff Advances  1,203,169  3,640,733 

 Printing and Stationary Stocks  4,760,194  5,530,349 

 Stamp Stocks  116,950  116,950 

 Deferred Expenses  6,416,348  5,617,446 

 Deferred Reinsurance Commission Expenses  -    -   

 Deferred Agent Commission Expenses  -    -   

 Lease Receivables  -    -   

 Others (to be speciŤed)  -    -   

 Total 12,957,370  16,085,214 

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Security Deposits  1,997,410  1,997,410 

 Accrued Interest  248,274,191  239,752,694 

 Interest Receivable from Loan to Policyholders  -  -

 Other Receivables  31,248,127  -   

 Other Deposits  783,310,907  300,111 

 Sundry Debtors  -    -   

 Others (to be SpeciŤed)  139,620  -   

 Less: Impairment Losses  -    -   

 Total  1,064,970,255  242,050,215 
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	a)	Expected	maturities	within	12	months:	

16. Cash and Cash Equivalent 

17	(a)	Share	Capital	

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Security Deposits  -    -   

 Accured Interest  248,274,191  239,752,694 

 Interest Receivable from Loan to Policyholders  (0)  (0)

 Other Receivables  31,248,127  -   

 Other Deposits  783,310,907  300,111 

 Sundry Debtors  -    -   

 Other ( to be SpeciŤed)  139,620  -   

 Total  1,062,972,845  240,052,805 

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Cash in Hand  -    -   

 Cheque in Hand  -    -   

 Bank Balances 

 i) Balance With"A" Class Financial Institutions  694,427,348  608,426,690 

 ii) Balance With Infrastructure Banks  -    -   

 iii) Balance With"B" Class Financial Institutions  100,552,543  84,203,811 

 iv) Balance With"C" Class Financial Institutions  24,644,083  24,777,973 

 Less: Impairment Losses  -    -   

 Deposit with initial maturity upto 3 months  -    -   

 Others (to be SpeciŤed)  -    -   

 Less: Impairment Losses  -    -   

 Total  819,623,974  717,408,474 

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Ordinary Shares 

 As at Shrawan 1, 2081  5,011,947,797  4,545,572,100 

 Additions during the year 

       i) Bonus Share Issue  -    466,375,697 

 As at  Ashadh 32, 2082  5,011,947,797  5,011,947,797 

 Convertible Preference Shares (Equity Component only) 

 As at Shrawan 1, 2081  -    -   

 Additions during the year  -   

 As at  Ashadh 32, 2082  -    -   

 Irredeemable Preference Shares (Equity Component only) 

 As at Shrawan 1, 2081  -    -   

 Additions during the year  -    -   

 As at  Ashadh 32, 2082  -    -   

 Total  5,011,947,797  5,011,947,797 
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(i)	Ordinary	Shares	

(ii)		Preference	Share	Capital	

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Authorised Capital: 

 6,00,00,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each  6,000,000,000  6,000,000,000 

 Issued Capital: 

 50,119,477 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each  5,011,947,797  5,011,947,797 

 Subscribed and Paid Up Capital: 

 50,119,477 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each  5,011,947,797  5,011,947,797 

 Total  5,011,947,797  5,011,947,797 

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Authorised Capital: 
 …..... Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each  -    -   
 ….....Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each  -    -   

 Issued Capital: 
 …..... Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each  -    -   

 ….....Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each  -    -   
 Subscribed and Paid Up Capital: 
 …..... Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each  -    -   
 ….....Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each  -    -   
 Total  -    -   

 Shareholding Structure of Share Capital

 Particulars  Number of Shares  Percentage 

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Promoters 

 Government of Nepal  -    -    -    -   

 Nepali Organized 
Institutions 

 8,576,730  8,576,730 17.11% 17.11%

 Nepali Citizens  16,984,204  16,984,204 33.89% 33.89%

 Foreigners  -    -   

 Others ( to be SpeciŤed)  -    -   

	Total	(A)	  25,560,934  25,560,934 51.00% 51.00%

 Other than Promoters 

 General Public  24,509,057  24,509,057 48.90% 48.90%

 Others (to be SpeciŤed)  -    -    -    -   

        - Fraction Share  40,686  40,686 0.08% 0.08%

        - Others  8,801  8,801 0.02% 0.02%

	Total	(B)	  24,558,544  24,558,544 49.00% 49.00%

	Total	(A+B)	  50,119,478  50,119,478 100.00% 100.00%

SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPR



18th ANNUAL REPORT 

FY 2081/82

138

 Particulars  Number of Shares  Percentage 

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Arpit Agrawal  2,301,137  2,068,873 4.59% 4.13%

 Ashok Kumar Agrawal  984,919  893,271 1.97% 1.78%

 Bodh Prasad Tripathi  540,400  680,232 1.08% 1.36%

 City Express Investment Fund Pvt.ltd  513,095  544,169 1.02% 1.09%

 Nic Asia Bank Ltd.  893,825  1,371,153 1.78% 2.74%

 Nikunj Agrawal  1,818,627  1,632,622 3.63% 3.26%

 Nitesh Agrawal  2,800,010  2,539,460 5.59% 5.07%

 Shree Ganesh Properties And Investments Pvt.ltd  1,649,445  1,821,161 3.29% 3.63%

 Sirish Kumar Murarka  527,524  634,873 1.05% 1.27%

 Trilok Chand Agrawal  1,830,022  1,659,734 3.65% 3.31%

 Unitech Investment Private Limited  1,906,697  1,895,928 3.80% 3.78%

 Usha Agrawal  2,514,297  2,539,459 5.02% 5.07%

 Usha Investment  1,277,653  1,158,763 2.55% 2.31%

 V.j.investment Company Pvt.ltd.  917,866  832,457 1.83% 1.66%

 Details of shareholders holding 1% or more than 1% of the aggregate shares in the Company:

17	(b)	Share	Application	Money	Pending	Allotment		 	 	

17	(c)		Share	Premium		 	 	

17	(d)			Catastrophe	
Reserves

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Share Application Money Pending Allotment  -    -   

 Total  -    -   

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 As on Shrawan 1, 2081  -    37,201,855 

 Additions on acquisiton of Jyoti Life   -    -   
 Increase due to issue of shares at premium  -    -   
 Decrease due to issue of bonus shares  -    (37,201,855)
 Transaction costs on issue of share  -    -   
 Others ( to be SpeciŤed)  -    -   
 As on  Ashadh 32, 2082  -    -   

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 As on Shrawan 1, 2081  377,143,461  326,989,612 

 Additions  42,879,490  50,153,848 
 Utilizations  -    -   
 As on  Ashadh 32, 2082  420,022,951  377,143,461 
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17	(e)	Retained	Earnings	

17	(f)	Other	Equity	

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 As on Shrawan 1, 2081  1,150,565,318  1,329,786,417 

 Net ProŤt or Loss  727,728,427  851,785,189 
 Items of OCI recognised directly in retained earnings 
 Remeasurement of Post-Employment BeneŤt Obligations  -    -   
 Transfer to retained  earnings on disposal of FVTOCI 
 Transfer to reserves 
 Revaluation Reserves  -    -   
 Capital Reserves  -    -   
 Catastrophe Reserves  (42,879,490)  (50,153,848)
 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Reserves  (8,575,898)  (10,030,770)
 Insurance Fund  -    -   
 Fair Value Reserves  -    -   
 Actuarial Reserves  -    -   
 Deferred Tax Reserve  129,861,375  161,614,896 
 Regulatory Reserve  -    -   
 Other Reserve(Employee Trainning Fund)  (1,511,485)  (4,266,546)
 Transfer of Depreciation on Revaluation of Property and Equipment  -    -   
 Transfer of Disposal of Revalued Property and Equipment  -    -   
 Transfer of Disposal of Equity Instruments Measured at FVTOCI  -    -   
 CSR Expenses made during the Year  -    -   
 Issue of Bonus Shares  -    (4,463,843)
 Transaction costs on issue of Shares  (1,200,511)  (3,925,324)
 Dividend Paid  (1,002,389,559)  (1,124,574,538)
 Dividend Distribution Tax  -    -   
 Transfer to Insurance Contract Liability  -    -   
 Others ( to be SpeciŤed) 
 -Prior period  adjustment  (27,943,119)  4,793,685 
 As on  Ashadh 32, 2082  923,655,057  1,150,565,318 

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Revaluation Reserves  -    -   

 Capital Adjustment Reserves  61,512,300  61,512,300 
 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Reserves  27,048,648  20,630,120 
 Insurance Fund  -    -   
 Fair Value Reserves  23,607,063  10,494,285 
 Actuarial Reserves  (83,796,876)  (46,501,756)
 Deferred Tax Reserve  288,595,495  418,456,870 
 Other Reserve(to be speciŤed) 
 Employee Trainning Reserve  1,511,485  4,266,546 
 Total  318,478,115  468,858,365 
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18.  Provisions

	(b)	Provision	with	expected	payouts	within	12	months	

(a)	Movement	of	Provisions,	Contingent	Liabilities	and	Contingent	Assets

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Provision for employee beneŤts 
   i) Provision for Leave  94,643,249  14,149,332 
   ii) Provision for Gratuity  17,593,765  -   
   iii)Termination BeneŤts  -    -   
   iv) Other Employee BeneŤt obligations (to be SpeciŤed)  -    -   
 Provision for tax related legal cases  -    -   
 Provision for non-tax related legal cases  -    -   
 Others (to be SpeciŤed)  -    -   
 Total  112,237,014  14,149,332 

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Provision for employee beneŤts 
   i) Provision for Leave  27,311,946  6,335,000 
   ii) Provision for Gratuity  -    -   
   iii) Termination BeneŤts 
   iv) Other employee beneŤt obligations( to be SpeciŤed) 
 Provision for tax related legal cases 
 Provision for non-tax related legal cases 
 Others (to be SpeciŤed) 

 Description 
 Opening 

Balance 

" Additions  

During the 

Year "

" Utilised  

During the 

Year "

 Deposited 

at CIT Fund 

 Unwinding 

of Discount 

 Closing 

Balance 

 Provision for employee 
beneŤts 
   i) Provision for Leave  14,149,332  80,493,917  -    -    -    94,643,249 
   ii) Provision for Gratuity  -    17,593,765  -    17,593,765 
   iii)Termination BeneŤts 
   iv) Other Employee BeneŤt 
obligations (to be SpeciŤed) 
 Provision for tax related legal 
cases 

 Provision for non-tax related 
legal cases 

 Others( to be SpeciŤed) 
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SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements

19. Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Life Insurance Fund as per Actuary Report (19.1)  41,505,634,889  33,670,106,571 

 Claim Payment Reserve including IBNR (19.2)  99,464,646  41,958,268 
 Transfer from: 
 Fair Value Reserve  -  - 
 Actuarial Reserve  -  - 

 Revaluation Reserve  -  - 
 Other Reserve  -  - 
 Net gain on fair value changes on FVTPL instruments  -  - 
 Fair Value Gain on Investment Properties  -  - 
 Share of ProŤt of Associates accounted as per Equity Method  -  - 
 Share of Other Comprehensive Income of Associates Accounted for using the 
Equity Method 

 -  - 

 Total  41,605,099,535  33,712,064,839 

i)	Notes	on	 the	cash-ťows	considered	 for	 valuation	of	
liabilities 

"Gross Premium Method has been used in calculation of 
Mathematical Reserve as prescribed in Risk-Based Capital 
Directive, 2025. The present value of all cash ťows of 
BeneŤts, Premium, Commissions, Expenses & Reinsurance, 
under each policy contract have been projected as on date 
of valuation.
 

All the product related beneŤts (Death BeneŤt, Survival 
BeneŤt, Surrender BeneŤt & Maturity BeneŤt) cash ťows 
have been projected as per product speciŤcations.
 

For participating policies bonuses, once declared, form a 
part of guaranteed beneŤts under the policy and have been 
considered accordingly in policy liability calculation. The 
future bonus payable in the policy have been considered in 
line with expected performance, previous proŤt allocation 
rates and policyholders’ reasonable expectations.
 

Premium receivables under each policy is assumed to 
be paid on their respective due dates. The commissions 
payable to agents have been projected as per the Beema 
Samiti guidelines.

 

The maintenance expenses have been separated as per 
policy and percentage of premium expense. The per policy 
expense has been increased in future years for inťation.
 

Reinsurance cash-ťows have been considered in calculation 
of Mathematical Reserves. Recovery from reinsurers on 
expected claims have been considered as inťows and 
reinsurance premium has been considered as outťows in 

calculation of Mathematical Reserves." 
    

ii)	Notes	on	valuation	methods	and	assumptions
"Gross Premium Method has been used in calculation 
of Mathematical Reserves for all individual life insurance 
policies as prescribed in Risk-Based Capital Directive,2025. 
For group and credit plans, a reserve equal to the higher of 
Unexpired Risks and the Unearned Premium Reserve was 
held on a 1/365th methodology.
 

For all riders attached to base plans, a reserve was held 
equal to the Unearned Premium Reserve on a 1/365th 
methodology except for long term riders, where the reserve 
is based on Gross Premium Valuation.
 

The assumptions used are as under: Mortality Rates: 72% 
of Nepal Assured Lives Mortality, 2009 Interest Rate: As 
per Risk-free rates provide by NIA Commission: Scales of 
commission / remuneration payable to agents’ / insurance 
intermediaries as per the Annexure 11 of the Insurance 
Regulation 2049
 

Maintenance Expenses

 • For Participating Policies: 469 per policy & 3.56%  
 of premium.

 •  For Non-Participating Policies: 239 per policy &  
 3.56% of premium

 Inťation: 5.63% per annum
 Future Bonus: The estimated future bonus rates are 

taken as 50% for all the plans except Annual Money 
Back plan where it is taken as 45% as per the Nepal 
Insurance Authority Circular 2081."    

Fig. in NPR
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SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements

 	iii)	Notes	on	the	discounting	policy
All the future cash ťows have been discounted to arrive at the 
present value of all the cash-ťow components under each of 
the insurance contracts. As per Risk-Based Capital Directive 
2025, valuation rates of interest shall be the risk-free rates 
provide by NIA. Therefore, the discount rate provided by NIA 
has been used and seems quite prudent compared to actual 
return earned by the Company.

	iv)	Notes	on	aggregation	practises	
"Following aggregation practice has been followed:
i.  Mathematical Reserve has been determined separately 

for each contract and the result was then aggregated on 
the basis of policy type - Endowment plan, Endowment 
cum Whole Life plan, Money Back Plan, Term Plan & 
Foreign Employment.

ii.  A reserve equal to one year’s extra premium has been 
held for sub-standard lives or occupation.

 

iii. An additional provision for IBNR, Expense Overruns  
 and Future Bonus has been held.

Following aggregation practice has been followed: 
i.  Mathematical Reserve has been determined  
 separately for each contract and the result  

 was then aggregated on the basis of policy type  
 - Endowment plan, Endowment cum Whole Life  
 plan, Money Back Plan, Term Plan & Foreign  
 Employment. 

ii.  A reserve equal to one year’s extra premium  
 has been held for sub-standard lives or  
 occupation. 

iii.  An additional provision for IBNR, Expense  
 Overruns and Future Bonus has been 

  held.

v)	Any	other	disclosures	as	required		 	
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20.  Insurance Payable

 Payable within 12 months: 

21.	Current	Tax	Assets/(Liabilities)	(Net)

 Payable within 12 months: 

22. Borrowings

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Payable to Reinsurer  25,469,079  85,050,890 

 Payable to other Insurance Companies  -    -   
 Others (to be SpeciŤed)  -    -   

 Total  25,469,079  85,050,890 

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Payable to Reinsurer  25,469,079  85,050,890 
 Payable to other Insurance Companies  -    -   
 Others (to be SpeciŤed)  -    -   
 Total  25,469,079  85,050,890 

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Income Tax Liabilities  (439,464,882)  (205,986,565)
 Income Tax Assets  1,464,595,352  1,233,683,561 
 Total  1,025,130,470  1,027,696,996 

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Bonds  -    -   
 Debentures  -    -   
 Term Loans-Bank and Financial Institution  350,000,000  -   
 Bank Overdrafts  -    -   
 Others (to be SpeciŤed)  -    -   
 Total  350,000,000  -   

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Bonds  -    -   
 Debentures  -    -   
 Term Loans-Bank and Financial Institution  350,000,000  -   
 Bank Overdrafts  -    -   
 Others (to be SpeciŤed)  -    -   
 Total  350,000,000  -   

SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements
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23. Other Liabilities

 Payable within 12 months

24. Other Financial Liabilities

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 TDS Payable  97,061,986  65,355,633 
 UnidentiŤed deposits  7,930,305  1,386,275 
 Advance Premiums  26,377,260  75,994,385 
 Insurance Service Fee Payable  27,991,538  71,273,659 
 Lease Liability  241,076,712  229,717,124 
 Deferred Reinsurance Commission Income  -    -   
 Deferred Income  -    -   
 Others(to be speciŤed)  -    -   
     - Claims Payable  520,990,617  325,616,783 
     - Cheque issued but not presented for payment  -    -   
     - VAT Payable  -   -0.00 
 Total  921,428,417  769,343,859.10 

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 TDS Payable  97,061,986  65,355,633 
 UnidentiŤed deposits  7,930,305  6,002,428 
 Advance Premiums  26,377,260  75,994,385 
 Insurance Service Fee Payable  27,991,538  71,273,659 
 Lease Liability  51,624,314  62,506,912 
 Deferred Reinsurance Commission Income  -    -   
 Deferred Income  -    -   
 Others(to be speciŤed)  -    -   
     - Claims Payable  520,990,617  325,616,783 
     - Cheque issued but not presented for payment  -    -   
     - VAT Payable  -    -
 Total  731,976,019  606,749,800 

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Redeemable Preference Shares  -    -   
 Irredemable Cumulative Preference Shares  -    -   
 Refundable Share Application Money  -    -   
 Payable to Agents  380,695,302  282,673,431 
 Sundry Creditors  38,800,339  54,708,218 
 Retention and deposits  -    -   
 Short-term employee beneŤts payable  -    -   
 i) Salary Payables  1,025,500  1,057,458 
 ii) Bonus Payables  100,585,116  117,476,761 
 iii) Other employee beneŤt payable (to be SpeciŤed)  -    -   
 Dashain Allowance Payable  -    -   
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 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Fuel Reimbursement Payable  2,430,456  2,409,591 
 Staff Incentive Payable  6,283,098  3,405,306 
 Providend Fund Payable  3,254  3,118 
 Employee CIT Payable  -    -   
 Employee Leave Payable  266,088  5,106,178 
 Payable to retired employee  -    -   
 Other Payable  4,019,024  2,669,054 
 Audit Fees Payable  111,500  111,502 
 Actuarial Fees Payable  0  1,713,010 
 Dividend Payable  -    -   
 Others (to be speciŤed)  -    -   
 Rent Expense Payable  381,675  402,459 
 Agent License Fee Payable  384,600  384,600 
 Meeting Fee and Allowances Payable to BOD  -    -   
 Group Business Payable  203,414,259  161,325,998 
 Total  738,400,210  633,446,685 

 Payable within 12 months

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Redeemable Preference Shares  -    -   
 Irredemable Cumulative Preference Shares  -    -   
 Refundable Share Application Money  -    -   
 Payable to Agents  380,695,302  282,673,431 
 Sundry Creditors  38,800,339  54,708,218 
 Retention and deposits  -    -   
 Short-term employee beneŤts payable  -    -   
 i) Salary Payables  1,025,500  1,057,458 
 ii) Bonus Payables  100,585,116  111,118,303 
 iii) Other employee beneŤt payable ( to be SpeciŤed) 
 Dashain Allowance Payable  -    -   
 Fuel Reimbursement Payable  2,430,456  2,409,591 
 Staff Incentive Payable  6,283,098  3,405,306 
 Providend Fund Payable  3,254  3,118 
 Employee CIT Payable  -    -   
 Employee Leave Payable  266,088  5,106,178 
 Payable to retired employee  -    -   
 Other Payable  4,019,024  2,669,054 
 Audit Fees Payable  111,500  111,500 
 Actuarial Fees Payable  0  1,713,010 
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 25. Gross Earned Premiums

25.1  Gross Written Premiums

SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Dividend Payable  -    -   
 Others (to be speciŤed) 
 Rent Expense Payable  381,675  402,459 
 Agent License Fee Payable  384,600  384,600 
 Meeting Fee and Allowances Payable to BOD  -    -   
 Group Business Payable  203,414,259  164,098,425 
 Total  738,400,210  464,975,167 

 Particulars 

 Direct Premium 
 Premium on Reinsur-

ance Accepted 

 Gross Change in 

Unearned Premium 
 Gross Earned Premium 

 Current 

Year 

 Previous 

Year 

 Current 

Year 

 Previous 

Year 

 Current 

Year 

 Previous 

Year 

 Current 

Year 

 Previous 

Year 

 Endowment  7,637,651,067  6,038,013,638  -    -    7,637,651,067  6,038,013,638 
 Anticipated 
Endowment 

 2,213,886,851  2,055,902,198  -    -    2,213,886,851  2,055,902,198 

 Endowment Cum 
Whole Life 

 693,445,346  687,555,541  -    -    693,445,346  687,555,541 

 Whole Life  -    -    -    -    -    -   
 Foreign Employ-
ment Term 

 286,231,993  249,874,702  -    -    286,231,993  249,874,702 

 Other Term  523,850,571  468,120,340  -    -    523,850,571  468,120,340 
 Special Term  -    -    -    -    -    -   
 Othes(to be 
SpeciŤed) 

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Total  11,355,065,829  9,499,466,419  -    -    -    -    11,355,065,829  9,499,466,419 

 Particulars 

 First Year Premium  Renewal Premium  Single Premium  Total Direct Premium 

 Current 

Year 

 Previous 

Year 

 Current 

Year 

 Previous 

Year 

 Current 

Year 

 Previous 

Year 

 Current 

Year 

 Previous 

Year 

 Endowment  1,650,225,268  1,249,939,048  5,360,339,359  4,480,060,040  627,086,440  308,014,550  7,637,651,067  6,038,013,638 
 Anticipated 
Endowment  210,936,991  190,125,990  1,913,177,491  1,821,829,216  89,772,369  43,946,992  2,213,886,851  2,055,902,198 

 Endowment Cum 
Whole Life 

 60,132,562  84,629,960  633,312,784  602,925,581  -    -    693,445,346  687,555,541 

 Whole Life  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
 Foreign Employ-
ment Term  -    -    -    -    286,231,993  249,874,702  286,231,993  249,874,702 

 Other Term  401,900,909  366,293,397  105,691,925  78,826,310  16,257,738  23,000,633  523,850,571  468,120,340 
 Special Term  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
 Othes( to be 
SpeciŤed)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Total  2,323,195,730  1,890,988,395  8,012,521,559  6,983,641,147  1,019,348,540  624,836,877  11,355,065,829  9,499,466,419 
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26. Premiums Ceded

26.1 Portfolio-wise detail of Net Earned Premium

27. Commission Income 

 Particulars 

 Premium Ceded To Rein-

surers 

 Reinsurer's Share of Change 

in Unearned Premium 
 Premium Ceded 

 Current Year 
 Previous 

Year 
 Current Year 

 Previous 

Year 
 Current Year 

 Previous 

Year 

 Endowment   78,184,419  97,270,181  -    -    78,184,419  97,270,181 

 Anticipated Endowment  35,212,426  50,370,286  -    -    35,212,426  50,370,286 

 Endowment cum Whole Life  7,922,596  12,776,835  -    -    7,922,596  12,776,835 

 Whole Life  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Foreign Employment Term  79,345,460  89,657,318  -    -    79,345,460  89,657,318 

 Other Term  28,236,674  48,157,773  -    -    28,236,674  48,157,773 

 Special Term  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Others ( to be SpeciŤed)  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Total  228,901,574  298,232,394  -    -    228,901,574  298,232,394 

 Particulars 

 Gross Earned Premium  Premium Ceded  Net Earned Premium 

 Current 

Year 

 Previous 

Year 

 Current 

Year 

 Previous 

Year 

 Current 

Year 

 Previous 

Year 

 Endowment   7,637,651,067  6,038,013,638  78,184,419  97,270,181  7,559,466,648  5,940,743,457 

 Anticipated Endowment  2,213,886,851  2,055,902,198  35,212,426  50,370,286  2,178,674,425  2,005,531,912 

 Endowment cum Whole Life  693,445,346  687,555,541  7,922,596  12,776,835  685,522,750  674,778,706 

 Whole Life  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Foreign Employment Term  286,231,993  249,874,702  79,345,460  89,657,318  206,886,533  160,217,384 

 Other Term  523,850,571  468,120,340  28,236,674  48,157,773  495,613,898  419,962,567 

 Special Term  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Others (to be SpeciŤed)  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Total  11,355,065,829  9,499,466,419  228,901,574  298,232,394  11,126,164,254  9,201,234,025 

 Particulars 

 Reinsurance Commission 	ProŤt	Commission	  Total Commission Income 

 Current 

Year 

 Previous 

Year 

 Current 

Year 

 Previous 

Year 

 Current 

Year 

 Previous 

Year 

 Endowment  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Anticipated Endowment  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Endowment Cum Whole 
Life 

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Whole Life  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Foreign Employment Term  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Other Term  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Special Term  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Othes( to be SpeciŤed)  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Total  -    -    -    -    -    -   
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28.  Other Direct Income 

29.  Income from Investments and Loans 

 Particulars 

 Other Direct Income  Late Fee  Total Other Direct Income 

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year 
 Previous 

Year 
 Current Year  Previous Year 

 Endowment  -    -    53,846,386  43,737,115  53,846,386  43,737,115 

 Anticipated Endowment  -    -    23,206,902  21,208,479  23,206,902  21,208,479 

 Endowment Cum Whole 
Life 

 -    -    7,875,673  8,184,450  7,875,673  8,184,450 

 Whole Life  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Foreign Employment Term  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Other Term  -    -    699,500  458,813  699,500  458,813 

 Special Term  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Othes( to be SpeciŤed)  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Total  -    -    85,628,461  73,588,857  85,628,461  73,588,857 

SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Interest Income from Financial Assets Designated at 
Amortised Costs 
    i) Fixed Deposit with "A" Class Financial Institutions  2,118,803,690  2,013,967,132 
   ii) Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Bank  61,983,288  17,978,769 

   iii) Fixed Deposit with "B" Class Financial Institutions  334,637,736  390,272,389 
   iv) Fixed Deposit with "C" Class Financial Institutions  64,031,072  96,595,433 

   v) Debentures   616,836,882  577,325,986 
   vi) Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by 
Nepal Government) 

 -    -   

   vii) Bank Deposits other than Fixed Deposit  1,798,144  6,900,414 
   viii) Agent Loans  220,462  11,099,937 
   ix) Employee Loans  20,152,694  20,635,117 
   x) Other Interest Income (to be SpeciŤed)  -    -   
 Financial Assets Measured at FVTOCI 
   i) Interest Income on Debentures  -    -   
   ii) Dividend Income  22,983,085.65  12,039,147 
   iii) Other Interest Income ( to be speciŤed)  -    -   
         -Realised Gains/ (Losses) on Derecognition  221,632,475  12,387,916 
 Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL 
   i) Interest Income on Debentures  -    -   
   ii) Dividend Income  -    -   
   iii) Other Interest Income (to be speciŤed)  -    -   
 Rental Income  -    -   
 Others (to be SpeciŤed)  -    -   
 Total  3,463,079,528  3,159,202,239 
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30.	Net	Gain/(Loss)	on	Fair	Value	Changes	

31.	Net	Realised	Gains/(Losses)	

32. Other Income 

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Changes in Fair Value of Financial Assets Measured at 
FVTPL 
   i) Equity Instruments  -    -   
   ii) Mutual Fund  -    -   
   iii) Others (to be speciŤed)  -    -   
 Changes in Fair Value on Investment Properties  -    -   
 Changes in Fair Value on Hedged Items in Fair Value 
Hedges 

 -    -   

 Changes in Fair Value on Hedging Instruments in Fair 
Value Hedges 

 -    -   

 Other (to be SpeciŤed)  -    -   
 Total  -    -   

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

Realised Gain/(Losses) on Derecognition of Financial 
Assets Measured at FVTPL 
   i) Equity Instruments  -    -   
   ii) Mutual Fund  -    -   
   iii) Debentures  -    -   
   iv) Others (to be speciŤed)  -    -   
 Realised Gain/(Losses) on Derecognition of Financial 
Assets at Amortised Costs 
   i) Debentures  -    -   
   ii) Bonds  -    -   
   iii) Others (to be speciŤed)  -    -   
 Total  -    -   

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Unwinding of discount on Financial Assets at Amortised 
Cost 

   i) Employee Loan  -    -   
   ii) Bonds  -    -   
   iii) Others (to be SpeciŤed)  -    -   
 Foreign Exchange Income  -    -   
 Interest Income from Finance Lease  -    -   
 Amortization of Deferred Income  -    -   
 ProŤt from disposal of Property and Equipment  -    -   
 Stamp Income  -    -   
 Others (to be speciŤed)  -    -   
         -Miscellaneous Income  2,549,435  317,319 
 Total  2,549,435  317,319 
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  	Gross	BeneŤts	and	Claims	Paid	  Claims Ceded   Net Claims Paid  

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Endowment   1,780,788,609  1,414,250,823  54,379,978  83,843,889  1,726,408,631  1,330,406,934 
 Anticipated Endowment  1,159,121,693  1,231,404,858  34,722,918  56,030,329  1,124,398,775  1,175,374,529 
 Endowment cum Whole Life  166,623,566  185,117,351  7,010,442  14,067,819  159,613,124  171,049,532 
 Whole Life  -    -    -    -    -    -   
 Foreign Employment Term  305,399,575  211,175,958  71,286,682  155,362,814  234,112,893  55,813,144 
 Other Term  348,047,768  223,824,826  38,520,005  64,213,749  309,527,763  159,611,077 
 Special Term  -    -    -    -    -    -   
	Others	(	to	be	SpeciŤed)	  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Total  3,759,981,211  3,265,773,814  205,920,024  373,518,599  3,554,061,187  2,892,255,216 

SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements
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 Particulars 

 Commission Expenses 

on First Year Premium 

 Commission Expenses 

on Renewal Premium 

 Commission Expenses 

on Single Premium 

 Total Com-

mission 

Expenses 

 Current 

Year 

 Previous 

Year 

 Current 

Year 

 Previous 

Year 

 Current 

Year 

 Previous 

Year 
 Current Year 

 Previous 

Year 

 Endowment  349,116,619  269,746,711 358,375,452  303,266,378  37,568,802 17,908,384  745,060,874 590,921,473 
 Anticipated Endowment  50,272,818  46,404,190  117,890,895  131,930,294  5,386,342  2,636,820  173,550,055 180,971,303 
 Endowment Cum Whole Life  13,876,130  20,277,074  39,353,547  37,652,440  -    -    53,229,677  57,929,514 
 Whole Life  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
 Foreign Employment Term  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
 Other Term  42,899,551  35,647,082  7,205,211  3,526,666  952,604  1,308,612  51,057,366  40,482,359 
 Special Term  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
 Othes( to be SpeciŤed)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
 Total  456,165,118 372,075,057 522,825,106  476,375,778  43,907,748 21,853,815 1,022,897,971 870,304,650 

 Particulars 

 Service 

Fees 

 Reinsurer's Share of 

Service Fees 

 Net Service 

Fees 

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Endowment  57,282,383  45,285,102  586,383  729,526  56,696,000  44,555,576 
 Anticipated Endowment  16,604,151  15,419,266  264,093  377,777  16,340,058  15,041,489 
 Endowment Cum Whole Life  5,200,840  5,156,667  59,419  95,826  5,141,421  5,060,840 
 Whole Life  -    -    -    -    -    -   
 Foreign Employment Term  2,146,740  1,874,060  595,091  672,430  1,551,649  1,201,630 
 Other Term  3,928,879  3,510,903  211,775  361,183  3,717,104  3,149,719 
 Special Term  -    -    -    -    -    -   
 Othes( to be SpeciŤed)  -    -    -    -    -    -   
 Total  85,162,994  71,245,998  1,716,762  2,236,743  83,446,232  69,009,255 

 Particulars 

 Reinsurance Commission 

Expenses 
 Other Direct Expenses  Total Other Direct Expenses 

 Current 

Year 

 Previous 

Year 

 Current 

Year 

 Previous 

Year 

 Current 

Year 
 Previous Year 

 Endowment  -    -    -    -    -    -   
 Anticipated Endowment  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Endowment Cum Whole Life  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Whole Life  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Foreign Employment Term  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Other Term  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Special Term  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Othes( to be SpeciŤed)  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Total  -    -    -    -    -    -   

SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 
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35. Commission Expenses

36. Service Fees 

37. Other Direct Expenses 

Note: Service fees shall be calculated on the basis of Gross Written Premiums as Per Note 25.1.
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 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year

 Salaries  243,613,903  222,888,346 
 Allowances  188,380,741  182,878,107 
 Festival Allowances  32,133,435  29,395,088 
 DeŤned BeneŤt Plans  -    -   
    i) Gratuity  19,255,314  3,811,843 
    ii) Leave  43,415,536  29,154,014 
 DeŤned Contribution Plans  -    -   

    i) Provident Fund/ Social Security Fund  28,363,743  26,389,153 
    ii) Gratuity Expenses  11,225,697  9,739,498 

 Leave Encashments  6,093,494  10,298,550 
 Termination BeneŤts  2,328,066  23,789,336 
 Training Expenses  12,842,481  7,271,201 
 Uniform Expenses  3,040,866  2,799,886 
 Staff Medical Expenses  -    -   
 Staff Insurance Expenses  10,506,785  13,991,434 
 Staff Welfare  1,326,437  1,606,392 
 Others( to be SpeciŤed)  -    -   
 - Staff Incentive  22,348,033  8,758,159 
 - Other Facilities  2,569,344  1,883,697 
 - Outsourced Staff Expenses  21,096,160  19,719,897 
 - Staff Refreshment  -    -   
 - Amortization of prepaid staff beneŤts  9,101,369  13,566,899 
 Sub-Total   657,641,402  607,941,499 

 Employees Bonus  99,937,910  117,028,000 
 Total  757,579,312  724,969,499 

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Amortization of Goodwill & Intangible Assets (Refer Note. 4)  585,170  2,435,689 
 Depreciation on Property and Equipment (Refer Note.5)  28,825,436  29,248,740 
 Depreciation on Right of Use (Refer Note.5)  49,331,563  43,216,946 
 Depreciation on Investment Properties (Refer Note. 6) 
 Total  78,742,169  74,901,374 

38.	Employee	BeneŤts	Expenses	

39. Depreciation and Amortization Expenses
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 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

Impairment Losses on Property and Equipment, Investment Properties, 
Goodwill & Intangible Assets 
   i) Property and Equipment   -    -   
   ii) Investment properties  -    -   
   iii) Goodwill & Intangible Assets  -    -   
 Impairment Losses on Financial Assets 
   i) Investments   -    -   
   ii) Loans  (5,529,828)  47,924 
   iii) Other Financial Assets  -    -   
   iv) Cash and Cash Equivalents  -    -   
   v) Others ( to be SpeciŤed) 
 Impairment Losses on Other Assets 
   i) Reinsurance Assets  -    -   
   ii) Insurance Receivables  -    -   
   iii) Lease Receivables   -    -   
   iv) Others (to be SpeciŤed)  -    -   
 Total 	(5,529,828)  47,924 

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Rent Expenses  -    -   

 Electricity and Water  6,080,369  5,713,936 
 Repair & Maintenance  -    -   
 i) Building  -    -   
 ii) Vehicle  264,780  328,772 
 iii) OfŤce Equipments  184,317  200,751 
 iv) Others(to be SpeciŤed)  4,465,843  3,828,845 
 Telephone & Communication  15,208,805  16,401,665 
 Printing & Stationary  10,801,248  11,568,170 
 OfŤce Consumable Expenses  904,444  861,004 
 Travelling Expenses  -    -   
 i) Domestic  7,098,029  6,334,210 
 ii) Foreign  523,142  95,968 
 Transportation Expenses  28,373,214  30,776,875 
 Agents Training  8,790,491  2,794,653 
 Agents Others  472,296,481  375,099,510 
 Insurance Premium  1,107,513  635,442 
 Security and Outsourcing Expenses  1,384,822  1,487,121 
 Legal and Consulting Expenses  755,519  584,376 
 Newspapers, Books and Periodicals  34,191  62,299 
 Advertisement & Promotion Expenses  32,475,324  66,557,425 
 Business Promotion  114,257  3,706,188 

40. Impairment Losses 

41.  Other Operating Expenses 
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 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Guest Entertainment  82,490  50,389 
 Gift and Donations  896,470  1,166,364 
 Board Meeting Fees and Expenses  -    -   
 i) Meeting Allowances  2,948,000  2,838,000 
 ii) Other Allowances  2,916,340  2,632,196 
 Other Committee/ Sub-committee Expenses 
 i) Meeting Allowances  2,706,000  3,058,000 
 ii) Other Allowances  28,055  19,296 
 General Meeting Expenses  410,083  644,395 
 Actuarial Service Fee  2,752,537  4,849,800 
 Other Actuarial Expenses  24,233  103,416 
 Audit Related Expenses  -    -   
 i) Statutory Audit  650,000  -   
 ii) Tax Audit  -    -   
 iii) Long Form Audit Report  -    -   
 iv) Other Fees  338,750  85,880 
 v) Internal Audit  423,750  678,000 
 vi) Others (to be SpeciŤed)  2,168,452  2,115,707 
 Bank Charges  374,639  778,927 
 Fee and Charges  1,333,062  913,286 
 Postage Charges  2,601,680  2,348,654 
 Foreign Exchange Losses  88,791  9,205 
 Others (to be SpeciŤed)  -    -   
   - Anniversary Expenses  713,844  532,338 
 - Other OfŤce Expenses  70,852,400  11,658,505 
 - Other Service Fees  10,071,062  -   
 - Miscellaneous Expense  25,228,458  17,503,444 
 - FE Pool Expenses  1,859,771  -   
 Sub-Total   720,331,657  579,023,013 

 Medical examination fee  5,808,124  6,339,107 
 Fines, interest, Late Fees and Penalties  19,845  22,600 
 Total  726,159,625  585,384,720 

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Endowment  4,519,247  4,344,231 
 Anticipated Endowment  676,668  632,395 
 Endowment Cum Whole Life  187,355  380,532 
 Whole Life  -    -   
 Foreign Employment Term  -    -   
 Other Term  424,854  981,949 
 Special Term  -    -   
 Othes (to be SpeciŤed)  -    -   
 Total  5,808,124  6,339,107 

41.1. Medical Examination Fee 
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 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Unwinding of discount on Provisions  -    -   

 Unwinding of discount on Financial Liabilities at Amortised Costs  -    -   
 Interest Expenses - Bonds  -    -   
 Interest Expenses - Debentures  -    -   
 Interest Expenses - Term Loans  2,791,311  21,484,417 
 Interest Expenses - Leases  36,345,396  30,198,012 
 Interest Expenses - Overdraft Loans  -    -   
 Others (to be SpeciŤed)  -    -   
 Total  39,136,707  51,682,429 

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Current Tax 
 i) Income Tax Expenses for the Year  247,139,472  191,292,832 
 ii) Income Tax Relating to Prior Periods  -    -   
 Deferred Tax For The Year 
 i) Originating and reversal of temporary differences  129,861,375  151,291,776 
 ii) Changes in tax rate 
 iii) Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses 
 iv) Write-down or reversal 
 v) Others ( to be SpeciŤed) 
 Income Tax Expense  377,000,848  342,584,608 

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Accounting ProŤt Before Tax  1,104,729,274  444,182,839 
 Applicable Tax Rate 25% 25%
 Tax at the applicable rate on Accounting ProŤt  276,182,319  111,045,710 
 Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose 
 i) Depreciation as per books  19,685,542  13,545,186 
 ii) Provision for Leave  -    7,313,633 
 iii) Provision for Gratuity  -    1,102,207 
 iv) Net BeneŤts and Claims Paid  2,821,601,849  1,803,482,166 
 v) Fine & Penalty  4,961  898,879 
 vi) Finance cost of lease  9,086,349  6,546,037 
 vii) Impairment Cost  (1,382,457)  464,969 
 vii) Donation  224,117  200,000 
 Less: Tax effect on exempt income and additional deduction 
 i) Depreciation as per Act  (4,592,988)  (7,877,813)
 ii) Net Earned Premium  (2,781,541,064)  (1,785,941,971)
 iii) Dividend Income  (5,745,771)  (2,408,633)
 iv) Gratuity Paid  -    (3,550,048)

42. Finance Cost 

43. Income Tax Expense 

a)	Income	Tax	Expense

(b)	Reconciliation	of	Taxable	ProŤt	&	the	Accounting	ProŤt	
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 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 v) Leave Paid  -    (7,263,293)
 vi) Share Issue Cost  (300,128)  (513,609)
 Less: Adjustments to Current Tax for Prior Periods 

 Add/ (Less): Others(to be SpeciŤed) 
 i) Less : Adjustment as per NAS Tax computation  -    (412,984)
 ii) Less : Adjustment with carried forward loss  (333,222,730)  (136,630,437)
 Income Tax Expense  -    -   
 Effective Tax Rate 0.00% 0.00%

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Accounting ProŤt Before Tax 
 Income Tax Expense 
 Average Effective Tax Rate 
 Less: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose 
 Add: Tax effect on exempt income and additional deduction 
 Add: Adjustments to Current Tax for Prior Periods 
 Add/ (Less): Others( to be SpeciŤed) 
 Applicable Tax Rate  -    -   

Particulars
Gratuity Gratuity

Leave Encash-

ment Plan

Leave Encash-

ment Plan

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 

Current service cost  5,377,532  4,444,580 34092551  27,308,428 
Past service cost  -    82,201 8450870  1,952,623 
Net interest cost (a-b) (43,770)  (714,938)  1,942,282  9,911,604 
a. Interest expense on deŤned 
beneŤt obligation (DBO)  3,738,146  3,660,879 12682400  12,450,270 

b. Interest (income) on plan assets (3,781,916)  (4,375,817) (10740118)  (2,538,666)
DeŤned	beneŤt	cost	included	in	
Statement	of	ProŤt	or	Loss  5,333,762  3,811,843  44,485,703  39,172,655 

OR

44.	Employee	Retirement	BeneŤts
a)	Post	Employment	BeneŤt	-	DeŤned	Contribution	Plans     

For the period ended Ashad end , 2082 (July 16, 2025) the company has recognised an amount of NPR 5,333762 as Gratuity expense 
amd NPR 44,485,703 as Leave expense under the deŤned contribution plans in the Statement of ProŤt or Loss.   
  

b)	Post	Employment	BeneŤt	-	DeŤned	BeneŤt	Plans	 	 	 	 	
For DeŤned BeneŤt Plans, the cost of providing beneŤts is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with Actuarial Valuations 
being carried out.     
     

c)	Total	Expenses	Recognised	in	the	Statement	of	ProŤt	or	Loss
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Particulars
Gratuity Gratuity

Leave  

Encashment 

Plan

Leave

Encashment 

Plan

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 

a. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to Ťnancial assump-
tion changes in DBO

7470416  (3,073,631) 21949634  (7,251,616)

b. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to experience on DBO 3256911  3,864,433 9524199  (2,654,087)
c. Return on plan assets (greater)/ less than 
discount rate

1921119  1,088,348 5604548  145,481 

Total	actuarial	(gain)/	loss		included	in	OCI  12,648,446  1,879,150  37,078,381 	(9,760,222)

Particulars
Gratuity Gratuity

Leave 

Encashment 

Plan

Leave 

Encashment 

Plan

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 

Cost recognised in Statement of ProŤt or Loss  5,333,762  3,811,843  44,485,703  39,172,655 
Remeasurements effects recognised in OCI  12,648,446  1,879,150  37,078,381  (9,760,222)
Total cost recognised in Comprehensive Income  17,982,208  5,690,993  81,564,084  29,412,433 

Particulars
Gratuity Gratuity

Leave  

Encashment Plan

Leave  

Encashment Plan

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 

DeŤned beneŤt obligation as at the beginning 
of the year

 43,622,560  38,491,288  146,503,856  132,354,524 

Service cost  5,377,532  4,444,580  42,543,421  29,261,051 
Interest cost  3,738,146  3,660,879  12,682,400  12,450,270 
BeneŤt payments from plan assets (4175211)  (3,764,989) (11,176,602)  (15,703,662)
Actuarial (gain)/ loss - Ťnancial assumptions  7,470,416  (3,073,631) 23022962  (11,858,327)
Actuarial (gain)/ Loss - experience  3,256,911  3,864,433  -    -   
DeŤned	BeneŤt	Obligation	as	at	Year	End  59,290,354  43,622,560  213,576,037  146,503,856 

Particulars
Gratuity Gratuity

Leave 

Encashment Plan

Leave 

Encashment Plan

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 

Fair value of plan assets at end of prior year  44,206,794  41,842,548  124,872,067  19,529,135 
Interest Income  3,781,916  4,375,817  10,740,118  2,538,666 
Expected return on plan assets
Employer contributions  -    2,908,017  -    114,664,791 
Participant contributions
BeneŤt payments from plan assets  (4,371,002)  (3,831,240)  (11,074,849)  (11,715,044)
Transfer in/ transfer out
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets  (1,921,119)  (1,088,348)  (5,604,548)  (145,481)
Fair value of Plan Assets as at Year End  41,696,589  44,206,794  118,932,788  124,872,067 

d)	Remeasurement	effects	recognised	in	Statement	of	Other	Comprehensive	Income	(OCI)

e)	Total	cost	recognised	in	Comprehensive	Income

f)	Change	in	DeŤned	BeneŤt	Obligation

g)	Change	in	Fair	Value	Of	Plan	Assets
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Particulars
Gratuity Gratuity

Leave Encash-

ment Plan

Leave Encash-

ment Plan

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 

DeŤned BeneŤt Obligation  59,290,354  43,622,560  213,576,037  146,503,856 
Fair Value of Plan Assets  (41,696,589)  (44,206,794)  (118,932,788)  (124,872,067)
Liability/	(Asset)	Recognised	in	State-

ment of Financial Position
 17,593,765 	(584,234)  94,643,249  21,631,789 

Particulars
Gratuity Gratuity

Leave 

Encashment Plan

Leave 

Encashment Plan

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 

Expected company contributions for the next 
year 

 10,069,212  4,608,259  61,014,527  27,311,946 

Particulars
Gratuity Gratuity

Leave 

Encashment Plan

Leave 

Encashment Plan

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 

Net deŤned beneŤt liability/(asset) at prior 
year end

 (584,234)  (3,351,260)  21,631,789  113,012,515 

DeŤned beneŤt cost included in State-
ment of ProŤt or Loss  5,333,762  3,729,642  44,485,703  39,172,655 

Total remeasurements included in OCI  12,648,446  1,879,150  37,078,381  (9,760,222)

Acquisition/ divestment  195,791  66,251  (30,836,569)  (17,843,412)

Employer contributions  -    (2,908,017)  11,074,849  (102,949,747)

Net	deŤned	beneŤt	liability/(asset)  17,593,765 	(584,234)  83,434,153  21,631,789 

Particulars
Gratuity Gratuity

Leave Encash-

ment Plan

Leave Encash-

ment Plan

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 

Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss, 
beginning of period  (61,557,036)  (63,436,186)  40,248,095  50,008,317 

Total remeasurements included in 
OCI  12,648,446  1,879,150  37,078,381  (9,760,222)

Cumulative	OCI	-	(Income)/Loss 	(48,908,590) 	(61,557,036)  77,326,476  40,248,095 

Particulars
Gratuity Gratuity

Leave  

Encashment Plan

Leave  

Encashment Plan

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 

Current Liability  5,443,605  4,413,911  29,542,037  26,160,100 

Non - Current Liability  53,846,749  39,208,649  184,034,000  120,343,756 

Total  59,290,354  43,622,560  213,576,037  146,503,856 

h)	Net	DeŤned	BeneŤt	Asset/(Liability)

i)	Expected	Company	Contributions	for	the	Next	Year	

j)	Reconciliation	of	amounts	in	Statement	of	Financial	Position

k)	Reconciliation	of	Statement	of	Other	Comprehensive	Income

l)	Current/Non	Current-Liabilities
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Particulars
Gratuity Gratuity

Leave 

Encashment Plan

Leave 

Encashment Plan

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 

Within 1 year  5,630,909  4,608,259  30,558,520  27,311,946 
Between 1-2 years  5,481,381  4,652,548  28,403,985  24,403,476 
Between 2-5 years  17,870,532  14,740,912  75,031,483  57,930,953 
From 6 to 10  79,125,619  69,442,783  213,761,534  145,774,357 
Total  108,108,441  93,444,502  347,755,522  255,420,732 

Particulars

Gratuity Gratuity

Leave 

Encashment 

Plan

Leave 

Encashment 

Plan

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 

	(%	Invested)	 	(%	Invested)	 	(%	Invested)	 	(%	Invested)	
Government Securities (Central and State)  -    -   
Corporate Bonds (including Public Sector 
bonds)  -    -   

Mutual Funds  -    -   
Deposits (CIT) 100% 100% 100% 100%
Cash and bank balances  -    -   
Others (to be SpeciŤed)  -    -   
Total 100% 100% 100% 100%

Particulars
Gratuity Gratuity

Leave  

Encashment 

Plan

Leave  

Encashment 

Plan

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 

Effect in DeŤned BeneŤt Obligation Due to 
1% Increase in Discount Rate  55,334,670  40,904,458  202,015,173  139,935,536 

Effect in DeŤned BeneŤt Obligation Due to 
1% Decrease in Discount Rate  63,761,682  46,677,755  226,498,484  153,765,457 

Effect in DeŤned BeneŤt Obligation Due to 
1% Increase in Salary Escalation Rate  63,686,448  46,686,524  226,182,019  153,758,749 

Effect in DeŤned BeneŤt Obligation Due to 
1% Decrease in Salary Escalation Rate  55,325,370  40,849,678  202,068,470  139,823,246 

Effect in DeŤned BeneŤt Obligation Due to 
1% Increase in Attrition Rate  58,648,482  43,781,839  213,106,797  146,999,661 

Effect in DeŤned BeneŤt Obligation Due to 
1% Decrease in Attrition Rate  59,983,219  41,241,699  214,100,921  145,958,450 

m)		Expected	Future	BeneŤt	Payments

n)		Plan	assets

o)	Sensitivity	Analysis
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p)	Assumptions

SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 
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Particulars Gratuity Leave

Discount Rate 7.00% 7.00%
Escalation Rate (Rate of Increase in Compensation Levels) 8.00% 8.00%

Attrition Rate (Employee Turnover) 11.00% 11.00%

Mortality Rate During Employment NALM 2009 NALM 2009

45.  Fair Value Measurements       

(i)	Financial	Instruments	by	Category	&	Hierarchy
"This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the Fair Values of the Financial Instruments that are (a) recognised 
and measured at fair value and (b) measured at Amortised Cost and for which Fair Values are disclosed in the Financial Statements. 
 

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining Fair Value, the Company has classiŤed its Ťnancial instruments 
into Three Levels prescribed as per applicable NFRS."

Particulars Level

 Current Year  Previous Year 

FVTPL FVOCI
Amortised 

Cost
FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Cost

Investments

i) Investment in Equity Instruments  -   

Investment in Equity (Quoted) 1  -    3,832,354,066  -    -    1,957,587,221  -   

Investment in Equity (Unquoted) 3  -    9,560,000  -    -    9,560,000  -   

ii) Investment in Mutual Funds 1  -    266,583,607  -    -    128,569,592  -   

iii) Investment in Preference Shares 
of Bank and Financial Institutions

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

iv) Investment in Debentures 3  -    -    6,340,403,881  -    -    6,299,669,925 

v) Investment in Bonds (Nepal 
Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by 
Nepal Government)

3  -    -    -    -    -    -   

vi) Fixed Deposits 3  -    -    0,901,000,000  -    -    26,464,600,000 

vii) Others (to be speciŤed)  -   

Loans 3  -    -    4,828,638,013  -    -    4,142,450,609 

Other Financial Assets 3  -    -    1,064,970,255  -    -    242,050,215 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 3  -    -    819,623,974  -    -    717,408,474 

 Total Financial Assets  -    4,108,497,673  43,954,636,123  -    2,095,716,813  37,866,179,224 

Borrowings  -    350,000,000  -   

Other Financial Liabilities 3  -    738,400,210  633,446,685 

 Total Financial Liabilities  -    -    1,088,400,210  -    -    633,446,685 

Fig. in NPR
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Level 1 : Level 1 Hierarchy includes Financial Instruments measured using Quoted Prices.
Level 2 : Fair Value of Financial Instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation  
  techniques which maximises the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-speciŤc  
  estimates. If all signiŤcant inputs required to determine Fair Value of an instrument are observable, the instrument  
  is included in Level 2.
Level 3 : If one or more of the signiŤcant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in  
  Level 3. There is no transfer of Financial Instruments between different levels as mentioned above during the year.
 

(ii)	Valuation	Technique	Used	to	Determine	Fair	Value
a) Use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments
b) Fair Value of remaining Ťnancial instruments is determined using discounted cash ťow analysis

(iii)	Valuation	Process
The Ťnance and accounts department of the Company performs the valuation of Ťnancial assets and liabilities required for 
Ťnancial reporting purposes. Discussionon valuation processes and results are held at least once in a year.
The main level 3 inputs are derived and evaluated as follows:

a) Discount rate is arrived at considering the internal and external factors.
b) Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current, and the impact of the discounting is material

(iv)	Fair	Value	of	Financial	Assets	and	Liabilities	Measured	at	Amortised	Cost

Particulars

 Current Year  Previous Year 

"Carrying  

Amount"

"Fair  

Value"

"Carrying  

Amount"

"Fair  

Value"

Investments

i) Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions

ii) Investment in Debentures  6,340,403,881  6,340,403,881  6,299,669,925  6,299,669,925 

iii) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by 
Nepal Government)

 -    -    -    -   

iv) Fixed Deposit  30,901,000,000  30,901,000,000  26,464,600,000 26,464,600,000 

v) Others (to be SpeciŤed)  -    -    -    -   

Loans  -    -   

i) Loan to Associates  -    -    -    -   

ii) Loan to Employees  152,880,855  152,880,855  123,431,707  123,431,707 

iii) Loan to Agent  58,726,816  58,726,816  79,506,499  79,506,499 

iv) Loan to Policyholders  4,678,959,275  4,678,959,275  4,012,500,993  4,012,500,993 

v) Others (to be SpeciŤed)  -    -    -    -   

Other Financial Assets  1,064,970,255  1,064,970,255  242,050,215  242,050,215 

Total Financial Assets at Amortised Cost  43,196,941,082  43,196,941,082  37,221,759,339  37,221,759,339 

Borrowings

i) Bonds  -    -   

ii) Debentures  -    -   

iii) Term Loans - Bank and Financial Institution  350,000,000  350,000,000  -    -   

iv) Bank Overdrafts  -    -   

v) Others (to be SpeciŤed)  -    -   

Other Financial Liabilities  738,400,210  738,400,210  633,446,685  633,446,685 

 Total Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost  1,088,400,210  1,088,400,210  633,446,685  633,446,685 

The fair values of the above Ťnancial instruments measured at amortised cost are calculated based on cash ťows discounted using current 
discount rate.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values due to their short-term nature.
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46. Insurance Risk
Insurance risk includes the risk of incurring higher claims costs than expected owing to the random nature of claims, frequency and severity 
and the risk of change in the legal or economic conditions of insurance or reinsurance cover. This may result in the insurer having either 
received too little premium for the risks it has agreed to underwrite and hence has not enough funds to invest and pay claims, or that claims 
are in excess of those expected.

The Company seeks to minimise insurance risk through a formalised reinsurance arrangement with an appropriate mix and spread of busi-
ness between classes of business based on its overall strategy. This is complemented by observing formalised risk management policies.

"The Company considers insurance risk to be a combination of the following components of risks: 
a) Product development 
b) Pricing 

c) Underwriting and 

d) Claims Handling 

e) Reinsurance 

f) Reserving"

a)	Product	development: 
The Company principally issues the following types of Life Insurance contracts:

- Endowment
- Anticipated Endowment
- Endowment Cum Whole Life
- Whole Life
- Foreign Employment Term
- Other Term
- Special Term
- Others (to be SpeciŤed)"

 

"The above risk exposure is mitigated by the diversiŤcation across a large portfolio of insurance contracts and geographical areas. The 
variability of risks is improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategies, which are designed to ensure that risks are 
diversiŤed in terms of type of risk and level of insured beneŤts.
 

Furthermore, strict claim review policies to assess all new and ongoing claims, regular detailed review of claims handling procedures and 
frequent investigation of possible fraudulent claims are put in place to reduce the risk exposure of the Company. The Company further en-
forces a policy of actively managing and promptly pursuing claims, in order to reduce its exposure to unpredictable future developments that 
can negatively impact the business."
 

b)	Pricing:
The pricing of an insurance product involves the estimation of claims, operational and Ťnancing costs and the income arising from investing 
the premium received. The pricing process typically comprises collecting data on the underlying risks to be covered, determining the pricing 
assumptions and the base rate, setting the Ťnal premium rate, and monitoring the review of the appropriateness of pricing.

The Company collects adequate data to validate the reasonableness of the underlying assumptions used for pricing. The base rate rep-
resents the amount required to meet the value of anticipated beneŤts, expenses, and margins for risks and proŤt. Data primarily relates to 
the company's own historical experience and that of the industry where relevant. These may be supplemented by other internal and external 
data, and could include trends observed in claims costs and expenses.

Pricing is done by modelling all identiŤed risks, using appropriate methodologies depending on the complexity of the risks and available 
data. Adequate buffers are kept in the premiums to cushion against the risk that actual experience may turn out to be worse than expected.
 

c)	Underwriting:
The Company’s underwriting process is governed by the by the internal underwriting procedures. Some of the actions undertaken to mitigate 
underwriting risks are detailed below:

i)   Investments are made on the training and development of underwriting and claims management staff, including those attached to 
the distribution network.

ii)  Application of Four-Eye principle on underwriting process.
iii)  Pre-underwriting inspections are made on new business over a predetermined threshold to evaluate risk prior to acceptance.
iv)   Post-underwriting reviews are conducted to ensure that set guidelines have been observed.
v) Adequate reinsurance arrangements are in place and reviews are undertaken to ensure the adequacy of these covers."

SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements
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d)	Claims	handling: 
The Company considers insurance claim risk to be a combination of the following components of risks:

i)  Mortality Risk – risk of loss arising due to policyholder death experience being different than expected
ii)  Longevity Risk – risk of loss arising due to the annuitant living longer than expected
iii)  Investment Return Risk – risk of loss arising from actual returns being different than expected
iv)  Expense Risk – risk of loss arising from expense experience being different than expected
v)  Policyholder Decision Risk – risk of loss arising due to policyholder experiences (lapses and surrenders) being different than 

expected"
 

Assumptions
The assumptions that have the greatest effect on the statement of Ťnancial position and statement of proŤt or loss of the Company are 
listed below:

Particulars

Current Year Previous Year

Mortality 

Rates

Invest-

ment 

Return

Lapse and  

Surrender Rate

Discount 

Rate

Mortality 

Rates

Investment 

Return

Lapse and 

Surrender 

Rate

Discount 

Rate

Life Insurance

80% of 
NALM 2009 
(With MOBE

8.24%

24% to 6% 
depending upon 

policy years

RFR Rate 
Published 

by NIA

92% of 
NALM 2009 
(With MOBE

9.08% 13.75%
RFR Rate 
Published 

by NIA

Sensitivities
"The life insurance claim liabilities are sensitive to the key assumptions as mentioned in the table below.
The following analysis is performed for reasonably possible movements in key assumptions with all other assumptions held constant, 
showing the impact on gross and net liabilities, proŤt before tax and proŤt after tax. The correlation of assumptions will have a signiŤcant 
effect in determining the ultimate claims liabilities, but to demonstrate the impact due to changes in assumptions, assumptions had to be 
changed on an individual basis."          

Life Stressed Scenarios based on RBC Directive 2082

Current Year 2081/82

Particulars Changes in Best Estimate 

Assumptions
Increase / (Decrease) on 

Gross Liabilities
Increase / (Decrease) on Net 

Liabilities
Mortality Rate +20% 250,514,078.58 
Longevity -28% 8.58 
Morbidity +22.5% -0.42
Lapse ±50% 756,793,731.58 
Expense +11% 449,705,045.58 
Cat risk 0.15% 1,110,554,043.58 
Discount Rate -1.3% 3,146,681,970.58 
Discount Rate +1.3% (2,803,550,212.42)

Life Stressed Scenarios based on RBC Directive 2082

Previous Year 2080/81

Particulars Changes in Best Estimate 

Assumptions
Increase / (Decrease) on 

Gross Liabilities
Increase / (Decrease) on Net 

Liabilities
Mortality Rate 40% 405,897,744.00
Longevity 45% -1,841,542.00
Morbidity 25% 55,201,410.00
Lapse ±50% 481,981,095.00
Expense 20% 196,848,395.00
Cat risk 0.15% 1,501,253,863.00
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e)	Reinsurance
The Company purchases reinsurance as part of its risks mitigation programme. Premium ceded to the reinsurers is in accordance with the terms 
of the programmes already agreed based on the risks written by the insurance companies. Recoveries from reinsurers on claims are based 
on the cession made in respect of each risk and is estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provisions made for the loss. 
Although we mitigate our exposures through prudent reinsurance arrangements, the obligation to meet claims emanating from policy holders 
rests with the Company. Default of reinsurers does not negate this obligation and in that respect the Company carries a credit risk up to the 
extent ceded to each reinsurer.          

SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements

Particulars

Current Year Previous Year

Gross 

Insurance 

Liabilities

Reinsurance 

Assets
Net Liabilities

Gross 

Insurance 

Liabilities

Reinsurance 

Assets
Net Liabilities

Endowment  30,411,600,377  5,356,968  30,406,243,409  24,199,425,648  5,462,939  24,193,962,709 

Anticipated Endowment  6,426,188,777  54,176,220  6,372,012,557  5,279,025,285  9,107,408  5,269,917,877 

Endowment Cum Whole Life  4,378,166,730  640,000  4,377,526,730  3,655,384,407  460,000  3,654,924,407 

Whole Life  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Foreign Employment Term  322,502,778  2,680,000  319,822,778  417,698,937  2,430,000  415,268,937 

Other Term  66,640,873  1,244,640  65,396,233  160,530,562  3,964,000  156,566,562 

Special Term  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Others (to be SpeciŤed)  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  41,605,099,535  64,097,828  41,541,001,707  33,712,064,839  21,424,347  33,690,640,492 

47. Financial Risk
The Company's activities expose it to Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk & Market Risk.
i)	Credit	Risk
Credit risk is the risk of Ťnancial loss as a result of the default or failure of third parties to meet their payment obligations to the Compa-
ny.  Thus, for an insurance contract, credit risk includes the risk that an insurer incurs a Ťnancial loss because a reinsurer defaults on its 
obligations under the reinsurance contract.
The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Company’s exposure to credit risk:

a)  Company has credit risk policy which sets out the assessment and determination of what constitutes credit risk for the Company. 
Compliance with the policy is monitored and exposures and breaches are reported to the Company’s risk committee. The policy 
is regularly reviewed for pertinence and for changes in the risk environment.

b)  Reinsurance is placed with counterparties that have a good credit rating and concentration of risk is avoided by entering into 
agreement with more than one party. At each reporting date, management performs an assessment of creditworthiness of rein-
surers and updates the reinsurance purchase strategy, ascertaining suitable allowance for impairment.

c)  The company deals with only creditworthy counterparties and obtains sufŤcient collateral where appropriate, as a means of 
mitigating the risk of Ťnancial loss from defaults.

Expected Credit Losses for Financial Assets at Amortised Costs as at Ashad end , 2082

Particulars Asset Group

Gross  

Carrying 

Amount

Expected 

probability of 

Default

Expected 

Credit 

Losses

Carrying 

Amount After 

Provision

Credit Risk has not signiŤcantly increased 
since initial recognition

Loss allowance measured at 12 
months expected credit losses

 Loan to 

Employees 
 152,880,855  -    -    152,880,855 

 Loan to Agent  58,726,816 (52.73%)  (30,964,466)  89,691,282 

 Loan to  

Policyholders  4,678,959,275  -    -    4,678,959,275 

Credit Risk has signiŤcantly increased and 
not credit impaired Loss allowance measured at 

life-time expected credit losses

 -    -    -    -    -   

Credit Risk has signiŤcantly increased and 
credit impaired

 -    -    -    -    -   

f)	Reserving
Insurance Contract Liabilities are created to cover this risk based on the actuarial valuation report.    
 

The table below sets out the concentration of risk associated with above mentioned products. Risk as at year end has been measured as 
insurance contract liabilities and disclosed as below:
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Particulars Asset Group

Gross  

Carrying 

Amount

Expected 

probability of 

Default

Expected 

Credit 

Losses

Carrying 

Amount After 

Provision

Credit Risk has not 
signiŤcantly increased 
since initial recognition

Loss allowance mea-
sured at 12 months 

expected credit losses

 Loan to Em-
ployees 

 123,431,707  -    -    123,431,707 

 Loan to Agent  79,506,499 -45.90%  

(36,494,295)  116,000,793 

 Loan to 

Policyholders  4,012,500,993  -    -    4,012,500,993 

Credit Risk has signiŤ-
cantly increased and not 

credit impaired Loss allowance 
measured at life-time 
expected credit losses

 -    -    -    -    -   

Credit Risk has signiŤ-
cantly increased and 

credit impaired

 -    -    -    -    -   

Expected Credit Losses for Financial Assets at Amortised Costs as at Ashadh end, 2081

Expected Credit Losses for Financial Assets at Amortised Costs as at Ashadh end, 2082

Particulars

Measured at 12 

months expected 

credit losses

Measured at life-time expected credit losses

Credit	Risk	has	signiŤcant-
ly increased and not credit 

impaired

Credit	Risk	has	signiŤcant-
ly increased and credit 

impaired

Loss Allowance on Ashadh 31, 2081 	(36,494,295)  -    -   

Changes in loss allowances  5,529,828  -    -   

Write-offs  -    -    -   
Recoveries  -    -    -   

Loss Allowance on Ashad end, 2082 	(30,964,466)  -    -   

ii)	Liquidity	Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difŤculty in meeting obligations associated with Ťnancial liabilities that are settled by de-
livering cash or another Ťnancial asset. In respect of catastrophic events there  is also a liquidity risk associated with the timing differences 
between gross cash out–ťows and expected reinsurance recoveries.
 

Maturity of Financial Liabilities:
The table below summarises the Company's Financial Liabilities into Relevant Maturity Groupings based on their Contractual Maturities for 
all Financial Liabilities.

Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

Upto 

1 Year

1 Year to 

5 Year

 More than 

5 Year 

Upto 

1 Year

1 Year to 

5 Year

 More than 

5 Year 

Borrowings  350,000,000   -    -    -    -    -   

Other Financial Liabilities  738,400,210  -    -    633,446,685  -    -   

Total Financial Liabilities  1,088,400,210  -    -    633,446,685  -    -   

Fig. in NPR



18th ANNUAL REPORT 

FY 2081/82

169

SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements

iii)	Market	Risk	 	 	 	 	 	 	
a1)	Foreign	Currency	Risk	Exposure	      

"Foreign exchange risk is the potential for the Company to experience volatility in the value of its assets, liabilities and solvency and to suffer actual 
Ťnancial losses as a result of changes in value between the currencies of its assets and liabilities and its reporting currency. The Company does not 
maintain foreign currency denominated assets in its investment portfolios and as such is not exposed to foreign exchange risk related to investments.        
 

The Company has no signiŤcant concentration of currency risk. The amount with reinsurer is settled in Nepali Rupee. "   
    

Alternative	note	for	Foreign	Currency	Risk	Exposure	(where	there	is	Foreign	Currency	Risk)		 	
Operation of the Company has exposed it to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions, with respect to the USD and 
NPR. The risk is measured through a forecast of highly probable foreign currency cash ťows. The objective of the hedges is to minimise the 
volatility of the NPR cash ťows of highly probable forecast transactions.      
 

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in NPR, are as follows:

Particulars
 Current Year  Previous Year 

 USD  NPR  USD  NPR 

Investments

Loans

Insurance Receivables

Other Financial Assets

Less: Derivative Assets

i) Foreign exchange forward contracts - Sell Foreign Currency

ii) Foreign exchange option contracts - Sell Foreign Currency

Net	Exposure	to	Foreign	Currency	Risk/	(Assets)  -    -    -    -   

Insurance Payables

Other Financial Liabilities

i) Acturial Fee 21,000 25,000  -    -   

Less: Derivative Liabilities

i) Foreign exchange forward contracts - Buy Foreign Currency

ii) Foreign exchange option contracts - Buy Foreign Currency

Net	Exposure	to	Foreign	Currency	Risk/	(Liabilities) 21,000 25,000  -    -   

a2)	Foreign	Currency	Risk	-	Sensitivity	 	 	 	 	 	 	
The sensitivity of proŤt or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated Ťnancial instruments 
and the impact on the other components of equity arising from foreign forward exchange contracts, foreign exchange option contracts 
designated as cash ťow hedges

Particulars
	Impact	on	proŤt	after	tax	  Impact on other component of equity 

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 

USD sensitivity

NPR/ USD - Increases by 10% * 2,100 2,500  -    -   

NPR/ USD - Decreases by 10% * (2,100) (2,500)  -    -   

NPR sensitivity

NPR/ USD - Increases by 10% *  -    -    -    -   

NPR/ USD - Decreases by 10% *  -    -    -    -   

Fig. in NPR

Fig. in NPR
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b1)	Interest	Rate	Risk	 	 	 	 	 	 	
"Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash ťows of a Ťnancial instrument will ťuctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates.  

 

The major interest rate risk that the Company is exposed to is the discount rate for determining insurance liabilities."   
    

b2)	Interest	Rate	Sensitivity		 	 	 	 	 	
ProŤt or Loss is sensitive to changes in Interest Rate for Borrowings. A change in Market Interest Level by 1% which is reasonably possible 
based on Management's Assessment would have the following effect on the ProŤt After Tax.

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

Interest Rate - Increase By 1%*  350,028,369  302,204,609 

Interest Rate - Decrease By 1%*  (350,028,369)  (302,204,609)

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

Nepse Index - Increase By 1%*  40,989,377  20,861,568 
Nepse Index - Decrease By 1%*  (40,989,377)  (20,861,568)

c1)	Equity	Price	Risk	 	 	 	 	 	 	
"Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash ťows of a Ťnancial instrument will ťuctuate because of changes in equity pric-
es (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors speciŤc to the individual 
Ťnancial instrument or its issuer, or by factors affecting all similar Ťnancial instruments traded in the market. 
 

The Company has invested in equity securities and the exposure is equity securities price risk from investments held by the Company 
and classiŤed in the statement of Ťnancial position as fair value through OCI."      
 

c2)	Sensitivity	 	 	 	 	 	 	
The table below summarises the impact of increase/decrease of the index in the Company’s equity and impact on OCI for the period. The 
analysis is based on the assumption that the equity index had increased/ decreased by 1% with all other variables held constant, and that 
all the Company's equity instruments moved in line with the index.

* Holding all other Variable Constant  

  

* Other components of equity would increase/decrease as a result of gains/ (losses) on equity securities classified as fair value 
through other comprehensive income.

48. Operational Risk       
Operational Risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss, or damaged reputation resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people 
and systems or external events. When controls fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory 
implications or can lead to Ťnancial loss. The Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but by initiating a rigorous control 
framework and by monitoring and responding to potential risks, the Company is able to manage the risks. Controls include effective segrega-
tion of duties, access controls, authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes, including the use of 
internal audit. Business risks such as changes in environment, technology and the industry are monitored through the Company’s strategic 
planning and budgeting process.       

        

49. Climate Risk       
The company looks after the climate risk for assets it has invested on. The Company looks after the sustainability and the possible impact 
on climates before investing on any project.        

50. Capital Management         

The Company's objectives when managing Capital are to:       
a)  Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and beneŤts 

for other stakeholders, and       
b)  Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.      

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to 
shareholders or issue new shares.       
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Regulatory minimum paid up capital       

Life insurance companies were required by the Directive of Insurance Board to attain a stipulated minimum paid up capital of NPR 5 billion 
by mid-July 2023. As on the reporting date, the company's paid up capital is NPR 5.01 billion.

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

(i)	Dividends	recognised

 -   

 -    -   

(ii)	Dividends	not	recognised	at	the	end	of	the	reporting	period

The Board of  Directors have proposed Cash  dividend of 13.00%  on share capital of Rs. 
5,011,947,797.46. This proposed dividend is subject to the approval of shareholder in the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting

 651,553,214  1,002,389,559 

 651,553,214  1,002,389,559 

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

ProŤt For the Year used for Calculating Basic Earning per Share  727,728,427  851,785,189 
Less: Dividend on Preference Share  -    -   
Add: Interest saving on Convertible Bonds  -    -   
ProŤt For the Year used for Calculating Diluted Earning per Share  727,728,427  851,785,189 
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding During the Year For Basic Earning per Share  50,119,478  50,119,478 
Adjustments for calculation of Diluted Earning per Share:
i) Dilutive Shares  -    -   
ii) Options  -    -   
iii) Convertible Bonds  -    -   
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding During the Year for Diluted Earning Per Share  50,119,478  50,119,478 
Nominal Value of Equity Shares  100  100 

Basic Earnings Per Share  14.52  17.00 

Diluted Earnings Per Share  14.52  17.00 

Proposed Bonus Share  -    -   

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding During the Year for Restated Earning Per 
Share

 50,119,478  50,119,478 

Restated Basic Earning Per Share  14.52  17.00 

Restated Diluted Earning Per Share  14.52  17.00 

Dividend

51. Earnings Per Share

52. Operating Segment          

Segment information is presented in respect of the Company's business segments. Management of the Company has identiŤed portfolio 
as business segment and the Company's internal reporting structure is also based on portfolio. Performance is measured based on seg-
ment proŤt as management believes that it is most relevant in evaluating the results of segment relative to other entities that operate within 
these industries.

Segment asset is disclosed below based on total of all asset for each business segment.

"The Company operates predominantly in Nepal and accordingly, the Management of the Company is of the view that the Ťnancial infor-
mation by geographical segments of the Company’s operation is not necessary to be presented."     
     

 
Business Segments of the Company’s are:

Others Number of Agents
Declared Bonus Rate   Number of Employees
Interim Bonus Rate   Employee expenses/ Number of Employees
Number of OfŤces   173

SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPR
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c)	Reconciliation	of	Segmental	ProŤt	with	Statement	of	ProŤt	or	Loss

d)	Reconciliation	of	Assets

e)	Reconciliation	of	Liabilities

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

Segmental ProŤt  1,104,729,274  1,194,369,797 

Less: Employee BeneŤts expenses
Less: Depreciation and Amortization
Less: Other operating expenses
Less: Impairment losses
Less: Finance Cost
Add: Unallocable Other Income
ProŤt	Before	Tax  1,104,729,274  1,194,369,797 

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

Segment Assets  287,122,991  181,986,388 

Goodwill & Intangible Assets  66,064,099  65,406,267 
Property and Equipment  314,503,194  309,229,852 

Investment Properties  -    -   
Deferred Tax Assets  208,594,780  394,597,123 

Investment in Subsidiaries  -    -   
Investment in Associates  -    -   
Investments  41,662,401,555  34,959,986,739 
Loans  4,859,602,479  4,178,944,904 
Current Tax Assets  1,025,130,470  1,027,696,996 
Other Assets  118,724,379  145,263,587 
Other Financial Assets  1,064,970,255  242,050,215 
Cash and Cash Equivalents  819,623,974  717,408,474 
Total Assets  50,426,738,175  42,222,570,545 

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

Segment Liabilities  41,630,568,614  33,797,115,729 

Provisions  112,237,014  14,149,332 
Deferred Tax Liabilities  -    -   
Current Tax Liabilities  -    -   
Borrowings  350,000,000  -   
Other Liabilities  921,428,417  769,343,859 
Other Financial Liabilities  738,400,210  633,446,685 
Total Liabilities  43,752,634,255  35,214,055,605 

SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPRFig. in NPR
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Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

Short-term employee beneŤts  22,164,172  20,128,911 
Post-employment beneŤts  956,001  866,093 
Other long-term beneŤts  -    -   

Termination beneŤts  -    -   
Total  23,120,173  20,995,004 

Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

Annual salary and allowances  11,696,176  11,028,925 
Performance based allowances
i) Employee Bonus  2,583,419  1,024,836 
ii) BeneŤts as per prevailing provisions  412,500  393,750 
iii) Incentives  -    -   
Insurance related beneŤts
i) Life Insurance 8,516  -   
ii) Accident Insurance 9,455  9,455 
iii) Health Insurance (including family members)  4,700  5,000 
Total  14,714,766  12,461,966 

53. Related Party Disclosure       

(a)	Identify	Related	Parties	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Holding Company: N/A       
Subsidiaries: N/A       
Associates: N/A       
Fellow Subsidiaries: N/A       

        

Key Management Personnel: Designation      

1. Keshab Prasad Bhattarai  Chairman      
2. Hemanta Nahata  Director      

3. Priya Tayal  Director      
4. Akash Golcha  Director      
5. Chudamani Devkota  Independent Director      
6. Ashish Kumar Agrawal  Director      
7. Namita Sharma  Director      
8. Prakash Bikram Khatri  Chief Executive OfŤcer

SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements

(b)		Key	Management	Personnel	Compensation:	 	 	 	 	 	

Payment	to	Chief	Executive	OfŤcer	(CEO)

Fig. in NPR
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Particulars
"Holding  

Company"
Subsidiaries Associates

"Fellow  

Subsidiaries"

Key Manage-

rial Person-

nel

Total

Premium Earned

 Current Year NA NA NA NA  -    -   
 Previous Year NA NA NA NA  -    -   
Commission Income

 Current Year NA NA NA NA  -    -   
 Previous Year NA NA NA NA  -    -   
Rental Income

 Current Year NA NA NA NA  -    -   
 Previous Year NA NA NA NA  -    -   
Interest Income

 Current Year NA NA NA NA  -    -   
 Previous Year NA NA NA NA  -    -   
Sale of Property & 

Equipment

 Current Year NA NA NA NA  -    -   
 Previous Year NA NA NA NA  -    -   
Purchase of Property & 

Equipment

 Current Year NA NA NA NA  -    -   
 Previous Year NA NA NA NA  -    -   
Premium Paid

 Current Year NA NA NA NA  -    -   
 Previous Year NA NA NA NA  -    -   

(c)		Related	Party	Transactions:

SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements

Particulars
"Holding  

Company"
Subsidiaries Associates

"Fellow  

Subsidiar-

ies"

Key Manage-

rial Person-

nel

Total

Commission Expenses

 Current Year NA NA NA NA  -    -   
 Previous Year NA NA NA NA  -    -   
Dividend

 Current Year NA NA NA NA  -    -   
 Previous Year NA NA NA NA  -    -   

 Meeting Fees 

 Current Year NA NA NA NA  5,654,000  5,654,000 
 Previous Year NA NA NA NA  5,896,000  5,896,000 
 Allowances to Directors 

 Current Year NA NA NA NA  2,944,395  2,944,395 
 Previous Year NA NA NA NA  2,651,491  2,651,491 
Others	(to	be	speciŤed)
 Current Year  NA  NA NA NA  -    -   
 Previous Year  NA  NA NA NA  -    -   

Fig. in NPR
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Particulars
"Holding  

Company"

Subsidiar-

ies
Associates

"Fellow  

Subsidiar-

ies"

Key 

Managerial 

Personnel

Total

Receivables including Reinsurance 

Receivables

 Current Year NA NA NA NA  -    -   
 Previous Year NA NA NA NA  -    -   
Other	Receivables	(to	be	SpeciŤed)
 Current Year NA NA NA NA  -    -   
 Previous Year NA NA NA NA  -    -   
Payables including Reinsurance 

Payables

 Current Year NA NA NA NA  -    -   
 Previous Year NA NA NA NA  -    -   
Other	Payables	(to	be	SpeciŤed)
 Current Year NA NA NA NA  -    -   
 Previous Year  NA  NA  NA NA  -    -   

(d)		Related	Party	Balances:

SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements

54. Leases      

(a)	Leases	as	Lessee	 	 	 	 	 	
(i)	Operating	Leases:	 	 	 	 	 	
The Company has various operating leases ranging from ....... years to ............. years for ............ and .............. . Non-cancellable periods 
range   from ......... months to ............ months. The leases are renewable by mutual consent and contain escalation clause. Rental expens-
es for operating leases recognised in the Statement of ProŤt and Loss for the year is NPR ................  (Ashadh ..., 20X1/ July ..., 20X1: 
NPR ...........................).

Disclosure in respect of Non-cancellable lease is as given below    

 Future Minimum Lease Payments  Current Year  Previous Year 

i) Not Later than 1 year
ii) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
iii) Later than 5 years

(ii)	Finance	Lease:	 	 	 	 	 	
The Company holds assets under Ťnance leases. Future minimum lease payments and lease liability at the end of the year is given below:

Fig. in NPR

Future Minimum Lease Payments  Current Year  Previous Year 

i) Not Later than 1 year  62,506,912  61,281,466 

ii) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years  268,234,040  247,618,749 

iii) Later than 5 years  124,671,566  84,005,390 

Total Future Minimum Lease Payments  455,412,518  392,905,605 

Less: Effect of Discounting  214,335,806 163,188,481

Finance lease liability recognised  241,076,712  229,717,124 
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Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

Property and Equipment
Investment Properties
Goodwill & Intangible Assets
Total  -    -   

Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

Claims against Company not acknowledged as debts
a) Income Tax
b) Indirect Taxes
c)	Others	(to	be	SpeciŤed)
Total  -    -   

Particulars

 Current Year  Previous Year 

Gross 

Investment

Unearned Fi-

nance Income

Net 

Investment

Gross 

Investment

Unearned 

Finance Income

Net 

Investment

i) Not Later than 1 year
ii) Later than 1 year and 
not later than 5 years
iii) Later than 5 years
Total  -    -    -    -    -    -   

55. Capital Commitments      

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed in capital accounts and not provided for

56. Contingent Liabilities      

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed in capital accounts and not provided for (net of advances)

57. Events occuring after Balance Sheet 

  

58.	Assets	Pledged	as	Security	(only	if	pledged) 
The carrying amount of assets pledged as security are: 

SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPR

(b)	Leases	as	Lessor	 	 	 	 	 	
(i)	Operating	Lease:		 	 	 	 	
The Company has leased out certain ofŤce spaces that are renewable on a periodic basis. Rental income received during the year in 
respect of operating lease is NPR ................  (Ashadh .., 20X1/ July ..., 20X1: NPR ...........................). Details of assets given on operating 
lease as at year end are as below.         

       

Disclosure in respect of Non-cancellable lease is as given below      

(ii)	Finance	Lease:
The Company has given assets under Ťnance leases. At the year end receivables under Ťnance lease agreements fall due as follows: 
   

Future Minimum Lease Payments  Current Year  Previous Year 

i) Not Later than 1 year
ii) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
iii) Later than 5 years
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Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

Reinsurance Receivables
Investments in equity
Fixed Deposits  350,000,000 
Property and Equipment

Others	(to	be	SpeciŤed)
Total  350,000,000  -   

SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements

59. Corporate Social Responsibility      

1% of ProŤt has been transferred to CSR reserve      
       

60. Miscellaneous      

(i) All amounts are in Nepalese Rupees unless otherwise stated.      
(ii) All Ťgures are in the Nearest Rupee & Rounded off.      

       

61.	Others	(to	be	SpeciŤed)

Fig. in NPR
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SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 

Major Financial Indicators

S.N Particular Indicators 
Fiscal Year

2081/82 2080/81 2079/80 2078/79 2077/78

A. Equity:

1 Net worth NPR  6,674,103,920  7,008,514,941  7,265,967,625  3,581,961,276  3,020,180,158 

2 Number of Shares No.s  50,119,478  50,119,478  45,455,721  25,502,821  22,628,945 

3 Book value per shares NPR  133.16  139.84  159.85  140.45  133.47 

4 Net ProŤt NPR  727,728,427  851,785,189  275,286,315  314,488,531  284,191,136 

5 Earning per Shares (EPS) NPR  14.52  17.00  6.06  12.33  13.13 

6 Dividend per Shares (DPS) NPR  13.00  20.00  35.00  -    -   

7 Market Price per Shares 
(MPPS) NPR  446.69  500.00  610.00  387.00  922 

8
Price Earning Ratio (PE 
Ratio) Ratio  30.76  29.42  100.72  31.38  70.20 

9 Change in Equity % -4.77% -3.54% 102.85% 9.11% 5.67%

10 Return on Equity % 10.90% 12.15% 3.79% 8.78% 8.66%

12 Market Share % 6.32% 6.08% 5.16% 9.29% 9.17%

13 Net Earning Ratio % 6.54% 9.26% 3.85% 6.38% 6.70%

14 Solvency Margin % 165% 247% 300% 264% 259%

B. Income

15 Gross Earned Premium 
Growth Rate % 19.53% 29.41% 44.66% 17.23% 46.13%

16 First Year Premium Growth 
Rate

% 32.86% 14.44% 8.94% 2.29% 38.34%

 Endowment % 46.17% 22.46% 20.94% -24.14% 73.07%

 Anticipated Endowment % 28.47% -32.59% -46.74% 64.04% 41.38%

 Endowment Cum Whole 
Life 

% -28.95% 14.24% 46.23% 30.64% -21.10%

 Foreign Employment Term % 14.55% -2.02% 86.84% 203.72% -76.52%

 Other Term % 7.41% 55.86% 96.92% 21.00% 75.71%

17 Renewal Premium Growth 
Rate

% 14.73% 35.82% 68.24% 29.75% 53.35%

Endowment % 19.65% 39.67% 67.43% 35.38% 40.77%

Anticipated Endowment % 5.01% 26.30% 71.97% 36.99% 74.83%

Endowment Cum Whole Life % 5.04% 36.49% 77.92% 10.25% 25.94%

Foreign Employment Term % 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Other Term % 34.08% 57.53% 370.10% 30.43% 369.77%

18
Single Premium Growth 
Rate

% 63.14% 31.65% 40.41% -54.21% 38.72%

Endowment % 103.59% 59.29% 7.55% -73.55% 99.53%

Anticipated Endowment % 104.27% 67.61% 23.75% 57.68% 100.00%

Endowment Cum Whole Life % 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Foreign Employment Term % 14.55% -2.02% 86.84% 203.72% -76.52%

Other Term % -29.32% 100.00% -100.00% 100.00% 0.00%

19 Reinsurance Ratio % 2.02% 3.14% 2.68% 2.85% 2.02%

20 Retention Ratio % 97.98% 96.86% 97.32% 97.15% 97.98%

Fig. in NPR
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S.N Particular Indicators 
Fiscal Year

2081/82 2080/81 2079/80 2078/79 2077/78

21
Net Reinsurance inťow/ 
(outťow) Amt in Cr. -2.30  7.53 -13.21 -3.38  0.38 

22
RI Commission income /

Premium Ceeded % 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

23 Gross Earned Premium to 
Equity % 170.14% 135.54% 101.02% 141.66% 143.31%

24 Net earned Premium to 
Equity % 166.71% 131.29% 98.32% 136.43% 187.42%

25 Gross Insurance Premium to 
Total Assets % 22.52% 22.50% 20.35% 27.68% 29.85%

26 Return on Investments and 
Loan

% 7.44% 8.07% 6.71% 7.50% 8.39%

Expenses:

27    Regulatory expenses 
Ratio

% 17.93% 19.52% 19.12% 16.41% 16.38%

28
Management expenses/ 
Direct Insurance Premium % 14.10% 15.13% 17.01% 16.03% 16.42%

29 Commission Ratio 9.01% 9.16% 10.38% 11.85% 11.17%

30 Direct Business Acquisition 
Ratio

% 16.61% 19.86% 20.25% 16.89% 25.92%

31 Agent Related Expenses/ 
Direct Insurance Premium % 4.35% 4.13% 5.25% 6.31% 18.45%

32 Agent Related Expenses/ 
Total Management expenses % 30.04% 26.56% 29.77% 38.28% 44.33%

33 Employee expenses/ Man-
agement expenses % 47.30% 50.45% 50.17% 43.44% 41.87%

Assets:

34 Increment in Investment held % 19.17% 20.83% 101.89% 49.52% 8.61%

35 Increment in Loan % 16.61% 8.02% 80.07% 53.57% 56.96%

36 Liquidity Ratio % 162.90% 155.55% 162.43% 318.82% 797.27%

37 Return on Assets % 1.44% 2.02% 0.76% 1.73% 1.96%

38 Long term Investments/Total 
Investments % 13.01% 88.51% 86.12% 76.97% 71.40%

39 Short term Investments/Total 
Investments % 13.01% 11.49% 13.88% 23.03% 28.60%

40
Total Investment & Loan/
Gross Insurance Contract 
Liabilities

% 111.82% 116.10% 120.16% 117.07% 102.57%

41
Investment in Unlisted 
Shares and Debtors/ Total 
Net Assets

% 0.14% 0.14% 0.13% 0.95% 2.71%

42 Investment in Shares/ Total 
Net Assets % 57.56% 28.07% 16.34% 22.81% 15.91%

43 Agent loan / Number of 
Agents Per agent  575.97  892.09  1,270.56  2,535.85  3,215.67 

Liabilities:

44 Solvency Margin % 165.40% 247% 300% 264% 259%

45 Increment in Gross Insur-
ance Contract Liabilities % 23.41% 23.49% 93.98% 31.46% 38.23%
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S.N Particular Indicators 
Fiscal Year

2081/82 2080/81 2079/80 2078/79 2077/78

46 Increment in Life Insurance 

Fund % 23.27% 23.67% 93.55% 31.45% 38.56%

47 Increment in Claim payment 

Reserve includig IBNR % 137.06% -37.76% 1730.16% 115.76% -20.46%

48 Gross Technical Provision to 
Gross earned premium % 365.53% 354.44% 370.91% 277.22% 247.24%

49 Gross Technical Provision to 
Total Equity % 621.89% 481.02% 375.63% 392.81% 354.39%

50 Insurance Debt to Total 
Equity % 5.24% 0% 1% 0.00% 0.00%

51 Loss Ratio % 7.64% 6% 5% 8% 8%

52 Persistency Ratio % 90.95% 86.25% 93.03% 95.83% 87.99%

53 Lapse Ratio % 9.05% 13.75% 6.97% 4.17% 12.01%

54 No. of Outstanding Claim/ 
No. of Intimated Claims

% 0.55% 4.33% 0.46% 0.30% 0.55%

55 Total Number of Inforce 
Policies No.s  792,252  924,952  709,570  352,231  355,114 

56
Number of Renewed Policy/ 
Last Year's Total Number of 
In Force Policies

% 24% 58.29% 62.29% 90.44% 80.39%

Others:

57 Declared Bonus Rate Per'000  40-90  40-90  40-90  40-90  40-90 

58 Interim Bonus Rate Per'000  40-90  40-90  40-90  40-90  40-90 

59 Number of OfŤces No.s  173  173  182  150  111 

60 Number of Agents No.s  101,962  89,124  88,622  46,680  41,932 

61 Number of Employees No.s  509  517  544  377  279 

62 Employee expenses/ Num-
ber of Employees Amt.  1,488,368  1,402,262  1,151,178  929,260  1,029,418 

'Note: indicator from F.Y 2077/78 to F.Y 2078.79 is of only former Surya Life Insurance company
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A. Information related to Life Insurer

1.  Date of establishment : SuryaJyoti Life Insurance Company Ltd. is incorporated as a Public Limited Company on 2064/03/18 under 
Company Act, 2053.

2.  Insurer licence date : The company has obtained license on 2064 Chaitra 06 under section 10(3) of Insurance Act 2049 and Rule 8 
(2) of Insurance Regulations,2049 in order to carry out insurance business.

3.  Insurance business type, nature :  The company issues Life Insurance contracts.
4.  Date of commencement of business : The date of commencement of business is Baishakh 11, 2065
5.  Other matters which insurer wish to include : None

B. Declaration of Board of Directors

1. All tax, service charge, Ťne and penalties to be paid under laws & regulation are paid.
2. The share structure of the Company is as follows and it is in line with prevailing laws & regulation

SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 

Annexure I - Board of Director's Report

3. The Solvency ratio is 1.65 and is maintained as prescribed by Nepal Insurance Authority.
4a)  The Ťnancial amount of the assets contained in SOFP are stated as per their fair value and are not overstated.
  b)  The Ťnancial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for the following material items in the statement of 

Ťnancial position:
 - Financial Instruments at fair value through proŤt or loss are measured at fair value.
 - Investment property is measured at fair value..
 - Liability for deŤned beneŤt obligations is recognized as the present value of the deŤned beneŤt obligation less net total of the 

plan assets, plus unrecognized actuarial gains, less unrecognized past service cost and unrecognized actuarial losses.
5.  All the investments made by the company are in line with prevailing laws and as per Nepal Insurance Authority's directive.
6.  Total number of claim settled within the year is 11404 . Total outstanding claim number is 63 and all the claims are estimated to be 

settled within Ťscal year 2025/26.
7.  All the provision of Insurance Act 2079, Insurance Regulation 2049, Company Act 2063, NFRSs and other prevailing laws & regula-

tion has been adhered to except provision regarding the Annual General Meeting.
8.  The appropriate accounting policy has been consistently adopted that provides reliable and relevant information about the effects of 

transaction, events or conditions on the entity's Ťnancial position, Ťnancial performance and cash ťows.
9. The Financial Statement prepared and presented truly and fairly present the Ťnancial position and  Ťnancial performance in accor-

dance with the prescribed Ťnancial reporting standards.
10.  The Board of Directors have implemented adequate and appropriate provision to safeguard the assets and for identiŤcation and 

mitigation against losses due to fraud, embezzlement and irregularities.
11. The Financial Statements have been prepared based on going concern basis.
12. The internal control system is commensurate with the size, nature & volume of the insurer's business.
13. The Company has not conducted any transactions contrary to Insurance Act, 2079, Insurance Regulation, Companies Act, 2063, 

related regulations and directions with any person, Ťrm, company and insurer's director or with any entity in which insurer's director 
has interest.

14.  No any penalties was levied by Nepal Insurance Authority for the reported Ťnancial year.
15. No other disclosure deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors or management.

S.No. Shareholder
Current Year

No. of Equity Share % Of Ownership

1. Promoters
a. Nepali Organized Institutions 8,576,730 17.11

b. Nepalese Citizen 16,984,204 33.89

c. Foreigner – –

Total 25,560,934 51.00

2. General Public 24,558,544 49.00

3. Other – –

Total 50,119,478 100.00
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SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED  

Variance Report on Statement of Financial Position
As At 16th July, 2025 (Ashadh 32, 2082)

0 Notes  Audited  Unaudited  Variance  Remarks 

Assets

Goodwill & Intangible Assets 4  66,064,099  62,933,706 -4.74%
 Due to adjustment 
of Depreciation 
booking 

Property and Equipment 5  314,503,194  323,105,913 2.74%

 Due to depreciation 
on Right to use 
assets booked in 
Audited łnancial 

Investment Properties 6  -    -   0.00%

Deferred Tax Assets 7  208,594,780  356,488,111 70.90%
 due to calculation 
of Deferred Tax in 
Audited Financial 

Investment in Subsidiaries 8  -    -   0.00%

Investment in Associates 9  -    -   0.00%

Investments 10  41,662,401,555  41,662,769,624 0.00%

Loans 11  4,859,602,479  4,841,819,687 -0.37%

Reinsurance Assets 12  64,097,828  63,797,828 -0.47%

Current Tax Assets 21  1,025,130,470  1,013,575,408 -1.13%
 Due to tax liabilities 
calculeted in audited 
łnancial 

Insurance Receivables 13  223,025,162  354,795,945 59.08%

 due to effect 
of netting of of 
receivable and 
payable in unaudited 
łnancial 

Other Assets 14  118,724,379  148,181,542 24.81%

 due to deffered 
expenditue on 
employee loan 
and other audit 
adjustment 

Other Financial Assets 15  1,064,970,255  1,062,173,324 -0.26%

Cash and Cash Equivalent 16  819,623,974  775,482,715 -5.39%

Total Assets  50,426,738,175  50,665,123,805 0.47%

Equity & Liabilities

Equity

Share Capital 17 (a)  5,011,947,797  5,011,947,797 0.00%

Share Application Money 
Pending Allotment 17 (b)  -    -   0.00%

Share Premium 17 (c)  -    -   0.00%

Catastrophe Reserves 17 (d)  420,022,951  394,657,781 -6.04%

Fig. in NPR
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0 Notes  Audited  Unaudited  Variance  Remarks 

Retained Earnings 17 (e)  925,166,542  472,060,959 -48.98%
 Due to valuation proŤt 
recognised and other 

audit adjustment 

Other Equity 17 (f)  316,966,630  479,050,091 51.14%
 Due to valuation proŤt 
recognised and other 

audit adjustment 

Total Equity  6,674,103,921  6,357,716,628 -4.74%

Liabilities

Provisions 18  112,237,014  46,218,747 -58.82%  Due to valuation of 
gratuity and leave  

Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities 19  41,605,099,535  42,341,525,599 1.77%  Due to Valuation of 
Liabilities 

Deferred Tax Liabilities 7  -    -   0.00%

Insurance Payable 20  25,469,079  4,572,252 -82.05%

 due to effect of netting 

of of receivable and 
payable in unaudited 
Ťnancial 

Current Tax Liabilities 21  -    -   0.00%

Borrowings 22  350,000,000  350,000,000 0.00%

Other Liabilities 23  921,428,417  963,547,457 4.57%
 due to accounting of 

lease liabilities and other 
audit adjustment 

Other Financial Liabilities 24  738,400,209  601,543,121 -18.53%  due to audit adjustment  

Total Liabilities  43,752,634,254  44,307,407,176 1.27%

Total Equity and Liabilities  50,426,738,175  50,665,123,805 0.47%
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SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED  

Variance Report on Statement of Profit or Loss
For Period 16th July, 2024 - 16th July, 2025

(For the Year Ended Ashadh 32, 2082)

0 Notes  Audited  Unaudited  Variance  Remarks 

Income:

Gross Earned Premiums 25  11,355,065,829  11,355,142,357 0.00%

Premiums Ceded 26  228,901,574  169,931,559 -25.76%
 due to delay in 
receiving Debit note 
from reinsurar 

Net Earned Premiums  11,126,164,254  11,185,210,797 0.53%

Commission Income 27  -    -   0.00%

Other Direct Income 28  85,628,461  85,628,461 0.00%

Interest Income on Loan to 
Policyholders 11  416,147,180  416,259,673 0.03%

Income from Investments and 
Loans

29  3,463,079,528  3,445,240,236 -0.52%

Net Gain/(Loss) on Fair Value 
Changes

30  -    -   0.00%

Net Realised Gains/(Losses) 31  -    -   0.00%

Other Income 32  2,549,435  2,437,663 -4.38%

Total Income  15,093,568,858  15,134,776,831 0.27%

Expenses:

Gross Benełts and Claims Paid 33  3,759,981,211  3,696,711,445 -1.68%

Claims Ceded 33  205,920,024  201,419,722 -2.19%
 due to delay in 
receiving Debit note 
from reinsurar 

Gross Change in Contract 
Liabilities

34  7,775,019,690  8,511,445,754 9.47%
 Due to valuation of 
Liabilities as per NIA 
regulation  

Change in Contract Liabities 
Ceded to Reinsurers

34  (42,673,481)  (42,373,481) -0.70%

Net Benełts and  Claims Paid  11,286,407,396  11,964,363,996 6.01%

Commission Expenses 35  1,022,897,971  1,022,894,219 0.00%

Service Fees 36  83,446,232  83,889,081 0.53%

Other Direct expenses 37  -    -   0.00%

Employee BeneŤts Expenses 38  757,579,312  657,137,146 -13.26%
 due to change in proŤt 
staff bonus has been 
changed 

Depreciation and Amortization 
Expenses 39  78,742,169  31,102,276 -60.50%  due to depreciation on 

right to use assets 

Impairment Losses 40  (5,529,828)  -   -100.00%  Calculation of 

Impairment  

Other Operating Expenses 41  726,159,625  764,100,560 5.22%
 Due to lease accounting 

Rental expenses has 
been adjusted 

Fig. in NPR
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0 Notes  Audited  Unaudited  Variance  Remarks 

Finance Cost 42  39,136,707  2,791,311 -92.87%
 Due to interest 

expenses in right to use 
assets  

Total Expenses  13,988,839,584  14,526,278,589 3.84%

Net	ProŤt/(Loss)	For	The	Year	
Before	Share	of	Net	ProŤts	of	
Associates Accounted for Using 

Equity Method and Tax

 1,104,729,274  608,498,242 -44.92%

 Due to valuation of 

Liabilities as per NIA 

regulation and tax 

computation 

Share of Net ProŤt of Associates 
accounted using Equity Method 9  -    -   0.00%

ProŤt	Before	Tax  1,104,729,274  608,498,242 -44.92%

 Due to valuation of 

Liabilities as per NIA 

regulation and tax 

computation 

Income Tax Expense 43  377,000,848  258,211,841 -31.51%
 Computation of income 

tax liabilities and 
deffered tax  

Net	ProŤt/(Loss)	For	The	Year  727,728,427  350,286,400 -51.87%

 Due to valuation of 

Liabilities as per NIA 

regulation and tax 

computation 

Earning Per Share 51 

Basic EPS  14.52  6.99  Due to change in proŤt  

Diluted EPS  14.52  6.99  Due to change in proŤt  
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SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Variance Report on Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For Period 16th July, 2024 - 16th July, 2025

(For the Year Ended Ashadh 32, 2082)

Particulars Notes  Audited  Unaudited  Variance  Remarks 

Net Prołt/(Loss) For the 
Year

 727,728,427  350,286,400 -52%  Due to valuation of Liabilities as per 
NIA regulation and tax computation 

Other Comprehensive 
Income

 98,336,927  96,111,212 -2%

Total Comprehensive Income 

For the Year, Net of Tax

 826,065,353  446,397,612 -46%  Due to valuation of Liabilities as per NIA 

regulation and tax computation 
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Amount in NPR units (no decimals)

ASSETS
Final 

Statement

Solvency 

balance sheet

Goodwill R0010  61,512,300 

Deferred acquisition costs R0020  -   

Intangible assets R0030  4,551,799 

Deferred tax assets R0040  208,594,780 

Pension benefit surplus R0050  -    -   

Property, plant & equipment held for own use R0060  314,503,194  267,626,575 

Investments (other than replicating unit portion index/unit-linked 
contracts)

R0070  46,552,968,501  50,825,703,418 

Investments in properties (other than for own use) R0080  -    -   

Investment in subsidiaries R0090  -    -   

Investment in associates R0100  -    -   

Equities R0110  4,154,414,066  4,154,414,066 

   Equities - listed in stock exchange licensed by SEBON R0120  3,832,354,066  3,832,354,066 
   Equities - listed in stock exchange other than licensed by SEBON R0130  -    -   
   Equities - unlisted R0140  322,060,000  322,060,000 
Bonds R0150  6,340,403,881  7,175,960,104 

   Government Bonds R0160  -    -   

   Corporate Bonds R0170  6,340,403,881  7,175,960,104 

       Fixed-income bonds with no option R0180  6,340,403,881  7,175,960,104 
       Floating rate notes R0190  -    -   
       Other bonds with embedded interest rate derivatives R0200  -    -   
Structured notes R0210  -    -   

Collateralised securities R0220  -    -   

Collective Investments Undertakings R0230  266,583,607  266,583,607 

Derivatives R0240  -    -   

Deposits other than cash equivalents R0250  30,901,000,000  33,278,626,701 

Other investments R0260

Loans and mortgages R0270  4,890,566,947  5,950,118,940 

   Loans on policies R0280  4,678,959,276  5,768,382,014 
   Other loans with collateral or guarantees R0290  211,607,671  181,736,926 
   Other loans without collateral or guarantees R0300  -    -   
Assets replicating the unit portion of index/unit-linked contracts R0310  -    -   

Reinsurance recoverables from: R0320  287,122,990  302,728,158 

   Non-life technical reserves (after risk correction) R0330  -    -   
   Life excluding index-linked and unit-linked technical reserves (after risk 
correction)

R0340  64,097,828  79,902,717 

   Life index-linked and unit-linked technical reserves (after risk correction) R0350  -    -   
   Deposits to cedants (related to accepted reinsurance) R0360  -    -   
   Reinsurance receivables R0370  223,025,162  222,825,441 

SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED  

02.01_BS - Balance Sheet
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ASSETS
Final 

Statement

Solvency 

balance sheet

Current	tax	assets	(net) R0380  1,025,136,832  1,025,136,832 

Insurance, coinsurance and intermediaries receivables R0390  -    -   

   Receivables from insurers other than coinsurance R0400  -    -   
   Receivables from coinsurance/pools R0410  -    -   
   Receivables from intermediaries R0420  -    -   
Own	shares	(held	directly) R0430  -    -   

Amounts due in respect own equity items called up but not yet paid in R0440  -    -   

Cash and cash equivalents R0450  819,623,974  819,623,974 

Any other assets, not elsewhere shown R0460  1,183,694,634  1,072,310,179 

Total assets R0470  50,457,709,004  54,313,129,136 

LIABILITIES (WITHOUT transitionals)
Financial 

statement

Solvency 

balance sheet

Technical provisions - non-life R0480

   Best Estimate Direct Insurance (excluding Earthquake reserves) R0490  -    -   

   Best estimate Direct Insurance Earthquake reserves R0500  -    -   

   Margin over best estimate Direct insurance R0510  -    -   

   Best estimate Accepted reinsurance (excluding Earthquake reserves) R0520  -    -   

   Best estimate Accepted Earthquake reserves R0530  -    -   

   Margin over best estimate Accepted reinsurance R0540  -    -   

Technical provisions - life (excluding index-linked and unit-linked) R0550  41,505,289,889  44,405,343,056 

   Best Estimate Direct insurance participating life insurance R0560  40,100,716,858  43,000,770,025 

   Best Estimate Direct insurance non-participating life insurance R0570  355,876,601  355,876,601 

   Margin over best estimate Direct insurance R0580  1,048,696,430  1,048,696,430 

   Best estimate Accepted reinsurance R0590  -    -   

   Margin over best estimate Accepted reinsurance R0600  -    -   

Technical provisions - index-linked and unit-linked life insurance contracts R0610  -    -   

   Technical provisions calculated as a whole (unit reserves) R0620  -    -   

   Best Estimate (non unit reserves) R0630  -    -   

   Margin over best estimate R0640  -    -   

Other technical provisions R0650  -   

Reinsurance deposits and payables R0660  25,469,079  25,469,079 

   Deposits from reinsurers R0670  -    -   

   Reinsurance payables R0680  25,469,079  25,469,079 

Insurance, coinsurance and intermediaries payables R0690  1,653,754,780  1,653,754,780 

   Payables to insurers other than coinsurance R0700  -    -   

   Payables to coinsurance/pools R0710  -    -   

   Payables to intermediaries R0720  1,653,754,780  1,653,754,780 

Other payables (not related to insurance or reinsurance) R0730  -    -   

Debts owed to credit institutions R0740  -    -   

Other łnancing debts R0750  -    -   

   Qualiłed as Tier 1 Available Capital Resources R0760  -    -   

Amount in NPR units (no decimals)
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EQUITY

   Share capital R0890  5,011,947,797 

   Share application money pending allotment R0900  -   

   Share premium R0910  -   

   Special reserves R0920  -   

   Catastrophe reserves R0930  420,039,167 

   Retained earnings R0940  925,471,404 

   Other equity R0950  316,969,873 

      Revaluation reserves R0960  -   

      Capital reserves R0970  61,512,300 

      Corporate Social Responsability Reserves (CSR) R0980  27,051,891 

      Insurance Fund R0990  -   

      Fair Value Reserves R1000  23,607,063 

      Actuarial reserves R1010 -83,796,876 

      Deferred Tax Reserves R1020  288,595,495 

      Other reserves R1030  -   

Total Equity R1040  6,674,428,241 

LIABILITIES (WITHOUT transitionals)
Financial 

statement

Solvency 

balance sheet

   Qualiłed as Tier 2 Available Capital Resources R0770  -    -   

   Not qualified as Available Capital Resources R0780  -    -   

Derivatives R0790  -    -   

Current tax liabilities R0800  -    -   

Provisions other than technical provisions R0810  99,464,646  99,464,646 

Contingent liabilities R0820  -    -   

Pension benefit obligations R0830  112,237,014  112,237,014 

Deferred tax liabilities R0840  -    86,384,931 

Any other liabilities, not elsewhere shown R0850  387,065,354  387,065,354 

Total liabilities R0860  43,783,280,763  46,769,718,860 

Excess of assets over liabilities R0870  7,543,410,276 
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Solvency Balance 

Sheet	(Amount	in	
NPR	units)

"TIER 1 CAPITAL. List of items 

	(capital	resources	that	absorb	losses	on	a	going-concern	basis	and	in	wind-

ing-up	basis)"

Excess of assets over liability as per Solvency Balance Sheet  7,543,410,275.94 

Add:  Paid-in (paid-up) subordinated debts qualiŤed as tier 1 Available Capital  
Resources

 -   

Less: Revaluation reserve  -   

Less: CSR Reserve  (27,051,890.92)

Less: Fair value reserve  (23,607,062.99)

Less: Actuarial reserve  -   

Less: Excess of deferred tax reserve shown in equity of 02.01 BS over deferred tax 
assets as per Financial Statement

 (80,000,715.29)

Less: Assets pledged by the insurer when the facility guaranteed is not in the liability 
side of the solvency balance sheet

 -   

Less: Credit Facilities granted by the insurer and secured by its own shares when the 
facility is not in the liability side

 -   

Less: Direct and indirect investments, reciprocal cross holdings, arranged either directly 
or indirectly between Ťnancial institutions

 -   

Less:  Assets not valued at nil whose valuation in the solvency balance sheet should 
not increase the Available Capital Resources

 (501,194,780.00)

Less: Deduction as per para 66(6) of Risk-Based Capital and Solvency Directive if not 
valued at nil in solvency balance sheet

 -   

Less: Deduction as per para 66(7) of Risk-Based Capital and Solvency Directive if not 
valued at nil in solvency balance sheet

 -   

Less: Embedded proŤt if already included in surplus i.e. excess of assets over liability 
as per 02.01 BS

 -   

TIER 1 - TOTAL BEFORE LIMITS    6,911,555,826.73 

"TIER 2 CAPITAL. List of items 

(capital	resources	that	absorb	losses	only	in	winding-up	basis)"

Cumulative irredeemable preference shares qualliŤed as tier 2 Available Capital 
Resources

 -   

Irredeemable subordinated debts qualliŤed as tier 2 Available Capital Resources  -   

Other capital resources qualiŤed as Tier 2, including unpaid preference shares, unpaid 
subordinated debt, letters of credit, guarantees and mutual member calls

 -   

Future proŤts embedded in the valuation of technical provisions (reserves)  -   

TIER 2 - TOTAL BEFORE LIMITS     -   

Dividend during Ťnancial year 2079 - 2080      -   

Dividend during Ťnancial year 2080 - 2081      1,129,038,380.00 

Dividend during Ťnancial year 2081 - 2082      1,004,338,429.00 

Dividend expected during Ťnancial year 2082 - 2083      501,194,779.75 

Maximum Distributable ProŤt 2081 - 2082      947,333,078.00 

SURYAJYOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED  

Financial Statement
02.03_ACR - Available Capital Resource (ACR), Solvency Position and MCR

Ashad-End 2082
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SOLVENCY SITUATION

Risk-Based Capital Requirement  4,179,756,692.78  4,179,756,692.78 

    Reduction of life technical reserves due to transitional provisions Annexure VII of 
RBC Directive

xxx 1

    Reduction of non-life technical reserves due to transitional  provisions Annexure VII 
of RBC Directive

xxx 0

Calculations without 

transitional

Calculations with 

transitionals

Tier 1 items before limits  6,911,555,826.73  6,911,555,827.73 

Tier 1 Paid-in subordinated debt before limit  -    -   

Reduction to limit up to 30% Tier 1  -    -   

Tier 1 Paid-in subordinated debt after deduction of the limit  -    -   

Exceptional increase para (65)(6) Annexure V of RBC Directive - only previous NIA 
approval

 -    -   

Tier 1 items after limits  6,911,555,826.73  6,911,555,827.73 

Tier 2 before limits  -    -   

Before limits - Future proŤts embedded in technical reserves  -    -   

After limits - Future proŤts embedded in technical reserves  -    -   

Recalculated Tier 2 after limits to Future proŤts embedded in technical reserves  -    -   

Tier 2 after limit 40% RBC  -    -   

Total Solvency Available Capital Resources  6,911,555,826.73  6,911,555,827.73 

Solvency	surplus/deŤcit  2,731,799,133.95  2,731,799,134.95 

Solvency ratio 165.4% 165.4%

Supervisory	Target	Capital	Level	(paragraph	(85)	Annexure	VI	of	RBC	Directive		(%) 130%

Calculations without 

transitional

Calculations with 

transitionals

MINIMUM CAPITAL REQUIREMENT  1,393,252,230.93  1,393,252,230.93 

Tier 1 covering MCR  6,911,555,826.73  6,911,555,827.73 

Tier 2 covering MCR  -    -   

MCR surplus/deŤcit  5,518,303,595.81  5,518,303,596.81 

MCR ratio 496.07% 496.07%



 
Actuarial Partners Consulting Sdn Bhd 

formerly known as Mercer Zainal Consulting Sdn Bhd 
Suite 17.02 CIMB Hub 

Jalan Sultan Ismail 
50250 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia 

603 2161 0433  Fax 603 2161 3595 

 

 

19 October 2025 

To the Shareholders of SuryaJyoti Life Insurance Company Limited. 

 

ACTUARIAL VALUATION OF THE LONG TERM INSURANCE BUSINESS AS AT 16 JULY 

2025 

 

We have carried out an actuarial valuation of the Long Term Insurance Business as at 16 July 

2025. We hereby certify that, in our opinion, 

 

1) Proper records have been kept by the Company, which are appropriate for the purpose 

of the actuarial valuation of the liabilities of the Long Term Insurance Fund; 

 

2) Adequate and proper reserves have been provided as at 16 July 2025, for all liabilities 

in respect of the Long Term Insurance Fund, taking into account all current and 

contingent liabilities as at that date; 
 

3) As at 16 July 2025, the Company maintained a Solvency Ratio of 165.4% calculated 

as required under the RBC Directive 2025 issued by Nepal Insurance Authority (NIA)  . 

This is well above the minimum Solvency Ratio of 130% as per the same regulations;   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Hassan Scott Odierno 

Actuary 
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Statement of Responsibility  

As the Head- Finance of SuryaJyoƟ Life Insurance Company Limited, I am responsible for the preparaƟon 
and presentaƟon of the Įnancial statements for the year ended Ashad End 2082. These Įnancial 
statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounƟng standards (Nepal Financial 
ReporƟng Standards) and regulatory requirements, and they provide a true and fair view of the Įnancial 
posiƟon and performance of the company. 

ResponsibiliƟes 

Financial ReporƟng: 

• Ensure that the Įnancial statements are prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial 
ReporƟng Standards (NFRS). 

• ConĮrm that the Įnancial statements reŇect the company's operaƟons, cash Ňows, and 
Įnancial posiƟon accurately.      

Internal Controls: 

• Establish and maintain adequate internal controls to ensure the integrity of Įnancial 
reporƟng and compliance with laws and regulaƟons. 

• Regularly assess the eīecƟveness of these internal controls and make improvements as 
necessary. 

Compliance: 

• Ensure compliance with all relevant regulatory requirements applicable to the life 
insurance industry, including those set by the Nepal Insurance Authority. 

• Maintain transparency in Įnancial reporƟng and disclose all material informaƟon in 
accordance with regulatory guidelines. 

Conclusion 

I hereby conĮrm that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the Įnancial statements for the year ended 
Ashad End 2082 present a true and fair view of the Įnancial posiƟon of SuryaJyoƟ Life Insurance Company 
Limited and have been prepared in compliance with the relevant accounƟng standards and regulatory 
requirements. 

 

 

Ashish Gyawali                                                                                                                    Prakash Bikram Khatri 
Head- Finance                                                                                                                     Chief ExecuƟve Oĸcer 
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&=  k|flws®0fsf]  lgb] {zfg';f® sDkgLsf]  hf] lvd Joj: yfkg k|0ffnLnfO{ k|efjsf®L agfpg sDkgLn]  hf] lvd Joj: yfkg ljefusf]  : yfkgf 

u®] sf]  ® cfufdL cf=j= x¿df k|flws®0fsf]  lgb] {zfg';f® sfo{ ug{ sDkgL k|lta4 ®x] sf]  Aoxf] ®f hfgsf®Lsf]  nflu cg'®f] w ub{5f} + .

*=  sDkgLn]  jflif{s k|ltj] bg tof® ubf{ ldlt @)*!÷)&÷!# ut]  k|flws®0faf6 hfl® kl®kq -g] =aL=k|f= !%-@)*!÷)*@_ r=g+ @)$) 

lj=lj=zf=!_ adf] lhdsf a'Fbfx¿ ;dfj] z ul® tof® ug] { Aoxf] ®f hfgsf®Lsf]  nflu cg'®f] w ub{5f} + .

(= sDkgLsf]  n] vf kl®Ifsn]  cf} +NofPsf s} lkmotx¿ qmlds ¿kn]  ;'wf® ul®b}  nluPsf]  ® tL s} lkmotx¿ k'g bf] xf] l®g glbg ;DalGwt ;a}  

ljefux¿nfO{ cfjZos k|ls|of oyfl;3| cjnDag ug{ Joj: yf ul®Psf]  Aoxf] ®f hfgsf®Lsf]  nflu cg'®f] w ub{5f} + .

!)=  sDkgLsf]  cf=j @)*!÷*@ sf]  ;fwf®0f ;ef ldlt @)*@ Kff} if #) ut]  x'g uO{®x] sf]  Aoxf] ®f hfgsf®Lsf]  nflu cg'®f] w ub{5f}+ .
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• o; aLdf of]hgf cGtu{tsf] /Iffj/0f tyf ;'ljwfx? sDkgLn] hf/L ul/g] aLdfn]v, PlR5s ;'ljwf tyf ;Dk'li7sf/0fdf pNn]v ul/Psf zt{ tyf sDkgLsf] lgodx?sf ;fy} 
lgofds lgsfoaf6 hf/L lgb]{zgx? adf]lhd x'g]5 .

• PlR5s ;'ljwfx? aLdfz'Ns e'QmfgL cjlw;Dd -Psn e'QmfgLsf] xsdf @) jif{ ;Dd_ dfq nfu' x'g]5 .
• &) jif{df lkmtf{ x'g] /sddf PlR5s ÷ cltl/Qm ;'ljwfx?sf] lk|ldod ;dfj]z x'g]5}g .

lj:t[t hfgsf/Lsf] nflu ;"o{Hof]lt df]jfOn Pk 8fpgnf]8 ug'{xf];\ jf glhssf] zfvf sfo{fno cyjf k|wfg sfo{fnodf ;Dks{ ug{x'g cg'/f]w ul/G5 .
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*o; aLdf of]hgf cGtu{tsf] /Iffj/0f, ;'ljwfx?, hf]lvd axg gx'g] cj:yfx?M sDkgL4f/f hf/L ul/g] aLdfn]v, P]lR5s ;'ljwf tyf ;Dk'li6s/0fdf pNn]v ul/Psf zt{ tyf 
sDkgLsf] lgodx?sf ;fy} lgofds lgsfoaf6 hf/L lgb]{zgx? adf]lhd x'g]5 . 3fts /f]u ;'ljwfsf] aLdfÍ clwstd ? %),)),))) ;Dd dfq x'g]5 / b'3{6gf d[To' nfe, 

czQm tyf aLdfz'Ns 5'6 ;'ljwfsf] aLdfÍ clwstd /sd ? !,)),)),))) ;Dd dfq x'g]5 .

lj:t[t hfgsf/Lsf] nflu ;"o{Hof]lt df]jfOn Pk 8fpgnf]8 ug'{xf];\ jf glhssf] zfvf sfo{fno cyjf k|wfg sfo{fnodf ;Dks{ ug{x'g cg'/f]w ul/G5 .
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*o; aLdf of]hgf cGtu{tsf] /Iffj/0f, ;'ljwfx?, hf]lvd axg gx'g] cj:yfx?M sDkgL4f/f hf/L ul/g] aLdfn]v, P]lR5s ;'ljwf tyf ;Dk'li6s/0fdf pNn]v ul/Psf zt{ 
tyf sDkgLsf] lgodx?sf ;fy} lgofds lgsfoaf6 hf/L lgb]{zgx? adf]lhd x'g]5 . 3fts /f]u ;'ljwfsf] aLdfÍ clwstd ? %),)),))) ;Dd dfq x'g]5 / b'3{6gf d[To' nfe, 

czQm tyf aLdfz'Ns 5'6 ;'ljwfsf] aLdfÍ clwstd /sd ? !,)),)),))) ;Dd dfq x'g]5 .

lj:t[t hfgsf/Lsf] nflu ;"o{Hof]lt df]jfOn Pk 8fpgnf]8 ug'{xf];\ jf glhssf] zfvf sfo{fno cyjf k|wfg sfo{fnodf ;Dks{ ug{x'g cg'/f]w ul/G5 .
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*Psn e'QmfgL tl/sf afx]s cGo e'QmfgL tl/sfdf 3fts /f]u ;'ljwfsf] /Iffj/0f aLdfz'Ns e'QmfgL cjlw;Dd dfq x'g] / e'QmfgL cjlw ;dfKtL ldlt kl5 3fts /f]usf] 
;'ljwf /2 x'g]5 . o; aLdf of]hgf cGtu{tsf] /Iffj/0f, ;'ljwfx?, hf]lvd axg gx'g] cj:yfx?M sDkgL4f/f hf/L ul/g] aLdfn]v, P]lR5s ;'ljwf tyf ;Dk'li6s/0fdf pNn]v 

ul/Psf zt{ tyf sDkgLsf] lgodx?sf ;fy} lgofds lgsfoaf6 hf/L lgb]{zgx? adf]lhd x'g]5 . 3fts /f]u ;'ljwfsf] aLdfÍ clwstd ? %),)),))) ;Dd dfq x'g]5 / b'3{6gf 
d[To' nfe, czQm tyf aLdfz'Ns 5'6 ;'ljwfsf] aLdfÍ clwstd /sd  ? !,)),)),))) ;Dd dfq x'g]5 .

lj:t[t hfgsf/Lsf] nflu ;"o{Hof]lt df]jfOn Pk 8fpgnf]8 ug'{xf];\ jf glhssf] zfvf sfo{fno cyjf k|wfg sfo{fnodf ;Dks{ ug{x'g cg'/f]w ul/G5 .
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*o; aLdf of]hgf cGtu{tsf] /Iffj/0f, ;'ljwfx?, hf]lvd axg gx'g] cj:yfx?M sDkgL4f/f hf/L ul/g] aLdfn]v, P]lR5s ;'ljwf tyf ;Dk'li6s/0fdf pNn]v ul/Psf zt{ 
tyf sDkgLsf] lgodx?sf ;fy} lgofds lgsfoaf6 hf/L lgb]{zgx? adf]lhd x'g]5 . b'3{6gf d[To' nfe, czQm tyf aLdfz'Ns 5'6 ;'ljwfsf] aLdfÍ /sd clwstd ? 

!,)),)),)))÷– ;Dd dfq x'g]5 .

lj:t[t hfgsf/Lsf] nflu ;"o{Hof]lt df]jfOn Pk 8fpgnf]8 ug'{xf];\ jf glhssf] zfvf sfo{fno cyjf k|wfg sfo{fnodf ;Dks{ ug{x'g cg'/f]w ul/G5 .
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*o; aLdf of]hgf cGtu{tsf] /Iffj/0f, ;'ljwfx?, hf]lvd axg gx'g] cj:yfx?M  sDkgL4f/f hf/L ul/g] aLdfn]v, P]lR5s ;'ljwf tyf ;Dk'li6s/0fdf pNn]v ul/Psf zt{ tyf 
sDkgLsf] lgodx?sf ;fy} lgofds lgsfoaf6 hf/L lgb]{zgx? adf]lhd x'g]5 . 3fts /f]u ;'ljwfsf] aLdf° /sd clwstd ? %),)),)))÷– ;Dd dfq x'g]5, b'3{6gf d[To' nfe, 

czQm tyf aLdfz'Ns 5'6 ;'ljwfsf] aLdfÍ /sd clwstd ? !,)),)),)))÷– ;Dd dfq x'g]5 .

lj:t[t hfgsf/Lsf] nflu ;"o{Hof]lt df]jfOn Pk 8fpgnf]8 ug'{xf];\ jf glhssf] zfvf sfo{fno cyjf k|wfg sfo{fnodf ;Dks{ ug{x'g cg'/f]w ul/G5 .
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*o; aLdf of]hgf cGtu{tsf] /Iffj/0f, ;'ljwfx?, hf]lvd axg gx'g] cj:yfx?M sDkgL4f/f hf/L ul/g] aLdfn]v, P]lR5s ;'ljwf tyf ;Dk'li6s/0fdf pNn]v ul/Psf zt{ tyf 
sDkgLsf] lgodx?sf ;fy} lgofds lgsfoaf6 hf/L lgb]{zgx? adf]lhd x'g]5 . 3fts /f]u ;'ljwfsf] aLdfÍ clwstd ? %),)),))) ;Dd dfq x'g]5 / b'3{6gf d[To' nfe, 

czQm tyf aLdfz'Ns 5'6 ;'ljwfsf] aLdfÍ clwstd /sd ? !)),)),))) ;Dd dfq x'g]5 .

lj:t[t hfgsf/Lsf] nflu ;"o{Hof]lt df]jfOn Pk 8fpgnf]8 ug'{xf];\ jf glhssf] zfvf sfo{fno cyjf k|wfg sfo{fnodf ;Dks{ ug{x'g cg'/f]w ul/G5 .
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*o; aLdf of]hgf cGtu{tsf] /Iffj/0f, ;'ljwfx?, hf]lvd axg gx'g] cj:yfx?M sDkgL4f/f hf/L ul/g] aLdfn]v, P]lR5s ;'ljwf tyf ;Dk'li6s/0fdf pNn]v ul/Psf zt{ tyf 
sDkgLsf] lgodx?sf ;fy} lgofds lgsfoaf6 hf/L lgb]{zgx? adf]lhd x'g]5 . b'3{6gf d[To' nfesf] clwstd aLdfÍ /sd ? %,)),))) ;Dd dfq x'g]5 . 

lj:t[t hfgsf/Lsf] nflu ;"o{Hof]lt df]jfOn Pk 8fpgnf]8 ug'{xf];\ jf glhssf] zfvf sfo{fno cyjf k|wfg sfo{fnodf ;Dks{ ug{x'g cg'/f]w ul/G5 .
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xfdL cfˆgf 5f]/f5f]/Lsf] ;d'Ggt tyf ;'/lIft cfly{s eljio lgdf{0fsf] nflu ;b}j lrlGtt / k|oTgzLn /xg]  
ub{5f+} . xfd|f] of] k|oTgnfO{ ;fsf/ agfpg / afnaRrfsf] plrt lzIff / ljleGg ;fdflhs sfo{ ;kmntfk"j{s ;DkGg 

ug{ ;"o{Hof]lt gf}nf] jfn hLjg aLdfn] tkfO{nfO{ ;xof]u ug]{5 .

aLldt -aRrf_sf] pd]/M % jif{

k|:tfjssf] pd]/M #) jif{ 

aLdf° /sdM ?= @),)),)))÷–

aLdf cjlwM @) jif{ 

;'/Iff sjh DofbL aLdf hLjg aLdfM ?= @),)),)))÷

 b"3{6gf d[To' nfeM ?= @),)),)))÷–

czQmtfsf] sf/0f aLdfz'Ns 5'6 ;'ljwfM ?= @),)),)))÷–

#% 3fts /f]usf] ;'ljwfM ?= @),)),)))÷–  

jflif{s aLdfz'NsM ?= !,!@,(#^÷–

cltl/Qm ;'ljwfx? -k|:tfjssf]_ M

pbfx/0f

Go"gtd aLdf° /sdM ?= %),)))÷–

clwstd aLdf° /sdM k|:tfjssf] cfDbfgLsf] cfwf/df 

Go"gtd÷clwstd aLdf cjlwM !) jif{ b]lv @% jif{ ;Dd

aLldt-aRrf_sf] Go"gtd÷clwstd k|j]z pd]/M ) jif{ b]lv !& jif{ ;Dd

k|:tfjssf] Go"gtd÷clwstd k|j]z pd]/M !* jif{ b]lv ^) jif{

aLldt-aRrf_sf] clwstd aLdf ;dflKt pd]/M @& jif{

k|:tfjssf] clwstd aLdf ;dflKt pd]/M &) jif{  

aLdfz'Ns e'QmfgL tl/sfM Psn ÷ jflif{s ÷ cw{jflif{s ÷ q}dfl;s

aLldt-aRrf_÷k|:tfjssf] hf]lvd k|f/De ldltM aLdf k|f/De ldlt b]lv

k|fjwfgx?

aLdf ;dflKt ldlt;Dd aLldt -aRrf_ hLljt /x]df aLdf cjlw ;dflKtdf 

 ?= @),)),)))÷– / af]g; k|bfg ul/g] .

aLdf cjlw leq aLldt -aRrf_sf] d[To' ePdf ?= %,)),)))÷– / 

lgodfg';f/sf] af]g; jf e'QmfgL ul/Psf] aLdfz'Ns -k"/s s/f/x? 

afktsf] aLdfz'Ns afx]s_ dWo] a9L x'g] /sd k|bfg ul/g] .

aLdfn]v rfn' /x]sf] cj:yfdf k|:tfjssf] d[To' ePdf M

 aLldt -aRrf_ sf] lzIffsf] nflu k|To]s dlxgf ?= @),)))÷– k|bfg  

ul/g] .

 afFsL cjlwsf] aLdfz'Ns 5'6 x'g] .

 aLdf cjlw ;dflKtdf aLldt -aRrfnfO{_ ?= @),)),)))÷– / af]g;  

k|bfg ul/g] .

aLldt -aRrf_] tyf k|:tfjssf] Ps} ;fy -Ps} lbg_] d[To' ePdf ?= 

@),)),)))÷– / lgodfg';f/sf] af]g; /sd k|:tfjssf] d[To' afkt 

e'QmfgL lbOg]5 . ;fy} ?= %,)),)))÷– aLldt afnaflnsfsf] d[To' afkt 

yk e'QmfgL lbOg] .

cltl/Qm ;'ljwfx? afkt kfpg] yk ;'ljwfx? M 

 ;'/Iff sjh DofbL aLdfsf] ;'ljwf cGtu{t k|:tfjssf] d[To' ePdf  

?= @),)),)))÷– / sfhlqmof vr{ afkt ?= %),)))÷– Psd'i7 k|bfg   

ul/g]. 

 k|:tfjssf] b'3{6gfaf6 d[To' ePdf ?= @),)),)))÷– Psd'i7  k|bfg  

ul/g]. 

 k|:tfjs b'3{6gfaf6 k"0f{czQm ePdf czQmtf ;'ljwf cGtu{t !) jif{   

;Dd dfl;s ?= !^,^^^÷– k|bfg ul/g] / af“sL cjlwsf] aLdfz'Ns 

5'6   x'g] .

 k|:tfjsnfO{ #% 3fts /f]u dWo] s'g} Ps /f]u lg?k0f ePdf   

?= @),)),)))÷– pkrf/sf] nflu Psd'i7 k|bfg ul/g] .

o; aLdf of]hgfsf nfex?M

aRrf ® k|: tfjs b'a} sf]  hf] lvd axg x'g]  . 

aLdf ;dflKt ldlt;Dd aLldt hLljt ®x] df aLdf cjlw ;dflKtdf aLdf° 

®sd ® lgodfg';f® af] g; k|bfg ul®g]  .

aLdf cjlw leq aLldt -aRrf_ sf]  d[To' ePdf aLdf° ®sdsf]  @%∞ ® 
lgodfg';f®sf]  af] g; jf e'QmfgL ul®Psf]  aLdfz'Ns -k"®s s®f®x¿ 

afktsf]  aLdfz'Ns afx] s_ dWo]  a9L x'g]  ®sd k|bfg ul®g]  .

aLdfn] v rfn' ®x] sf]  cj: yfdf k|: tfjssf]  d[To' ePdf M

 aLdf cjlwe® aRrfn]  cfˆgf]  lzIffsf]  nflu aLdf°sf]  !∞ ®sd  
dfl;s ¿kdf kfpg] ]  .

 af“sL cjlwsf]  aLdfz'Ns 5'6 x'g]  .

 aLdf cjlw ;dflKtdf aLldt -aRrfnfO{_ aLdf° ®sd ® af] g;  k|bfg 

ul®g]  .

aLldt -aRrf_ tyf k|: tfjssf]  Ps}  ;fy -Ps}  lbg_ d[To' ePdf aLdf° ®sd 

® lgodfg';f®sf]  af] g; ®sd k|: tfjssf]  d[To' afkt e'QmfgL lbOg] 5 ;fy}  

aLdf°sf]  @%∞ -klRr; k|ltzt_ ®sd aLldt aRrfsf]  d[To' afkt yk e'QmfgL 
lbOg]  .

;'®Iff sjh DofbL aLdf cGtu{t k|: tfjssf]  d[To' ePdf aLdf° ®sd 

® sfhlqmof vr{ afkt aLdf° ®sdsf]  yk @)∞ -clwQmd ?= %),)))÷–_ 
Psd'i7 k|bfg ul®g]  .

k|: tfjssf]  b'3{6gfaf6 d[To' ePdf aLdf° ®sd Psd'i7 k|bfg  ul®g]  .

k|: tfjs b'3{6gfaf6 k"0f{czQm ePdf af“sL cjlwsf]  aLdfz'Ns 5'6 x'g]  ® 

aLdf°sf]  cfwf®df slDtdf !) jif{;Dd dfl;s czQm ;'ljwf k|fKt x'g]  .

k|: tfjsnfO{ #% 3fts ®f] u lj?4 ?= %),)),)))÷– ;Ddsf]  pkrf® ;'ljwf 

lbOg]  .

o; aLdf of]hgfsf nfex?M

cltl/Qm ;'ljwfx?

*o; aLdf of]hgf cGtu{tsf] /Iffj/0f, ;'ljwfx?, hf]lvd axg gx'g] cj:yfx?M sDkgL4f/f hf/L ul/g] aLdfn]v, P]lR5s ;'ljwf tyf ;Dk'li6s/0fdf pNn]v ul/Psf zt{ tyf 
sDkgLsf] lgodx?sf ;fy} lgofds lgsfoaf6 hf/L lgb{]zgx? adf]lhd x'g]5 .

lj:t[t hfgsf/Lsf] nflu ;"o{Hof]lt df]jfOn Pk 8fpgnf]8 ug'{xf];\ jf glhssf] zfvf sfo{fno cyjf k|wfg sfo{fnodf ;Dks{ ug{x'g cg'/f]w ul/G5 .
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*o; aLdf of]hgf cGtu{tsf] /Iffj/0f, ;'ljwfx?, hf]lvd axg gx'g] cj:yfx?M sDkgL4f/f hf/L ul/g] aLdfn]v, P]lR5s ;'ljwf tyf ;Dk'li6s/0fdf pNn]v ul/Psf zt{ tyf 
sDkgLsf] lgodx?sf ;fy} lgofds lgsfoaf6 hf/L lgb]{zgx? adf]lhd x'g]5 . 3fts /f]u ;'ljwfsf] aLdfÍ clwstd ?= %),)),))) ;Dd dfq x'g]5 / b'3{6gf d[To' nfe, 

czQm tyf aLdfz'Ns 5'6 ;'ljwfsf] aLdfÍ clwstd /sd ?= !,)),)),))) ;Dd dfq x'g]5 .

lj:t[t hfgsf/Lsf] nflu ;"o{Hof]lt df]jfOn Pk 8fpgnf]8 ug'{xf];\ jf glhssf] zfvf sfo{fno cyjf k|wfg sfo{fnodf ;Dks{ ug{x'g cg'/f]w ul/G5 .
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S.N. Branch Land Line Number Contact No

1 Bhadrapur 023-452575 9801238480 Koshi

2 Bhojpur 029-594094 9801902659 Koshi

3 Biratchowk 021-547700 9820106116 Koshi

4 Biratnagar-Dharan Road 021-503078 9820106120 Koshi

5 Biratnagar-Golchha 

Chowk

021-514655 9802333247 Koshi

6 Birtamode 023-534122 9820106118 Koshi

7 Damak 023-572804/ 23-575423 9820107609 Koshi

8 Dhankuta 026-522548 9801238429 Koshi

9 Dharan-Bhotepul 025-538935 9820106121 Koshi

10 Dharan-College Road 025-535666 9801238517 Koshi

11 Diktel 036-590608 9820106213 Koshi

12 Gaighat 035-423291 9801238478 Koshi

13 Gauradaha 023-480115 9820106122 Koshi

14 Ilam 027-521728 9820106125 Koshi

15 Inaruwa 025-566943 9820106124 Koshi

16 Itahari 025-587339/588607 9801238419 Koshi

17 Itahari-BP Chowk 025-584415 9802332990 Koshi

18 Kakarbhitta 023-590100 9820106126 Koshi

19 Katari 035-450354 9802303455 Koshi

20 Khandbari 029-562023 9801902585 Koshi

21 Okhaldhunga 037-590123 9801904743 Koshi

22 Phidim 024-522421 9820106128 Koshi

23 Solukhumbu 038-520077 9801238559 Koshi

24 Surunga 023-552081 9802321982 Koshi

25 Taplejung 024-461019 9820106254 Koshi

26 Terhathum 026-460708 9820106127 Koshi

BRANCH CONTACT DETAILS

Koshi Province

S.N. Branch Land Line Number Contact No

1 Bara-Jeetpur 053-412284 9820107698 Madhesh

2 Barahathawa 0 9820106152 Madhesh

3 Bardibas 044-550500 9802321983 Madhesh

4 Birgunj-Ghantaghar 051-520052 9820106134 Madhesh

5 Birgunj-Link Road 051-534495 9801238408 Madhesh

6 Chapur 055-540709 9802365633 Madhesh

7 Dhanusadham 041-414059 9820106136 Madhesh

Madhesh Province
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S.N. Branch Land Line Number Contact No

1 Anamnagar 01-5705074 9801904742 Bagmati

2 Balaju 01-4977977 9802322959 Bagmati

3 Banepa 011-660122 9820106175 Bagmati

4 Battar 010-560132 9801238292 Bagmati

5 Bhaisepati 01-5910260 9820106257 Bagmati

6 Budhanilkantha 01-4377886 9820107608 Bagmati

7 Chabahil 01-4580175 9802332900 Bagmati

8 Chapagaun Dobato 01-5265346 9802321987 Bagmati

9 Charikot 049-421501 9801238495 Bagmati

10 Chautara 011-620331 9802332961 Bagmati

11 Chitwan-Parsa 056-582239 9820106260 Bagmati

12 Daman 0 9802332968 Bagmati

13 Dhading 010-520635 9802322871 Bagmati

14 Gairidhara 01-4004673/01-4004716 9820106170 Bagmati

15 Gajuri 010-402499 9802332964 Bagmati

16 Gongabu 01-4964309/4951927 9801238415 Bagmati

17 Gwarko 01-5201526 9820106250 Bagmati

18 Gyaneshwor 01-4545941 9801238412 Bagmati

19 Hetauda 057-524102 9802332970 Bagmati

20 Jarankhu 01-4025658 9820106261 Bagmati

Bagmati Province

8 Gaur 055-521192 9801238485 Madhesh

9 Harion 046-530609 9801238484 Madhesh

10 Jaleshwor 044-590058 9801238551 Madhesh

11 Janakpur-Bhanu Chowk 041-590577 9820106133 Madhesh

12 Janakpur-Mills Area 041-590338 9820106141 Madhesh

13 Kalaiya 053-550298 9820106132 Madhesh

14 Kanchanrup 031-560377 9802321984 Madhesh

15 Lahan 033-563822 9801238530 Madhesh

16 Lalbandi 046-501569 9820107697 Madhesh

17 Malangwa 046-521690 9820107604 Madhesh

18 Mirchaiya 033-550675 9820106147 Madhesh

19 Nijgadh 053-540497 9802322484 Madhesh

20 Parawanipur 051-410120 9820106148 Madhesh

21 Phattepur 031-550023 9820106107 Madhesh

22 Pokhariya 051-560142 9801238449 Madhesh

23 Rajbiraj 031-531077 9820106151 Madhesh

24 Siraha 033-521208 9820106156 Madhesh

25 Yadukuha 041-410074 9820106154 Madhesh
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21 Jawalakhel 01-5423525 9801238414 Bagmati

22 Boudha 01-4595676 9820106168 Bagmati

23 Kirtipur 01-5908103 9801905947 Bagmati

24 Lubhu 01-5580217 9820107603 Bagmati

25 Maharajgunj 01-4017535 9820106176 Bagmati

26 Manbhawan 01-5409005 9801238529 Bagmati

27 Manthali 048-540514 9820106138 Bagmati

28 Narayanghat 056-596607 9802303493 Bagmati

29 New Baneshwor 01-4621486 9820106172 Bagmati

30 Newroad 01-5364995 9802332006 Bagmati

31 Panauti 011-440095 9802322482 Bagmati

32 Panchkhal 011-499432 9801238491 Bagmati

33 Pepsicola 01-5910884 9802322713 Bagmati

34 Rasuwa 0 9801238294 Bagmati

35 Ravi Bhawan 01-5374624 9802332936 Bagmati

36 Satdobato 01-5914098 9801238518 Bagmati

37 Sindhuli 047-521071 9820106180 Bagmati

38 Sitapaila 01-5315169 9820106161 Bagmati

39 Sorakhutte 01-4987508 9820106179 Bagmati

40 Suryavinayak 01-6620360 9820106159 Bagmati

41 Tandi 056-562109 9802335090 Bagmati

42 Thali 01-4451341 9801238309 Bagmati

43 Thimi 01-5900515 9801238406 Bagmati

44 Tinkune 01-5199701, 01-5199670 9801904748 Bagmati

45 Tokha 01-5901768 9802322873 Bagmati

S.N. Branch Land Line Number Contact No

1 Amarapuri 078-417060 9802365632 Gandaki

2 Baglung 068-521606 9801904749 Gandaki

3 Beni 069-521364 9820106186 Gandaki

4 Besisahar 066-521350 9802365630 Gandaki

5 Bhimad 065-572488 9820106188 Gandaki

6 Bhorletar 066-410132 9820106337 Gandaki

7 Bhotewodar 066-400188 9820106190 Gandaki

8 Birauta 061-590996 9801238496 Gandaki

9 Burtibang 0 9801905259 Gandaki

10 Damauli 065-565731 9820106192 Gandaki

11 Gorkha 064-420890 9802341425 Gandaki

12 Hatiya 0 9820106269 Gandaki

13 Kawasoti 078-541016 9820106195 Gandaki

Gandaki Province
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S.N. Branch Land Line Number Contact No

1 Arghakhanchi 077-420952 9802332937 Lumbini

2 Bansagadhi 0 9820106237 Lumbini

3 Bardaghat 078-580496 9820106203 Lumbini

4 Bhairahawa 071-576980/071-576077 9820106212 Lumbini

5 Butwal-Chauraha 071-547786/ 071-

551445

9801238584 Lumbini

6 Butwal-Palpa Road 071-531704 9802365623 Lumbini

7 Chandrauta 076-540727 9802320392 Lumbini

8 Ghorahi 082-563136 9801238497 Lumbini

9 Gulariya 084-420466 9820106226 Lumbini

10 Gulmi 079-520842 9801238552 Lumbini

11 Kapilvastu-Jeetpur 076-550426 9820106208 Lumbini

12 Khajura 0 9820106303 Lumbini

13 Kohalpur 081-541195 9802303473 Lumbini

14 Kotihawa 0 9820107695 Lumbini

15 Lamahi 082-540958 9820106210 Lumbini

16 Manigram 071-562392 9802345155 Lumbini

17 Marchbar 071-401080 9820106352 Lumbini

18 Murgiya 071-440313 9801238526 Lumbini

19 Nepalgunj 081-530286 9820107696 Lumbini

20 Palpa 075-522769/522144 9801238520 Lumbini

21 Parasi 078-520272 9820106216 Lumbini

22 Pyuthan 086-410144 9802332996 Lumbini

23 Rajapur 0 9820106246 Lumbini

24 Rampur 075-400453 9820106218 Lumbini

25 Ridi 079-400020 9820106230 Lumbini

26 Rolpa 086-440276 9820106229 Lumbini

27 Rukum Purba 0 9820106146 Lumbini

Lumbini Province

14 Khairenitar 065-412188 9820106197 Gandaki

15 Kushma 067-420239 9820106198 Gandaki

16 Lekhnath 061-565600 9820106225 Gandaki

17 Pokhara-Nayabazar 061-552201 9801238407 Gandaki

18 Pokhara-Sabhagriha 

Chowk

061-588472 9801238407 Gandaki

19 Putalibazar 063-424269 9802322087 Gandaki

20 Waling 063-441691 9801238487 Gandaki
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S.N. Branch Land Line Number Contact No

1 Botechaur 083-415007 9802333249 Karnali

2 Chhinchu 0 9802332946 Karnali

3 Dailekh 089-410249 9801238531 Karnali

4 Humla 0 9802303487 Karnali

5 Jajarkot 089-430308 9820106100 Karnali

6 Jumla 087-520260 9820107699 Karnali

7 Kalikot 087-440345 9802322997 Karnali

8 Mugu 0 9802341426 Karnali

9 Rukum 088-530329 9801238335 Karnali

10 Salyan 088-400009 9801238524 Karnali

11 Surkhet 083-522547 9801238488 Karnali

Karnali Province

S.N. Branch Land Line Number Contact No

1 Attariya 091-550237/091-551372 9801238424 Sudurpaschim

2 Baitadi 095-520544 9820106234 Sudurpaschim

3 Bajhang 092-421420 9801902589 Sudurpaschim

4 Bajura 097-541329 9820106274 Sudurpaschim

5 Bauniya 091-404167 9802322848 Sudurpaschim

6 Dadeldhura 096-420971 9820106238 Sudurpaschim

7 Darchula 093-420440 9820106239 Sudurpaschim

8 Dhangadhi 091-417253 9820106224 Sudurpaschim

9 Doti 094-412018 9820106235 Sudurpaschim

10 Jhalari 099-540289 9820106242 Sudurpaschim

11 Jogbuda 0 9802303467 Sudurpaschim

12 Lamki 091-540482 9820106236 Sudurpaschim

13 Mahendranagar 099-520410 9820106244 Sudurpaschim

14 Mangalsen 097-620336 9801902586 Sudurpaschim

15 Punarbas 099-420172 9820106245 Sudurpaschim

16 Sukhad 091-403222/ 91-403157 9820107606 Sudurpaschim

17 Tikapur 091-561405 9820106243 Sudurpaschim

Sudurpaschim Province

28 Sunwal 078-570528 9820106219 Lumbini

29 Taulihawa 076-560477 9820106214 Lumbini

30 Tulsipur-Amilia Road 082-523015 9820106221 Lumbini

31 Tulsipur-Jaycees Chowk 082-523434 9820106304 Lumbini
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Shanta Plaza, Gyaneshwor, Kathmandu
Tel.: +977-1-4545941 / 4545942
Email: info@suryajyotilife.com
Web: www.suryajyotilife.com


